
 
 
 
 
 
 Date: 23 August 2006  
 
 
TO: 
 
 
 
TO: 

All Members of the Executive 
FOR ATTENDANCE 
 
 
All Other Members of the Council 
FOR INFORMATION 

  

 
 
Dear Sir/Madam 
 

Your attendance is requested at a meeting of the EXECUTIVE to be 
held in the GUILDHALL, ABINGDON on Friday, 1st September, 
2006 at 2.30 pm. 
 
 
Yours faithfully 
 
 
 
Terry Stock 
Chief Executive  
 
 

Members are reminded of the provisions contained in Part 2 of the Local Code of Conduct, and Standing 
Order 34 regarding the declaration of Personal and Prejudicial Interests. 
 

 
A G E N D A 

 
SECTION I (Open to the Public including the Press) 
 

A large print version of this agenda is available.  Any background 
papers referred to may be inspected by prior arrangement. Contact 
Jason Lindsey, Democratic Services Officer on telephone number 
(01235) 540306. 
 
 
  
Map and Vision   
 

(Page 8) 
 

A map showing the location of the venue for this meeting, together with a copy the Council Vision is 
attached.   
 
STANDING ITEMS  
 

 
 

 



Executive  Friday, 1st September, 2006 

1. Apologies for Absence  
 

  
 

 To receive apologies for absence.   
 

2. Minutes  
 

  
 

 To adopt and sign as a correct record the public minutes of the meeting of the Executive held 
on 4 August 2006, (previously circulated).   
 

3. Declarations of Interest  
 

  
 

 To receive any declarations of Personal or Personal and Prejudicial Interests in respect of items 
on the agenda for this meeting.   
 
In accordance with Part 2 of the Local Code of Conduct and the provisions of Standing Order 
34, any Member with a personal interest must disclose the existence and nature of that interest 
to the meeting prior to the matter being debated.  Where that personal interest is also a 
prejudicial interest, then the Member must withdraw from the room in which the meeting is 
being held and not seek improperly to influence any decision about the matter unless he/she 
has obtained a dispensation from the Standards Committee. 
 

4. Urgent Business and Chair's Announcements  
 

  
 

 To receive notification of any matters which the Chair determines should be considered as 
urgent business and the special circumstances which have made the matters urgent, and to 
receive any announcements from the Chair. 
 

5. Statements and Petitions from the Public Under Standing Order 32  
 

  
 

 Any statements and/or petitions from the public under Standing Order 32 will be made or 
presented at the meeting.   
 

6. Questions from the Public Under Standing Order 32  
 

  
 

 Any questions from members of the public under Standing Order 32 will be asked at the 
meeting. 
 

7. Referral under the Overview and Scrutiny Procedure Rules or the Budget and Policy 
Framework Procedure Rules  

 

  
 

 None 
 

8. Referrals from the Overview and Scrutiny Committees and Other Committees  
 

  
 

 None 
 

9. Financial Monitoring  
 

 (Pages 9 - 10) 
 

 Members are requested to consider any significant budget variances and any requests for 



Executive  Friday, 1st September, 2006 

virement or permanent budget adjustment. 
 
Recommendation 
 
With regard to approved supplementary estimate 4 (set out on page 8), the Deputy Director 
(Contracts and Procurement) is requested to report the effectiveness of the use of the 
promotional budget to the Executive after the year-end. 
 

 
 
 
 

KEY DECISIONS  
 

 
 

10. Forward Plan  
 

 (Pages 11 - 14) 
 

 To receive the Forward Plan containing Executive decisions to be taken from September to 
December 2006.   
 
Recommendation 
 
that the Forward Plan be received.   
 

OTHER MATTERS  
 

 
 

11. Corporate Governance - First Quarter 2006/07  
 

 (Pages 15 - 43) 
 

 To receive and consider report 59/06 of the Directors' Group.   
 
Introduction and Report Summary 
 
To receive the Corporate Governance Report for the first quarter of 2006/07. 
 
The Contact Officer for this report is Tim Sadler, Strategic Director (01235) 540360. 
 
Recommendation 
 
That the Directors’ Group Corporate Governance Report for the first quarter 2006/07 be noted. 
 

12. Commitments to the Oxfordshire Local Area Agreement  
 

 (Pages 44 - 77) 
 

 This report sets out in one place the commitments made by this Council in respect of the 
Oxfordshire Local Area Agreement 
 
The Council has agreed to support in principle the generality of the Local Area Agreement for 
Oxfordshire and to support both stretch and non-stretch targets by adjustments to work plans 
where this does not conflict with Council policies and priorities and is achievable within existing 
resources. 
 
In addition more specific support has been signalled in respect of certain elements of the four 
blocks of the agreement and the twelve specific targets agreed with the Government Office for 
the South East. 
 



Executive  Friday, 1st September, 2006 

Appendix 1 (report 60/06) sets out these specific agreements. 
 
Recommendations  
 
(a) that the Executive confirms that the commitments made by the Council in respect of the 

Local Area Agreement for Oxfordshire are those as set out in Appendix 1; and 
 
(b) that these are communicated to Members, staff and partners. 
 

13. Oxfordshire County-Wide Waste Strategy  
 

 (Pages 78 - 219) 
 

 To receive and consider report 61/06 of the Strategic Director. 
 
Introduction and Report Summary  
 
The strategy employed by the Council in respect of waste minimisation, recycling and 
composting and residual waste collection has been influenced by a wide range of 
considerations.  An extensive programme of joint working between the Oxfordshire Councils 
has led to a revised Oxfordshire Joint Household Waste Strategy.  As one of the partner 
councils the Vale is invited by the Oxfordshire Waste Partnership (OWP) to approve the new 
strategy. 
 

In order to assist Members in considering the strategy this report: summarises its scope and 
content; refers to the associated developments and Action Plans; outlines the main strategic 
considerations for the Vale’s own waste strategy; and identifies which of the waste collection 
options modelled by OWP should be developed further in Oxfordshire.  
 
The contact officer for this report is David Stevens, Assistant Director (Environmental Health) 
telephone (01235 540378).   
 
Recommendations 
  
That Executive recommend to Council: 
 
(a) that Members confirm support for  “No time To Waste” – The Oxfordshire Joint 

Municipal Waste Strategy of August 2006 (The Strategy)and adopt its principles in the 
development of the Vale’s strategy for waste management; 
 

(b) that Members note the outcome of the modelling work set out in Appendix A; 

 

(c) that Members recommend to the Oxfordshire Waste Partnership (OWP) that on the 
basis of the results of the modelling work, the Strategy and the additional information 
presented in this report, Option I as detailed in the Appendix A is supported for further 
development in Oxfordshire; 

 

(d) that Members delegate to the Executive authority to agree the individual Action Plan for 
the Vale as required by The Strategy.  

 
 

14. Reservoir  
 

 (Pages 220 - 224) 
 

 To receive and consider report 62/06 of the Chief Executive and Deputy Director (Planning and 
Community Strategy).   



Executive  Friday, 1st September, 2006 

 
Introduction and Report Summary  
 
Thames Water Utilities (TW) has announced its intention to begin public consultation on 14th 
September 2006.  It is understood that an exhibition will be open to the public at the Guildhall in 
Abingdon, followed by venues in Steventon, East Hanney and Wantage and that the 
consultation period will last 8 weeks.  It is further understood that this first consultation will set 
out the needs case for a reservoir and the case for it being located in the Vale of White Horse 
area. It is possible that an indication only of its location will be provided at this stage with no 
more than a concept design. 
 
TW has indicated that it foresees a second public consultation on design and after use 
proposals taking place early in 2007, again with an 8 week consultation period. 
 
The purpose of this report is to draw some of the immediate issues for this Council to the 
attention of the Executive inviting it to set a framework for this Council’s response and to 
consider future working arrangements with potential partner organisations involved in assessing 
the reservoir proposal.  
 
The contact officer for this report is Mike Gilbert (01235 540681)  
 

Recommendations  
 
(a) that the Head of Communications and Leader of the Council be designated as the official 

contact points at the Council; 
 
(b) that all members of the Council be invited to a private briefing on the proposal prior to the 

submission of the Council’s response to the first consultation; 
 
(c) that an extension of time by four weeks be sought from Thames Water to enable this 

Council to consult widely on views before submitting its response; 
 
(d) that the Council should consult its residents for views in a variety of ways, including  

• a special Vale Voice exercise 

• a special edition of Vale Views 

• an invitation to each Town and Parish Council to express a view 

• a whole area structured survey undertaken by an accredited organisation such as 
IPSOS MORI; 

 
(e) that the County Council and South Oxfordshire District Council be invited to join the 

proposed consultation exercise, both to avoid duplication and to share the costs; 
 

(f) that the Environment Agency be approached to see whether agreement can be reached to 
share consultants on those aspects which directly affect both bodies;  
 

(g) that the County Council and South Oxfordshire District Council be approached to explore 
the scope for joint working in order to avoid duplication and additional costs; 

 
(h) to request the Officers to bring a further report to the next meeting of the Executive, in the 

light of the public consultation by TW, on the resource implications (in both time and 
finance) and proposals on how the Council could best approach its obligations to respond 
to this potential major development. 

 
15. Treasury Management - Review of Activities in 2005/06  
 

 (Pages 225 - 227) 
 



Executive  Friday, 1st September, 2006 

 To receive and consider report 63/06 of the Strategic Director.   
 
Introduction and Report Summary  
 
The Council’s Treasury Management Policy requires a report to be made on Treasury 
Management performance in the previous financial year. 
 
The purpose of this report is to detail the Council’s cash investment performance in the financial 
year 2005/06 and to raise any treasury management issues. 
 
The Contact Officer for this report is Steve Lawrence, Head of Asset Management, tel: 01235 
540321. 

Recommendations  
 
(a) To note the return on cash invested during 2005/06 and the balances of the funds at 31 

March 2006; and 
 

(b) To note the prospects for the return on cash investments in 2006/07. 
 
 

16. Invitation from the Friends of Abbey Meadow Outdoor Pool  
 

 (Pages 228 - 230) 
 

 (Wards Affected: Abingdon Abbey and Barton)    

 An invitation has been received from the Friends of Abbey Meadow Outdoor Pool for the Vale 
to nominate a representative to sit on this management committee.  A copy of the invitation is 
attached.   
 
Recommendation 
 
that the Executive determines whether it wishes to nominate a representative to the Friends of 
Abbey Meadow Outdoor Pool.   
 

17. Exclusion of the Public, including the Press  
 

  
 

 The Chair to move that in accordance with Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, 
the public, including the press, be excluded from the remainder of the meeting to prevent the 
disclosure to them of exempt information, as defined in Section 100(I) and Part 1 of Schedule 
12A, as amended, to the Act when the following items are considered:- 
 
Item 18  Minutes 

(Category 3 - Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular 
person (including the authority holding that information.) 
 

Item 19  Oxfordshire County-Wide Waste Strategy 
   (Category 3) 
    
Item 20  Property Matters (if any)  
   (Category 3) 
 
 

STANDING ITEMS  
 

 
 

18. Minutes  
 



Executive  Friday, 1st September, 2006 

  
 

 To adopt and sign as a correct record the Exempt minutes of the meeting of the Executive held 
on 4 August 2006, (previously circulated). 
 

KEY DECISIONS  
 

 
 

OTHER MATTERS  
 

 
 

19. Oxfordshire County-Wide Waste Strategy  
 

 (Pages 231 - 232) 
 

 To receive and consider Exempt Appendix B to report 61/06. 
 

20. Property Matters  
 

  
 

 To consider any property matters.   
 

 
 



Agenda Annex

Page 8



Agenda Item 9

Page 9



Page 10



Agenda Item 10

Page 11



Page 12



Page 13



Page 14



      

VALE OF WHITE HORSE DISTRICT COUNCIL       Report No 59/06 
  Wards Affected: ALL 

 
REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS 

TO THE EXECUTIVE 
1st September 2006  

Corporate Governance Report First Quarter (April, May June) 2006/07 

 
1.0 Introduction and Report Summary 
 
1.1 To receive the Corporate Governance Report for the first quarter of 2006/07. 
 
1.2 The Contact Officer for this report is Tim Sadler, Strategic Director (01235) 540360. 
 
2.0 Recommendation 
 
 That the Directors’ Group Corporate Governance Report for the first quarter 2006/07 be noted. 
 
3.0 Relationship with the Council’s Vision, Strategies and Policies 
 
 This report 

(a) relates to the entire Vision Statement. 
(b) relates to the Best Value Performance Plan and Corporate Plan and  
(c) Complies with Corporate Planning Timetable.  
 

4.0 Background and Supporting Information 
 
4.1 The Directors’ “Corporate Governance Report” for the quarter looks at the key areas of:- 

• Corporate Priorities 

• CPA Corporate High Level Improvement Action Plan  

• Best Value Performance Indicators 

• Local Performance Indicators linked to priorities for improvement 

• Financial Information 

• Key staffing data 
 
4.2 Corporate Priorities 

In the first half of 2006 the Council’s 6 Corporate Priorities were updated and updated 
Improvement plans were agreed. These were published in the Best Value Performance Plan 
2006/09. An update to these 6 improvement plans to the end of the first quarter is attached.    
 

4.3 Comprehensive Performance Assessment (CPA) - Corporate High Level Improvement Plan 
In July 2006 the Executive noted that a revised improvement plan had been published in the Best 
Value Performance Plan 2006/09. An updated version is attached.   
  

4.4 Best Value Performance Indicators 
Of particular note are:- 
 
BVPI 8: % invoices paid on time 
Performance improving – above target and approaching top quartile 
 
BVPI 12: Days sick per member of staff 
Substantially below target and top quartile performance in contrast to relatively high levels in the 
proceeding year.  It will be interesting to see how this develops across the remainder of the year.  

Agenda Item 11

Page 15



      

Sickness levels and performance improvement are matters being reviewed by the Scrutiny 
Committee. 
 
BVPI 64: Number of vacant private sector dwellings returned into occupation 
Achieved target for year in Quarter 1 due to a number of schemes coming to fruition at once. 
 
BVPI 183a: Average length of stay in B&B (weeks) 
1.85 bed and breakfast weeks.  Above target and approaching top quartile. 
 
BVPI183b: Average length of stay in Hostel (weeks) 
Above target. 
 
BVPI 76a – 79b - Benefits 
Continued strong performance in Benefits Team despite some to be expected disruption due to 
preparation for handover to Capita on 31 July. 
 
BVPI 109a, b, c - Planning 
Major applications – above target, out of bottom quartile but minor applications and others still 
struggling.  This is due principally to staff turnover and sickness.   
 

4.5 Local Performance Indicators 
 It is too early in the year to as yet draw significant conclusions from these indicators. 
 
4.6 Financial Issues 
 There are no major budgetary concerns at the end of the first quarter. 
 

4.7 Staffing Issues 
In addition to Key Staffing Data report, there is an additional comment in section 4.4 (BVPI 12) 
regarding sickness levels. 
 

 
 

DIRECTORS GROUP 
 

Background Papers: Corporate Governance Report of the Directors Group  
 

Page 16



C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
 P

R
IO

R
IT

IE
S

 R
E

P
O

R
T

 
 

 
 

 
 

F
ir

s
t 

Q
u

a
rt

e
r 

2
0
0

6
/0

7
 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
P

ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
R

e
p
o
rt

1
s
tQ

u
a
rt

e
r2

0
0
6
7
1
0
.d

o
c
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

P
a
g
e
 1

 o
f 

1
5
 

 1
. 
W

O
R

K
IN

G
 W

IT
H

 P
A

R
T

N
E

R
S

 T
O

 H
E

L
P

 F
A

C
IL

IT
A

T
E

 T
H

E
 P

R
O

V
IS

IO
N

 O
F

 A
F

F
O

R
D

A
B

L
E

 H
O

U
S

IN
G

 
 Im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n

t 
P

la
n

  

 
A

c
ti

o
n

 f
o

r 
Im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n

t 
M

il
e
s
to

n
e
s
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

t 
/ 
P

ro
g

re
s
s
 

T
im

e
s
c
a
le

  
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 

O
ff

ic
e
r 

1
.1

 
P

ro
v
id

e
 7

5
 u

n
it
s
 p

a
 o

f 
a
ff

o
rd

a
b

le
 

re
n
te

d
 h

o
u
s
in

g
  

T
h
is

 i
s
 a

n
 o

n
g
o

in
g

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
o
u
t 

th
e

 
y
e

a
r 

to
 d

e
liv

e
r 

a
ff

o
rd

a
b
le

 r
e

n
te

d
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 p

ri
m

a
ri
ly

 
a
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

n
e

w
 b

u
ild

 h
o
u
s
in

g
 d

e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n
ts

 
th

ro
u
g

h
o
u

t 
th

e
 d

is
tr

ic
t 
in

 a
c
c
o
rd

a
n
c
e
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il’

s
 L

o
c
a

l 
P

la
n

 p
o

lic
ie

s
 o

n
 a

ff
o
rd

a
b
le

 
h
o
u
s
in

g
 

 

N
o
 u

n
it
s
 s

ta
rt

e
d
 i
n
 t
h

is
 q

u
a
rt

e
r 

T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 f
o
r 

2
0
0

6
-0

8
 

is
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 e

s
ti
m

a
te

d
 t
o
 p

ro
d
u
c
e
 2

5
0
 

u
n
it
s
 o

v
e
r 

th
e
 n

e
x
t 
tw

o
 y

e
a
rs

. 
 T

h
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

c
a
n

 e
x
p
e
c
t 
m

u
c
h
 o

f 
th

is
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 t
o
 b

e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 d

u
ri

n
g
 t

h
e
 

s
e
c
o
n
d
 y

e
a
r.

  
T

h
is

 i
s
 b

e
c
a
u

s
e
 t
h
e
 

H
o
u
s
in

g
 C

o
rp

o
ra

ti
o
n

 b
id

 r
o

u
n
d
 f

o
r 

S
o
c
ia

l 
H

o
u
s
in

g
 G

ra
n
t 

c
o
v
e
rs

 t
h
e
s
e
 t

w
o
 

y
e

a
rs

 a
n
d
 n

o
 R

e
g
is

te
re

d
 S

o
c
ia

l 
L
a
n
d

lo
rd

 w
a
s
 w

ill
in

g
 t
o

 c
o
m

m
e
n
c
e
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
u
n
ti
l 
th

a
t 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 w

a
s
 

fi
n
a
lis

e
d
 i
n
 l
a
te

 2
0

0
5
. 
 A

c
c
o

rd
in

g
ly

 t
h

is
 

q
u
a
rt

e
r’

s
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 r

e
fl
e
c
ts

 t
h
e
 l
u
ll 

a
s
 a

c
ti
v
it
y
 g

e
a
rs

 u
p

. 

M
e
a
s
u
re

d
 a

t 
y
e

a
r 

e
n
d
 

   Ia
n
 M

e
a
d
 

1
.2

 
P

ro
v
id

e
 2

5
 u

n
it
s
 p

a
 o

f 
S

h
a
re

d
 

o
w

n
e
rs

h
ip

 a
n
d
 o

th
e
r 

in
te

rm
e
d
ia

te
 

h
o
u
s
in

g
 

T
h
is

 i
s
 a

n
 o

n
g
o

in
g

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
o
u
t 

th
e

 
y
e

a
r 

to
 d

e
liv

e
r 

a
ff

o
rd

a
b
le

 s
h
a
re

d
 o

w
n

e
rs

h
ip

 a
n
d

 
o
th

e
r 

lo
w

 c
o
s
t 

h
o
m

e
 o

w
n
e
rs

h
ip

 h
o
u
s
in

g
 p

ri
m

a
ri
ly

 
a
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

n
e

w
 b

u
ild

 h
o
u
s
in

g
 d

e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n
ts

 
th

ro
u
g

h
o
u

t 
th

e
 d

is
tr

ic
t 
in

 a
c
c
o
rd

a
n
c
e
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il’

s
 L

o
c
a

l 
P

la
n

 p
o

lic
ie

s
 o

n
 a

ff
o
rd

a
b
le

 
h
o
u
s
in

g
 

 

A
s
 a

b
o

v
e
 

M
e
a
s
u
re

d
 a

t 
y
e

a
r 

e
n
d
 

   Ia
n
 M

e
a
d
 

1
.3

 
       

In
v
e
s
ti
g

a
te

 a
lt
e
rn

a
ti
v
e
 m

e
a
n
s
 o

f 
fu

n
d
in

g
 a

ff
o
rd

a
b
le

 h
o
u
s
in

g
 

E
x
p
re

s
s
io

n
 o

f 
In

te
re

s
t 
(E

o
I)

 f
o
r 

P
ri
v
a

te
 F

in
a

n
c
e
 

In
it
ia

ti
v
e
 s

u
b
m

it
te

d
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
0
6
 

  E
o
I 
re

s
u

lt
 w

ill
 b

e
 a

n
n
o

u
n
c
e

d
 A

u
g
u
s
t 
2

0
0

6
 

A
w

a
it
in

g
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
 o

f 
E

O
I 

E
o
I 

w
ill

 b
e
 

c
o
n
fi
rm

e
d
 

A
u
g

u
s
t 
2
0

0
6
. 
 

 O
u
tl
in

e
 

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 c

a
s
e
 

M
a
rc

h
 2

0
0
7
 

 

    T
im

 S
a
d
le

r 

Page 17



C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
 P

R
IO

R
IT

IE
S

 R
E

P
O

R
T

 
 

 
 

 
 

F
ir

s
t 

Q
u

a
rt

e
r 

2
0
0

6
/0

7
 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
P

ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
R

e
p
o
rt

1
s
tQ

u
a
rt

e
r2

0
0
6
7
1
0
.d

o
c
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

P
a
g
e
 2

 o
f 

1
5
 

 
A

c
ti

o
n

 f
o

r 
Im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n

t 
M

il
e
s
to

n
e
s
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

t 
/ 
P

ro
g

re
s
s
 

T
im

e
s
c
a
le

  
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 

O
ff

ic
e
r 

1
.4

 
C

a
rr

y
 o

u
t 
a
 B

e
s
t 

V
a

lu
e

 R
e

v
ie

w
 o

f 
a
ff

o
rd

a
b
le

 h
o
u
s
in

g
 w

it
h
 a

 s
p
e
c
if
ic

 
fo

c
u
s
 o

n
 v

a
lu

e
 f

o
r 

m
o
n
e

y
. 

 

C
a
rr

y
 o

u
t 
a
 s

c
o
p

in
g
 r

e
v
ie

w
 t

o
 c

o
n
c
lu

d
e
 w

h
a
t 

a
s
p
e
c
ts

 o
f 

th
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 w

ill
 b

e
 f

u
lly

 r
e

v
ie

w
e
d

 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 b

e
n
c
h
m

a
rk

in
g
. 

 C
a
rr

y
 o

u
t 
a
 r

e
v
ie

w
 b

a
s
e
d

 u
p
o
n
 t

h
e
 c

o
rp

o
ra

te
 

te
m

p
la

te
  

 R
e
p
o
rt

 t
o
 E

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 

 

In
it
ia

l 
m

e
e
ti
n
g
s
 p

la
n
n
e

d
 f

o
r 

e
n
d
 o

f 
J
u
ly

 
to

 b
e

g
in

 s
c
o
p
in

g
 P

ro
je

c
t.
  

 A
u
g

u
s
t 
2
0

0
6
 

  S
e
p
t-

N
o
v
 2

0
0
6
 

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
0
6
 

  A
n
th

o
n

y
 

T
yr

e
r 

a
n

d
 

R
o
b
e
rt

 
W

o
o
d
s
id

e
 

1
.5

 
C

a
rr

y
 o

u
t 
a
 r

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 C

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 

C
h
o
ic

e
 B

a
s
e
d
 L

e
tt

in
g
s
 s

c
h

e
m

e
. 

 

C
a
rr

y
 o

u
t 
s
ta

k
e
h
o
ld

e
r 

a
n
d
 u

s
e
r 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 

 R
e
p
o
rt

 t
o
 S

tr
a
te

g
ic

 r
e

v
ie

w
 c

o
m

m
it
te

e
 

C
o
m

p
le

te
d
 J

u
n
e
 2

0
0
6
 

  

  S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
0
6
 

 L
y
n

 
S

c
a
p
le

h
o
rn

 

1
.6

 
D

e
v
e
lo

p
 a

 M
e

d
iu

m
 T

e
rm

 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a

ti
o

n
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 f
o
r 

h
o
u
s
in

g
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

 

D
ra

w
 u

p
 a

 p
ro

fi
le

 o
n
 t
h

e
 d

if
fe

re
n
t 

in
te

re
s
t 
g
ro

u
p
s
 

in
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 t

o
g
e
th

e
r 

w
it
h
 a

n
 a

p
p
ro

a
c
h
 t
o
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
in

g
 

w
it
h
 t

h
e
m

 t
a
ilo

re
d
 t

o
 m

a
x
im

is
e
 t
a
k
e
 u

p
. 

 
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
0
7
 

P
a
u

l 
S

ta
in

e
s
 

a
n
d
 N

ik
k
i 

M
a
lin

 
 

1
.7

 
Im

p
ro

v
e
 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 a

p
p
ro

a
c
h
 t
o

 
ta

c
k
lin

g
 D

o
m

e
s
ti
c
 V

io
le

n
c
e
 i
n
 t

h
e
 

a
re

a
 a

s
 m

e
a
s
u
re

d
 b

y
 B

V
P

I 
2
2
5
. 

B
V

P
I 
2

2
5
 h

a
s
 t
e

n
 m

e
a
s
u
re

s
 o

f 
a
 C

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 

a
p
p
ro

a
c
h
 t
o
 t

a
c
k
lin

g
 D

V
. 
T

h
e
 H

o
u
s
in

g
 I
n
s
p

e
c
to

r 
ju

d
g
e
d
 t

h
a
t 

th
e

 C
o
u

n
c
il 

m
e
t 
o
n
ly

 6
 o

u
t 
o
f 

1
0
 o

f 
th

e
s
e
 a

s
 a

t 
A

p
ri

l 
2
0

0
6
. 
T

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

a
im

s
 t
o
 h

a
v
e
 

s
a
ti
s
fa

c
to

ri
ly

 a
c
h

ie
v
e
d
 8

 o
u

t 
o
f 

1
0
 w

it
h
 a

c
ti
o

n
 

p
la

n
s
 f

o
r 

th
e
 f

in
a

l 
2
 b

y
 A

p
ri

l 
2
0
0

7
 

   

 
 O

n
g
o
in

g
 

th
ro

u
g

h
o
u

t 
2
0
0
6
-7

 

 P
a
u

l 
S

ta
in

e
s
 

a
n
d
  

D
o
t 
M

o
rr

is
o
n
 

1
.8

 
C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 r

e
s
e
a
rc

h
 i
n
to

 t
h
e
 n

e
e
d
 

fo
r 

S
u
p
p
o
rt

e
d
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 

 

B
u
d

g
e
ta

ry
 a

p
p
ro

v
a

l 
g

iv
e
n
 

 S
p
e
c
if
y
, 

a
n

d
 t
h

e
n
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 r

e
p

o
rt

  
  

 
F

e
b
 2

0
0
7
 

 A
p
ri

l 
2

0
0
7
 

 P
a
u

l 
S

ta
in

e
s
 

Page 18



C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
 P

R
IO

R
IT

IE
S

 R
E

P
O

R
T

 
 

 
 

 
 

F
ir

s
t 

Q
u

a
rt

e
r 

2
0
0

6
/0

7
 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
P

ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
R

e
p
o
rt

1
s
tQ

u
a
rt

e
r2

0
0
6
7
1
0
.d

o
c
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

P
a
g
e
 3

 o
f 

1
5
 

 
A

c
ti

o
n

 f
o

r 
Im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n

t 
M

il
e
s
to

n
e
s
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

t 
/ 
P

ro
g

re
s
s
 

T
im

e
s
c
a
le

  
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 

O
ff

ic
e
r 

1
.9

 
R

e
v
ie

w
 t

h
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il’

s
 d

is
c
re

ti
o
n

a
ry

 
g
ra

n
ts

 p
o

lic
y
 a

n
d
 w

o
rk

 t
o
 s

e
c
u
re

 
im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 i
n
 t
h
e

 u
s
e
 o

f 
e
q
u

it
y
 

lo
a

n
s
 

L
o
o
k
 a

t 
th

e
 i
s
s
u
e
 o

f 
d
e
m

a
n
d
 f

o
r 

th
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 

d
is

c
re

ti
o

n
a
ry

 g
ra

n
ts

 a
n
d

 e
x
a
m

in
e
 w

h
e
th

e
r 

b
u

d
g

e
t 

is
 s

u
ff

ic
ie

n
t 
a
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 b

u
d
g
e

t 
p
ro

c
e
s
s
 

 R
e
v
ie

w
 c

o
u
n
c
ils

 t
h

a
t 
h

a
v
e
 s

u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

lly
 

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e

d
 e

q
u
it
y
 l
o

a
n
 s

c
h

e
m

e
s
 a

n
d
 r

e
p
o
rt

 t
o
 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 o

n
 w

a
y
 t
o
 d

e
v
e

lo
p
 t
h
e

 V
a

le
’s

 s
c
h
e
m

e
. 

A
 r

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
g
ra

n
ts

 p
o
lic

y
 i
s
 n

e
e
d
s
 t

o
 b

e
 

c
a
rr

ie
d
 o

u
t 
to

 t
a
k
e
 i
n
to

 a
c
c
o
u
n
t 

th
e
 

H
o
u
s
in

g
 A

c
t 
2
0

0
4
 (

H
o

u
s
in

g
 H

e
a

lt
h
 a

n
d
 

S
a
fe

ty
 R

a
ti
n
g
 S

ys
te

m
).

 
 D

is
c
u
s
s
io

n
s
 h

a
v
e

 t
a
k
e
n
 p

la
c
e
 f

o
r 

a
 

c
o
n
s
o
rt

iu
m

 b
a
s
e
d
 e

q
u

it
y
 r

e
le

a
s
e
 

s
c
h
e
m

e
, 
b
u
t 
p
ro

g
re

s
s
 h

a
s
 s

ta
lle

d
 d

u
e
 

to
 t
h

e
 i
n
a
b

ili
ty

 t
o
 i
d

e
n
ti
fy

 a
 s

u
it
a
b

le
 

fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
p
ro

v
id

e
r.

 F
u
rt

h
e
r 

in
v
e
s
ti
g
a

ti
o

n
 

in
to

 a
 V

a
le

 b
a
s
e
d
 s

c
h
e
m

e
 n

e
e
d
s
 t

o
 b

e
 

u
n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
. 
 

F
e
b
 2

0
0
7
 

    N
o
v
 2

0
0

7
 

  Ia
n
 F

o
rs

te
r 

1
.1

0
 

   

W
o
rk

 w
it
h
 p

a
ri
s
h
 c

o
u

n
c
ils

 t
o
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
 r

u
ra

l 
h

o
u
s
in

g
 o

n
 e

x
c
e
p
ti
o
n

 
s
it
e
s
 

C
a
rr

y
 o

u
t 
th

re
e
 r

u
ra

l 
n

e
e
d
s
 s

u
rv

e
y
s
 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
 2

 a
ff

o
rd

a
b
le

 h
o
u
s
in

g
 s

c
h
e
m

e
s
 

P
ro

g
re

s
s
in

g
 w

it
h
 i
n
p

u
t 
fr

o
m

 J
o
in

t 
V

a
le

/S
o
u
th

 O
x
fo

rd
s
h
ir
e
 D

C
 R

u
ra

l 
H

o
u
s
in

g
 E

n
a

b
le

r.
 

O
n
g
o
in

g
 

th
ro

u
g

h
o
u

t 
2
0
0
6
-7

 

 Ia
n
 M

e
a
d
 

1
.1

1
 

C
a
rr

y
 o

u
t 
a
 c

o
m

p
re

h
e
n
s
iv

e
 r

e
v
is

io
n
 

o
f 

th
e
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 b

y
 s

p
ri
n
g
 

2
0
0
7

. 

P
ro

d
u
c
ti
o
n

 o
f 

s
u
m

m
a
ry

 o
f 

la
s
t 

y
e

a
r’
s
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 a

n
d

 
p
ro

g
re

s
s
 

 S
ta

ff
 a

n
d
 s

ta
k
e
h
o
ld

e
r 

w
ri
tt

e
n
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 l
e

a
d

in
g
 

to
 p

ro
d

u
c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
a
n

 i
s
s
u
e
s
 p

a
p
e
r 

 F
u
ll 

c
o

n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 e

v
e
n
t 

  D
ra

ft
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 p

ro
d

u
c
e
d
 t

o
 t

ie
 i
n
 w

it
h
 C

o
u

n
c
il’

s
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 a

n
d
 b

u
d

g
e
t 

p
la

n
n

in
g
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 

S
u
m

m
a
ry

 p
ro

d
u
c
e
d
 a

n
d

 s
e

n
t 
to

 a
ll 

s
ta

k
e
h
o
ld

e
rs

. 
    In

v
it
e
s
 s

e
n

t 
fo

r 
e
v
e

n
t 
p

la
n
n

e
d
 f

o
r 

1
4

th
 

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
0
6
. 

J
u
ly

 2
0
0

6
 

  J
u
ly

 2
0
0

6
 

  S
e
p
t 

2
0

0
6
 

  O
c
t-

N
o
v
 2

0
0
6
 

  P
a
u

l 
S

ta
in

e
s
 

1
.1

2
 

C
o
m

p
le

te
 S

u
p
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ry
 

P
la

n
n

in
g

 G
u
id

a
n
c
e
 o

n
 t

h
e
 

p
ro

v
is

io
n
 o

f 
a
ff

o
rd

a
b
le

 h
o
u

s
in

g
  

 

T
h
e
 S

u
p
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ry
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 G

u
id

a
n
c
e
 g

iv
e
s
 

m
o
re

 d
e
ta

il 
to

 d
e
v
e
lo

p
e
rs

 a
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il’

s
 

re
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

 f
o
r 

a
ff

o
rd

a
b
le

 h
o
u
s
in

g
. 

It
s
 

in
tr

o
d

u
c
ti
o
n
 h

a
d
 t

o
 w

a
it
 u

n
ti
l 
th

e
 a

d
o
p
ti
o
n

 o
f 

th
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il’

s
 L

o
c
a

l 
p

la
n
 t

h
a
t 

w
a
s
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 i
n
 J

u
n

e
 

2
0
0
6

. 

R
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
s
 r

e
c
e

iv
e
d
 t

o
 d

ra
ft

 t
o
 b

e
 

c
o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 b

y
 m

e
m

b
e
rs

  
 

 A
d
o

p
ti
o
n
 o

f 
fi
n
a
l 
S

u
p
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ry
 

P
la

n
n

in
g

 G
u
id

a
n
c
e
 

J
u
n
e
 2

0
0
6
 

  J
u
ly

 2
0
0

6
 

 K
a
ti
e
 B

a
rr

e
tt
 

     Page 19



C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
 P

R
IO

R
IT

IE
S

 R
E

P
O

R
T

 
 

 
 

 
 

F
ir

s
t 

Q
u

a
rt

e
r 

2
0
0

6
/0

7
 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
P

ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
R

e
p
o
rt

1
s
tQ

u
a
rt

e
r2

0
0
6
7
1
0
.d

o
c
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

P
a
g
e
 4

 o
f 

1
5
 

2
. 

C
R

E
A

T
IN

G
 A

 C
L

E
A

N
E

R
, 

G
R

E
E

N
E

R
, 

S
A

F
E

R
 A

N
D

 H
E

A
L

T
H

IE
R

 C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

 A
N

D
 E

N
V

IR
O

N
M

E
N

T
 

 Im
p

ro
v

e
m

e
n

t 
P

la
n

  

 
A

c
ti

o
n

 f
o

r 
Im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n

t 
M

il
e
s
to

n
e
s
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

t 
/ 
P

ro
g

re
s
s
 

T
im

e
s
c
a
le

  
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 

O
ff

ic
e
r 

2
.1

 
D

e
v
is

e
 a

 s
e
ri

e
s
 o

f 
th

e
m

e
d
 A

c
ti
o

n
 

P
la

n
s
 t
o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 i
n
 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 w
it
h
 V

a
le

 s
ta

k
e
h
o
ld

e
rs

 

C
o
n
fi
rm

 a
p
p
ro

a
c
h
 a

n
d
  
m

e
th

o
d
o

lo
g

y
 

R
e
v
ie

w
 e

x
is

ti
n
g
 c

o
rp

o
ra

te
 a

n
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 

c
o
m

m
it
m

e
n
ts

 
 D

ra
ft

 A
c
ti
o
n

 P
la

n
s
 

H
o
ld

 P
a
rt

n
e
r 

C
h
a
lle

n
g
e
 e

v
e
n
ts

 
 F

in
a

lis
e
 a

c
ti
o

n
 P

la
n
s
 

     

A
c
h
ie

v
e

d
 

A
c
h
ie

v
e

d
 f

o
r 

 E
n

v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
C

le
a

n
lin

e
s
s
 A

c
ti
o

n
 P

la
n
  

 T
im

e
ta

b
le

 f
o
r 

A
c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n
s
 t

o
 S

e
n
io

r 
M

a
n
a

g
e
m

e
n
t 
T

e
a
m

 2
1
/7

/0
6
 

 

S
p
ri

n
g
 2

0
0
6

 
S

u
m

m
e
r 

2
0
0
6
 

   S
u
m

m
e
r 

2
0
0
6
 

  A
u
tu

m
n
 2

0
0

6
 

D
a
v
id

 
S

te
v
e
n
s
, 

P
a
u

l 
S

ta
in

e
s
, 

R
o
d
g

e
r 

H
o
o
d
, 

H
y
w

e
l 

G
ri
ff

it
h
s
 (

n
o

w
 

M
ik

e
 

M
a
c
k
a

y)
 

 
C

L
E

A
N

E
R

 
 

 
 

 

2
.2

 
R

e
d
u
c
e
 l
it
te

r 
a

n
d
 d

e
tr

it
u
s
 i
n

 p
u
b

lic
 

s
p
a
c
e
s
 i
n
 t

h
e
  

V
a

le
 a

n
d

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 
u
p
o
n

 c
u
s
to

m
e
r 

s
a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n
 s

c
o
re

s
 

in
 l
in

e
 w

it
h
 a

g
re

e
d
 c

o
u

n
ty

-w
id

e
 

(L
o
c
a
l 
A

re
a
 A

g
re

e
m

e
n
t)

 t
a
rg

e
ts

  

V
a
le

 V
o
ic

e
 P

a
n
e

l 
c
o
n
s
u

lt
a
ti
o
n
 o

n
 W

a
s
te

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 s

tr
e
e

t 
c
le

a
n
s
in

g
 

 P
u
b

lis
h
 t

h
e
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 r

e
p
o
rt

 a
n

d
 r

e
s
p
o

n
s
e
 

A
c
h
ie

v
e

d
 

  L
ia

is
o
n
 E

n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
ta

l 
H

e
a

lt
h
 &

 
C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 C

o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o

n
s
. 
J
u
ly

: 
 O

n
 

ta
rg

e
t 

S
p
ri

n
g
 2

0
0
6
 

  S
u
m

m
e
r 

2
0
0
6
 

D
a
v
id

 
S

te
v
e
n
s
 

2
.3

 
T

a
k
e
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 e

n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n
t 
a
c
ti
o

n
 

to
 c

o
m

b
a
t 
e
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
c
ri
m

e
 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 f

ly
 t

ip
p
in

g
, 

d
o

g
 f

o
u
lin

g
, 

lit
te

r,
 g

ra
ff

it
i 
a

n
d
 f

ly
 p

o
s
ti
n
g

 

A
d
o

p
t 
a
 L

o
c
a

l 
E

n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
Q

u
a
lit

y
 (

L
E

Q
) 

e
n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n
t 
s
tr

a
te

g
y
 

  In
tr

o
d
u
c
e

 F
ix

e
d

 P
e
n
a

lt
y
 N

o
ti
c
e
s
 f

o
r 

s
e
le

c
te

d
 

e
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
c
ri
m

e
s
 

L
E

Q
 d

ra
ft

 E
n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n
t 
s
tr

a
te

g
y
 t
o
 

E
x
e
c
. 
0
7
/0

7
 &

 C
o
u
n
c
il 

2
0
/0

7
: 
O

n
 t
a
rg

e
t  

 O
n
 t
a
rg

e
t 

S
u
m

m
e
r 

2
0
0
6
 

   A
u
tu

m
n
 2

0
0

6
 

D
a
v
id

 
S

te
v
e
n
s
 

2
.4

 
Im

p
ro

v
e
 c

u
s
to

m
e
r 

s
a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 

W
a
s
te

 C
o
lle

c
ti
o
n
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 

Im
p
le

m
e
n
t 
im

p
ro

v
e
d
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
to

r 
a
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 a
n
d

 
a
c
ti
o
n

 p
la

n
 

 P
u
b

lic
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
  

In
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
; 
S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 i
n
p

u
t 

@
 J

u
ly

 a
n
d
 S

e
p
t.
 0

6
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
s
 

 O
n
 t
a
rg

e
t 

S
p
ri

n
g
 -

 
S

u
m

m
e
r 

2
0
0
6
 

 A
u
tu

m
n
 2

0
0

6
 

D
a
v
id

 
S

te
v
e
n
s
 

 
G

R
E

E
N

E
R

 
 

 
 

 

2
.5

 
R

e
v
ie

w
 s

u
s
ta

in
a
b

le
 w

a
s
te

 s
tr

a
te

g
y
 

in
 l
in

e
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 e

m
e
rg

in
g
 

O
x
fo

rd
s
h
ir
e
 J

o
in

t 
M

u
n

ic
ip

a
l 
W

a
s
te

 
S

tr
a
te

g
y
 

S
u
p

p
o
rt

 j
o
in

t 
w

o
rk

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 f
o
r 

th
e
 O

x
fo

rd
s
h
ir
e
 

W
a
s
te

 P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 (
O

W
P

) 
P

u
b

lis
h
 r

e
v
is

e
d
 S

u
s
ta

in
a
b
le

 W
a
s
te

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 

In
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
; 
fr

a
m

e
w

o
rk

 r
e
p
o
rt

 t
o
 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 4

th
 A

u
g

u
s
t;
 O

W
P

 s
tr

a
te

g
y
 

a
n
d
 d

ra
ft

 v
a

le
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 t
o
 1

s
t  S

e
p

t 
E

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 

 W
in

te
r 

2
0
0
6
 

D
a
v
id

 
S

te
v
e
n
s
 

2
.6

 
A

c
h
ie

v
e

 a
 c

o
m

b
in

e
d
 R

e
c
yc

lin
g
 a

n
d
 

C
o
m

p
o
s
ti
n
g
 r

a
te

 o
f 

2
9
%

 i
n
 2

0
0
6
-0

7
 

C
o
m

p
le

te
 t
h

e
 e

x
p

a
n
s
io

n
 o

f 
b
ro

w
n
 w

h
e
e

le
d
 b

in
s
 

fo
r 

g
a
rd

e
n
 w

a
s
te

 &
 c

a
rd

b
o

a
rd

 t
o
 8

0
0

0
 p

ro
p
e
rt

ie
s
 

O
n
 t
a
rg

e
t 

A
u
tu

m
n
 2

0
0

6
 

D
a
v
id

 
S

te
v
e
n
s
 

Page 20



C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
 P

R
IO

R
IT

IE
S

 R
E

P
O

R
T

 
 

 
 

 
 

F
ir

s
t 

Q
u

a
rt

e
r 

2
0
0

6
/0

7
 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
P

ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
R

e
p
o
rt

1
s
tQ

u
a
rt

e
r2

0
0
6
7
1
0
.d

o
c
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

P
a
g
e
 5

 o
f 

1
5
 

 
A

c
ti

o
n

 f
o

r 
Im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n

t 
M

il
e
s
to

n
e
s
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

t 
/ 
P

ro
g

re
s
s
 

T
im

e
s
c
a
le

  
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 

O
ff

ic
e
r 

2
.7

 
A

c
h
ie

v
e

 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 r

e
c
yc

lin
g
 o

f 
n
o
n
 

b
io

d
e
g
ra

d
a
b

le
 w

a
s
te

 i
n
 l
in

e
 w

it
h

 
a
g
re

e
d
 c

o
u
n

ty
 –

 w
id

e
 (

L
A

A
) 

ta
rg

e
ts

  

P
u
b

lis
h
 r

e
v
is

e
d
 R

e
c
y
c
lin

g
 P

la
n
 2

0
0
6
-0

9
 

 Im
p
le

m
e
n
t 
a
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 o

f 
p
ro

m
o
ti
o
n
a

l 
m

e
a
s
u
re

s
 

O
n
 t
a
rg

e
t 

 O
n
 t
a
rg

e
t 

A
u
tu

m
n
 2

0
0

6
 

 W
in

te
r 

2
0
0
6
 -

2
0
0
8
 

D
a
v
id

 
S

te
v
e
n
s
 

 
S

A
F

E
R

 
 

 
 

 

2
.8

 
Im

p
le

m
e
n
t 

th
e
 

V
a

le
 

C
o

m
m

u
n
it
y
 

S
a
fe

ty
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 2

0
0
5
-0

8
 

A
c
h
ie

v
e

 s
tr

a
te

g
y
 t

a
rg

e
ts

 
O

n
g
o
in

g
 –

 Q
u
a
rt

e
rl

y
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 r

e
p
o
rt

s
 

to
 C

ri
m

e
 a

n
d
 D

is
o
rd

e
r 

R
e
d

u
c
ti
o
n

 
P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 (
C

D
R

P
) 

2
0
0
5
-2

0
0

8
 

P
a
u

l 
S

ta
in

e
s
 

2
.9

 
Im

p
ro

v
e
 w

o
rk

p
la

c
e
 s

a
fe

ty
 i
n
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

–
 r

e
g
u

la
te

d
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 

A
d
o

p
ti
o
n
 o

f 
H

e
a
lt
h
 &

 S
a
fe

ty
 E

x
e
c
u

ti
v
e
 (

H
S

E
) 

re
v
is

e
d
 g

u
id

e
lin

e
s
  

  A
c
h
ie

v
e

 r
e
s
u
lt
a
n
t 

in
s
p

e
c
ti
o

n
 a

n
d
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 f
o
r 

2
0
0
6
-0

7
 

 

O
n
 t
a
rg

e
t 

   O
n
 t
a
rg

e
t 

 

S
u
m

m
e
r 

2
0
0
6
 

   S
p
ri

n
g
 2

0
0
7
 

D
a
v
id

 
S

te
v
e
n
s
 

2
.1

0
 

Im
p
ro

v
e
 e

n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n
t 

a
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 f
o
r 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
H

e
a
lt
h
 r

e
g
u
la

to
ry

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 f

o
r 

L
ic

e
n
s
in

g
, 
F

o
o
d

 s
a
fe

ty
, 
H

e
a
lt
h

 &
 

s
a
fe

ty
 a

t 
w

o
rk

, 
P

ri
v
a
te

 S
e
c
to

r 
H

o
u
s
in

g
 

 

C
o
n
s
u
lt
 u

p
o
n
 d

ra
ft

 e
n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n
t 
p
o
lic

ie
s
  

 P
u
b

lis
h
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 c

o
n
s
u

lt
a
ti
o
n
 

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 c

o
m

m
e
n
c
e
s
 

J
u
ly

 2
0
0

6
: 
o

n
 t
a
rg

e
t 

O
n
 t
a
rg

e
t 

S
u
m

m
e
r 

2
0
0
6
  

 A
u
tu

m
n
 2

0
0

6
 

D
a
v
id

 
S

te
v
e
n
s
 

2
.1

1
 

H
e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 H

o
u
s
in

g
 S

a
fe

ty
 R

a
ti
n
g
 

S
y
s
te

m
  
 

A
d
o

p
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 
D

e
p

a
rt

m
e
n
t 
fo

r 
 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
 a

n
d

 L
o
c
a

l 
G

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 
(D

C
L
G

) 
g
u
id

e
lin

e
s
  

C
h
a
n

g
e
s
 t
o
 C

o
u

n
c
il’

s
 s

c
h
e

m
e
 o

f 
d
e
le

g
a
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

n
e
d

. 
A

u
tu

m
n
 2

0
0

6
 

P
a
u

l 
S

ta
in

e
s
 

 
H

E
A

L
T

H
IE

R
 

 
 

 
 

2
.1

2
 

A
d
d
re

s
s
 

a
ir
 

q
u
a
lit

y
 

p
ro

b
le

m
s
 

in
 

p
a
rt

s
 o

f 
A

b
in

g
d
o
n
  

D
e
c
la

re
 a

n
d

 A
ir
 Q

u
a

lit
y
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
A

re
a
 

(A
Q

M
A

) 
C

o
n
s
u
lt
 u

p
o
n
 a

n
 A

ir
 q

u
a

lit
y
 A

c
ti
o

n
 P

la
n
 (

A
Q

A
P

) 
  Im

p
le

m
e
n
t 
a
n
 A

Q
A

P
 

A
c
h
ie

v
e

d
 J

u
ly

 2
0
0

6
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 P

R
A

C
 

2
2
/6

/0
6
 

P
re

p
a
ra

to
ry

 w
o
rk

 c
o
m

m
e
n
c
e
d
; 
p

u
b

lic
 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a

ti
o

n
 d

u
e
 t

o
 c

o
m

m
e
n
c
e
 J

u
n
e
 

2
0
0
7
 

O
n
 t
a
rg

e
t 

S
u
m

m
e
r 

2
0
0
6
 

 S
u
m

m
e
r 

2
0
0
6
 

  2
0
0
6
-2

0
0

9
 

P
a
tr

ic
k
 

L
e
g
g

e
 

2
.1

3
 

P
ro

v
id

e
 a

 S
k
a
te

 P
a
rk

 i
n
 A

b
in

g
d
o

n
. 
  

 
C

o
m

p
le

te
 d

e
s
ig

n
 s

ta
g
e

 i
n

 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 w

it
h

 y
o

u
th

 
g
ro

u
p
s
 

 C
o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 c

o
m

p
le

ti
o

n
 o

f 
S

k
a
te

 P
a
rk

 

A
c
h
ie

v
e

d
 

  C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d

 t
e
c
h

n
ic

a
l 
s
o
lu

ti
o
n
 h

a
s
 

d
e
la

y
e

d
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 

J
u
n
e
 2

0
0
6
 

  J
a
n
u
a
ry

 2
0

0
7
 

M
ik

e
 M

a
c
k
a

y 

Page 21



C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
 P

R
IO

R
IT

IE
S

 R
E

P
O

R
T

 
 

 
 

 
 

F
ir

s
t 

Q
u

a
rt

e
r 

2
0
0

6
/0

7
 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
P

ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
R

e
p
o
rt

1
s
tQ

u
a
rt

e
r2

0
0
6
7
1
0
.d

o
c
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

P
a
g
e
 6

 o
f 

1
5
 

 
A

c
ti

o
n

 f
o

r 
Im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n

t 
M

il
e
s
to

n
e
s
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

t 
/ 
P

ro
g

re
s
s
 

T
im

e
s
c
a
le

  
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 

O
ff

ic
e
r 

2
.1

4
 

Im
p
ro

v
e
 L

e
is

u
re

, 
C

u
lt
u
re

 a
n
d
 

R
e
c
re

a
ti
o
n
a

l 
F

a
c
ili

ti
e
s
  

 
 

 

C
o
n
c
lu

s
io

n
 o

f 
a
g
re

e
m

e
n
ts

 f
o
r 

fu
tu

re
 u

s
e
 o

f:
 

T
u
g
w

e
ll 

fi
e

ld
s
 

S
to

c
k
h
a
m

 P
a
rk

  
M

a
b

ly
 W

a
y 

 
 

 O
n
 t
a
rg

e
t 

O
n
 t
a
rg

e
t 

P
e
n

d
in

g
 c

o
n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 o

n
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 r

o
u
te

 
to

 G
ro

v
e
 d

e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n
t;
  
P

la
n
n
in

g
 

A
p
p

lic
a
ti
o

n
 d

u
e
 S

e
p

t.
 0

6
 

 M
a
rc

h
 2

0
0
7
 

A
u
g

u
s
t 
2
0

0
6
 

T
o
 b

e
 a

g
re

e
d
  

M
ik

e
 M

a
c
k
a

y 

2
.1

5
 

P
ro

v
id

e
 a

n
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 c

o
n

tr
ib

u
ti
o

n
 

w
h
ic

h
 p

ro
te

c
ts

 t
h

e
 i
n
te

re
s
ts

 o
f 

th
e
 

V
a
le

 t
o

 t
h
e

 d
e

v
e

lo
p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

th
e
 

re
g
io

n
a

l 
s
p
a
ti
a

l 
s
tr

a
te

g
ie

s
 f

o
r 

th
e
 

S
o
u
th

 E
a
s
t 
a

n
d
 S

o
u

th
 W

e
s
t 
 

 

C
o
m

m
e
n
ts

 o
n
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o

n
 d

ra
ft

 b
y
 E

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e

 
m

a
d
e
 t
o
 r

e
g
io

n
a

l 
b

o
d

ie
s
 

 G
iv

e
 e

v
id

e
n
c
e
 t

o
 E

x
a
m

in
a
ti
o
n
s
 i
n

 P
u

b
lic

  

A
c
h
ie

v
e

d
 

S
u
m

m
e
r 

2
0
0
6
 

  F
e
b
/M

a
rc

h
 

2
0
0
7

 (
S

E
) 

A
p
r/

J
u
n
 2

0
0

7
 

(S
W

) 

R
o
d
g

e
r 

H
o
o

d
 

2
.1

6
 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
 a

 P
a
rk

s
 a

n
d
 O

p
e

n
 S

p
a
c
e
s
 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 w

h
ic

h
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
s
 p

la
y
g

ro
u

n
d
 

p
ro

v
is

io
n
 

 

C
o
m

p
le

te
 P

la
n
n
in

g
  

P
o

lic
y
 G

u
id

a
n
c
e
 1

7
 (

P
P

G
 1

7
) 

le
d
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

p
a
rk

s
  
&

 o
p
e

n
 s

p
a
c
e
s
 

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 P

a
ri
s
h
e
s
 

C
it
iz

e
n
s
 P

a
n
e

l 
c
o
n
s
u

lt
a
ti
o

n
 

 

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
: 
O

n
 t
a
rg

e
t 

O
c
to

b
e
r 

2
0

0
6
 

   

M
ik

e
 M

a
c
k
a

y 

2
.1

7
 

O
p
ti
m

is
e
 c

o
n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
s
 f

ro
m

 n
e

w
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
ts

 t
o

w
a
rd

s
 l
e
is

u
re

, 
c
u
lt
u
re

 a
n
d
 r

e
c
re

a
ti
o
n
 

  

P
P

G
 1

7
 s

u
rv

e
y
 r

e
s
u
lt
s
 a

n
d
 P

a
rk

s
 &

 O
p
e
n
 S

p
a
c
e
s
 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 t

o
 f

e
e
d

 i
n

 t
o
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
r 

n
e
g
o

ti
a

ti
o

n
s
 

 

A
w

a
it
in

g
 p

ro
d
u
c
ti
o
n

 o
f 

s
tr

a
te

g
y
 t

o
 

o
p
ti
m

is
e
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
r 

c
o
n
tr

ib
u

ti
o
n
s
 b

u
t 

in
 

th
e
 i
n
te

ri
m

 n
e
g
o
ti
a
ti
o
n
s
 w

it
h
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
e
rs

 a
re

 p
ro

c
e
e

d
in

g
 w

it
h
 

a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 i
n
p
u
t 

fr
o
m

 L
e
is

u
re

 s
e
rv

ic
e
. 

O
c
to

b
e
r 

2
0

0
6
 

  W
in

te
r 

2
0
0
6
 

R
o
d
g

e
r 

H
o
o

d
 

2
.1

8
 

C
a
rr

y
 o

u
t 
re

v
ie

w
 o

f 
c
h
ild

re
n

’s
 a

n
d

 
y
o

u
n
g
 p

e
o

p
le

’s
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

n
d
 

in
te

g
ra

te
 w

it
h
 C

h
ild

re
n

’s
 a

n
d
 Y

o
u
n
g

 
P

e
o

p
le

s
 P

la
n
 

 

C
o
n
s
u
lt
 o

n
 t
h
e

 d
ra

ft
 Y

o
u
th

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
  

  P
u
b

lis
h
 

 Im
p
le

m
e
n
t 
S

tr
a
te

g
y
 

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
; 
re

p
o
rt

 t
o
 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 &

 C
o
u
n
c
il 

in
 A

u
tu

m
n
 

 O
n
 t
a
rg

e
t 

 O
n
 t
a
rg

e
t  

B
y
 O

c
to

b
e
r 

2
0
0
6
 

 D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
0
6
 

2
0
0
7
-2

0
0

9
 

 

T
o
b

y 
W

a
rr

e
n
 

 Page 22



C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
 P

R
IO

R
IT

IE
S

 R
E

P
O

R
T

 
 

 
 

 
 

F
ir

s
t 

Q
u

a
rt

e
r 

2
0
0

6
/0

7
 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
P

ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
R

e
p
o
rt

1
s
tQ

u
a
rt

e
r2

0
0
6
7
1
0
.d

o
c
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

P
a
g
e
 7

 o
f 

1
5
 

3
. 
IM

P
R

O
V

IN
G

 A
N

D
 M

O
D

E
R

N
IS

IN
G

 A
C

C
E

S
S

 T
O

 O
U

R
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

 
 Im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n

t 
P

la
n

  

 
A

c
ti

o
n

 f
o

r 
Im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n

t 
M

il
e
s
to

n
e
s
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

t 
/ 
P

ro
g

re
s
s
 

T
im

e
s
c
a
le

  
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 

O
ff

ic
e
r 

3
.1

 
               

Im
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o

n
 o

f 
c
u
s
to

m
e
r 

c
o
n
ta

c
t 

s
tr

a
te

g
y
. 

 
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 t

o
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 e

q
u

a
lit

y
 a

n
d
 

d
iv

e
rs

it
y
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 

B
e
n
c
h
m

a
rk

in
g
  
a
n
d
 b

e
s
t 
p
ra

c
ti
c
e
 –

 
b
e
 a

w
a
re

 o
f 

 

D
e
c
is

io
n
 o

n
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 p

ro
v
id

e
r 

 
 C

o
m

p
le

ti
o

n
 o

f 
m

u
lt
i-
c
h
a
n
n
e

l 
c
o
n
ta

c
t 
c
e
n
tr

e
 

   A
p
p
ro

v
a

l 
a

n
d
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 
p
a

ym
e
n
ts

 
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
  

 R
e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
s
tr

a
te

g
y
 

 A
p
p

o
in

t 
a

n
 E

q
u
a

lit
ie

s
 O

ff
ic

e
r 

  U
p
d
a
te

 t
h

e
 c

o
rp

o
ra

te
 e

q
u

a
lit

ie
s
 p

la
n
 

 P
ro

d
u
c
e

 a
n

d
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
t 
a
n
 a

c
ti
o
n

 p
la

n
 

R
e
p
o
rt

 t
o
 A

u
g

u
s
t 
E

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e

 
 Im

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o

n
 t
o

 r
e
-c

o
m

m
e
n
c
e
 i
n
-

h
o
u
s
e
  
s
u

b
je

c
t 
to

 A
u

g
u
s
t 
E

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 

d
e
c
is

io
n
 

 T
o
 O

c
to

b
e
r 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 2

0
0
6

 
  N

o
t 

y
e
t 
s
ta

rt
e
d
 

 O
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o

n
a
l 
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 i
n
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 o

f 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a

ti
o

n
. 

 S
e
e
k
in

g
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
c
y
 t

o
 a

s
s
is

t 
 

 S
e
e
k
in

g
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
c
y
 t

o
 a

s
s
is

t 
 

S
e
p
t.

 2
0

0
6
 

 J
u
ly

 2
0
0

7
 

  N
o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
0
6
 

 M
a
rc

h
 2

0
0
7
 

 S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
0
6
 

O
c
to

b
e
r 

2
0

0
6
 

 N
o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
0
6
 

H
e
le

n
 B

is
h
o

p
 

3
.2

 
P

ro
m

o
te

 A
w

a
re

n
e
s
s
 o

f 
c
u
s
to

m
e
r 

fo
c
u
s
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
o

u
t 
th

e
 o

rg
a
n

is
a
ti
o
n

  
   

A
c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n
 t

o
 b

e
 a

g
re

e
d
 a

n
d
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
te

d
 

   A
g
re

e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

c
o
rp

o
ra

te
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 s

ta
n
d

a
rd

s
 a

n
d
 

p
ro

to
c
o
ls

 
 R

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
c
o
m

m
e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 c

o
m

p
la

in
ts

 p
ro

c
e

d
u
re

 
 P

ro
m

o
te

 a
w

a
re

n
e
s
s
 a

n
d

 t
ra

in
 s

ta
ff

 
 

N
o
t 

y
e
t 
s
ta

rt
e
d
 

F
ro

m
 

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
0
6
 

 M
a
rc

h
 2

0
0
7
 

  J
u
n
e
 2

0
0
7
 

 J
u
n
e
 2

0
0
7
 

H
e
le

n
 B

is
h
o

p
 

3
.3

 
D

e
v
e
lo

p
 a

n
d
 p

u
b

lis
h
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 

s
ta

n
d
a
rd

s
 

 

Id
e
n
ti
fy

 a
re

a
s
 w

h
e
re

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 s

ta
n
d

a
rd

s
 a

re
 

re
q
u
ir
e

d
 

  C
o
n
s
u
lt
 o

n
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 s

ta
n

d
a
rd

s
 

 D
e
v
e
lo

p
 a

n
d
 p

u
b

lis
h
  

 

S
e
n

io
r 

M
a
n

a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
T

e
a
m

 2
1
 A

u
g
u
s
t 

2
0
0
6
 

F
ro

m
 

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
0
6
 

 J
a
n
u
a
ry

 2
0

0
7
 

 J
a
n
u
a
ry

 2
0

0
7
 

H
e
le

n
 B

is
h
o

p
 

Page 23



C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
 P

R
IO

R
IT

IE
S

 R
E

P
O

R
T

 
 

 
 

 
 

F
ir

s
t 

Q
u

a
rt

e
r 

2
0
0

6
/0

7
 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
P

ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
R

e
p
o
rt

1
s
tQ

u
a
rt

e
r2

0
0
6
7
1
0
.d

o
c
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

P
a
g
e
 8

 o
f 

1
5
 

 
A

c
ti

o
n

 f
o

r 
Im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n

t 
M

il
e
s
to

n
e
s
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

t 
/ 
P

ro
g

re
s
s
 

T
im

e
s
c
a
le

  
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 

O
ff

ic
e
r 

3
.4

 
U

p
d
a
te

 w
e

b
 s

it
e
 t
o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 
a
c
c
e
s
s
ib

ili
ty

 a
n

d
 u

s
a

b
ili

ty
 

 

R
e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
v
a

le
 w

e
b
s
it
e
 

 Im
p
le

m
e
n
t 
c
h
a
n
g

e
s
 

  U
s
e
r 

s
a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n
 s

u
rv

e
ys

 
 C

o
n
te

n
t 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
p
la

n
 t

o
 b

e
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d
 a

n
d

 
im

p
le

m
e
n
te

d
  

 

C
o
m

p
le

te
d
 J

u
n
e
 2

0
0
6
 

 
  D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
0
6
 

 M
a
rc

h
 2

0
0
7
 

 M
a
rc

h
 2

0
0
7
 

A
n
n
 S

a
d
le

r 
    N

ik
k
i 
M

a
lin

 

3
.5

 
D

e
liv

e
r 

a
 c

h
a

lle
n
g

in
g
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 o

f 
B

e
s
t 

V
a
lu

e
 R

e
v
ie

w
s
 o

f 
C

o
u

n
c
il 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

 

A
g
re

e
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 a

n
d
 d

e
liv

e
r 

re
v
ie

w
s
 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 a

g
re

e
d
 b

y
 E

x
e

c
u
ti
v
e
 

(M
a
rc

h
 a

n
d
 M

a
y
 2

0
0

6
) 

A
p
ri

l 
2

0
0
6
 u

n
ti
l 

M
a
rc

h
 2

0
0
8
 

R
o
b
e
rt

 
W

o
o
d
s
id

e
 

  Page 24



C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
 P

R
IO

R
IT

IE
S

 R
E

P
O

R
T

 
 

 
 

 
 

F
ir

s
t 

Q
u

a
rt

e
r 

2
0
0

6
/0

7
 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
P

ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
R

e
p
o
rt

1
s
tQ

u
a
rt

e
r2

0
0
6
7
1
0
.d

o
c
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

P
a
g
e
 9

 o
f 

1
5
 

4
. 

B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 O
U

R
 C

A
P

A
C

IT
Y

 T
H

R
O

U
G

H
 M

A
N

A
G

E
R

IA
L

 &
 O

R
G

A
N

IS
A

T
IO

N
A

L
 D

E
V

E
L

O
P

M
E

N
T

 
 Im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n

t 
P

la
n

  

 
A

c
ti

o
n

 f
o

r 
Im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n

t 
M

il
e
s
to

n
e
s
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

t 
/ 
P

ro
g

re
s
s
 

T
im

e
s
c
a
le

  
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 

O
ff

ic
e
r 

4
.1

 
P

e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 t

o
 e

n
a

b
le

 
d
e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

O
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o

n
a
l 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 o

f 
w

o
rk

. 

D
ra

ft
 s

tr
u
c
tu

re
 a

g
re

e
d
 f

o
r 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 s

ta
ff

 a
n
d
 s

ta
ff

 s
id

e
 

re
p
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
v
e
s
 

Im
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o

n
  
 

 

S
ta

ff
 a

n
d
 s

ta
ff

 s
id

e
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o

n
 a

b
o
u
t 

to
 b

e
g
in

 
J
u
n
e
- 

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
0
6
 

H
e
le

n
 B

is
h
o

p
 

4
.2

 
D

e
s
ig

n
 a

n
d
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
t 

o
rg

a
n

is
a
ti
o
n
a

l 
d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 

 

A
s
s
e
s
s
 w

h
e
re

 w
e

 a
re

 o
v
e
r 

th
e
 6

 t
h
e
m

e
s
 o

f 
 

o
 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 e

n
g
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

o
 

P
e
o

p
le

 m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

o
 

L
e
a
d

e
rs

h
ip

 
o

 
P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 
o

 
C

u
lt
u
re

 
o

 
S

e
rv

ic
e
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

 
P

ro
v
id

e
 a

 v
is

io
n
 f

o
r 

e
a
c
h
 t
h

e
m

e
 w

h
e
re

 w
e
 c

o
u

ld
 

b
e
, 
h

o
w

 i
t 

w
o

u
ld

 b
e

 c
h
a
ra

c
te

ri
s
e
d
. 

 S
e
le

c
t 

w
h

ic
h
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 w
e
 w

a
n
t 
to

 f
o
c
u
s
 o

n
, 

b
a
s
e
d
 o

n
 
o

 
S

ta
k
e
h
o
ld

e
r 

c
o
n
s
u

lt
a
ti
o

n
 

o
 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 a

s
p
ir

a
ti
o
n
s
 

o
 

C
e
n
tr

a
l 
g

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 
le

g
is

la
ti
o
n
 a

n
d

 
g
u
id

a
n
c
e
 

o
 

L
o
c
a
l 
p
o

lit
ic

a
l 
p
re

s
s
u
re

s
 

o
 

E
ff

ic
ie

n
c
ie

s
 a

n
d
 c

o
s
t 
re

d
u
c
ti
o
n
 

o
p
p
o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
 

 
P

ri
o
ri

ti
s
e
 a

c
ti
o

n
s
, 
fo

rm
u
la

te
 a

n
d
 d

e
liv

e
r 

th
e
 a

c
ti
o
n

 
p
la

n
. 

 
 

 
D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
0
6

  
           M

a
rc

h
 2

0
0
7
 

         J
u
n
e
 2

0
0
7
 

H
e
le

n
 B

is
h
o

p
 

4
.3

 
In

v
e
s
to

rs
 i
n
 P

e
o
p
le

 A
w

a
rd

  
 

Im
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o

n
 o

f 
a
c
ti
o
n
 p

la
n
 

A
c
h
ie

v
in

g
 t
h
e

 a
w

a
rd

 
 

O
c
to

b
e
r 

2
0

0
6
 

T
im

 B
a
rn

e
tt
 

Page 25



C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
 P

R
IO

R
IT

IE
S

 R
E

P
O

R
T

 
 

 
 

 
 

F
ir

s
t 

Q
u

a
rt

e
r 

2
0
0

6
/0

7
 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
P

ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
R

e
p
o
rt

1
s
tQ

u
a
rt

e
r2

0
0
6
7
1
0
.d

o
c
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

P
a
g
e
 1

0
 o

f 
1
5
 

 
A

c
ti

o
n

 f
o

r 
Im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n

t 
M

il
e
s
to

n
e
s
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

t 
/ 
P

ro
g

re
s
s
 

T
im

e
s
c
a
le

  
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 

O
ff

ic
e
r 

4
.4

 
          

Im
p
le

m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 r

e
v
ie

w
 p

e
o

p
le

 
s
tr

a
te

g
y
  

 

P
u
b

lic
is

e
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
 a

c
ti
o
n
 p

la
n
 

 
S

p
ri

n
g
 2

0
0
7
 

T
im

 B
a
rn

e
tt
 

4
.5

 
R

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
c
o
u
n
c
il’

s
 a

p
p
ra

is
a
l 

C
o
m

m
it
m

e
n
ts

/P
D

P
 s

c
h
e
m

e
 

 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
 a

n
d
 a

g
re

e
 s

c
h
e
m

e
s
 

T
ra

in
in

g
 

G
u
id

a
n
c
e
 n

o
te

s
 

A
c
h
ie

v
e

d
 

S
u
m

m
e
r 

2
0
0
6
 

T
im

 B
a
rn

e
tt
 

4
.6

 
D

e
v
e
lo

p
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 p

la
n
s
 s

o
 t
h

a
t 
th

e
y
 

lin
k
 t
h
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 a

im
s
 a

n
d
 p

ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 

a
n
d
 c

a
s
c
a
d

e
 t
h

e
m

 i
n
to

 t
h

e
 

c
o
u
n
c
il’

s
 a

p
p
ra

is
a

l 
s
c
h
e
m

e
 

 

 
 

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
0
6
 

H
e
le

n
 B

is
h
o

p
 

4
.7

 
M

a
n
a

g
e
m

e
n
t 
d
e

v
e

lo
p
m

e
n
t 
 

S
M

T
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

  A
w

a
y
 d

a
y
s
 

 C
o
m

p
e
te

n
c
y
 d

ir
e
c
to

ry
 

C
o
m

p
le

te
d
 f

o
r 

S
e
n
io

r 
M

a
n
a

g
e
m

e
n
t 

T
e
a
m

 a
n
d
 E

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 

 A
s
 a

b
o

v
e
 

 In
 d

ra
ft

 

J
u
ly

 0
6
 

  J
u
ly

 0
6
 

 S
u
m

m
e
r 

2
0
0
6
  
 

T
im

 
S

a
d

le
r/

H
e
le

n
 

B
is

h
o

p
 

4
.8

 
G

iv
in

g
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 H

u
m

a
n
 r

e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 t
o
 m

a
n
a
g
e
rs

 a
n

d
 

e
m

p
lo

y
e
e
s
 

Im
p
le

m
e
n
ti
n
g
 s

ys
te

m
 

S
tr

e
a
m

lin
in

g
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
 

T
ra

in
in

g
 s

ta
ff

 
S

e
lf
-s

e
rv

e
 m

a
d
e
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 t

o
 s

ta
ff

 

F
ir
s
t 
p
h
a
s
e
 o

f 
im

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 t
o

 a
 p

ilo
t 

g
ro

u
p
 o

f 
s
ta

ff
 i
s
 n

e
a
ri

n
g
 c

o
m

p
le

ti
o
n
, 

w
it
h
 e

le
c
tr

o
n
ic

 a
n
n

u
a
l 
le

a
v
e
 r

e
q
u

e
s
ts

 
a
n
d
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
re

p
o
rt

in
g

. 
  

O
c
to

b
e
r 

2
0

0
6
 

T
im

 B
a
rn

e
tt
 

4
.9

 
W

o
rk

fo
rc

e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
p
la

n
 

C
re

a
te

 a
 p

la
n

 c
o
m

b
in

in
g

 c
o

rp
o
ra

te
 a

n
d
 i
n

d
iv

id
u
a

l 
tr

a
in

in
g
 n

e
e
d
s
 

 
S

p
ri

n
g
 2

0
0
7
 

T
im

 B
a
rn

e
tt
 

4
.1

0
 

S
ta

ff
 a

tt
it
u

d
e
 s

u
rv

e
y
 

D
e
s
ig

n
 s

u
rv

e
y
 

U
n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
 s

u
rv

e
y
 

C
o
lla

te
 r

e
s
u
lt
s
 

A
g
re

e
 a

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 o

f 
a
c
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 s

ta
ff

 
s
a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n
 /
 b

u
ild

 i
n

 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

d
ia

lo
g
u
e
 w

it
h
 s

ta
ff

 

C
o
m

p
le

te
d
 

S
u
rv

e
y
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
, 

a
n
d

 h
ig

h
 l
e

v
e

l 
re

s
u
lt
s
 a

re
 w

it
h

 t
h
e

 a
u
th

o
ri

ty
. 

 T
o
 

d
e
c
id

e
 h

o
w

 t
o
 f

u
rt

h
e
r 

re
c
e
iv

e
 d

a
ta

 i
n

 
o
rd

e
r 

to
 w

o
rk

 u
p
 a

c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n
s
. 
  

S
u
m

m
e
r 

2
0
0
6
 

N
ik

k
i 
M

a
lin

 

Page 26



C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
 P

R
IO

R
IT

IE
S

 R
E

P
O

R
T

 
 

 
 

 
 

F
ir

s
t 

Q
u

a
rt

e
r 

2
0
0

6
/0

7
 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
P

ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
R

e
p
o
rt

1
s
tQ

u
a
rt

e
r2

0
0
6
7
1
0
.d

o
c
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

P
a
g
e
 1

1
 o

f 
1
5
 

 
A

c
ti

o
n

 f
o

r 
Im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n

t 
M

il
e
s
to

n
e
s
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

t 
/ 
P

ro
g

re
s
s
 

T
im

e
s
c
a
le

  
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 

O
ff

ic
e
r 

4
.1

1
 

U
p
d
a
te

 t
h

e
 I
C

T
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 

S
e
le

c
t 
IC

T
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 c

o
n
s
u

lt
a
n
t 

 C
o
n
s
u
lt
 w

it
h
 s

ta
ff

 a
n
d
 m

e
m

b
e
rs

 a
c
ro

s
s
 t
h
e
 

o
rg

a
n

is
a
ti
o
n
 

 P
ro

d
u
c
e

 s
tr

a
te

g
y
 

 Im
p
le

m
e
n
t 
a
c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n
 

 

A
c
h
ie

v
e

d
  

 A
c
h
ie

v
e

d
  

  S
tr

a
te

g
y
 a

p
p
ro

v
e
d
. 

 

     S
u
m

m
e
r 

2
0
0
6
 

 S
u
m

m
e
r 

2
0
0
6
 

A
n
n
 S

a
d
le

r 

4
.1

2
 

B
e
s
t 
p
ra

c
ti
c
e
, 
b

e
n
c
h
m

a
rk

in
g
 a

n
d
 

v
a

lu
e
 f

o
r 

m
o
n
e

y
 

J
o
in

 b
e
n
c
h
m

a
rk

in
g
 c

lu
b
 

In
p
u
t 

d
a
ta

 a
n
d
 r

e
c
e

iv
e
 f

e
e
d

b
a
c
k
 

A
c
ti
o

n
 P

la
n
 f

o
r 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 

 
O

c
to

b
e
r 

2
0

0
6
 

H
e
le

n
 B

is
h
o

p
 

4
.1

3
 

    

R
e
v
ie

w
, 

in
te

g
ra

te
 a

n
d
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
t 

o
u
r 

ri
s
k
 a

n
d
 p

ro
je

c
t 
m

a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 p

ro
c
u
re

m
e
n
t 
p
ro

c
e
s
s
e
s
 

 

U
p
d
a
te

 p
ro

c
e
s
s
e
s
 

R
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ti
e
s
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
is

 a
c
ti
o
n

 t
o
 b

e
 

re
v
ie

w
e

d
 o

n
c
e

 t
h
e

 D
e
p

u
ty

 D
ir
e
c
to

r 
fo

r 
C

o
n
tr

a
c
ts

 a
n

d
 P

ro
c
u
re

m
e
n
t 
is

 i
n

 p
o
s
t.
 

 

S
p
ri

n
g
 2

0
0
7
 

A
n
n
 S

a
d
le

r/
 

D
D

 C
o
n

tr
a
c
ts

 
&

 
P

ro
c
u
re

m
e
n
t 

 

4
.1

4
 

R
e
s
o
lv

e
 P

a
y
 &

 G
ra

d
in

g
 

c
o
m

p
e
te

n
c
y
 p

o
in

ts
 a

n
d
 m

a
rk

e
t 

p
re

m
ia

 
 

A
g
re

e
 d

e
ta

ile
d

 a
rr

a
n

g
e
m

e
n
ts

 f
o
r 

c
o
m

p
e
te

n
c
y
 

p
o
in

ts
 

R
e
v
ie

w
 a

p
p

lic
a
b
ili

ty
 o

f 
m

a
rk

e
t 
p
re

m
ia

 

U
n
a
b

le
 t

o
 a

g
re

e
 a

 w
o
rk

a
b
le

/a
ff

o
rd

a
b
le

 
s
c
h
e
m

e
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 U

n
io

n
s
/S

ta
ff

 s
id

e
 

 M
a
rk

e
t 
p
re

m
ia

 r
e
v
ie

w
e
d
 a

t 
P

R
A

C
 o

n
 

2
2
.0

6
.0

6
 

S
u
m

m
e
r 

2
0
0
6
 

T
im

 B
a
rn

e
tt
 

4
.1

5
 

P
ro

d
u
c
e

 n
e

w
 p

ro
c
u
re

m
e
n
t 

s
tr

a
te

g
y
 

In
c
o
rp

o
ra

te
 p

ro
c
u
re

m
e
n
t 
h

e
a
lt
h
 c

h
e
c
k
 a

c
ti
o
n
s
 

fr
o
m

 2
0
0
4
 i
n
to

 n
e

w
 a

c
ti
o
n
 p

la
n
 

 Im
p
le

m
e
n
t 
a
c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n
 

 R
e
v
ie

w
 o

u
r 

S
ta

n
d
in

g
 O

rd
e
rs

 a
n
d
 F

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
R

e
g
u

la
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 l
ig

h
t 

o
f 

P
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 
S

tr
a
te

g
y
 

 
S

p
ri

n
g
 2

0
0
7
 

M
ik

e
 M

a
c
k
a

y 

4
.1

6
 

S
tr

e
a
m

lin
e

 a
c
c
o
u
n
ti
n

g
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
 

to
 r

e
d
u
c
e

 w
o
rk

lo
a
d
 w

h
ils

t 
p

ro
v
id

in
g
 

n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 &

 c
o

n
tr

o
ls

 
(w

ill
 b

e
 r

e
s
o
lv

e
d

 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 S

S
O

) 
 

U
p
d
a
te

d
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
 

 
S

p
ri

n
g
 2

0
0
7
 

W
ill

ia
m

 
J
a
c
o
b
s
 

 Page 27



C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
 P

R
IO

R
IT

IE
S

 R
E

P
O

R
T

 
 

 
 

 
 

F
ir

s
t 

Q
u

a
rt

e
r 

2
0
0

6
/0

7
 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
P

ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
R

e
p
o
rt

1
s
tQ

u
a
rt

e
r2

0
0
6
7
1
0
.d

o
c
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

P
a
g
e
 1

2
 o

f 
1
5
 

5
. 

D
E

L
IV

E
R

IN
G

 O
U

R
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

 A
N

D
 D

E
V

E
L

O
P

M
E

N
T

S
 W

H
IL

E
 M

A
IN

T
A

IN
IN

G
 O

U
R

 M
E

D
IU

M
 T

E
R

M
 F

IN
A

N
C

IA
L

 P
L

A
N

 (
M

T
F

P
)  

 Im
p

ro
v

e
m

e
n

t 
P

la
n

  

 
A

c
ti

o
n

 f
o

r 
Im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n

t 
M

il
e
s
to

n
e
s
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

t 
/ 
P

ro
g

re
s
s
 

T
im

e
s
c
a
le

  
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

l
e
 

O
ff

ic
e
r 

5
.1

 
     

C
o
n
te

n
t 
a

n
d
 P

re
s
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il’

s
 M

T
F

P
  

  

A
c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

F
e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0
0
6
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 

P
ri
o
ri

ti
s
a
ti
o

n
 P

la
n
s
 (

S
P

P
s
) 

 In
c
lu

d
e
 a

 w
ri

tt
e
n
 e

x
p

la
n
a
ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 m

a
in

 t
h

e
m

e
s
 

a
n
d
 p

ri
n
c
ip

le
s
 b

e
h

in
d
 t
h

e
 p

la
n
 

 

£
4
7
8

K
 (

7
3
%

) 
a
c
h
ie

v
e
d
 b

y
 2

8
th
 J

u
ly

 
2
0
0
6
 

E
a
rl

y
 2

0
0
6
 

  F
e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0

0
7
 

   

V
a
ri

o
u
s
 -

 
s
e
e
 S

P
P

s
 

 S
te

v
e
 

B
is

h
o

p
 

 

 
 

Id
e
n
ti
fy

 s
p
e
c
if
ic

a
lly

 h
o

w
 r

e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 (

m
o
n
e

y
 a

n
d

 
s
ta

ff
) 

h
a
v
e
 b

e
e

n
 m

o
v
e
d
 t

o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 o
u
r 

c
o
rp

o
ra

te
 

p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 

 A
s
s
e
s
s
 w

h
e
th

e
r 

z
e
ro

 b
a
s
e

d
 b

u
d
g
e
ti
n

g
 c

o
u

ld
 b

e
 

u
s
e
d
 t
o

 s
h
if
t 
re

s
o
u
rc

e
s
 f

ro
m

 a
 l
o
w

 p
ri
o
ri

ty
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 
a
re

a
 t
o

 a
 h

ig
h
e
r 

p
ri

o
ri
ty

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 a

re
a
 

 

 
F

e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0

0
7
 

   A
u
tu

m
n
 2

0
0

6
 

 

S
te

v
e
 

B
is

h
o

p
 

 S
te

v
e
 

B
is

h
o

p
 

  

5
.2

 
D

e
v
e
lo

p
 f

u
rt

h
e
r 

th
e
 S

tr
a
te

g
ic

 
S

e
rv

ic
e
 R

e
v
ie

w
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 (

S
S

R
) 

In
v
o
lv

e
 a

 w
id

e
r 

ra
n

g
e
 o

f 
s
ta

ff
 i
n
 t
h
e
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 

 C
o
n
s
u
lt
 w

it
h
 a

ll 
M

e
m

b
e
rs

 
 D

ir
e
c
tl
y
 l
in

k
 t
h
e
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 S

S
R

 t
o
 t
h

e
 

In
te

g
ra

te
d
 S

e
rv

ic
e

 a
n

d
 F

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
P

la
n
n

in
g
 (

IS
F

P
) 

s
ys

te
m

 &
 M

T
F

P
 

 

D
ir
e
c
ti
o

n
 a

g
re

e
d

 a
t 
D

ir
e
c
to

rs
 G

ro
u
p
. 

 S
c
h
e
d

u
le

d
 f

o
r 

S
e

p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
0
6
 

 F
u
rt

h
e
r 

d
is

c
u
s
s
io

n
 r

e
q

u
ir
e

d
 w

it
h

 S
e

n
io

r 
M

a
n
a

g
e
m

e
n
t 
T

e
a
m

 (
S

M
T

) 
a
n
d
 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 M
a
n

a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
G

ro
u
p
 (

S
M

G
) 

J
u
n
e
 2

0
0
6
 

 A
u
tu

m
n
 2

0
0

6
 

 A
u
tu

m
n
 2

0
0

6
 

T
im

 S
a
d
le

r 
  T

im
 S

a
d
le

r 
 S

te
v
e
 

B
is

h
o

p
 

5
.3

 
Id

e
n
ti
fy

 s
p
e
c
if
ic

 a
re

a
s
 w

h
e
re

 w
e
 

w
ill

 l
o
o
k
 a

t 
a
lt
e
rn

a
ti
v
e
 m

e
th

o
d
s
 o

f 
p
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 
/ 
jo

in
t 

w
o
rk

in
g

 /
 

s
h
a
rp

e
r 

c
o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 
fo

c
u
s
 

 

Id
e
n
ti
fy

 a
re

a
s
 i
n
 t

h
e

 F
e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0

0
7
 B

u
d

g
e
t 

 R
e
le

v
a

n
t 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 p

la
n
s
 t
o
 i
n

c
lu

d
e
 t

h
is

 w
o
rk

 a
s
 a

 
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
b
je

c
ti
v
e
 

 N
e

w
ly

 a
p
p
o

in
te

d
 D

e
p

u
ty

 D
ir

e
c
to

r 
P

ro
c
u
re

m
e
n
t 
&

 
C

o
n
tr

a
c
t 

M
a
n

a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
(P

&
C

M
) 

to
 a

s
s
e
s
s
 s

c
o
p
e
 

fo
r 

re
n
e
g
o
ti
a
ti
n
g
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 
c
o

n
tr

a
c
ts

 &
 d

e
liv

e
ri
n

g
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 i
n
 m

o
re

 c
o
s
t-

e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e
 w

a
y
 

 A
c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

th
e

 2
.5

%
 a

n
n
u
a

l 
e
ff

ic
ie

n
c
y
 

s
a
v
in

g
s
 f

o
r 

2
0
0

5
/0

6
 -

 2
0

0
7
/0

8
, 
a
s
 d

e
ta

ile
d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 

A
n
n

u
a

l 
E

ff
ic

ie
n
c
y
 S

ta
te

m
e
n
ts

 

          T
h
e
 0

5
/0

6
 b

a
c
k
w

a
rd

 l
o

o
k
 A

n
n
u
a

l 
E

ff
ic

ie
n
c
y
 S

ta
te

m
e
n
t 
h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 

c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 a

n
d
 d

e
m

o
n
s
tr

a
te

s
 

a
c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

th
e
 r

e
q
u

ir
e

d
 2

.5
%

. 

F
e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0

0
7
 

 M
a
rc

h
 2

0
0
7
 

   M
a
rc

h
 2

0
0
7
 

   O
n
g
o
in

g
 

T
e
rr

y
 S

to
c
k
 

 V
a
ri

o
u
s
 

  M
ik

e
 

M
a
c
k
a

y 
   S

te
v
e
 

B
is

h
o

p
 

Page 28



C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
 P

R
IO

R
IT

IE
S

 R
E

P
O

R
T

 
 

 
 

 
 

F
ir

s
t 

Q
u

a
rt

e
r 

2
0
0

6
/0

7
 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
P

ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
R

e
p
o
rt

1
s
tQ

u
a
rt

e
r2

0
0
6
7
1
0
.d

o
c
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

P
a
g
e
 1

3
 o

f 
1
5
 

  Page 29



C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
 P

R
IO

R
IT

IE
S

 R
E

P
O

R
T

 
 

 
 

 
 

F
ir

s
t 

Q
u

a
rt

e
r 

2
0
0

6
/0

7
 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
P

ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
R

e
p
o
rt

1
s
tQ

u
a
rt

e
r2

0
0
6
7
1
0
.d

o
c
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

P
a
g
e
 1

4
 o

f 
1
5
 

6
. 
IM

P
R

O
V

IN
G

 B
O

T
H

 I
N

T
E

R
N

A
L

 A
N

D
 E

X
T

E
R

N
A

L
 C

O
M

M
U

N
IC

A
T

IO
N

 
 Im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n

t 
P

la
n

  

 
A

c
ti

o
n

 
M

il
e
s
to

n
e
s
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

t 
/ 
P

ro
g

re
s
s
 

T
im

e
s
c
a
le

  
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
  

O
ff

ic
e
r 

6
.1

 
U

p
d
a
te

 c
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
s
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 

re
g
a
rd

in
g
  

In
te

rn
a

l 
c
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o

n
s
, 
b

ra
n
d
in

g
, 

c
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
s
 c

h
a
n
n

e
ls

, 
m

a
n
a
g
in

g
 t

h
e
 m

e
d
ia

 
 

P
ro

d
u
c
ti
o
n

 o
f 

th
e
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 

Im
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 a

c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n
 

In
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 o

f 
a
g
re

e
in

g
 

c
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
s
 t

e
a
m

 s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 

S
p
ri

n
g
 2

0
0
7
 

N
ik

k
i 
M

a
lin

 

6
.2

 
In

v
e
s
ti
g

a
te

 p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o

n
 i
n
 t

h
e
 I
D

E
A

 
re

p
u
ta

ti
o

n
s
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 

D
e
c
id

e
 w

h
e

th
e
r 

to
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
te

 i
n
 R

e
p
u
ta

ti
o

n
s
 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 

P
ro

d
u
c
ti
o
n

 a
n

d
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

A
c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n
 

 

R
e
p
o
rt

 t
o
 E

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 A

u
g
u
s
t 

0
6
. 
 I
f 

a
d
o
p

te
d
 t

h
is

 w
ill

 s
h

a
p
e
 

C
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
s
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 

O
c
to

b
e
r 

2
0

0
6
 

N
ik

k
i 
M

a
lin

 

6
.3

 
U

p
d
a
te

 c
o
n
s
u

lt
a
ti
o

n
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 a

n
d
 

a
c
ti
o
n

 p
la

n
 t

o
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 m

e
c
h
a
n
is

m
s
 

fo
r 

re
a
c
h
in

g
 v

u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 a
n
d

 h
a
rd

 t
o
 

re
a
c
h
 g

ro
u

p
s
 (

a
ff

o
rd

a
b
le

 h
o
u
s
in

g
 

(A
F

 p
4
9
) 

re
p
o
rt

) 
  

D
e
v
e
lo

p
 a

 m
e
d
iu

m
 t
e
rm

 C
o
n
s
u
lt
a

ti
o

n
 P

la
n
 (

2
0

0
6
 

–
 2

0
0
9
) 

 C
a
rr

y
 o

u
t 

w
id

e
 s

c
a

le
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 e

x
e
rc

is
e
s
 t

o
 

fu
rt

h
e
r 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
 o

u
r 

c
o
rp

o
ra

te
 a

im
s
 d

u
ri
n
g
 2

0
0
6
 

 D
e
v
e
lo

p
 a

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 t
o
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
 o

n
 t

h
e
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

s
 f

o
r 

a
ll 

re
le

v
a
n
t 

a
re

a
s
 o

f 
th

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

a
n
d

 p
ro

m
o
te

 t
h
e
 s

ta
n

d
a
rd

s
 

o
n
c
e
 f

in
a

lis
e

d
. 
 

 

R
e
p
o
rt

 t
o
 E

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 A

u
g
u
s
t 

0
6
. 
 I
f 

a
d
o
p

te
d
 t

h
is

 w
ill

 s
h

a
p
e
 

C
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
s
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 (

N
o

w
 

a
d
o
p

te
d
) 

S
p
ri

n
g
 2

0
0
7
 

N
ik

k
i 
M

a
lin

 

6
.4

 
C

o
n
s
u
lt
, 
d

e
v
e
lo

p
 a

n
d
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
t 

p
ro

c
e
d
u
re

s
 t

o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h

a
t 

w
e
 r

e
a
c
h
 

e
v
e
ry

o
n

e
 w

it
h

in
 o

u
r 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
  

A
p
p

o
in

tm
e
n
t 
o
f 

a
n
 E

q
u
a

lit
ie

s
 O

ff
ic

e
r 

 U
p
d
a
te

d
 c

o
rp

o
ra

te
 e

q
u
a
lit

ie
s
 p

la
n
 

 P
ro

d
u
c
ti
o
n

 a
n

d
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n

 o
f 

a
n
 a

c
ti
o
n

 p
la

n
 

 

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 o

n
 d

ra
ft

 s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 a

b
o
u
t 
to

 
b
e
g

in
. 
  

In
 o

rd
e
r 

to
 m

o
v
e
 f

o
rw

a
rd

 t
h
e

 
c
o
rp

o
ra

te
 e

q
u

a
lit

ie
s
 p

la
n
 a

n
d
 o

th
e
r 

re
la

te
d
 i
s
s
u

e
s
, 
s
e
e
k
in

g
 e

x
te

rn
a
l 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a

n
c
y
 h

e
lp

 t
o

 a
s
s
is

t.
 

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
0
6
 

H
e
le

n
 B

is
h
o

p
 

6
.5

 
D

e
v
is

e
 a

 l
is

t 
o
f 

th
o
s
e
 h

a
rd

 t
o
 r

e
a
c
h
 

g
ro

u
p
s
 a

n
d
 a

 w
a

y
 o

f 
c
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
n
g

 w
it
h
 t
h

e
m

 
 

P
ro

d
u
c
ti
o
n

 o
f 

lis
t 

a
n
d
 p

ro
to

c
o
l 
fo

r 
m

a
in

ta
in

in
g
 i
t 

 P
ro

c
e
d
u
re

 f
o
r 

a
c
c
e
s
s
in

g
 h

a
rd

 t
o
 r

e
a
c
h

 g
ro

u
p
s
 

 
S

p
ri

n
g
 2

0
0
7
 

H
e
le

n
 B

is
h
o

p
 

Page 30



C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
 P

R
IO

R
IT

IE
S

 R
E

P
O

R
T

 
 

 
 

 
 

F
ir

s
t 

Q
u

a
rt

e
r 

2
0
0

6
/0

7
 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
P

ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
R

e
p
o
rt

1
s
tQ

u
a
rt

e
r2

0
0
6
7
1
0
.d

o
c
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

P
a
g
e
 1

5
 o

f 
1
5
 

 
A

c
ti

o
n

 
M

il
e
s
to

n
e
s
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

t 
/ 
P

ro
g

re
s
s
 

T
im

e
s
c
a
le

  
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
  

O
ff

ic
e
r 

6
.6

 
A

s
s
e
s
s
 s

ta
ff

 s
a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 t
h
e

 
V

a
le

  
in

 t
e
rm

s
 o

f 
s
a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n
, 

w
o
rk

lo
a
d
, 
re

w
a
rd

 a
n

d
 r

e
c
o

g
n
it
io

n
, 

c
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
s
, 

tr
a
in

in
g
 a

n
d
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

 

C
o
n
d

u
c
t 
b
a
s
e

lin
e
 s

ta
ff

 a
tt
it
u
d
e
 s

u
rv

e
y
 

 C
o
lla

te
 f

e
e
d
b
a
c
k
 

 C
ir
c
u
la

te
 r

e
s
u

lt
s
 

 D
e
v
is

e
 a

n
d
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
t 
a
c
ti
o
n
 p

la
n
s
 

 F
o
llo

w
 u

p
 s

u
rv

e
y
 

A
c
h
ie

v
e

d
. 

 H
e
a
d
 l
in

e
 f

e
e
d

b
a
c
k
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
d
. 
 T

o
 

d
e
c
id

e
 h

o
w

 t
o
 f

u
rt

h
e
r 

re
c
e
iv

e
 d

a
ta

 i
n

 
o
rd

e
r 

to
 w

o
rk

 u
p
 a

c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n
s
. 
  

S
u
m

m
e
r 

2
0
0
6
 

N
ik

k
i 
M

a
lin

 

6
.7

 
R

e
v
ie

w
 t

h
e
 i
n
te

rn
a

l 
c
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
s
 t

o
o

ls
 f

o
r 

th
e
 

o
rg

a
n

is
a
ti
o
n
 

 

R
e
p
o
rt

s
 n

e
e
d

e
d
 

 T
e
s
t 
a
n
d
 c

h
e
c
k
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
  

a
n
d
 u

n
d

e
rs

ta
n
d

in
g

 o
f 

th
e
 v

is
io

n
 

W
ill

 b
e
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

a
c
ti
o
n
 p

la
n
n

in
g
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 

s
ta

ff
 s

u
rv

e
y
. 

S
p
ri

n
g
 2

0
0
7

  
N

ik
k
i 
M

a
lin

 

 Page 31



C
o

m
p

re
h

e
n

si
v

e 
P

er
fo

rm
a

n
c
e 

A
ss

es
sm

e
n

t 
(C

P
A

) 
C

o
r
p

o
ra

te
 H

ig
h

 L
ev

el
 I

m
p

ro
v

e
m

e
n

t 
P

la
n

 –
 F

ir
st

 Q
u

a
r
te

r 
2

0
0
6

-7
 

 
 

 
 

D
:\
m

o
d
e
rn

g
o
v
\D

a
ta

\A
g
e
n
d
a

It
e
m

D
o
c
s
\4

\7
\7

\A
I0

0
0
0
4

7
7

4
\C

P
A

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
H

ig
h
L
e
v
e
lQ

1
1
2
0

.d
o
c
 

 
P

a
g
e
 1

 o
f 
4
 

 
2
3

/0
8

/2
0

0
6
 

 
 R

E
S

P
O

N
S

IB
L

E
 

O
F

F
IC

E
R

 

 A
C

T
IO

N
 F

O
R

 
IM

P
R

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
 

 M
IL

E
S

T
O

N
E

S
 

 

 T
IM

E
- 

S
C

A
L

E
 

 P
R

O
G

R
E

S
S

 A
S

 A
T

 
  

3
0

 J
u

n
e
 2

0
0

6
 

  

1
.1

 
J
P

 /
 T

A
S

 
C

la
ri

fy
 a

im
s

 a
n

d
 o

b
je

c
ti

v
e

s
 

fo
r 

c
o

u
n

c
il

 
E

x
a
m

in
e
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 A

im
s
 a

n
d

 i
d

e
n
ti
fy

 
m

e
d

iu
m

 t
e

rm
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
e

s
 a

n
d
 t

a
rg

e
ts

 
N

o
v
 0

6
 

 
E

v
e

n
t 

w
it
h

 m
e

m
b

e
rs

 
p

la
n

n
e

d
 f

o
r 

O
c
to

b
e

r.
  

Im
p

ro
v
e

d
 d

e
s
c
ri

p
ti
o
n

 a
n

d
 

p
re

s
e
n

ta
ti
o

n
 o

f 
C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 

P
ri

o
ri

ti
e
s
 i
n

 B
V

P
P

 a
n

d
 

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 G
o
v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 
R

e
p

o
rt

 

1
.2

 
 

 
In

v
o

lv
e

 w
id

e
r 

m
e
m

b
e

rs
h

ip
 i
n

 
id

e
n

ti
fy

in
g

 o
b

je
c
ti
v
e

s
 a

n
d

 t
a

rg
e

ts
 

N
o

v
 0

6
 

 
E

v
e

n
t 

w
it
h

 m
e

m
b

e
rs

 
p

la
n

n
e

d
 f

o
r 

O
c
to

b
e

r.
  

Im
p

ro
v
e

d
 d

e
s
c
ri

p
ti
o
n

 a
n

d
 

p
re

s
e
n

ta
ti
o

n
 o

f 
C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 

P
ri

o
ri

ti
e
s
 i
n

 B
V

P
P

 a
n

d
 

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 G
o
v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 
R

e
p

o
rt

 

1
.3

 
 

 
In

v
o

lv
e

 s
ta

ff
 i
n

 i
d

e
n

ti
fy

in
g
 t

a
rg

e
ts

 a
n

d
 

a
c
ti
o
n

s
 t

o
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
. 

N
o

v
 0

6
 –

 J
a

n
 

0
7
 

P
la

n
n

e
d

 t
o

 f
o

llo
w

 
M

e
m

b
e
r 

e
v
e
n

t 

1
.4

 
 

 
U

p
d

a
te

 C
o

rp
o
ra

te
 P

la
n
 l
in

k
e

d
 t

o
 

o
b

je
c
ti
v
e
s
 

J
u

ly
 0

6
 

  

In
 p

ro
g

re
s
s
. 
  

1
.5

 
 

 
L

in
k
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
e

s
 i
n

to
 t

h
e

 I
n

te
g

ra
te

d
 

S
e
rv

ic
e

 a
n

d
 F

in
a

n
c
ia

l 
P

la
n

n
in

g
  

p
ro

c
e

s
s
 

D
e

c
 -

 F
e
b

 0
6

 
 

1
.6

 
 

 
E

n
s
u

re
 t

h
a
t 

c
o

re
 s

tr
a
te

g
ic

 d
o

c
u
m

e
n

ts
 

d
e

s
c
ri

b
e

 a
im

s
 a

n
d

 o
b

je
c
ti
v
e

s
 i
n

 
c
o

n
s
is

te
n

t 
m

a
n

n
e

r 

F
e

b
 0

7
 

 

1
.7

 
 

 
E

x
a
m

in
e
 r

o
le

 o
f 

p
a

rt
n

e
rs

 i
n

 d
e
liv

e
ri

n
g
 

a
im

s
 a

n
d

 o
b

je
c
ti
v
e

s
 a

n
d

 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
t 

m
e

c
h

a
n

is
m

 t
o

 m
o

n
it
o

r 
c
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o
n

 

D
e

c
 0

6
 

R
e

v
ie

w
 c

u
rr

e
n

tl
y 

b
e
in

g
 

s
c
o
p

e
d

 

2
.1

 
J
P

 /
 T

S
 

Im
p

ro
v
e

 m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 

M
a

k
e

 l
in

k
s
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 a

im
s
 a

n
d

 
o

b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
 a

n
d

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 p

la
n

s
 m

o
re

 
e

x
p

lic
it
 

•
 

S
e
c
o

n
d

 p
a
s
s
 0

6
/0

7
 

•
 

F
ir

s
t 

p
a

s
s
 0

7
/0

8
 

   S
e

p
t 

0
6

 
M

a
r 

0
7

 

F
ir
s
t 

p
a
s
s
 a

c
h

ie
v
e

d
. 

 
S

e
c
o

n
d
 p

a
s
s
 w

ill
 f

o
llo

w
 

1
.1

 –
 1

.3
 a

b
o

v
e

 

2
.2

 
 

 
 

C
a

rr
y
o
u

t 
s
e

rv
ic

e
 B

e
s
t 

V
a

lu
e

 R
e

v
ie

w
 

o
f 

p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 m
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
to

 
e

n
s
u
re

 V
a

le
 h

a
s
 s

u
ff

ic
ie

n
t 

c
a

p
a

c
it
y
 t

o
 

d
e

liv
e
r 

D
e

c
 0

6
 

P
o

te
n

ti
a

lly
 o

v
e
rt

a
k
e
n

 b
y
 

p
ro

p
o

s
a

ls
 f

o
r 

a
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
re

s
o

u
rc

e
s
 i
n

 s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 

p
ro

p
o

s
a

ls
 b

e
in

g
 

c
o
n

s
u

lt
e

d
 o

n
. 

2
.3

 
 

 
C

a
s
c
a

d
e
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 R

e
v
ie

w
 M

e
e
ti
n

g
s
 

d
o

w
n

 t
o
 t

h
ir

d
 t

ie
r 

S
e

p
t 

0
6

 
In

 p
la

c
e

 i
n

 s
o

m
e

 a
re

a
s
 –

 
J
u
ly

 0
6

 

Page 32



C
o

m
p

re
h

e
n

si
v

e 
P

er
fo

rm
a

n
c
e 

A
ss

es
sm

e
n

t 
(C

P
A

) 
C

o
r
p

o
ra

te
 H

ig
h

 L
ev

el
 I

m
p

ro
v

e
m

e
n

t 
P

la
n

 –
 F

ir
st

 Q
u

a
r
te

r 
2

0
0
6

-7
 

 
 

 
 

D
:\
m

o
d
e
rn

g
o
v
\D

a
ta

\A
g
e
n
d
a

It
e
m

D
o
c
s
\4

\7
\7

\A
I0

0
0
0
4

7
7

4
\C

P
A

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
H

ig
h
L
e
v
e
lQ

1
1
2
0

.d
o
c
 

 
P

a
g
e
 2

 o
f 
4
 

 
2
3

/0
8

/2
0

0
6
 

 
 R

E
S

P
O

N
S

IB
L

E
 

O
F

F
IC

E
R

 

 A
C

T
IO

N
 F

O
R

 
IM

P
R

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
 

 M
IL

E
S

T
O

N
E

S
 

 

 T
IM

E
- 

S
C

A
L

E
 

 P
R

O
G

R
E

S
S

 A
S

 A
T

 
  

3
0

 J
u

n
e
 2

0
0

6
 

  

2
.4

 
 

 
In

v
o

lv
e

 m
e
m

b
e

rs
 a

n
d

 s
ta

ff
 i
n

 
id

e
n

ti
fy

in
g

 l
o

n
g
e

r 
te

rm
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
e

s
 f

o
r 

c
o

rp
o

ra
te

 p
ri

o
ri

ti
e

s
 

S
e

p
t/

O
c
t 

0
6

 
 

3
.1

 
 

T
a

k
e
 f

o
rw

a
rd

 t
o

 n
e

x
t 

le
v
e

l 
a

p
p

ro
a

c
h

 t
o

 d
iv

e
rs

it
y
 

U
p

d
a

te
 a

n
d

 r
e

-p
u

b
lis

h
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 

E
q
u

a
lit

ie
s
 P

la
n
 

S
e

p
t 

0
6

  
 

 

3
.2

 
 

 
U

p
d

a
te

 a
n

d
 r

e
-p

u
b

lis
h

 R
a

c
e
 

R
e

la
ti
o

n
s
 S

c
h
e

m
e

 
S

e
p

t 
0
6

 
 

3
.3

 
 

 
U

p
d

a
te

, 
re

fr
e

s
h

 a
n

d
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n

t 
s
e

rv
ic

e
 e

q
u

a
lit

ie
s
 p

la
n

s
 

O
c
t 

0
6
 

H
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 f

o
r 

p
la

n
n
in

g
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 

 
 

 
A

p
p

o
in

t 
n

e
w

 e
q

u
a

lit
ie

s
 o

ff
ic

e
r 

S
e

p
t 

0
6

 
 

4
.1

 
 

A
p

p
ro

a
c

h
 t

o
 V

a
lu

e
 f

o
r 

M
o

n
e

y
 

V
F

M
 

C
o

n
ti
n

u
e

 t
o
 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
t 

s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 
a

p
p
ro

a
c
h

 t
o
 V

F
M

 
A

p
r 

0
6
 

 

4
.2

 
 

 
 

A
p
p

ro
v
e

 V
F

M
 a

c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

 
S

e
p

t 
0
6

 
 

4
.3

 
 

 
H

a
v
e

 i
n

 p
la

c
e

 c
o

s
t 

a
n

d
 q

u
a
lit

y
 

p
o

s
it
io

n
 s

ta
te

m
e

n
t 

fo
r 

e
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

t,
 

h
o

u
s
in

g
 a

n
d

 c
u

lt
u

ra
l 
b
lo

c
k
s
 

J
a
n

 0
7

 
 

4
.4

 
 

 
C

o
m

p
le

te
 H

o
u

s
in

g
 B

V
R

 f
o

c
u

s
in

g
 o

n
 

V
F

M
 

D
e

c
 0

6
 

 

4
.5

 
 

 
R

e
v
ie

w
 H

o
u

s
in

g
 V

a
lu

e
 F

o
r 

M
o

n
e

y
 

B
V

R
 a

n
d

 a
p

p
ly

 l
e

s
s
o
n

s
 l
e

a
rn

t 
to

 
o

th
e

r 
s
e

rv
ic

e
 u

s
e

rs
 

A
p

r 
0

7
 

 

5
.1

 
 

B
u

il
d

in
g

 c
a

p
a

c
it

y
 

Im
p
le

m
e

n
t 

O
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 

 

J
u
n

 0
6

 
O

u
tl
in

e
 t

im
e

ta
b

le
 d

ra
ft

e
d

. 
 

P
ro

c
e

s
s
 t

o
 s

e
le

c
t 

d
e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

p
a

rt
n
e

r 
c
o
m

m
e

n
c
e

d
 

6
.1

 
 

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

ti
o

n
s
 

A
p
p

ro
v
e

 C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a
ti
o

n
s
 a

c
ti
o
n

 p
la

n
 

to
 c

o
v
e

r 

•
 

In
te

rn
a

l 
c
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

ti
o

n
 

•
 

E
x
te

rn
a
l 
c
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

ti
o

n
 

•
 

K
e

y
 m

e
s
s
a

g
e

s
 

•
 

M
e

th
o

d
s
 

•
 

A
u
d

ie
n

c
e

s
 

S
e

p
t 

0
6

 
A

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
re

s
o

u
rc

e
s
 f

o
r 

c
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

ti
o

n
s
 f

u
n

c
ti
o

n
 

id
e

n
ti
fi
e

d
. 

 W
o
rk

 p
la

n
 t

o
 

b
e

 a
m

e
n

d
e
d

 a
c
c
o

rd
in

g
ly

. 

6
.2

 
 

 
Im

p
le

m
e

n
t 

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

ti
o

n
s
 A

c
ti
o

n
 

P
la

n
  

J
u
ly

 0
6

- 
J
u
ly

 0
7

 
A

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
re

s
o

u
rc

e
s
 f

o
r 

c
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

ti
o

n
s
 f

u
n

c
ti
o

n
 

id
e

n
ti
fi
e

d
. 

 W
o
rk

 p
la

n
 t

o
 

b
e

 a
m

e
n

d
e
d

 a
c
c
o

rd
in

g
ly

 

Page 33



C
o

m
p

re
h

e
n

si
v

e 
P

er
fo

rm
a

n
c
e 

A
ss

es
sm

e
n

t 
(C

P
A

) 
C

o
r
p

o
ra

te
 H

ig
h

 L
ev

el
 I

m
p

ro
v

e
m

e
n

t 
P

la
n

 –
 F

ir
st

 Q
u

a
r
te

r 
2

0
0
6

-7
 

 
 

 
 

D
:\
m

o
d
e
rn

g
o
v
\D

a
ta

\A
g
e
n
d
a

It
e
m

D
o
c
s
\4

\7
\7

\A
I0

0
0
0
4

7
7

4
\C

P
A

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
H

ig
h
L
e
v
e
lQ

1
1
2
0

.d
o
c
 

 
P

a
g
e
 3

 o
f 
4
 

 
2
3

/0
8

/2
0

0
6
 

 
 R

E
S

P
O

N
S

IB
L

E
 

O
F

F
IC

E
R

 

 A
C

T
IO

N
 F

O
R

 
IM

P
R

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
 

 M
IL

E
S

T
O

N
E

S
 

 

 T
IM

E
- 

S
C

A
L

E
 

 P
R

O
G

R
E

S
S

 A
S

 A
T

 
  

3
0

 J
u

n
e
 2

0
0

6
 

  

7
.1

 
 

P
a

rt
ic

ip
a

ti
o

n
 P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 
A

p
p

ro
v
e

 P
a

rt
ic

ip
a

ti
o

n
 A

c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n
 t

o
 

c
o

v
e
r •
 

U
s
e

r 
a

n
d

 s
ta

k
e

h
o

ld
e

r 
p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n

 i
n

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 

re
v
ie

w
 a

n
d
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

•
 

S
ta

k
e
h

o
ld

e
r 

P
a

rt
ic

ip
a

ti
o

n
 i
n

 
p

o
lic

y 
re

v
ie

w
 a

n
d

 
d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 

•
 

S
ta

k
e
h

o
ld

e
r 

P
a

rt
ic

ip
a

ti
o

n
 i
n

 
b

u
d
g

e
t 

O
c
t 

0
6
 

A
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
re

s
o

u
rc

e
s
 f

o
r 

c
o
m

m
u

n
ic

a
ti
o

n
s
 f

u
n

c
ti
o

n
 

id
e

n
ti
fi
e

d
. 

 W
o
rk

 p
la

n
 t

o
 

b
e
 a

m
e
n

d
e

d
 a

c
c
o

rd
in

g
ly

 

7
.2

 
 

 
 

Im
p
le

m
e

n
t 

P
a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o

n
 A

c
ti
o
n

 P
la

n
  

O
c
t 

0
6
 

A
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
re

s
o

u
rc

e
s
 f

o
r 

c
o
m

m
u

n
ic

a
ti
o

n
s
 f

u
n

c
ti
o

n
 

id
e

n
ti
fi
e

d
. 

 W
o
rk

 p
la

n
 t

o
 

b
e
 a

m
e
n

d
e

d
 a

c
c
o

rd
in

g
ly

 

8
.1

 
 

A
c

c
e

s
s

 t
o

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 

Im
p
le

m
e

n
t,

 p
u

b
lis

h
 a

n
d

 m
o

n
it
o

r 
c
o

rp
o

ra
te

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 s

ta
n

d
a

rd
s
 f

o
r 

p
h

o
n

e
, 

m
a

il,
 e

-m
a
il 

c
o
n

ta
c
t 

S
e

p
t 

0
6

 
 

8
.2

 
 

 
Im

p
le

m
e

n
t 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 s

ta
n

d
a

rd
s
 f

o
r 

•
 

E
n
v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
ta

l 
H

e
a

lt
h

 

•
 

H
o

u
s
in

g
 

•
 

P
la

n
n

in
g
 

•
 

B
u
ild

in
g

 C
o

n
tr

o
l 

•
 

C
u

lt
u

ra
l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

 A
u

g
 0

6
 

S
e

p
t 

0
6

 
S

e
p

t 
0
6

 
O

c
t 

0
6
 

O
c
t 

0
6
 

 

8
.3

 
 

 
C

o
n

s
u

lt
 
s
e

rv
ic

e
 
u

s
e

rs
 
o
n

 
s
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
 

a
n

d
 a

m
e

n
d

 a
s
 a

p
p

ro
p
ri

a
te

  
 

J
a
n

 0
7

 
 

 

 

Page 34



Q
u

a
rt

e
rl

y
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 G

o
v

e
rn

a
n

c
e

 R
e

p
o

rt
 -

 F
ir

s
t 

Q
u

a
rt

e
r

B
e

s
t 

V
a

lu
e

 P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 I
n

d
ic

a
to

rs
. 
 O

u
r 

c
u

rr
e

n
t 

p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 i
n

 2
0

0
6

/0
7

.

K
e
y
:

N
/a

 =
 N

o
t 
A

p
p

lic
a

b
le

T
o
p

 a
n
d
 B

o
tt
o
m

 q
u
a
rt

ile
 d

a
ta

 i
s
 a

g
a
in

s
t 
a
ll 

E
n
g

la
n
d
 A

u
th

o
ri

ti
e
s

R
e

d
 -

 w
o

rs
e

 t
h

a
n

 t
a

rg
e

t
�

B
e
tt

e
r

T
re

n
d

 a
rr

o
w

s
: 

c
o

m
p

a
re

s
 f

ir
s

t 
q

u
a

rt
e

r 
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 w
it

h
 t

h
e

 w
h

o
le

 y
e

a
r 

A
c

tu
a

l 
2

0
0

5
/6

 (
n

o
t 

p
o

s
s

ib
le

 f
o

r 
a

ll
 B

V
P

Is
) 

Y
e

ll
o

w
 -

 o
n

 t
a

rg
e

t
�

W
o

rs
e

Q
u

a
rt

il
e

 0
5

/0
6

 c
o

lu
m

n
: 

a
c

tu
a

l 
0

5
/0

6
 a

g
a

in
s

t 
0

4
/0

5
 q

u
a

rt
il
e

 p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 d

a
ta

 (
0

5
/0

6
 q

u
a

rt
il
e

 d
a

ta
 e

x
p

e
c

te
d

 D
e

c
 0

6
)

G
re

e
n

 -
 b

e
tt

e
r 

th
a

n
 t

a
rg

e
t

�
S

ta
b

le

T
 =

 t
o

p
; 

B
 =

 b
o

tt
o

m
; 

M
 =

 m
id

d
le

 q
u

a
rt

il
e

B
V

P
I

In
d

ic
a

to
r 

D
e

s
c

ri
p

ti
o

n
T

g
t/

 I
n

d
T

Q
 0

4
/0

5
B

Q
 0

4
/0

5
A

c
tu

a
l 
0
5
/0

6
Q

u
a
rt

il
e
 

0
5
/0

6
T

a
rg

e
t 

0
6
/0

7
A

c
tu

a
l 
Q

1
A

c
tu

a
l 
Q

2
A

c
tu

a
l 
Q

3
A

c
tu

a
l 

Q
4

o
n

/o
ff

 T
g

t
C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

P
e
rf

o
rm

a

n
c
e
 

T
re

n
d

T
a
rg

e
t 

0
7
/0

8

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 H
e
a
lt

h

2
a

E
q

u
a

li
ty

 S
ta

n
d

a
rd

 f
o

r 
L

o
c

a
l 
G

o
v

e
rn

m
e

n
t 

L
e

v
e

l
T

0
0

1
2

1
0

0
0

A
d

d
iti

o
n

a
l r

e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 b

e
in

g
 c

o
n

s
id

e
re

d
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
a

 r
e

v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 s

ta
ff
in

g
 

s
tr

u
c
u

re
 o

f 
O

rg
a

n
is

a
tio

n
a

l D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 
a

n
d

 S
u

p
p

o
rt

�
2

2
b

T
h

e
 d

u
ty

 t
o

 p
ro

m
o

te
 r

a
c

e
 e

q
u

a
li
ty

 c
h

e
c

k
li
s

t 

s
c

o
re

T
7
2

4
2

4
7

M
7
8

4
7

0
0

0
A

s
 f
o

r 
2

a
�

8
4

8
%

 I
n

v
o

ic
e

s
 p

a
id

 o
n

 t
im

e
T

9
5
.9

7
8
8
.6

5
9
2
.8

8
M

9
2
.9

3
9
4
.8

3
0

0
0

S
e

e
 d

e
ta

ile
d

 c
o

m
m

e
n

t 
in

 s
e

c
tio

n
 4

.4
 o

f 
m

a
in

 r
e

p
o

rt
 

�
9
5
.9

4

9
C

o
u

n
c

il
 t

a
x

 c
o

ll
e

c
te

d
 (

%
)

T
9
8
.3

9
6
.3

6
9
9
.0

8
T

9
8
.5

2
8
.8

1
0

0
0

N
/a

A
n

n
u

a
l R

e
p

o
rt

in
g

N
/a

9
8
.5

1
0

N
N

D
R

 c
o

ll
e

c
te

d
 (

%
)

T
9
9
.1

4
9
8

9
9
.2

1
T

9
9
.2

3
2
.6

9
0

0
0

N
/a

A
n

n
u

a
l r

e
p

o
rt

in
g

N
/a

9
9
.2

1
1
a

%
 o

f 
to

p
 5

%
 o

f 
e

a
rn

e
rs

 t
h

a
t 

a
re

 w
o

m
e

n
I

4
0
.2

3
1
9
.6

3
1
4
.2

9
B

1
4

1
4
.2

9
0

0
0

�
2
1

1
1
b

%
 o

f 
to

p
 5

%
 o

f 
e

a
rn

e
rs

 t
h

a
t 

a
re

 f
ro

m
 e

th
n

ic
 

m
in

o
ri

ti
e

s
I

3
.4

8
0

7
.1

4
T

7
7
.6

9
0

0
0

�
7

1
1
c

%
 o

f 
to

p
 5

%
 e

a
rn

e
rs

 w
it

h
 a

 d
is

a
b

il
it

y
I

0
0

7
.6

9
7

7
.6

9
0

0
0

�
7

1
2

D
a

y
s

 s
ic

k
 p

e
r 

m
e

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

s
ta

ff
T

8
.4

1
1
.1

1
0

M
9

6
.1

2
0

0
0

S
e

e
 d

e
ta

ile
d

 c
o

m
m

e
n

t 
in

 s
e

c
tio

n
 4

.4
 o

f 
m

a
in

 r
e

p
o

rt
 a

n
d

 K
e

y 
S

ta
ff
in

g
 

D
a

ta
 r

e
p

o
rt

�
8
.9

3

1
4

E
a

rl
y

 r
e

ti
re

m
e

n
ts

 /
 s

ta
ff

I
0
.1

6
0
.8

4
0

T
0

0
0

0
0

A
c
tu

a
l Q

1
 is

 Z
e

ro
�

0

1
5

Il
l 
h

e
a

lt
h

 r
e

ti
re

m
e

n
ts

 /
 s

ta
ff

I
0
.1

2
0
.4

4
0

T
0

0
0

0
0

A
c
tu

a
l Q

1
 is

 Z
e

ro
�

0

1
6
a

%
 s

ta
ff

 w
it

h
 d

is
a

b
il
it

ie
s

I
3
.7

3
1
.4

9
5
.9

T
5
.9

5
.9

6
0

0
0

�
5
.9

1
7
a

%
 s

ta
ff

 f
ro

m
 e

th
n

ic
 m

in
o

ri
ti

e
s

I
4
.6

0
.9

2
.5

1
M

2
.4

2
.9

5
0

0
0

�
2
.4

H
o

u
s
in

g

6
4

N
o

 o
f 

v
a

c
a

n
t 

p
ri

v
a

te
 s

e
c

to
r 

d
w

e
ll
in

g
s

 

re
tu

rn
e

d
 i
n

to
 o

c
c

u
p

a
ti

o
n

T
5
6
.2

5
4

5
M

6
6

0
0

0
A

c
h

ie
v
e

d
 t
a

rg
e

t 
fo

r 
ye

a
r 

in
 f
ir
s
t 
q

u
a

rt
e

r 
d

u
e

 t
o

 t
h

e
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
s
c
h

e
m

e
s
 

c
o

m
in

g
 t
o

 f
ru

iti
o

n
 a

t 
o

n
c
e

�
6

1
8
3
a

A
v

e
ra

g
e

 l
e

n
g

th
 o

f 
s

ta
y

 i
n

 B
&

B
 (

w
e

e
k

s
)

T
1

5
3
.2

6
M

4
1
.8

5
0

0
0

2
 c

lie
n

ts
 in

 c
a

lc
u

la
tio

n
 f
o

r 
Q

1
. 
S

e
e

 d
e

ta
ile

d
 c

o
m

m
e

n
t 
in

 s
e

c
tio

n
 4

.4
 o

f 
th

e
 

m
a

in
 r

e
p

o
rt

�
4

1
8
3
b

A
v

e
ra

g
e

 l
e

n
g

th
 o

f 
s

ta
y

 i
n

 H
o

s
te

l 
(w

e
e

k
s

)
T

0
1
8

1
2
.3

2
M

1
2

8
8

0
0

1
 c

lie
n

t 
in

 c
a

lc
u

la
tio

n
 f
o

r 
Q

1
. 
A

b
o

v
e

 t
a

rg
e

t
�

1
1

2
0
2

N
o

 o
f 

p
e

o
p

le
 s

le
e

p
in

g
 r

o
u

g
h

 o
n

 a
 s

in
g

le
 

n
ig

h
t

T
0

0
0

1
0

0
0

0
N

/a
A

n
n

u
a

l R
e

p
o

rt
in

g
N

/a
1

2
0
3

%
 c

h
a

n
g

e
 i
n

 a
v

e
ra

g
e

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

fa
m

il
ie

s
 

w
it

h
 d

e
p

e
n

d
a

n
t 

c
h

il
d

re
n

 i
n

 t
e

m
p

o
ra

ry
 

a
c

c
o

m
o

d
a

ti
o

n

T
-6

.9
4

2
8
.3

1
-1

4
.2

T
-1

0
0

0
0

0
N

/a
A

n
n

u
a

l R
e

p
o

rt
in

g
N

/a
-1

3

2
1
3

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

h
o

u
s

e
h

o
ld

s
  
c

o
n

s
id

e
re

d
  

h
o

m
e

le
s

s
 f

o
r 

w
h

o
m

 h
o

u
s

in
g

 a
d

v
ic

e
 

c
a

s
e

w
o

rk
 i
n

te
rv

e
n

ti
o

n
 r

e
s

o
lv

e
d

 t
h

e
ir

 

s
it

u
a

ti
o

n
.

I
0

0
2

2
.5

1
.7

2
0

0
0

8
4

 S
u

c
c
e

s
fu

l p
re

v
e

n
tio

n
 c

a
s
e

s
 in

 Q
1

�
N

/a

2
1
4

H
o

u
s

in
g

 a
d

v
ic

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

: 
R

e
p

e
a

t 

h
o

m
e

le
s

s
n

e
s

s
 (

%
)

I
0

0
3
.3

3
3
.3

3
4
.1

7
0

0
0

1
 r

e
p

e
a

t 
h

o
m

e
le

s
s
 c

a
s
e

 in
 Q

1
 a

n
d

 2
4

 a
c
c
e

p
ta

n
c
e

s
�

N
/a

B
e
n

e
fi

ts

7
6
a

B
e

n
e

fi
t 

s
e

c
u

ri
ty

 -
 n

o
 o

f 
v

is
it

s
 p

e
r 

1
0

0
0

 

c
a

s
e

s
T

2
8
2
.1

6
1
5
5
.8

6
2
8
3
.8

4
T

2
8
4

7
9
.2

6
0

0
0

O
n

 t
a

rg
e

t
�

2
9
6
.6

D
:\
m

o
d
e
rn

g
o
v\

D
a
ta

\A
g
e
n
d
a
It
e
m

D
o
c
s\

4
\7

\7
\A

I0
0
0
0
4
7
7
4
\2

0
0
6
0
7
Q

1
B

V
P

Is
C

G
R

3
0
.x

ls
1
 o

f 
4

1
7
/0

8
/0

6

Page 35



Q
u

a
rt

e
rl

y
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 G

o
v

e
rn

a
n

c
e

 R
e

p
o

rt
 -

 F
ir

s
t 

Q
u

a
rt

e
r

B
e

s
t 

V
a

lu
e

 P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 I
n

d
ic

a
to

rs
. 
 O

u
r 

c
u

rr
e

n
t 

p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 i
n

 2
0

0
6

/0
7

.

K
e
y
:

N
/a

 =
 N

o
t 
A

p
p

lic
a

b
le

T
o
p

 a
n
d
 B

o
tt
o
m

 q
u
a
rt

ile
 d

a
ta

 i
s
 a

g
a
in

s
t 
a
ll 

E
n
g

la
n
d
 A

u
th

o
ri

ti
e
s

R
e

d
 -

 w
o

rs
e

 t
h

a
n

 t
a

rg
e

t
�

B
e
tt

e
r

T
re

n
d

 a
rr

o
w

s
: 

c
o

m
p

a
re

s
 f

ir
s

t 
q

u
a

rt
e

r 
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 w
it

h
 t

h
e

 w
h

o
le

 y
e

a
r 

A
c

tu
a

l 
2

0
0

5
/6

 (
n

o
t 

p
o

s
s

ib
le

 f
o

r 
a

ll
 B

V
P

Is
) 

Y
e

ll
o

w
 -

 o
n

 t
a

rg
e

t
�

W
o

rs
e

Q
u

a
rt

il
e

 0
5

/0
6

 c
o

lu
m

n
: 

a
c

tu
a

l 
0

5
/0

6
 a

g
a

in
s

t 
0

4
/0

5
 q

u
a

rt
il
e

 p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 d

a
ta

 (
0

5
/0

6
 q

u
a

rt
il
e

 d
a

ta
 e

x
p

e
c

te
d

 D
e

c
 0

6
)

G
re

e
n

 -
 b

e
tt

e
r 

th
a

n
 t

a
rg

e
t

�
S

ta
b

le

T
 =

 t
o

p
; 

B
 =

 b
o

tt
o

m
; 

M
 =

 m
id

d
le

 q
u

a
rt

il
e

B
V

P
I

In
d

ic
a

to
r 

D
e

s
c

ri
p

ti
o

n
T

g
t/

 I
n

d
T

Q
 0

4
/0

5
B

Q
 0

4
/0

5
A

c
tu

a
l 
0
5
/0

6
Q

u
a
rt

il
e
 

0
5
/0

6
T

a
rg

e
t 

0
6
/0

7
A

c
tu

a
l 
Q

1
A

c
tu

a
l 
Q

2
A

c
tu

a
l 
Q

3
A

c
tu

a
l 

Q
4

o
n

/o
ff

 T
g

t
C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

P
e
rf

o
rm

a

n
c
e
 

T
re

n
d

T
a
rg

e
t 

0
7
/0

8

7
6
b

B
e

n
e

fi
t 

s
e

c
u

ri
ty

 -
 n

o
 o

f 
in

v
e

s
ti

g
a

to
rs

 p
e

r 

1
0

0
0

 c
a

s
e

s
T

0
0

0
.3

2
0
.3

8
0
.3

8
0

0
0

O
n

 t
a

rg
e

t
�

0
.3

8

7
6
c

B
e

n
e

fi
t 

s
e

c
u

ri
ty

 -
 n

o
 o

f 
in

v
e

s
ti

g
a

ti
o

n
s

 p
e

r 

1
0

0
0

 c
a

s
e

s
T

5
3
.4

2
4
.0

1
1
1
8
.6

5
T

5
9
.5

3
2
8
.5

5
0

0
0

O
n

 t
a

rg
e

t
�

5
9
.5

3

7
6
d

B
e

n
e

fi
t 

s
e

c
u

ri
ty

 -
 n

o
 o

f 
p

ro
s

e
c

u
ti

o
n

s
 p

e
r 

1
0

0
0

 c
a

s
e

s
T

5
.3

1
2
.0

6
1
5
.0

2
T

6
.2

5
2
.4

4
0

0
0

O
n

 t
a

rg
e

t
�

6
.2

5

7
8
a

A
v

e
ra

g
e

 t
im

e
 f

o
r 

p
ro

c
e

s
s

in
g

 n
e

w
 c

la
im

s
T

2
9
.3

8
4
4
.5

5
2
5
.9

6
T

2
8

2
4
.3

3
0

0
0

O
n

 t
a

rg
e

t
�

2
8

7
8
b

A
v

e
ra

g
e

 t
im

e
 f

o
r 

p
ro

c
e

s
s

in
g

 c
h

a
n

g
e

s
 o

f 

c
ir

c
u

m
s

ta
n

c
e

s
T

7
.4

1
4
.9

6
.1

7
T

6
.8

6
.6

6
0

0
0

O
n

 t
a

rg
e

t
�

6
.8

7
9
a

%
 o

f 
c

a
s

e
s

 w
h

e
re

 c
a

lc
u

la
ti

o
n

 w
a

s
 c

o
rr

e
c

t
T

9
9

9
6
.2

9
9
.6

T
9
9

9
9

0
0

0
Q

u
a

rt
e

rl
y 

re
p

o
rt

. 
T

h
is

 is
 a

n
 e

s
tim

a
te

 b
a

s
e

d
 o

n
 w

o
rk

 t
o

 d
a

te
 o

n
 t
h

e
 N

1
2

8
 

w
h

ic
h

 is
 d

u
e

 w
ith

 D
W

P
 o

n
 2

8
th

 J
u

ly
. 

�
9
9

7
9
b

(i
)

%
 o

f 
o

v
e

rp
a

y
m

e
n

ts
 r

e
c

o
v

e
re

d
 a

s
 a

 %
 o

f 

H
o

u
s

in
g

 B
e

n
e

fi
t 

d
e

e
m

e
d

 r
e

c
o

v
e

ra
b

le
T

4
9
.9

3
3
3
.1

3
1
0
2
.8

5
T

8
7

6
0
.3

9
0

0
0

B
e

c
a

u
s
e

 o
v
e

rp
a

ym
e

n
ts

 a
re

 c
re

a
te

d
 a

s
 a

 lu
m

p
 s

u
m

 a
n

d
 t
h

e
n

 r
e

c
o

v
e

re
d

 

fr
o

m
 s

o
m

e
 o

n
g

o
in

g
 B

e
n

e
fit

 a
s
 a

 s
c
h

e
d

u
le

d
 a

m
o

u
n

t 
th

is
 f
ig

u
re

 is
 n

o
t 

m
e

a
n

in
g

fu
l u

n
til

 t
h

e
 a

n
n

u
a

l r
e

tu
rn

. 
H

o
w

e
v
e

r 
w

e
 c

a
n

 u
s
e

 t
h

e
 q

u
a

rt
e

r 

c
a

lc
u

la
tio

n
 t
o

 s
h

o
w

 a
 t
re

n
d

 t
o

 c
o

m
p

a
re

 t
o

 n
e

x
t 
q

u
a

rt
e

r.

�
8
7

7
9
b

(i
i)

%
 o

v
e

rp
a

y
m

e
n

ts
 r

e
c

o
v

e
re

d
 d

u
ri

n
g

 t
h

e
 

p
e

ri
o

d
 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 o

v
e

rp
a

y
m

e
n

ts
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi

e
d

 

d
u

ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 p
e

ri
o

d

I
0

0
4
9
.9

7
4
2

1
6
.4

5
0

0
0

Q
u

a
rt

e
rl
y 

c
a

lc
u

la
tio

n
 b

u
t 
th

is
 is

 a
n

 a
n

n
u

a
l r

e
tu

rn
. 
T

h
is

 t
a

rg
e

t 
m

a
y 

n
e

e
d

 t
o

 

b
e

 r
e

v
is

e
d

. 
W

e
 c

a
n

n
o

t 
n

o
w

 c
o

m
p

a
re

 t
h

is
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 t
o

 t
h

e
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 

ye
a

r 
b

e
c
a

u
s
e

 o
f 
th

e
 r

e
g

u
la

tio
n

 c
h

a
n

g
e

 t
o

 r
e

c
o

v
e

ry
 f
ro

m
 la

n
d

lo
rd

, 
 T

h
is

 

b
ro

u
g

h
t 
to

 a
n

 e
n

d
 a

 lo
c
a

l a
g

re
e

m
e

n
t 
w

ith
 V

a
le

 H
o

u
s
in

g
 A

s
s
o

c
ia

tio
n

 

w
h

e
re

b
y 

w
e

 a
u

to
m

a
tic

a
lly

 r
e

c
o

v
e

re
d

 a
ll 

o
v
e

rp
a

ym
e

n
ts

 in
 o

n
e

 lu
m

p
 s

u
m

. 
 

W
e

 n
o

w
 h

a
v
e

 t
o

 a
p

p
ly

 s
c
h

e
d

u
le

d
 r

e
c
o

v
e

ry
 w

ith
in

 t
h

e
 b

e
n

e
fit

 s
ys

te
m

 s
o

 

o
v
e

rp
a

ym
e

n
ts

 r
e

m
a

in
 o

u
ts

ta
n

d
in

g
 u

n
til

 r
e

p
a

id
 b

y 
th

e
 c

u
s
to

m
e

r 
a

t 
a

 s
e

t 

w
e

e
k
ly

 r
a

te

�
4
2

7
9
b

 (
ii
i)

%
 o

f 
o

v
e

rp
a

y
m

e
n

ts
 w

ri
tt

e
n

 o
ff

I
0

0
1
.8

4
6
.6

0
.1

5
0

0
0

T
h

is
 is

 a
 s

u
n

d
ry

 d
e

b
t 
fu

n
c
tio

n
. 
R

e
s
u

lts
 o

f 
n

e
w

 a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
t 
w

ith
 d

e
b

t 

c
o

lle
c
tin

g
 a

g
e

n
c
y 

n
e

e
d

 t
o

 b
e

 lo
o

k
e

d
 a

t.
�

6
.6

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

t

8
2
a
i

%
 o

f 
h

o
u

s
e

h
o

ld
 w

a
s

te
 r

e
c

y
c

le
d

T
1
7
.8

9
1
1
.7

8
2
2
.1

4
T

2
4
.5

2
1
.8

0
0

0

R
e

c
yc

lin
g

 t
o

n
n

a
g

e
s
 in

c
re

a
s
e

d
 b

y 
5

%
 o

n
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 y

e
a

r,
 b

u
t 
a

d
d

iti
o

n
a

l 

to
n

n
a

g
e

 o
f 
g

re
e

n
 w

a
s
te

 c
o

lle
c
te

d
 le

d
 t
o

 in
c
re

a
s
e

 in
 w

a
s
te

 a
ri
s
in

g
 o

f 
4

%
 

le
a

d
in

g
 t
o

 a
 r

e
d

u
c
e

d
 r

e
c
yc

lin
g

 r
a

te
. 
O

v
e

ra
ll 

re
c
o

v
e

ri
n

g
 r

a
te

 w
a

s
 2

7
.8

%
 

c
o

m
p

a
re

d
 w

ith
 o

v
e

ra
ll 

c
o

m
b

in
e

d
 t
a

rg
e

t 
o

f 
2

9
%

.

�
2
5

8
2
a
ii

T
o

ta
l 
to

n
n

a
g

e
 o

f 
w

a
s

te
 r

e
c

y
c

le
d

T
0

0
9
0
3
8

9
7
0
0

2
3
2
6

0
0

0
M

in
im

a
l v

a
ri
a

tio
n

 f
ro

m
 t
a

rg
e

t 
w

h
ic

h
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e

 a
d

ju
s
te

d
 s

e
a

s
o

n
a

lly
 d

u
ri
n

g
 

th
e

 y
e

a
r

�
1
0
1
5
0

8
2
b

i 
%

 o
f 

h
o

u
s

e
h

o
ld

 w
a

s
te

 c
o

m
p

o
s

te
d

T
9
.8

1
.5

3
1
.7

1
M

4
.5

6
0

0
0

S
e

e
 8

2
a

i a
b

o
v
w

. 
T

o
n

n
a

g
e

 o
f 
g

re
e

n
 w

a
s
te

 h
ig

h
e

r 
th

a
n

 p
ro

je
c
te

d
.

�
6

8
2
b

ii
T

o
ta

l 
to

n
n

a
g

e
 o

f 
w

a
s

te
 c

o
m

p
o

s
te

d
T

0
0

6
9
9

1
9
0
0

6
4
0
.7

0
0

0
S

e
e

 a
b

o
v
e

�
2
6
0
0

8
4
a

H
o

u
s

e
h

o
ld

 w
a

s
te

 c
o

ll
e

c
te

d
I

3
9
7
.7

4
9
1
.6

3
5
2

T
3
5
3

9
1
.9

0
0

0
A

b
o

v
e

 t
a

rg
e

t 
d

u
e

 t
o

 a
d

d
iti

o
n

a
l g

re
e

n
 w

a
s
te

 c
o

lle
c
te

d
.

�
3
5
2

8
4
b

%
 c

h
a

n
g

e
 (

fr
o

m
 p

re
v

io
u

s
 y

e
a

r)
 i
n

 t
h

e
 w

a
s

te
 

c
o

ll
e

c
te

d
 (

K
G

 p
e

r 
h

e
a

d
 p

e
r 

a
n

n
u

m
)

T
0

0
1
.0

9
-0

.3
2
.8

0
0

0

S
e

e
 a

b
o

v
e

�
-0

.3

8
6

C
o

s
t 

o
f 

w
a

s
te

 c
o

ll
e

c
ti

o
n

 (
£

) 
-A

n
n

u
a

l 

R
e

p
o

rt
in

g
T

3
5
.3

1
4
8
.1

3
4
3
.8

M
4
2
.5

6
0

0
0

0
N

/A
A

n
n

u
a

l r
e

p
o

rt
in

g
N

/a
4
3
.2

4

1
6
6
a

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
ta

l 
h

e
a

lt
h

 c
h

e
c

k
li
s

t 
(%

)
T

9
7

7
9
.1

6
6
.2

5
B

8
3

6
6
.2

5
0

0
0

E
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

ta
l H

e
a

lth
 E

n
fo

rc
e

m
e

n
t 
P

o
lic

y 
a

n
d

 o
th

e
r 

re
le

v
a

n
t 
p

o
lic

ie
s
 

b
e

in
g

 r
e

v
is

e
d

. 
T

o
 b

e
 r

e
p

o
rt

e
d

 t
o

 O
c
to

b
e

r 
C

o
u

n
c
il.

K
e

y 
o

ff
ic

e
rs

 f
ro

m
 

re
le

v
a

n
t 
s
e

rv
ic

e
 a

re
a

s
 im

p
le

m
e

n
tin

g
 a

 d
e

ta
ile

d
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 t
o

 a
c
tio

n
 

re
m

a
in

in
g

 t
a

s
k
s
 t
o

 a
c
h

ie
v
e

 t
a

rg
e

ts
 f
o

r 
re

s
t 
o

f 
th

is
 y

e
a

r 
a

n
d

 n
e

x
t 
ye

a
r.

�
9
3

D
:\
m

o
d
e
rn

g
o
v\

D
a
ta

\A
g
e
n
d
a
It
e
m

D
o
c
s\

4
\7

\7
\A

I0
0
0
0
4
7
7
4
\2

0
0
6
0
7
Q

1
B

V
P

Is
C

G
R

3
0
.x

ls
2
 o

f 
4

1
7
/0

8
/0

6

Page 36



Q
u

a
rt

e
rl

y
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 G

o
v

e
rn

a
n

c
e

 R
e

p
o

rt
 -

 F
ir

s
t 

Q
u

a
rt

e
r

B
e

s
t 

V
a

lu
e

 P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 I
n

d
ic

a
to

rs
. 
 O

u
r 

c
u

rr
e

n
t 

p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 i
n

 2
0

0
6

/0
7

.

K
e
y
:

N
/a

 =
 N

o
t 
A

p
p

lic
a

b
le

T
o
p

 a
n
d
 B

o
tt
o
m

 q
u
a
rt

ile
 d

a
ta

 i
s
 a

g
a
in

s
t 
a
ll 

E
n
g

la
n
d
 A

u
th

o
ri

ti
e
s

R
e

d
 -

 w
o

rs
e

 t
h

a
n

 t
a

rg
e

t
�

B
e
tt

e
r

T
re

n
d

 a
rr

o
w

s
: 

c
o

m
p

a
re

s
 f

ir
s

t 
q

u
a

rt
e

r 
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 w
it

h
 t

h
e

 w
h

o
le

 y
e

a
r 

A
c

tu
a

l 
2

0
0

5
/6

 (
n

o
t 

p
o

s
s

ib
le

 f
o

r 
a

ll
 B

V
P

Is
) 

Y
e

ll
o

w
 -

 o
n

 t
a

rg
e

t
�

W
o

rs
e

Q
u

a
rt

il
e

 0
5

/0
6

 c
o

lu
m

n
: 

a
c

tu
a

l 
0

5
/0

6
 a

g
a

in
s

t 
0

4
/0

5
 q

u
a

rt
il
e

 p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 d

a
ta

 (
0

5
/0

6
 q

u
a

rt
il
e

 d
a

ta
 e

x
p

e
c

te
d

 D
e

c
 0

6
)

G
re

e
n

 -
 b

e
tt

e
r 

th
a

n
 t

a
rg

e
t

�
S

ta
b

le

T
 =

 t
o

p
; 

B
 =

 b
o

tt
o

m
; 

M
 =

 m
id

d
le

 q
u

a
rt

il
e

B
V

P
I

In
d

ic
a

to
r 

D
e

s
c

ri
p

ti
o

n
T

g
t/

 I
n

d
T

Q
 0

4
/0

5
B

Q
 0

4
/0

5
A

c
tu

a
l 
0
5
/0

6
Q

u
a
rt

il
e
 

0
5
/0

6
T

a
rg

e
t 

0
6
/0

7
A

c
tu

a
l 
Q

1
A

c
tu

a
l 
Q

2
A

c
tu

a
l 
Q

3
A

c
tu

a
l 

Q
4

o
n

/o
ff

 T
g

t
C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

P
e
rf

o
rm

a

n
c
e
 

T
re

n
d

T
a
rg

e
t 

0
7
/0

8

1
9
9
a

C
le

a
n

li
n

e
s

s
 o

f 
re

le
v

a
n

t 
la

n
d

 a
n

d
 h

ig
h

w
a

y
s

 

(%
)

T
1
1

2
4

1
2

M
1
5

0
0

0
0

N
/A

A
n

n
u

a
l r

e
p

o
rt

in
g

N
/a

1
3

1
9
9
b

P
ro

p
o

rt
io

n
 r

e
le

v
a

n
t 

la
n

d
 a

n
d

 h
ig

h
w

a
y

s
 w

it
h

 

u
n

a
c

c
e

p
ta

b
le

 l
e

v
e

ls
 o

f 
g

ra
ff

it
i 
v

is
ib

le
 %

T
0

0
1

1
0

0
0

0
N

/A

A
n

n
u

a
l r

e
p

o
rt

in
g

N
/a

1

1
9
9
c

P
ro

p
o

rt
io

n
 o

f 
re

le
v

a
n

t 
la

n
d

 a
n

d
 h

ig
h

w
a

y
s

 

w
it

h
 u

n
a

c
c

e
p

ta
b

le
 l
e

v
e

ls
 o

f 
fl

y
 p

o
s

ti
n

g
s

 

v
is

ib
le

 %

T
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
N

/A

A
n

n
u

a
l r

e
p

o
rt

in
g

N
/a

0

1
9
9
d

Y
e

a
r 

o
n

 y
e

a
r 

re
d

u
c

ti
o

n
 o

f 
in

c
id

e
n

ts
 /
 

in
c

re
a

s
e

 i
n

 e
n

fo
rc

e
m

e
n

t 
a

c
ti

o
n

s
 t

o
 d

e
a

l 

w
it

h
 f

ly
 t

ip
p

in
g

 (
g

ra
d

e
d

 1
 v

e
ry

 e
ff

e
c

ti
v

e
 -

 4
 

p
o

o
r)

T
0

0
4

3
0

0
0

0
N

/A

A
n

n
u

a
l r

e
p

o
rt

in
g

N
/a

2

2
1
6
a

C
o

n
a

tm
in

a
te

d
 l
a

n
d

 -
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
s

it
e

s
 o

f 

p
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
c

o
n

c
e

rn
I

0
0

1
0
7
8

1
0
6
4

0
0

0
0

N
/A

A
n

n
u

a
l r

e
p

o
rt

in
g

N
/a

1
0
5
0

2
1
6
b

N
u

m
b

e
r 

s
it

e
s

 w
h

e
re

 r
e

m
e

d
ia

ti
o

n
 o

f 
la

n
d

 

n
e

c
e

s
s

a
ry

 a
s

 %
 o

f 
's

it
e

s
 o

f 
p

o
te

n
ti

a
l 

c
o

n
c

e
rn

'

I
0

0
1
.3

2
1
.3

3
0

0
0

0
N

/A

A
n

n
u

a
l r

e
p

o
rt

in
g

N
/a

1
.3

5

2
1
7

%
 p

o
ll
u

ti
o

n
 c

o
n

tr
o

l 
im

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
ts

 t
o

 

e
x

is
ti

n
g

 i
n

s
ta

ll
a

ti
o

n
s

 c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 o

n
 t

im
e

T
0

0
9
7

9
5

0
0

0
0

N
/A

A
n

n
u

a
l r

e
p

o
rt

in
g

N
/a

9
5

P
la

n
n

in
g

1
0
6

%
 n

e
w

 h
o

m
e

s
 o

n
 b

ro
w

n
 f

ie
ld

 s
it

e
s

T
9
4

5
7
.1

4
9
5
.2

9
T

6
0

0
0

0
0

N
/A

6
 m

o
n

th
ly

 r
e

p
o

rt
in

g
N

/a
6
0

1
0
9
a

%
 o

f 
m

a
jo

r 
p

la
n

n
in

g
 a

p
p

li
c

a
ti

o
n

s
 i
n

 1
3

 

w
e

e
k

s
T

6
8
.9

4
6
.8

8
5
0

M
6
0

6
4
.2

8
0

0
0

M
e

a
s
u

re
s
 o

n
 t
h

e
 M

a
jo

r 
a

n
d

 M
in

o
r 

A
p

p
lic

a
tio

n
s
 I
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 
P

la
n

 h
a

v
e

 

b
e

e
n

 im
p

le
m

e
n

te
d

, 
w

ith
 p

a
rt

ic
u

la
r 

fo
c
u

s
 o

n
 M

a
jo

r 
a

p
p

lic
a

tio
n

s
 r

e
s
u

lti
n

g
 in

 

p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 e
x
c
e

e
d

in
g

 t
h

e
 t
a

rg
e

t.
�

6
0

1
0
9
b

%
 o

f 
m

in
o

r 
p

la
n

n
in

g
 a

p
p

li
c

a
ti

o
n

s
 i
n

 8
 

w
e

e
k

s
T

7
5
.4

6
1
.1

2
7
1
.8

M
6
5

5
1
.0

4
0

0
0

T
h

e
 f
o

c
u

s
 o

n
 M

a
jo

r 
a

p
p

lic
a

tio
n

s
, 
to

g
e

th
e

r 
w

ith
 s

ig
n

ifi
c
a

n
t 
s
ta

f 
re

s
o

u
rc

in
g

 

is
s
u

e
s
 (

tw
o

 p
o

s
ts

 n
o

t 
b

e
in

g
 f
ill

e
d

 a
n

d
 o

n
e

 p
o

s
t 
w

ith
 lo

n
g

 t
e

rm
 il

ln
e

s
s
) 

in
 

th
e

 r
e

g
is

te
ri
n

g
 o

f 
a

p
p

lic
a

tio
n

s
, 
h

a
s
 r

e
s
u

lte
d

 in
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 b
e

in
g

 b
e

lo
w

 

th
e

 t
a

rg
e

t.
  
H

o
w

e
v
e

r,
 it

 is
 n

o
w

 e
x
p

e
c
te

d
 t
h

a
t,
 w

ith
 t
h

e
 t
w

o
 p

o
s
ts

 f
ill

e
d

 a
n

d
 

th
e

 e
m

p
lo

ym
e

n
t 
o

f 
te

m
p

o
ra

ry
 s

ta
ff
 t
o

 c
o

v
e

r 
fo

r 
th

e
 p

o
s
t 
a

ff
e

c
te

d
 b

y 
lo

n
g

 

te
rm

 il
ln

e
s
s
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 w
ill

 n
o

w
 im

p
ro

v
e

 o
v
e

r 
th

e
 n

e
x
t 
q

u
a

rt
e

r.

�
6
5

1
0
9
c

%
 o

f 
o

th
e

r 
p

la
n

n
in

g
 a

p
p

li
c

a
ti

o
n

s
 i
n

 8
 w

e
e

k
s

T
8
8

8
0

8
6
.6

6
M

8
0

6
5
.9

3
0

0
0

T
h

e
 f
o

c
u

s
 o

n
 M

a
jo

r 
a

p
p

lic
a

tio
n

s
, 
to

g
e

th
e

r 
w

ith
 s

ig
n

ifi
c
a

n
t 
s
ta

ff
 r

e
s
o

u
rc

in
g

 

is
s
u

e
s
 (

tw
o

 p
o

s
ts

 n
o

t 
b

e
in

g
 f
ill

e
d

 a
n

d
 o

n
e

 p
o

s
t 
w

ith
 lo

n
g

 t
e

rm
 il

ln
e

s
s
) 

in
 

th
e

 r
e

g
is

te
ri
n

g
 o

f 
a

p
p

lic
a

tio
n

s
, 
h

a
s
 r

e
s
u

lte
d

 in
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 b
e

in
g

 b
e

lo
w

 

th
e

 t
a

rg
e

t.
 H

o
w

e
v
e

r,
 it

 is
 n

o
w

 e
x
p

e
c
te

d
 t
h

a
t,
 w

ith
 t
h

e
 t
w

o
 p

o
s
ts

 f
ill

e
d

 a
n

d
 

th
e

 e
m

p
lo

ym
e

n
t 
o

f 
te

m
p

o
ra

ry
 s

ta
ff
 t
o

 c
o

v
e

r 
fo

r 
th

e
 p

o
s
t 
a

ff
e

c
te

d
 b

y 
lo

n
g

 

te
rm

 il
ln

e
s
s
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
h

 w
ill

 n
o

w
 im

p
ro

v
e

 o
v
e

r 
th

e
 n

e
x
t 
q

u
a

rt
e

r.

�
8
0

2
0
0
a

D
id

 a
u

th
o

ri
ty

 s
u

b
m

it
 t

h
e

 L
o

c
a

l 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

S
c

h
e

m
e

 b
y

 2
8

.3
.2

0
0

5
 (

n
e

w
 

2
0

0
5

-6
)

T
0

0
y
e
s

y
e
s

0
0

0
0

N
/A

A
n

n
u

a
l r

e
p

o
rt

in
g

N
/a

y
e
s

2
0
0
b

H
a

s
 a

u
th

o
ri

ty
 m

e
t 

th
e

 L
o

c
a

l 
D

e
v

e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 

S
c

h
e

m
e

 m
il
e

s
to

n
e

s
 (

n
e

w
 f

o
r 

2
0

0
5

-6
)

T
0

0
y
e
s

y
e
s

0
0

0
0

N
/A

6
 m

o
n

th
ly

 r
e

p
o

rt
in

g
N

/a
y
e
s

2
0
0
c

D
id

 t
h

e
 a

u
th

o
ri

ty
 p

u
b

li
s

h
 a

n
 a

n
n

u
a

l 

m
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g

 r
e

p
o

rt
 b

y
 D

e
c

e
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
th

e
 l
a

s
t 

y
e

a
r

I
0

0
y
e
s

y
e
s

0
0

0
0

N
/A

A
n

n
u

a
l r

e
p

o
rt

in
g

N
/a

y
e
s

D
:\
m

o
d
e
rn

g
o
v\

D
a
ta

\A
g
e
n
d
a
It
e
m

D
o
c
s\

4
\7

\7
\A

I0
0
0
0
4
7
7
4
\2

0
0
6
0
7
Q

1
B

V
P

Is
C

G
R

3
0
.x

ls
3
 o

f 
4

1
7
/0

8
/0

6

Page 37



Q
u

a
rt

e
rl

y
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 G

o
v

e
rn

a
n

c
e

 R
e

p
o

rt
 -

 F
ir

s
t 

Q
u

a
rt

e
r

B
e

s
t 

V
a

lu
e

 P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 I
n

d
ic

a
to

rs
. 
 O

u
r 

c
u

rr
e

n
t 

p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 i
n

 2
0

0
6

/0
7

.

K
e
y
:

N
/a

 =
 N

o
t 
A

p
p

lic
a

b
le

T
o
p

 a
n
d
 B

o
tt
o
m

 q
u
a
rt

ile
 d

a
ta

 i
s
 a

g
a
in

s
t 
a
ll 

E
n
g

la
n
d
 A

u
th

o
ri

ti
e
s

R
e

d
 -

 w
o

rs
e

 t
h

a
n

 t
a

rg
e

t
�

B
e
tt

e
r

T
re

n
d

 a
rr

o
w

s
: 

c
o

m
p

a
re

s
 f

ir
s

t 
q

u
a

rt
e

r 
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 w
it

h
 t

h
e

 w
h

o
le

 y
e

a
r 

A
c

tu
a

l 
2

0
0

5
/6

 (
n

o
t 

p
o

s
s

ib
le

 f
o

r 
a

ll
 B

V
P

Is
) 

Y
e

ll
o

w
 -

 o
n

 t
a

rg
e

t
�

W
o

rs
e

Q
u

a
rt

il
e

 0
5

/0
6

 c
o

lu
m

n
: 

a
c

tu
a

l 
0

5
/0

6
 a

g
a

in
s

t 
0

4
/0

5
 q

u
a

rt
il
e

 p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 d

a
ta

 (
0

5
/0

6
 q

u
a

rt
il
e

 d
a

ta
 e

x
p

e
c

te
d

 D
e

c
 0

6
)

G
re

e
n

 -
 b

e
tt

e
r 

th
a

n
 t

a
rg

e
t

�
S

ta
b

le

T
 =

 t
o

p
; 

B
 =

 b
o

tt
o

m
; 

M
 =

 m
id

d
le

 q
u

a
rt

il
e

B
V

P
I

In
d

ic
a

to
r 

D
e

s
c

ri
p

ti
o

n
T

g
t/

 I
n

d
T

Q
 0

4
/0

5
B

Q
 0

4
/0

5
A

c
tu

a
l 
0
5
/0

6
Q

u
a
rt

il
e
 

0
5
/0

6
T

a
rg

e
t 

0
6
/0

7
A

c
tu

a
l 
Q

1
A

c
tu

a
l 
Q

2
A

c
tu

a
l 
Q

3
A

c
tu

a
l 

Q
4

o
n

/o
ff

 T
g

t
C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

P
e
rf

o
rm

a

n
c
e
 

T
re

n
d

T
a
rg

e
t 

0
7
/0

8

2
0
4

%
 a

p
p

e
a

ls
 a

ll
o

w
e

d
 a

g
a

in
s

t 
a

u
th

o
ri

ti
e

s
 

d
e

c
is

io
n

s
 t

o
 r

e
fu

s
e

 p
la

n
n

in
g

 p
e

rm
is

s
io

n
T

2
5

3
7
.5

2
5

T
3
5

0
0

0
0

N
/A

6
 m

o
n

th
ly

 r
e

p
o

rt
in

g
N

/a
3
5

2
0
5

Q
u

a
li
ty

 o
f 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 c

h
e

c
k

li
s

t 
(%

)
T

8
8
.9

7
2
.2

8
3

M
9
4

0
0

0
0

N
/A

6
 m

o
n

th
ly

 r
e

p
o

rt
in

g
N

/a
9
4

2
1
9
a

T
o

ta
l 
n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
c

o
n

s
e

rv
a

ti
o

n
 a

re
a

s
I

0
0

5
2

5
2

0
0

0
0

N
/A

A
n

n
u

a
l r

e
p

o
rt

in
g

N
/a

5
2

2
1
9
b

%
 o

f 
c

o
n

s
e

rv
a

ti
o

n
 a

re
a

s
 w

it
h

 a
n

 u
p

 t
o

 d
a

te
 

c
h

a
ra

c
te

r 
a

p
p

ra
is

a
l

I
0

0
0

5
0

0
0

0
N

/A
A

n
n

u
a

l r
e

p
o

rt
in

g
N

/a
1
5

2
1
9
c

%
 o

f 
c

o
n

s
e

rv
a

ti
o

n
 a

re
a

s
 w

it
h

 p
u

b
li
s

h
e

d
 

m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

p
ro

p
o

s
a

ls
I

0
0

0
5

0
0

0
0

N
/A

A
n

n
u

a
l r

e
p

o
rt

in
g

N
/a

1
5

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t

1
2
6

D
o

m
e

s
ti

c
 b

u
rg

la
ri

e
s

 p
e

r 
1

0
0

0
 h

o
u

s
e

h
o

ld
s

I
6
.9

1
4
.2

3
5
.9

4
T

5
.7

6
1
.3

0
0

0

T
h

e
s
e

 h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 a

 r
e

d
u

c
tio

n
 c

o
m

p
a

re
d

 t
o

 t
h

e
 f
ir
s
t 
q

u
a

rt
e

r 
la

s
t 
ye

a
r.

 

N
u

m
b

e
rs

 a
re

 d
o

w
n

 2
1

%
, 
7

6
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 r
e

c
o

rd
e

d
 s

o
 f
a

r 
th

is
 y

e
a

r 

c
o

m
p

a
re

d
 t
o

 9
6

 d
u

ri
n

g
 2

0
0

5
/6

�
5
.5

9

1
2
7
a

V
io

le
n

t 
c

ri
m

e
s

 p
e

r 
1

0
0

0
 p

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
I

3
8
.7

1
1
2
.3

9
B

1
2
.0

2
3
.9

8
0

0
0

T
h

is
 in

c
lu

d
e

s
 w

o
u

n
d

in
g

 a
n

d
 c

o
m

m
o

n
 a

s
s
a

u
ltt

h
e

re
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 a

 r
is

e
 f
ro

m
 

2
4

9
 o

ff
e

n
c
e

s
 in

 t
h

e
 f
ir
s
t 
q

u
a

rt
e

r 
o

f 
2

0
0

5
/6

 t
o

 3
3

3
 in

 t
h

e
 f
ir
s
t 
q

u
a

rt
e

r 
o

f 

2
0

0
6

/7
. 
th

is
 is

 a
 r

is
e

 o
f 
o

f 
2

5
%

. 
T

h
e

 r
is

e
 is

 d
ir
e

c
tly

 a
tt
ri
b

u
ta

b
le

 t
o

 t
h

e
 r

is
e

 

in
 t
h

e
 c

o
m

m
o

n
 a

s
s
a

u
lt 

c
a

te
g

o
ry

 (
(n

o
 in

ju
ry

 is
 s

u
s
ta

in
e

d
. 
th

is
 h

a
s
 r

is
e

n
 

fr
o

m
 7

3
 in

c
id

e
n

ts
 t
o

 1
5

6
, 
a

 r
is

e
 o

f 
1

1
5

%
.

�
1
1
.6

6

1
2
7
b

R
o

b
b

e
ri

e
s

 p
e

r 
1

0
0

0
 p

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
I

5
.9

6
1
2
.7

0
.1

6
T

0
.1

5
0
.0

9
0

0
0

h
a

v
e

 in
c
re

a
s
e

d
 f
ro

m
 5

 t
o

 8
 o

v
e

r 
th

e
 s

a
m

e
 p

e
ri
o

d
 a

s
 la

s
t 
ye

a
r.

 3
 o

f 
th

e
 8

 

re
c
o

rd
e

d
 r

o
b

b
e

ri
e

s
 s

ta
rt

e
d

 a
s
 b

u
rg

la
ri
e

s
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
n

 b
e

c
a

m
e

 t
h

e
 m

o
re

 

s
e

ri
o

u
s
 o

ff
e

n
c
e

 w
h

e
n

 v
io

le
n

c
e

 o
r 

th
e

 t
h

re
a

t 
o

f 
v
io

le
n

c
e

 w
a

s
 t
o

 t
h

e
 

in
h

a
b

ita
n

ts
 w

h
o

 h
a

p
p

e
n

e
d

 t
o

 b
e

 o
n

 t
h

e
 p

re
m

is
e

s

�
0
.1

5

1
2
8

V
e

h
ic

le
 c

ri
m

e
s

 p
e

r 
1

0
0

0
 p

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
I

7
.7

7
1
5
.0

4
5
.8

8
T

5
.7

1
1
.2

2
0

0
0

T
h

is
 in

c
lu

e
s
 t
h

e
ft
 o

f,
 a

n
d

 in
te

rf
re

n
c
e

 w
ith

, 
v
e

h
ic

le
s
. 
It
 is

 d
o

w
n

 o
v
e

r 
th

e
 

s
a

m
e

 p
e

ri
o

d
 a

s
 la

s
t 
ye

a
r 

b
y 

1
2

.8
%

 f
ro

m
 2

5
8

 t
o

 2
2

5
 r

e
c
o

rd
e

d
 in

c
id

e
n

ts
�

5
.5

3

1
5
6

%
 o

f 
a

u
th

o
ri

ty
 b

u
il
d

in
g

s
 o

p
e

n
 t

o
 t

h
e

 p
u

b
li
c

 -
 

a
c

c
e

s
s

ib
le

 f
o

r 
d

is
a

b
le

d
T

0
0

8
3

1
0
0

8
3

0
0

0

Q
1

 A
c
tu

a
l 8

3
%

. 
 C

o
m

p
le

tio
n

 o
f 
th

e
 C

h
a

rt
e

r 
C

a
r 

P
a

rk
 is

 s
c
h

e
d

u
le

d
 f
o

r 
J
u

ly
 

o
f 
th

is
 y

e
a

r.
 T

h
is

 s
h

o
u

ld
 t
a

k
e

 t
h

is
 in

d
ic

a
to

r 
u

p
to

 9
0

%
 p

lu
s
 -

 a
s
s
u

m
in

g
 n

o
 

c
h

a
n

g
e

s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t
h

e
 c

o
h

o
rt

 o
f 
p

o
rt

fo
lio

 w
h

ic
h

 f
a

lls
 w

ith
in

 t
h

e
 d

e
fin

iti
o

n

�
1
0
0

1
7
4

N
o

 o
f 

ra
c

ia
l 
in

c
id

e
n

ts
 r

e
c

o
rd

e
d

 p
e

r 
1

0
0

,0
0

0
 

p
o

p
u

la
ti

o
n

I
0

0
0
.8

6
0
.8

6
0

0
0

0
A

c
tu

a
l Q

1
 is

 Z
e

ro
�

0
.8

6

1
7
5

%
 o

f 
ra

c
ia

l 
in

c
id

e
n

ts
 t

h
a

t 
re

s
u

lt
e

d
 i
n

 f
u

rt
h

e
r 

a
c

ti
o

n
T

0
0

1
0
0

1
0
0

N
/A

0
0

0
N

/A
N

o
 in

c
id

e
n

ts
 r

e
p

o
rt

e
d

 d
u

ri
n

g
 Q

1
N

/a
1
0
0

2
2
5

A
c

ti
o

n
s

 a
g

a
in

s
t 

d
o

m
e

s
ti

c
 v

io
le

n
c

e
I

0
0

4
5
.5

5
4
.5

0
0

0
0

N
/A

A
n

n
u

a
l R

e
p

o
rt

in
g

N
/a

8
0

2
2
6
a

A
d

v
ic

e
 a

n
d

 g
u

id
a

n
c

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 -

 t
o

ta
l 
s

p
e

n
t 

£
I

0
0

2
0
0
0
0
0

2
0
0
0
0
0

2
0
0
0
0
0

0
0

0
A

n
n

u
a

l r
e

p
o

rt
in

g
. 
E

s
tim

a
te

 o
n

ly
 -

 c
a

lc
u

la
te

d
 a

t 
ye

a
r 

e
n

d
 o

n
c
e

 f
in

a
l 

a
c
c
o

u
n

ts
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 c
lo

s
e

d
 d

o
w

n
.

�
2
0
0
0
0
0

2
2
6
b

C
S

L
 Q

u
a

li
ty

 M
a

rk
 %

 m
o

n
ie

s
 s

p
e

n
t 

o
n

 

a
d

v
ic

e
 a

n
d

 g
u

id
a

n
c

e
 p

ro
v

id
e

d
 b

y
 e

x
te

rn
a

l 

o
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o

n
s

I
0

0
7
5

7
5

7
5

0
0

0

A
n

n
u

a
l r

e
p

o
rt

in
g

. 
E

s
tim

a
te

 o
n

ly
 -

 c
a

lc
u

la
te

d
 a

t 
ye

a
r 

e
n

d
 o

n
c
e

 f
in

a
l 

a
c
c
o

u
n

ts
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 c
lo

s
e

d
 d

o
w

n
.

�
7
5

2
2
6
c

A
d

v
ic

e
 a

n
d

 g
u

id
a

n
c

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 -

 d
ir

e
c

t 

p
ro

v
is

io
n

 £
I

0
0

4
5
0
0
0
0

4
5
0
0
0
0

4
5
0
0
0
0

0
0

0
A

n
n

u
a

l r
e

p
o

rt
in

g
. 
E

s
tim

a
te

 o
n

ly
 -

 c
a

lc
u

la
te

d
 a

t 
ye

a
r 

e
n

d
 o

n
c
e

 f
in

a
l 

a
c
c
o

u
n

ts
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 c
lo

s
e

d
 d

o
w

n
.

�
4
5
0
0
0
0

D
:\
m

o
d
e
rn

g
o
v\

D
a
ta

\A
g
e
n
d
a
It
e
m

D
o
c
s\

4
\7

\7
\A

I0
0
0
0
4
7
7
4
\2

0
0
6
0
7
Q

1
B

V
P

Is
C

G
R

3
0
.x

ls
4
 o

f 
4

1
7
/0

8
/0

6

Page 38



Q
U

A
R

T
E

R
L

Y
 C

O
R

P
O

R
A

T
E

 G
O

V
E

R
N

A
N

C
E

 R
E

P
O

R
T

 -
 F

ir
s
t 

Q
u

a
rt

e
r 

1
.4

.0
6
 -

 3
1
.3

.0
7

L
o

c
a
l 

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 I

n
d

ic
a
to

rs
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
in

g
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 P

ri
o

ri
ti

e
s
 2

0
0
6
/0

7
 (

c
u

m
m

u
la

ti
v
e
 y

e
a
r 

to
 d

a
te

)

L
P

I
In

d
ic

a
to

r 
D

e
s

c
ri

p
ti

o
n

T
a

rg
e

t 

2
0

0
6

/7
A

c
tu

a
l 
Q

1
C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

L
I 
H

2
N

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
u

n
it
s
 o

f 
a

ff
o

rd
a

b
le

 h
o

u
s
in

g
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 /
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 
1

0
0

0
S

e
e

 c
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 i
n

 C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 P
ri

o
ri

ti
e

s
 r

e
p

o
rt

L
I 
H

2
a

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

a
ff

o
rd

a
b

le
 h

o
u

s
in

g
 u

n
it
s
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 S
1

0
6

 a
g

re
e

m
e

n
ts

9
0

0
S

e
e

 c
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 i
n

 C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 P
ri

o
ri

ti
e

s
 r

e
p

o
rt

L
P

I 
T

P
5

%
 o

f 
d

w
e

lli
n

g
s
 p

e
rm

it
te

d
 o

n
 s

it
e

s
 a

b
o

v
e

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il'

s
 l
o

c
a

l 
p

la
n

 

a
ff

o
rd

a
b

le
 h

o
u

s
in

g
 p

o
lic

y 
th

re
s
h

o
ld

s
 w

h
ic

h
 f

a
ll 

w
it
h

in
 t

h
e

 d
e

fi
n

it
io

n
 o

f 

a
ff

o
rd

a
b

le
 h

o
u

s
in

g
 

3
5

%
0

%
N

o
 s

it
e

s
 w

e
re

 p
e

rm
it
te

d
 f

o
r 

h
o

u
s
in

g
 i
n

 t
h

e
 1

s
t 

q
u

a
rt

e
r 

th
a

t 
w

e
re

 a
b

o
v
e

 t
h

e
 t

h
re

s
h

o
ld

 f
o

r 

a
ff

o
rd

a
b

le
 h

o
u

s
in

g
 i
n

 t
h

e
 L

o
c
a

l 
P

la
n

.

L
P

I 
T

P
6

%
 o

f 
a

ff
o

rd
a

b
le

 d
w

e
lli

n
g

s
 p

e
rm

it
te

d
 w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 i
n

 t
h

e
 s

o
c
ia

l 
re

n
te

d
 

c
a

te
g

o
ry

6
0

%
0

%
S

e
e

 a
b

o
v
e

.

L
P

I 
T

P
7

T
o

ta
l 
h

o
u

s
e

 b
u

ild
in

g
 c

o
m

p
le

ti
o

n
s
 a

s
 a

 %
 o

f 
a

d
o

p
te

d
 S

tr
u

c
tu

re
 P

la
n

 

a
n

n
u

a
l 
ta

rg
e

ts
1

3
4

%
N

/a
T

h
e

 f
ig

u
re

 i
s
 r

e
p

o
rt

e
d

 t
w

ic
e

 a
 y

e
a

r 
to

 b
e

 i
n

-l
in

e
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
ty

 C
o

u
n

c
il'

s
 L

a
n

d
 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 S

ys
te

m
 (

L
D

P
S

).

E
H

2
%

 o
f 

in
s
p

e
c
ti
o

n
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 a
c
h

ie
v
e

d
 o

n
 t

a
rg

e
t

8
0

%
N

/a
C

a
n

n
o

t 
re

p
o

rt
 a

t 
p

re
s
e

n
t 

- 
d

a
ta

b
a

s
e

 d
o

e
s
 n

o
t 

c
u

rr
e

n
tl
y 

s
u

p
p

o
rt

 r
e

le
v
a

n
t 

re
p

o
rt

 b
u

t 
is

 b
e

in
g

 

a
d

d
re

s
s
e

d
 u

n
d

e
r 

a
 S

e
rv

ic
e

 D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

P
la

n
 d

u
ri

n
g

 2
0

0
6

 

T
o

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 a
n

d
 m

o
d

e
rn

is
e

 a
c

c
e

s
s

 t
o

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s

C
S

1
N

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
e

n
q

u
ir

ie
s
 a

t 
th

e
 L

o
c
a

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e

 P
o

in
t 

W
a

n
ta

g
e

1
5

,0
0

0
4

2
9

2

C
S

2
N

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
e

n
q

u
ir

ie
s
 a

t 
th

e
 L

o
c
a

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e

 P
o

in
t 

A
b

in
g

d
o

n
4

1
,0

0
0

1
4

5
7

7

C
S

3
%

 o
f 

e
n

q
u

ir
ie

s
 r

e
s
o

lv
e

d
 w

it
h

in
 o

n
e

 w
o

rk
in

g
 d

a
y 

in
 W

a
n

ta
g

e
 L

o
c
a

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e

 

P
o

in
t

9
7

%
9

6
%

C
S

4
%

 o
f 

e
n

q
u

ir
ie

s
 r

e
s
o

lv
e

d
 w

it
h

in
 o

n
e

 w
o

rk
in

g
 d

a
y 

in
 A

b
in

g
d

o
n

 L
o

c
a

l 

S
e

rv
ic

e
 P

o
in

t 
a

n
d

 L
S

P
2

 
9

7
%

9
8

%

C
S

5
%

 o
f 

 c
u

s
to

m
e

r 
s
a

ti
s
fa

c
ti
o

n
 i
n

 W
a

n
ta

g
e

 L
o

c
a

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e

 P
o

in
t

9
6

%
1

0
0

%

C
S

6
%

 o
f 

 c
u

s
to

m
e

r 
s
a

ti
s
fa

c
ti
o

n
 i
n

 A
b

in
g

d
o

n
 L

o
c
a

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e

 P
o

in
t

9
6

%
1

0
0

.0
0

%

C
S

7
%

 o
f 

s
a

ti
s
fi
e

d
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 p
ro

v
id

e
rs

 w
it
h

 W
a

n
ta

g
e

 L
o

c
a

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e

 P
o

in
t

8
5

%
1

0
0

.0
0

%
T

h
e

re
 a

re
 6

 S
L

A
's

 o
v
e

r 
1

2
 m

o
n

th
s
 e

a
c
h

 a
re

a
 w

ill
 h

a
v
e

 t
w

o
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 l
e

v
e

l 
s
a

ti
s
fa

c
ti
o

n
 

s
u

rv
e

ys
 a

t 
p

re
s
e

n
t 

 3
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 u
n

d
e

rt
a

k
e

n
  

re
c
o

rd
in

g
 1

0
0

%
 s

a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o

n

C
S

8
%

 o
f 

s
a

ti
s
fi
e

d
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 p
ro

v
id

e
rs

 w
it
h

 A
b

in
g

d
o

n
 L

o
c
a

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e

 P
o

in
t 

a
n

d
 

L
S

P
2

8
5

%
1

0
0

.0
0

%
T

h
e

re
 a

re
 6

 S
L

A
's

 o
v
e

r 
1

2
 m

o
n

th
s
 e

a
c
h

 a
re

a
 w

ill
 h

a
v
e

 t
w

o
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 l
e

v
e

l 
s
a

ti
s
fa

c
ti
o

n
 

s
u

rv
e

ys
 a

t 
p

re
s
e

n
t 

 3
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 u
n

d
e

rt
a

k
e

n
  

re
c
o

rd
in

g
 1

0
0

%
 s

a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o

n

C
S

9
%

 o
f 

c
a

lls
 t

o
 b

e
 a

n
s
w

e
re

d
 w

it
h

in
 2

0
 s

e
c
o

n
d

s
9

0
%

8
4

.3
0

%

C
S

1
0

%
 o

f 
c
a

lls
 u

n
a

n
s
w

e
re

d
4

%
2

.0
0

%
T

h
e

 s
tr

o
n

g
, 

p
o

s
it
iv

e
 d

o
w

n
w

a
rd

 t
re

n
d

 c
o

n
ti
n

u
e

s
 r

e
fl
e

c
ti
n

g
 s

u
c
c
e

s
s
 o

f 
c
o

n
ta

c
t 

c
e

n
tr

e

C
S

1
1

%
 o

f 
m

e
s
s
a

g
e

s
 l
e

ft
 b

y 
c
u

s
to

m
e

rs
 a

t 
fi
rs

t 
p

o
in

t 
o

f 
c
o

n
ta

c
t 

to
 r

e
c
e

iv
e

 a
n

 

in
it
ia

l 
re

s
p

o
n

s
e

 w
it
h

in
 o

n
e

 w
o

rk
in

g
 d

a
y

9
5

%
1

0
0

.0
0

%

C
S

1
2

%
 o

f 
e

-m
a

ils
 t

o
 b

e
 a

u
to

m
a

ti
c
a

lly
 r

e
s
p

o
n

d
e

d
 t

o
 w

it
h

in
 o

n
e

 w
o

rk
in

g
 d

a
y

1
0

0
%

1
0

0
.0

0
%

W
o

rk
in

g
 w

it
h

 p
a

rt
n

e
rs

 t
o

 h
e

lp
 f

a
c

il
it

a
te

 t
h

e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

 o
f 

a
ff

o
rd

a
b

le
 h

o
u

s
in

g
  

C
re

a
ti

n
g

 a
 c

le
a

n
e

r,
 g

re
e

n
e

r,
 s

a
fe

r 
a

n
d

 h
e

a
lt

h
ie

r 
c

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 a

n
d

 e
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t 

Page 39



C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 G
o

v
e
rn

a
n

c
e
 F

in
a
n

c
ia

l 
R

e
p

o
rt

 -
 F

ir
s
t 

Q
u

a
rt

e
r 

2
0
0
6
-7

A
ll
 f

ig
u

re
s
 a

re
 a

s
 a

t 
e
n

d
 J

u
n

e
 2

0
0
6

A
c
tu

a
ls

 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 C

o
m

m
it
m

e
n
ts

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

L
a
te

s
t 

b
u

d
g

e
t

P
ro

fi
le

d
 

b
u

d
g

e
t

A
c
tu

a
ls

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e
 £

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e
 %

A
d

ju
s
tm

e
n

ts
A

d
ju

s
te

d
 

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e
 £

A
d

ju
s
te

d
 

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e
 %

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

S
a
la

ri
e
s

7
,8

5
8
,3

9
0
 

1
,9

7
0
,8

1
5
 

1
,8

4
1
,3

7
1
 

(1
2
9
,4

4
4
)

(6
.6

%
)

(1
2
9
,4

4
4
)

(6
.6

%
)

L
e
is

u
re

 s
a
la

ri
e
s

2
8
7
,7

0
0
 

7
1
,9

2
5
 

7
1
,7

3
7
 

(1
8
8
)

(0
.9

%
)

(1
8
8
)

(0
.9

%
)

8
,1

4
6
,0

9
0
 

2
,0

4
2
,7

4
0
 

1
,9

1
3
,1

0
8
 

(1
2
9
,6

3
2
)

(6
.3

%
)

(1
2
9
,6

3
2
)

(6
.3

%
)

O
v
e
rt

im
e

8
6
,3

5
0
 

2
1
,5

8
8
 

2
8
,8

4
7
 

7
,2

5
9
 

3
3
.6

%
 

7
,2

5
9
 

3
3
.6

%
 

T
e
m

p
o
ra

ry
 &

 A
g
e
n
c
y 

s
ta

ff
2
0
4
,8

1
0
 

6
5
,5

8
8
 

1
1
6
,6

3
1
 

5
1
,0

4
3
 

7
7
.8

%
 

5
1
,0

4
3
 

7
7
.8

%
 

T
ra

in
in

g
9
1
,8

9
0
 

2
2
,9

7
3
 

3
0
,8

2
7
 

7
,8

5
4
 

3
4
.2

%
 

7
,8

5
4
 

3
4
.2

%
 

R
e
p
a
ir

s
 &

 M
a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e

5
0
6
,0

0
0
 

1
2
7
,1

0
0
 

6
0
,5

2
0
 

(6
6
,5

8
0
)

(5
2
.4

%
)

(6
6
,5

8
0
)

(5
2
.4

%
)

T
e
m

p
o
ra

ry
 a

c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 c

o
s
ts

1
5
0
,0

0
0
 

3
7
,5

0
0
 

(1
5
3
,6

0
4
)

(1
9
1
,1

0
4
)

(5
0
9
.6

%
)

2
0
9
,3

0
0
 

1
8
,1

9
6
 

4
8
.5

%
 

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 g
ra

n
ts

2
3
6
,1

9
0
 

4
7
,2

3
0
 

6
0
,1

7
4
 

1
2
,9

4
4
 

2
7
.4

%
 

1
2
,9

4
4
 

2
7
.4

%
 

G
ra

n
ts

 t
o
 O

rg
a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s

2
5
7
,3

3
0
 

0
 

3
,0

0
0
 

3
,0

0
0
 

  
  
  
  
  
  
--

3
,0

0
0
 

D
is

c
re

te
 G

ra
n
ts

3
4
9
,4

2
0
 

8
7
,3

5
5
 

6
8
,5

7
1
 

(1
8
,7

8
4
)

(2
1
.5

%
)

(1
8
,7

8
4
)

(2
1
.5

%
)

8
4
2
,9

4
0
 

1
3
4
,5

8
5
 

1
3
1
,7

4
5
 

(2
,8

4
0
)

(2
.1

%
)

0
 

(2
,8

4
0
)

(2
.1

%
)

B
e
n
e
fi
t 
p
a
ym

e
n
ts

1
7
,8

4
9
,0

5
0
 

3
,4

5
3
,0

0
0
 

3
,6

4
8
,6

2
7
 

1
9
5
,6

2
7
 

5
.7

%
 

1
9
5
,6

2
7
 

5
.7

%
 

O
th

e
r 

e
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

1
2
,2

1
3
,0

7
0
 

3
,3

1
1
,1

2
1
 

1
,7

8
8
,3

1
8
 

(1
,5

2
2
,8

0
3
)

(4
6
.0

%
)

8
3
7
,0

0
0
 

(6
8
5
,8

0
3
)

(2
0
.7

%
)

T
O

T
A

L
 E

X
P

E
N

D
IT

U
R

E
 e

x
c
lu

d
in

g
 

s
u

p
p

o
rt

 a
n

d
 c

a
p

it
a
l 

4
0
,0

9
0
,2

0
0
 

9
,2

1
6
,1

9
5
 

7
,5

6
5
,0

1
9
 

(1
,6

5
1
,1

7
6
)

(1
7
.9

%
)

1
,0

4
6
,3

0
0
 

(6
0
4
,8

7
6
)

(6
.6

%
)

In
c
o
m

e

C
a
r 

P
a
rk

in
g

(8
1
1
,4

2
0
)

(2
2
3
,9

6
3
)

(2
2
3
,0

4
2
)

9
2
1
 

0
.4

%
 

9
2
1
 

0
.4

%
 

B
e
n
e
fi
t 
S

u
b
s
id

y
(1

7
,6

5
7
,0

2
0
)

(4
,4

1
4
,2

5
5
)

(4
,8

9
0
,6

0
9
)

(4
7
6
,3

5
4
)

(1
0
.8

%
)

1
4
4
,5

6
0
 

(3
3
1
,7

9
4
)

(7
.5

%
)

T
e
m

p
o
ra

ry
 a

c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n

(1
5
5
,0

0
0
)

(3
8
,7

5
0
)

(5
0
,8

2
2
)

(1
2
,0

7
2
)

(3
1
.2

%
)

(1
2
,0

7
2
)

(3
1
.2

%
)

P
la

n
n
in

g
(5

3
2
,4

0
0
)

(1
3
3
,1

0
0
)

(1
5
5
,2

5
3
)

(2
2
,1

5
3
)

(1
6
.6

%
)

(2
2
,1

5
3
)

(1
6
.6

%
)

B
u
ild

in
g
 C

o
n
tr

o
l

(5
4
5
,0

0
0
)

(1
3
6
,2

5
0
)

(1
3
2
,7

0
4
)

3
,5

4
6
 

2
.6

%
 

3
,5

4
6
 

2
.6

%
 

L
e
is

u
re

(4
0
1
,2

8
0
)

(1
0
0
,3

4
5
)

(2
5
7
,7

3
9
)

(1
5
7
,3

9
4
)

(1
5
6
.9

%
)

1
3
6
,9

3
5
 

(2
0
,4

5
9
)

(2
0
.4

%
)

0
 

  
  
  
  
  
  
 -

-

D
S

O
 R

e
c
h
a
rg

e
 I
n
c
o
m

e
(6

0
,0

0
0
)

(1
5
,0

0
0
)

(5
9
,8

8
5
)

(4
4
,8

8
5
)

(2
9
9
.2

%
)

(4
4
,8

8
5
)

(2
9
9
.2

%
)

R
e
p
ro

g
ra

p
h
ic

s
 R

e
c
h
a
rg

e
 I
n
c
o
m

e
(2

8
,2

0
0
)

(2
8
,2

0
0
)

  
  
  
  
  
  
--

(2
8
,2

0
0
)

0
 

  
  
  
  
  
  
 -

-

In
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 
in

c
o
m

e
(1

,1
5
2
,9

0
0
)

(2
8
2
,7

0
0
)

(1
1
1
,5

7
7
)

1
7
1
,1

2
3
 

6
0
.5

%
 

(1
1
2
,3

3
2
)

5
8
,7

9
1
 

2
0
.8

%
 

O
th

e
r 

in
c
o
m

e
(4

,7
5
1
,8

8
0
)

(1
,0

6
8
,6

6
0
)

(8
3
3
,3

3
5
)

2
3
5
,3

2
5
 

2
2
.0

%
 

(1
4
4
,5

6
0
)

9
0
,7

6
5
 

8
.5

%
 

T
O

T
A

L
 I
N

C
O

M
E

 e
x
c
lu

d
in

g
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 

a
n

d
 c

a
p

it
a
l

(2
6
,0

6
6
,9

0
0
)

(6
,4

1
3
,0

2
3
)

(6
,7

4
3
,1

6
6
)

(3
3
0
,1

4
3
)

(5
.1

%
)

2
4
,6

0
3
 

(2
3
2
,4

5
5
)

(3
.6

%
)

N
E

T
 P

O
S

IT
IO

N
 e

x
c
lu

d
in

g
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 

a
n

d
 c

a
p

it
a
l

1
4
,0

2
3
,3

0
0
 

2
,8

0
3
,1

7
2
 

8
2
1
,8

5
3
 

(1
,9

8
1
,3

1
9
)

(7
0
.7

%
)

1
,0

7
0
,9

0
3
 

(8
3
7
,3

3
1
)

(2
9
.9

%
)

Page 40



D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\4\7\7\AI00004774\FinancialCommentary1stQuarter60.doc 23/08/200610:45 

Corporate Governance Report to Executive 

2006/07 Quarter 1 - to the end of June 2006 
Financial Commentary 
 
The following comments are provided to explain the attached high level budget monitoring 
figures. 
 

SUMMARY 
The attached Corporate Governance report for the first quarter indicates an unadjusted  
underspend of £1.9m (71%).  This reflects expenditure and income transactions to the end of 
June as recorded on the financial management system ('fms') except for Contingency and 
external investment income.   
 

This position contains several large 'false variances' which are due to timing differences and are 
not expected to affect the year-end position.  Several adjustments have been made to omit these 
in order to provide a more accurate prediction of the year-end position.  The attached report 
indicates an adjusted underspend of £0.8m (30%). 
 
The bulk (£0.6m) of the overall variance is due to under-spending Expenditure items, with over-
achievement on Income items accounting for the remainder ( £0.2m). 
 
Explanations of the main items are provided below.  Detailed explanations should be discussed 
in the monthly performance management meetings held by Portfolio Holders and 
Deputy/Assistant Directors.  Any significant variances which will impact the year-end position 
should be reported by the appropriate Portfolio Holder to this Executive meeting.   
 

EXPLANATIONS 
 

The largest area of variance, spanning both expenditure and income is Benefits.  The net effect 
of the variances on benefit payments and benefit subsidy accounts for £136k of the overall 
adjusted underspend.  This is within acceptable tolerances given the annual budget is £18m. 
 
Some of the £130k (6%) underspend on Salaries will be vired by budget holders to counteract 
the £51k (78%) overspend on Temporary and Agency Staff.  In addition the Salaries budgets 
still include certain Service Prioritisation Plan savings which will be returned to Contingency and 
therefore disappear in the coming months. 
 

The actual costs for Temporary Accommodation are distorted by the presence of a brought 
forward accrual of £209k for invoices which were expected to have been paid by the Council in 
this quarter.  As they remain unpaid (as they are being disputed) the accrual has been adjusted 
for, leaving a true variance of £18k (49%) overspend. 
 

The large underspend on Other Expenditure is chiefly due to two timing differences which have 
both been adjusted for.  Delays in paying the waste contractor’s invoices caused £750k of the 
apparent underspend; and, un-invoiced pension costs account for a further £87k.  After adjusting 
for these the adjusted underspend shrinks to £686k (21%).  Of this, a major variance of £132k is 
due to Assisted Transport as some claims from the bus operators will not be paid until the 
second quarter. 
 

Once the £331k over-achievement of Benefit Subsidy is excluded from the report, there are no 
other single Income items worthy of note at this time.  The second quarter will provide a more 
reliable basis for predicting the outturn position. 
 

Page 41



K
e
y
 S

ta
ff

in
g

 D
a
ta

 -
 

F
ir

s
t 

Q
u

a
rt

e
r 

2
0
0
6
-7

Q
1
 

T
a
rg

e
t

Q
2
 

T
a
rg

e
t

Q
3
 

T
a
rg

e
t

S
e
rv

ic
e
 A

re
a

N
o
. 

a
v
e
ra

g
e
 

d
a
y
s
 

s
ic

k
n
e
s
s
/ 

m
th

A
v
.d

a
y
s
 

lo
s
t 

p
e
r 

F
T

E
/m

th

N
o
. 

a
v
e
ra

g
e
 

d
a
y
s
 

s
ic

k
n
e
s
s
/ 

m
th

A
v
.d

a
y
s
 

lo
s
t 

p
e
r 

F
T

E
/m

th

N
o
. 

a
v
e
ra

g
e
 

d
a
y
s
 

s
ic

k
n
e
s
s
/m

t

h

A
v
.d

a
y
s
 

lo
s
t 

p
e
r 

F
T

E
/m

th

N
o
. 

a
v
e
ra

g
e
 

d
a
y
s
 

s
ic

k
n
e
s
s
/m

t

h

A
v
.d

a
y
s
 

lo
s
t 

p
e
r 

F
T

E
/m

th

T
o

ta
l 

n
o

. 

s
ic

k
 d

a
y
s
 

2
0
0
5
-0

6

C
u

m
u

la
ti

v
e
 

n
o

 o
f 

w
k
g

 

d
a
y
s
 l

o
s
t 

p
e
r 

F
T

E

A
u
d
it
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t

2
.0

0
0
.5

0

C
o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s

2
.6

7
0
.1

2

C
o
n
tr

a
c
t 

&
 P

ro
c
u
re

m
e
n
t

4
.1

7
0
.1

4

D
e
m

o
c
ra

ti
c
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s

2
.0

0
0
.1

3

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
H

e
a
lt
h

1
0
.3

3
0
.3

8

F
in

a
n
c
e

4
4
.5

0
1
.0

3

H
o
u
s
in

g
 &

 C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 S

a
fe

ty
3
1
.8

3
0
.8

6

L
e
g
a
l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s

0
.0

0
0
.0

0

O
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 S

u
p
p
o
rt

1
4
.3

3
0
.3

0

P
la

n
n
in

g
 a

n
d
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 

S
tr

a
te

g
y

4
1
.3

3
0
.8

9

P
ro

p
e
rt

y
 &

 E
s
ta

te
s

1
.0

0
0
.1

3

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 D
ir
e
c
to

rs
 O

ff
ic

e
s

0
.0

0
0
.0

0

T
o

ta
ls

1
4
4
.1

7
0
.5

1

C
o

m
p

a
ri

s
o

n
 f

ig
u

re
 f

o
r 

2
0
0
5
-

2
0
0
6

2
3
5
.8

3
0
.6

8
1
7
0
.6

6
0
.5

1
2
2
3
.5

0
.6

7
2
8
7
.1

7
0
.8

9
2
8
0
4

9
.8

5

A
n

n
u

a
l 

T
o

ta
ls

S
U

M
M

A
R

Y
 O

F
 S

IC
K

N
E

S
S

 2
0
0
6
-0

7

Q
1

Q
2

Q
3

Q
4

S
ic

k
n

e
s
s
 i
s
 d

o
w

n
 c

o
m

p
a
re

d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 s

a
m

e
 q

u
a
rt

e
r 

la
s
t 

y
e
a
r.

  
T

h
is

 i
s
 a

ls
o

 d
o

w
n

 o
n

 t
h

e
 p

re
v

io
u

s
 q

u
a
rt

e
r.

  
S

ic
k
n

e
s
s
 u

s
u

a
ll
y
 

is
 e

x
p

e
c
te

d
 t

o
 r

e
d

u
c
e
 i
n

 t
h

e
 s

p
ri

n
g

 a
n

d
 s

u
m

m
e
r 

m
o

n
th

s
. 
 D

ir
e
c
t 

c
o

m
p

a
ri

s
o

n
s
 a

g
a
in

s
t 

la
s
t 

y
e
a
r 

a
re

 d
if

fi
c
u

lt
 d

u
e
 t

o
 

re
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
.

Page 42



Q
1
 

T
a
rg

e
t

Q
2
 

T
a
rg

e
t

Q
3
 

T
a
rg

e
t

A
v
. 

N
o
. 

e
m

p
lo

y
e
e
s
 

le
ft

/m
th

A
v
. 

T
u
rn

o
v
e
r/

 

m
th

 (
%

)

A
v
. 

N
o
. 

e
m

p
lo

y
e
e
s
 

le
ft

/m
th

A
v
. 

T
u
rn

o
v
e
r/

 

m
th

A
v
. 

N
o
. 

e
m

p
lo

y
e
e
s
 

le
ft

/m
th

A
v
. 

T
u
rn

o
v
e
r

/ 
m

th

A
v
. 

N
o
. 

e
m

p
lo

y
e
e
s
 

le
ft

/m
th

A
v
. 

T
u
rn

o
v
e
r/

 

m
th

T
o

ta
l 

N
o

 

L
e
a
v
e
rs

C
u

m
u

la
ti

v
e
 

T
u

rn
o

v
e
r

A
u
d
it
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t

0
.0

0
0
.0

0

C
o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s

0
.0

0
0
.0

0

C
o
n
tr

a
c
t 

&
 P

ro
c
u
re

m
e
n
t

0
.0

0
0
.0

0

D
e
m

o
c
ra

ti
c
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s

0
.3

3
1
.7

5

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
H

e
a
lt
h

0
.3

3
1
.1

9

F
in

a
n
c
e

1
.3

3
2
.8

5
*

H
o
u
s
in

g
 &

 C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 S

a
fe

ty
0
.0

0
0
.0

0

L
e
g
a
l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s

0
.0

0
0
.0

0

O
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 S

u
p
p
o
rt

0
.6

7
1
.1

9

P
la

n
n
in

g
 a

n
d
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 

S
tr

a
te

g
y

0
.0

0
0
.0

0

P
ro

p
e
rt

y
 &

 E
s
ta

te
s

0
.0

0
0
.0

0

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 D
ir
e
c
to

rs
 O

ff
ic

e
s

0
.0

0
0
.0

0

T
o

ta
ls

2
.6

7
0
.8

4

C
o

m
p

a
ri

s
o

n
 f

ig
u

re
 f

o
r 

2
0
0
5
-

2
0
0
6

1
.9

9
0
.5

8
%

4
.3

2
1
.2

8
%

3
0
.9

0
%

5
1
.5

5
%

3
9

1
2
.2

3
%

Q
1

Q
2

Q
3

Q
4

*T
u
rn

o
v
e
r 

is
 u

p
 c

o
m

p
a
re

d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 s

a
m

e
 q

u
a
rt

e
r 

la
s
t 
ye

a
r.

  
T

h
is

 i
s
 p

ri
n
c
ip

a
lly

 f
e
lt
 t
o
 b

e
 d

u
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 r

e
a
c
ti
o
n
 t
o
 t
h
e
 t
ra

n
s
fe

r 
o
f 

R
e
v
e
n
u
e
 a

n
d
 B

e
n
e
fi
ts

 s
ta

ff
 t
o
 C

a
p
it
a
, 
e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e
 3

1
 J

u
ly

 t
h
is

 y
e
a
r.

S
U

M
M

A
R

Y
 O

F
 T

U
R

N
O

V
E

R
 2

0
0
6
-2

0
0
7

Page 43



E
c

o
n

o
m

ic
 D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

&
 E

n
te

rp
ri

s
e

 B
lo

c
k

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
R

e
p

o
rt

 6
0
/0

6
 

 
1
. 

D
e
s
p
it
e
 t
h

e
 s

tr
e
n
g

th
s
 o

f 
th

e
 l
o
c
a

l 
e
c
o
n

o
m

y 
(i

n
c
lu

d
in

g
 l
o

w
 u

n
e
m

p
lo

ym
e
n
t 

a
n

d
 r

a
p

id
 g

ro
w

th
 i
n
 a

 d
iv

e
rs

e
 r

a
n
g
e

 o
f 

h
ig

h
 t
e
c
h
 s

e
c
to

rs
 a

n
d
 u

n
iv

e
rs

it
ie

s
) 

th
e
 

O
x
fo

rd
s
h
ir
e
 e

c
o
n
o
m

y 
is

 a
d

v
e
rs

e
ly

 a
ff

e
c
te

d
 b

y
 t

ra
ff

ic
 c

o
n

g
e
s
ti

o
n

 a
n
d

 b
y
 r

e
c
ru

it
m

e
n

t 
a
n

d
 r

e
te

n
ti

o
n

 d
if
fi
c
u
lt
ie

s
 c

a
u
s
e

d
 b

y
 i
n

a
d

e
q

u
a
te

 s
k
il
l 
le

v
e
ls

 a
n
d
 

th
e
 h

ig
h
 c

o
s
t 
o
f 

h
o

u
s
in

g
. 
F

u
rt

h
e
rm

o
re

, 
p
ro

te
c
ti
n
g
 t

h
e
 c

o
u
n
ty

’s
 a

tt
ra

c
ti
v
e
 e

n
v

ir
o

n
m

e
n

t 
is

 c
ri
ti
c
a
l 
to

 t
h

e
 c

o
n
ti
n

u
e
d
 e

c
o
n
o
m

ic
 s

u
c
c
e
s
s
 o

f 
O

x
fo

rd
s
h
ir
e
. 
 

 2
. 

W
h
ils

t 
w

e
 h

a
v
e

 a
n
 E

c
o

n
o

m
ic

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 f

o
r 

th
e
 c

o
u

n
ty

 w
h

ic
h
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

g
re

e
d
 w

it
h
 k

e
y
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

, 
th

e
re

 i
s
 a

n
 e

m
e
rg

in
g
 c

o
n
s
e
n
s
u
s
 t
h
a
t 

w
e
 n

e
e
d
 t

o
 d

o
 

m
o
re

 t
o
 a

d
d
re

s
s
: 

 

•
 

s
k
ill

s
 d

e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n
t,
  

•
 

in
w

a
rd

 i
n
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 
p
a
rt

ic
u
la

rl
y
 i
n
te

rn
a
ti
o
n

a
l 
in

v
e
s
tm

e
n
t,
  

•
 

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 r

e
s
o
u
rc

e
 u

s
e
 e

ff
ic

ie
n
c
y
, 
 

•
 

th
e
 a

ff
o
rd

a
b
ili

ty
 o

f 
h
o
u
s
in

g
 a

n
d
  
 

•
 

th
e
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
l 
o
f 

to
u
ri
s
m

 a
n
d
 s

o
c
ia

l 
e
n
te

rp
ri
s
e
. 
 

 3
. 

S
p
e
c
if
ic

 s
tr

e
tc

h
 t

a
rg

e
ts

 r
e

la
ti
n
g

 t
o
 a

d
u

lt
 s

k
ill

s
 a

n
d
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 s

ta
rt

 u
p
s
 a

re
 i
d
e

n
ti
fi
e

d
 b

e
lo

w
. 

 4
. 

T
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

 -
 I
n
 t
h

e
 m

e
d
iu

m
 t
e
rm

 f
u
n
d
in

g
 l
im

it
a
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
h

ib
it
 o

u
r 

re
s
p
o

n
s
e
 t
o
 t

ra
n
s
p
o
rt

 i
s
s
u
e
s
 b

u
t 
th

e
 C

o
u
n
ty

 C
o

u
n
c
il 

L
o
c
a

l 
tr

a
n
s
p
o
rt

 P
la

n
 s

e
ts

 o
u
t 

a
 

c
o
m

p
re

h
e
n
s
iv

e
 r

e
s
p

o
n
s
e
 t

o
 n

e
e
d
s
 f

o
r 

th
e
 n

e
x
t 
5
 y

e
a
rs

. 
W

e
 r

e
c
o
g
n
is

e
 t
h

a
t 
th

e
 G

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 
is

 c
o

n
s
id

e
ri

n
g

 r
a
d
ic

a
l 
o

p
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 c

o
n

g
e
s
ti
o

n
 c

h
a
rg

in
g
 

a
n
d
 p

la
n
n

in
g
 g

a
in

 c
h

a
rg

in
g

 t
o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 f

u
rt

h
e
r 

fu
n

d
in

g
 t

o
 s

u
p
p

o
rt

 i
n
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 r

e
q

u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

 a
s
s
o
c
ia

te
d

 w
it
h
 n

e
w

 d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t.
 W

e
 w

ill
 k

e
e
p
 t
h
e
s
e
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
ts

 u
n
d
e
r 

re
v
ie

w
 a

s
 w

e
 c

o
n

te
m

p
la

te
 l
o
n

g
 t
e
rm

 t
ra

n
s
p
o
rt

 p
la

n
n
in

g
 f

o
r 

th
e

 c
o
u
n
ty

. 
 5
. 

T
h
e
 O

x
fo

rd
s
h
ir
e
 E

c
o

n
o
m

ic
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 i
s
 r

e
v
ie

w
in

g
 t
h

e
 E

c
o
n

o
m

ic
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 i
n
 t

h
e
 c

o
n
te

x
t 
o
f 

th
e

 r
e
g
io

n
a
l 
e
c
o

n
o
m

ic
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 a

n
d
 i
t 

is
 a

n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 t
h

a
t 
a

 
n
e

w
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 w

ill
 b

e
 l
a

u
n
c
h

e
d
 d

u
ri
n

g
 2

0
0
6
. 

A
 n

e
w

 R
u
ra

l 
S

tr
a
te

g
y
 w

ill
 a

ls
o
 b

e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 d

u
ri

n
g
 2

0
0

6
 t
o
 a

d
d
re

s
s
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 o

f 
s
u
s
ta

in
a

b
ili

ty
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 r

u
ra

l 
e
c
o
n
o
m

y.
 W

e
 w

ill
 r

e
ly

 o
n
 t
h

e
 O

x
fo

rd
s
h
ir
e
 E

c
o
n

o
m

ic
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 t
o
 d

ri
v
e
 w

o
rk

 i
n
 t
h

is
 a

re
a
, 
b

u
t 
th

e
 P

u
b

lic
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 B

o
a
rd

 w
ill

 c
lo

s
e

ly
 m

o
n
it
o
r 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
. 
 

 6
. 

T
h
e
 s

tr
e
tc

h
 t

a
rg

e
ts

 f
o
r 

th
e

 E
c
o
n
o
m

ic
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
&

 E
n
te

rp
ri
s
e
 b

lo
c
k
 a

re
 l
is

te
d
 b

e
lo

w
: 

 O
u

tc
o

m
e
s
 

In
d

ic
a
to

rs
 

S
tr

e
tc

h
 T

a
rg

e
t 

F
u

n
d

in
g

 s
tr

e
a
m

s
 

c
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
n

g
 t

o
 

o
u

tc
o

m
e
s
 

V
a
le

 
C

o
m

m
it

m
e
n

t 

In
c
re

a
s
in

g
 t
h

e
 G

ro
s
s
 

V
a
lu

e
 a

d
d

e
d
 o

f 
th

e
 

O
x
fo

rd
s
h
ir
e
 

E
c
o
n
o
m

y 

R
e
d
u
c
e

d
 

u
n
e
m

p
lo

ym
e
n

t,
 

in
c
re

a
s
e
d

 e
n
te

rp
ri
s
e
, 

in
c
re

a
s
e
d

 i
n
c
o
m

e
s
, 

B
y
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
0

9
 7

2
0
 

a
d
u

lt
s
 w

it
h
 n

o
 

q
u
a

lif
ic

a
ti
o
n
s
 w

ill
 

h
a
v
e
 g

a
in

e
d
 a

 l
e
v
e
l 

S
E

E
D

A
 A

re
a
 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 

U
s
in

g
 S

E
E

D
A

 
fu

n
d
in

g
 a

n
d
 

fo
c
u
s
s
in

g
 o

n
 O

x
fo

rd
. 
 

N
o

 i
n

v
o

lv
e
m

e
n

t 

Agenda Item 12

Page 44



O
u

tc
o

m
e
s
 

In
d

ic
a
to

rs
 

S
tr

e
tc

h
 T

a
rg

e
t 

F
u

n
d

in
g

 s
tr

e
a
m

s
 

c
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
n

g
 t

o
 

o
u

tc
o

m
e
s
 

V
a
le

 
C

o
m

m
it

m
e
n

t 

e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
s
, 
s
k
ill

s
 a

n
d
 

tr
a
in

in
g
  

1
, 
2
 o

r 
3
 q

u
a
lif

ic
a
ti
o
n
. 

a
p

a
rt

 f
ro

m
 o

v
e
rs

ig
h
t 

th
ro

u
g

h
 E

E
D

G
 

In
c
re

a
s
e
d
 

e
m

p
lo

ym
e
n
t 
a

n
d
 

in
c
re

a
s
e
d

 l
e

v
e

ls
 o

f 
b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 s

ta
rt

 u
p
s
 

A
tt
it
u
d

e
s
 o

f 
y
o
u

n
g
 

p
e
o
p

le
 t

o
 e

n
te

rp
ri

s
e
 

a
n
d
 e

n
tr

e
p
re

n
e

u
ri
a

l 
a
c
ti
v
it
y
 (

s
e
tt
in

g
 u

p
 a

 
b
u
s
in

e
s
s
) 

 S
a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
e
m

p
lo

y
e
rs

 w
it
h
 s

ta
ff

 
a
tt
it
u
d
e
s
 a

n
d
 

a
p
ti
tu

d
e
s
 

4
.5

%
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 t

o
ta

l 
in

 3
 y

e
a
r 

p
e
ri

o
d

 (
fr

o
m

 
2
0
0
6

/0
7
 t

o
 2

0
0
8

/0
9
) 

o
f 

y
o
u
n

g
 p

e
o
p

le
 

(a
g
e
s
 1

4
 t

o
 2

5
) 

c
o
n
s
id

e
ri

n
g
 

e
n
te

rp
ri

s
e
 a

s
 a

 
c
a
re

e
r 

o
p
ti
o
n
) 

 2
%

 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 p

.a
. 
fo

r 
3
 y

e
a
r 

p
e
ri

o
d

 (
fr

o
m

 
2
0
0
6

/0
7
 t

o
 2

0
0
8

/0
9
) 

in
 y

o
u

n
g
 p

e
o

p
le

 
(a

g
e
s
 1

4
 t

o
 2

5
) 

in
 

s
ta

rt
in

g
 t

h
e

ir
 o

w
n
 

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 (

p
re

-s
ta

rt
s
) 

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o

n
 B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 
B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 L

in
k
 

M
K

O
B

 
E

U
 f

u
n
d

in
g
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 

G
R

O
W

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 

S
E

E
D

A
 

F
o
c
u
s
s
in

g
 o

n
 s

c
h
o
o

l 
b
a
s
e
d
 a

c
ti
v
it
y
, 
m

a
y
 

b
e
 o

f 
in

te
re

s
t 
to

 
Y

o
u
th

 F
o
ru

m
. 

L
im

it
e
d

 o
ff

ic
e
r 

in
v

o
lv

e
m

e
n

t 

 7
. 

T
h
e
 n

o
n

-s
tr

e
tc

h
 t

a
rg

e
ts

 a
re

 l
is

te
d
 f

o
r 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
: 

 O
u

tc
o

m
e
s
 

In
d

ic
a
to

rs
 

T
a
rg

e
ts

 
F

u
n

d
in

g
 S

tr
e
a
m

s
 

c
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
n

g
 t

o
 

O
u

tc
o

m
e
 

V
a
le

 C
o

m
m

it
m

e
n

t 

In
c
re

a
s
e
 

O
x
fo

rd
s
h
ir
e
’s

 G
V

A
 

V
a
lu

e
 a

n
d

 v
o
lu

m
e
 o

f 
to

u
ri
s
m

 s
e
c
to

r 
(5

%
 

a
b
o

v
e
 n

a
ti
o
n

a
l 

a
v
e
ra

g
e
) 

–
 T

o
u
ri
s
m

 
S

o
u
th

 E
a
s
t 
a

n
d
 

O
x
fo

rd
 M

o
d
e
l 
fr

o
m

 
O

x
fo

rd
 C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

 

In
c
re

a
s
e
 t
h

e
 v

a
lu

e
 o

f 
to

u
ri
s
m

 t
o
 t
h
e
 

O
x
fo

rd
s
h
ir
e
 e

c
o
n
o
m

y 
b

y
 i
n
c
re

a
s
in

g
 t

h
e
 

p
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
s
ta

y
in

g
 v

is
it
o
rs

  
 A

 f
it
 f

o
r 

p
u
rp

o
s
e
 

S
E

E
D

A
 –

 v
ia

 T
o
u
ri
s
m

 
S

o
u
th

 E
a
s
t 

O
x
fo

rd
s
h
ir
e
 C

o
u
n
ty

 
C

o
u
n
c
il 

D
is

tr
ic

ts
 

T
ra

d
in

g
 s

ta
n

d
a
rd

s
 l
e
d
 

p
ro

je
c
t,
 r

e
le

v
a

n
t 
to

 
p
ro

m
o
ti
o
n
 o

f 
V

a
le

 
to

u
ri
s
m

. 
O

ff
ic

e
r 

in
v

o
lv

e
m

e
n

t 
b

u
t 

n
o

 a
d

d
it

io
n

a
l 

fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l 
im

p
li
c
a
ti

o
n

s
. 

Page 45



O
u

tc
o

m
e
s
 

In
d

ic
a
to

rs
 

T
a
rg

e
ts

 
F

u
n

d
in

g
 S

tr
e
a
m

s
 

c
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
n

g
 t

o
 

O
u

tc
o

m
e
 

V
a
le

 C
o

m
m

it
m

e
n

t 

S
p
e

n
d
 o

n
 

a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 a

s
 a

 
p
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
to

u
ri
s
m

 
e
x
p
e
n
d

it
u
re

 (
U

K
 

T
ra

d
e
 a

n
d
 I

n
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 T

S
E

) 
 D

e
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 t
h

e
 

n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

h
o
te

ls
 

fa
ili

n
g
 t
o

 m
e
e
t 
th

e
 

m
in

im
u
m

 l
e
g
a
l 

re
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

 t
o
 

o
p
e
ra

te
 

 N
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 

p
ro

v
id

e
rs

 s
ig

n
e
d

 u
p

 t
o
 

th
e
 s

c
h
e
m

e
 

 V
is

it
o
r 

S
a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o

n
 

s
c
h
e
m

e
 i
s
 p

ro
p
o
s
e

d
 

fo
r 

O
x
fo

rd
s
h
ir
e
 

a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 

p
ro

v
id

e
rs

 

T
o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 

to
 i
n
te

rm
e
d
ia

te
 

a
ff

o
rd

a
b
le

 h
o
u
s
in

g
 

fo
r 

O
x
fo

rd
s
h
ir
e
’s

 k
e

y 
a
n
d
 e

s
s
e
n
ti
a
l 

w
o
rk

e
rs

 i
n
 o

rd
e
r 

to
 

a
d
d
re

s
s
 t
h
e

 
p
ro

b
le

m
s
 o

f 
re

c
ru

it
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 

re
te

n
ti
o
n
 a

s
 a

 r
e
s
u

lt
 

o
f 

th
e
 h

ig
h
 c

o
s
t 

o
f 

h
o
u
s
in

g
 

U
s
e
rs

 g
a
in

in
g
 t
h

e
ir
 

fi
rs

t 
c
h
o
ic

e
 o

f 
h
o
u
s
in

g
 

 N
e

w
 h

o
m

e
s
 b

e
in

g
 

b
u
ilt

 t
h
a
t 

a
re

 
a
ff

o
rd

a
b
le

 
 

H
o
u
s
e
h

o
ld

s
 a

n
d
 

in
d

iv
id

u
a
ls

 g
a

in
 f

ir
s
t 

c
h
o
ic

e
 i
n
 a

c
c
e
s
s
in

g
 

in
te

rm
e
d
ia

te
 

a
ff

o
rd

a
b
le

 h
o
u
s
in

g
 

(l
o

w
 c

o
s
t 
m

a
rk

e
t,
 

s
h
a
re

d
 o

w
n
e
rs

h
ip

, 
s
h
a
re

d
 e

q
u

it
y
) 

th
ro

u
g

h
 a

n
 

O
x
fo

rd
s
h
ir
e
 C

h
o
ic

e
 

B
a
s
e
d
 L

e
tt

in
g
s
 

S
y
s
te

m
 b

y
 M

a
rc

h
 

H
o
u
s
in

g
 C

o
rp

o
ra

ti
o
n
 

O
x
fo

rd
s
h
ir
e
 C

o
u
n
ty

 
C

o
u
n
c
il 

D
is

tr
ic

t 
C

o
u
n
c
ils

 
R

e
g
is

te
re

d
 S

o
c
ia

l 
L
a
n
d

lo
rd

s
 

P
ri

v
a
te

 F
in

a
n
c
e
 

In
it
ia

ti
v
e
 a

n
d
 R

e
a
l 

E
s
ta

te
 I

n
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 

T
ru

s
ts

 
C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 L

a
n
d
 

T
ru

s
t 

A
c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

th
is

 
ta

rg
e
t 
c
a

n
 b

e
 

a
c
h
ie

v
e

d
 w

it
h
in

 
e
x
is

ti
n

g
 o

ff
ic

e
r 

re
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 a

n
d
 c

a
p
it
a
l 

b
u
d
g

e
ts

 
      

Page 46



O
u

tc
o

m
e
s
 

In
d

ic
a
to

rs
 

T
a
rg

e
ts

 
F

u
n

d
in

g
 S

tr
e
a
m

s
 

c
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
n

g
 t

o
 

O
u

tc
o

m
e
 

V
a
le

 C
o

m
m

it
m

e
n

t 

2
0
0
9

. 
 A

ff
o
rd

a
b
le

 h
o
u
s
in

g
 

u
n
it
s
 (

a
ll 

a
ff
o
rd

a
b

le
 

te
n
u
re

s
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 

s
o
c
ia

l 
re

n
te

d
 

h
o
u
s
in

g
) 

a
re

 b
u

ilt
 o

n
 

s
it
e
s
 t
h
ro

u
g
h

o
u
t 

O
x
fo

rd
s
h
ir
e
 b

y
 

M
a
rc

h
 2

0
0
9
 u

s
in

g
 

in
n

o
v
a
ti
v
e
 f

u
n

d
in

g
 

m
e
c
h
a
n
is

m
s
. 

   N
o

w
 b

e
in

g
 n

e
g
o
ti
a

te
d
 

a
s
 s

tr
e
tc

h
 t
a
rg

e
t.
  

F
in

a
l 
c
o
m

m
it
m

e
n
t 
to

 
b
e
 a

g
re

e
d

 b
u
t 

a
p
p
e

a
rs

 c
a
n
 b

e
 m

e
t 

w
it
h

in
 e

x
is

ti
n

g
 

re
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 

In
c
re

a
s
e
 t
h

e
 

e
ff

ic
ie

n
c
y
 a

n
d
 g

ro
s
s
 

v
a

lu
e
 a

d
d

e
d
 o

f 
b
u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 i
n
 t

h
e
 

c
o
u
n
ty

 b
y
 r

e
d

u
c
in

g
 

th
e
ir
 r

e
s
o

u
rc

e
 c

o
s
ts

. 
P

o
te

n
ti
a
l 
s
a

v
in

g
s
 

c
a
n
 r

e
d
u
c
e
 

o
p
e
ra

ti
n

g
 c

o
s
ts

 b
y
 

a
n
 e

s
ti
m

a
te

d
 2

%
, 

h
a
v
in

g
 a

 p
o
s
it
iv

e
 

im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 

p
ro

fi
ta

b
ili

ty
 a

n
d
 

s
u
s
ta

in
a

b
ili

ty
 o

f 
th

e
 

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
. 

%
 o

f 
b
u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 

p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
n
g

 i
n

 
re

s
o
u
rc

e
 e

ff
ic

ie
n
c
y
 

c
lu

b
s
 o

r 
re

la
te

d
 

a
c
ti
v
it
y
 

 %
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 i
n
 e

n
e
rg

y
 

c
o
n
s
u
m

p
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
/o

r 
C

O
2
 e

m
is

s
io

n
s
 b

y
 

ta
rg

e
te

d
 

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
/e

m
p
lo

y
e
rs

 

A
c
h
ie

v
e

 a
 6

0
%

 
re

c
yc

lin
g
 r

a
te

 b
y
 

e
m

p
lo

y
e
rs

 a
n

d
 

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
  
ta

k
in

g
 

p
a
rt

 i
n
 a

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 

o
f 

a
w

a
re

n
e
s
s
-r

a
is

in
g
 

a
n
d
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 d
ir
e
c
te

d
 

a
t 
th

o
s
e
 

o
rg

a
n

is
a
ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 w

e
 h

a
v
e
 

id
e

n
ti
fi
e

d
 a

s
 w

ill
in

g
 t

o
 

b
e
 e

n
g
a

g
e
d
 i
n
 

re
s
o
u
rc

e
 e

ff
ic

ie
n
c
y
 

w
o
rk

  
 A

c
h
ie

v
e

 a
 r

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 

in
 e

n
e
rg

y
 

c
o
n
s
u
m

p
ti
o
n
 b

y
 

2
0
0
9

. 
 

 

B
R

E
W

 (
B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 

R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 E

ff
ic

ie
n
c
y
 

a
n
d
 W

a
s
te

 
P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
) 

O
x
fo

rd
s
h
ir
e
 C

o
u
n
ty

 
C

o
u
n
c
il 

S
u
s
ta

in
a

b
le

 
D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
S

e
rv

ic
e
 

w
a
s
te

 a
n
d
 

e
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 
b
u

d
g

e
ts

 
S

E
E

D
A

 c
o
re

 f
u
n
d

in
g

 
fo

r 
S

u
s
ta

in
a
b

le
 

B
u
s
in

e
s
s
 

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

s
 

O
x
fo

rd
s
h
ir
e
 

S
u
s
ta

in
a

b
le

 B
u
s
in

e
s
s
 

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 a
n
d

 
s
ta

k
e
h
o
ld

e
rs

 

L
e
d
 b

y
 S

u
s
ta

in
a
b

le
 

B
u
s
in

e
s
s
 

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

. 
L

im
it

e
d

 o
ff

ic
e
r 

in
v

o
lv

e
m

e
n

t.
 

Page 47



C
h

il
d

re
n

 a
n

d
 Y

o
u

n
g

 P
e

o
p

le
 B

lo
c

k
 

 8
. 

T
h
e
 G

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 
h
a
s
 i
d
e

n
ti
fi
e
d
 i
ts

 e
x
p

e
c
ta

ti
o
n
s
 f

o
r 

c
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
o

p
le

 i
n
 ‘
E

v
e
ry

 C
h
ild

 M
a
tt

e
rs

’.
 O

u
r 

re
s
p
o
n
s
e
 i
s
 f

ra
m

e
d
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e
 O

x
fo

rd
s
h
ir
e
 

C
h
ild

re
n

 &
 Y

o
u
n
g
 P

e
o
p

le
 P

la
n
 w

h
ic

h
 w

ill
 b

e
 f

o
rm

a
lly

 a
p
p
ro

v
e
d
 i
n
 A

p
ri

l 
0
6
. 
T

h
e
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 

h
tt
p
:/
/p

o
rt

a
l.
o
x
fo

rd
s
h
ir
e

.g
o

v
.u

k
/c

o
n
te

n
t/
p

u
b
lic

/L
a

n
d
C

/e
v
e
ry

_
c
h
ild

_
m

a
tt
e
rs

/c
yp

p
/c

h
ild

re
n
_

y
o

u
n
g

_
p
e

o
p

le
s
_
p

la
n

_
fu

ll.
p

d
f 

fo
c
u
s
e
s
 o

n
 t
h
e
 f

iv
e

 t
h
e
m

e
s
 s

e
t 
o
u
t 

b
y
 G

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t:
 

 

•
 

a
c
h
ie

v
e
 e

d
u
c
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
s
u
c
c
e
s
s
 a

n
d
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 l
if
e
 s

k
ill

s
 f

o
r 

a
 c

re
a
ti
v
e
 a

n
d
 p

o
s
it
iv

e
 a

d
u

lt
h
o
o

d
; 

•
 

e
n
jo

y
 g

o
o

d
 p

h
y
s
ic

a
l 
a
n
d
 m

e
n
ta

l 
h

e
a
lt
h
; 

•
 

b
e
 p

ro
te

c
te

d
 f

ro
m

 h
a
rm

 a
n
d
 n

e
g
le

c
t 

a
n
d

 g
ro

w
 u

p
 a

b
le

 t
o
 l
o
o
k
 a

ft
e
r 

th
e
m

s
e
lv

e
s
; 

•
 

m
a
k
e
 a

 p
o
s
it
iv

e
 c

o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o

n
 t
o
 t

h
e
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 a

n
d
 s

o
c
ie

ty
 

•
 

a
c
h
ie

v
e
 t

h
e

ir
 p

o
te

n
ti
a

l 
a

n
d
 m

a
k
e
 t
h
e
 m

o
s
t 
o
f 

th
e
ir
 l
iv

e
s
. 

 9
. 

T
h
e
 C

Y
P

 p
la

n
 c

o
n

ta
in

s
 a

 c
o
m

p
re

h
e
n
s
iv

e
 r

a
n
g

e
 o

f 
a
c
ti
o
n
. 
W

it
h
in

 t
h

is
 b

ro
a

d
 r

a
n

g
e
 o

f 
a
c
ti
v
it
y
 t

h
e

 P
u

b
lic

 S
e
rv

ic
e
 B

o
a
rd

 h
a
s
 d

e
c
id

e
d
 t
o
 c

o
n

c
e
n
tr

a
te

 i
ts

 e
ff

o
rt

 
o
n
 t
h

e
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 p

ri
o
ri

ti
e
s
 w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 r

e
fl
e
c
te

d
 i
n
 o

u
r 

p
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

 f
o
r 

s
tr

e
tc

h
 t
a
rg

e
ts

. 
 1
0
. 

E
n

jo
y
 a

n
d

 A
c

h
ie

v
e
 -

 E
d
u
c
a
ti
o

n
a

l 
a
c
h

ie
v
e
m

e
n
t 
a
t 
s
e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

 l
e

v
e
l 
n
e

e
d
s
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e
n
t.
 W

h
ile

 i
t 
is

 i
n
 l
in

e
 w

it
h

 n
a
ti
o
n

a
l 
le

v
e

ls
 i
t 

is
 p

o
o
re

r 
th

a
n
 a

u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
 

w
it
h
 s

im
ila

r 
s
o
c
io

 –
e
c
o
n
o
m

ic
 p

ro
fi
le

s
. 
N

o
t 

e
n

o
u
g

h
 s

c
h
o

o
ls

 i
n
 O

x
fo

rd
s
h
ir
e
 h

a
v
e
 g

o
o

d
 ‘
v
a

lu
e
 a

d
d

e
d

’ 
s
c
o
re

s
. 
 T

h
e
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 g
ro

u
p
s
 o

f 
c
h
ild

re
n
 i
s
 a

 p
a
rt

ic
u

la
r 

c
o
n
c
e
rn

. 
T

h
e
re

 i
s
 a

 n
e

e
d
 f

o
r 

a
 c

o
n
c
e
rt

e
d
 e

ff
o
rt

 t
o
 p

ro
m

o
te

 e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n

a
l 
s
u
c
c
e
s
s
 a

n
d
 e

n
jo

ym
e
n
t 
fr

o
m

 t
h
e
 e

a
rl

ie
s
t 

s
ta

g
e
s
 a

n
d
 e

n
s
u
re

 
th

a
t 

y
o

u
n
g
 p

e
o

p
le

 l
e
a

v
e
 s

c
h
o
o

l 
w

it
h
 t

h
e
 s

k
ill

s
 r

e
q

u
ir
e

d
 f

o
r 

fu
rt

h
e
r 

e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
, 

e
m

p
lo

ym
e
n
t 

o
r 

tr
a
in

in
g
. 

  
 1
1
. 

B
e
 H

e
a
lt

h
y
 –

 o
v
e
ra

ll 
c
h

ild
re

n
 i
n
 O

x
fo

rd
s
h
ir
e
 a

re
 h

e
a

lt
h
ie

r 
th

a
n
 i
n
 o

th
e
r 

p
a
rt

s
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
u
n
tr

y
. 
H

o
w

e
v
e
r,

 t
h
e
re

 a
re

 p
a
rt

ic
u
la

r 
a
re

a
s
 o

f 
c
o
n
c
e
rn

 i
n

 r
e
la

ti
o
n
 t

o
 

c
h
ild

 a
n

d
 a

d
o
le

s
c
e
n
t 
m

e
n
ta

l 
h
e

a
lt
h
, 
d
ru

g
 t
re

a
tm

e
n
t 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

n
d
 t

e
e
n

a
g
e

 p
re

g
n
a
n

c
y.

 
 1
2
. 

P
o

s
it

iv
e
 C

o
n

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

 –
 A

 k
e

y 
p
ri

o
ri
ty

 i
s
 t
o
 s

e
c
u
re

 t
h
e
 e

n
g
a

g
e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

c
h
ild

re
n
, 

y
o

u
n
g
 p

e
o

p
le

 a
n

d
 f

a
m

ili
e
s
 i
n
 t

h
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

o
u
r 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
  

 1
3
. 

E
c
o

n
o

m
ic

 W
e
ll
-b

e
in

g
 -

 U
n
e
m

p
lo

ym
e
n
t 

ra
te

s
 i
n
 O

x
fo

rd
s
h
ir
e
 a

re
 a

b
o
u
t 

h
a

lf
 t

h
e
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 f

o
r 

E
n
g
la

n
d
, 

b
u
t 

th
e
re

 a
re

 w
a
rd

s
 i
n
 s

e
v
e
ra

l 
a
re

a
s
 w

h
e
re

 j
o
b
le

s
s
 

ra
te

s
 a

re
 r

e
la

ti
v
e
ly

 h
ig

h
. 

 O
u
r 

in
it
ia

l 
ta

rg
e
ts

 f
o
r 

a
c
ti
o

n
 w

ill
 g

iv
e
 a

tt
e

n
ti
o
n
 t

o
 i

n
c
re

a
s
in

g
 t

h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

1
6
-1

8
 y

e
a
r 

o
ld

s
 i

n
 w

o
rk

, 
e
d
u
c
a

ti
o
n
 o

r 
tr

a
in

in
g
 t

o
 

c
o
m

p
le

m
e
n
t 
a
c
ti
o
n

 i
d

e
n
ti
fi
e

d
 w

it
h
in

 t
h

e
 E

c
o

n
o
m

ic
 d

e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n
t 
a
n

d
 E

n
te

rp
ri

s
e
 b

lo
c
k
 

 1
4
. 

S
ta

y
 S

a
fe

 –
 C

h
ild

 p
ro

te
c
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 c

a
re

 a
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 g
e
n
e
ra

lly
 w

o
rk

 w
e

ll.
 H

o
w

e
v
e
r,

 t
h
e
re

 i
s
 a

 n
e
e
d
 f

o
r 

e
a
rl
ie

r,
 p

ra
c
ti
c
a

l 
a
n

d
 a

c
c
e
s
s
ib

le
 s

u
p

p
o
rt

 f
o
r 

fa
m

ili
e
s
. 
It
 i
s
 p

ro
p

o
s
e
d
 t

o
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
 a

 n
e
tw

o
rk

 o
f 

C
h
ild

re
n
’s

 C
e
n
tr

e
s
 a

n
d
 f

u
ll 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 e

x
te

n
d
e
d

 s
c
h
o
o
ls

, 
o
ff

e
ri
n
g
 a

 w
id

e
 r

a
n
g

e
 o

f 
fa

m
ily

 s
u

p
p
o
rt

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
. 

 

Page 48



1
5
. 

T
h
e
 C

h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 Y

o
u
n
g

 P
e
o
p

le
’s

 S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 (
s
e
e
 ‘
g
o

v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 a

rr
a

n
g
e

m
e
n
ts

’ 
b
e
lo

w
) 

w
ill

 m
a
in

ta
in

 a
 d

e
ta

ile
d

 o
v
e
rs

ig
h
t 
o
f 

th
e

 t
a
rg

e
ts

 i
n
 t
h

e
 

C
Y

P
 p

la
n
 a

n
d
 r

e
p
o
rt

 t
o
 t
h

e
 P

S
B

. 
T

h
e
 P

u
b

lic
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 B

o
a
rd

 w
ill

 k
e
e
p
 u

n
d

e
r 

re
v
ie

w
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 a

g
a
in

s
t 
th

e
 C

Y
P

 P
la

n
 b

u
t 

w
ill

 m
o
n
it
o
r 

m
o
re

 c
lo

s
e

ly
 t

h
e
 

s
p
e
c
if
ic

 s
tr

e
tc

h
 t
a
rg

e
ts

 d
e
fi
n
e
d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 L

A
A

. 
 

 1
6
. 

T
h
e
 s

tr
e
tc

h
 t

a
rg

e
ts

 f
o
r 

th
is

 b
lo

c
k
 a

re
 l
is

te
d
 b

e
lo

w
: 

 O
u

tc
o

m
e
s
 

In
d

ic
a
to

rs
 

S
tr

e
tc

h
 T

a
rg

e
t 

F
u

n
d

in
g

 s
tr

e
a
m

s
 

c
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
n

g
 t

o
 

o
u

tc
o

m
e
s
 

V
a
le

 
C

o
m

m
it

m
e
n

t 

Im
p
ro

v
e
 e

a
rl

y
, 

in
te

g
ra

te
d
, 
p
ra

c
ti
c
a
l 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

 a
n
d
 t

a
k
e
 u

p
 

o
f 

c
h
ild

c
a
re

 f
o
r 

v
u

ln
e
ra

b
le

 f
a
m

ili
e
s
 

th
ro

u
g

h
 C

h
ild

re
n

’s
 

C
e
n
tr

e
s
 a

n
d
 

e
x
te

n
d

e
d
 s

c
h
o
o

ls
 (

5
 

p
ri
o
ri
ty

 l
o
c
a

lit
ie

s
 t
o

 
b
e
 i
d
e
n

ti
fi
e
d

 o
v
e
r 

a
n
d
 

a
b
o

v
e
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 
ta

rg
e
t 

o
f 

o
n
e
 f

u
ll 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 

e
x
te

n
d

e
d
 s

c
h
o
o

l 
in

 
B

la
c
k
b
ir
d
 L

e
y
s
) 

In
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 t
h

e
 

n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

fa
m

ili
e
s
 

a
c
c
e
s
s
in

g
 p

a
re

n
ti
n
g
 

e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n

 a
n

d
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

 i
n
 p

ri
o
ri

ty
 

lo
c
a
lit

ie
s
 

 5
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
fu

ll 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 m

o
d
e
l 

e
x
te

n
d

e
d
 s

c
h
o
o

ls
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
e

d
 j
o
in

tl
y
 w

it
h
 

C
h
ild

re
n

’s
 C

e
n
tr

e
s
 i
n
 

p
ri
o
ri
ty

 a
re

a
s
 

 Im
p
ro

v
e
d
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 a

b
o

u
t 

c
h
ild

re
n
’s

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

 Im
p
ro

v
e
d
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 

c
h
ild

c
a
re

 –
 e

s
p
e
c
ia

lly
 

in
 m

o
s
t 

d
is

a
d

v
a

n
ta

g
e
d
 a

re
a
s
 

N
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

p
a
re

n
ts

 
a
c
c
e
s
s
in

g
 p

a
re

n
ti
n
g
 

e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n

 a
n

d
 f

a
m

ily
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

 t
h
ro

u
g

h
 

C
h
ild

re
n

’s
 C

e
n
tr

e
s
 

E
x
te

n
d

e
d
 S

c
h
o

o
ls

 
in

c
re

a
s
e
d

 b
y
 5

%
 p

e
r 

y
e

a
r 

fr
o
m

 2
0
0
4
 

b
a
s
e
lin

e
 t
o
 3

0
0

0
 b

y
 

2
0
0
9

. 
 1
2
0
 n

e
w

 f
u
ll 

d
a

y
 c

a
re

 
p
re

 s
c
h
o
o

l 
p

la
c
e
s
 

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e

d
 b

y
 2

0
0
9
 

 O
v
e
ra

ll 
in

c
re

a
s
e
 o

f 
1
0
%

 o
v
e
r 

3
 y

e
a
rs

 f
o
r 

o
u
t 
o
f 

s
c
h
o
o

l 
a
n

d
 f

u
ll 

d
a

y
 c

a
re

 p
la

c
e
s
 f

ro
m

 
b
a
s
e
lin

e
 o

f 
5
,2

0
0
 a

n
d
 

9
,1

0
0
 p

la
c
e
s
 

re
s
p
e
c
ti
v
e
ly

 

G
e
n
e
ra

l 
S

u
re

 S
ta

rt
 

G
ra

n
t 

E
x
te

n
d

e
d
 S

c
h
o

o
ls

 
N

e
ig

h
b
o

u
rh

o
o
d
 

R
e
n
e

w
a
l 
 

C
h
ild

re
n

’s
 F

u
n

d
  

V
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 C
h

ild
re

n
’s

 
G

ra
n
t 

J
o
b
 C

e
n

tr
e
 P

lu
s
 

V
o
lu

n
ta

ry
 

O
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o

n
s
  

       N
O

N
E

 

Im
p
ro

v
e
d
 

a
c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n
t 
a
t 

G
C

S
E

 

In
c
re

a
s
e
 t
h

e
 %

 o
f 

p
u
p

ils
 a

c
h

ie
v
in

g
 5

 
G

C
S

E
s
 A

*-
C

 
(i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 E

n
g

lis
h
 

In
c
re

a
s
e
 %

 o
f 

p
u

p
ils

 
a
c
h
ie

v
in

g
 5

 G
C

S
E

s
 

A
*-

C
 (

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 

E
n
g

lis
h
 a

n
d
 M

a
th

s
) 

 
  N

O
N

E
 

 

Page 49



O
u

tc
o

m
e
s
 

In
d

ic
a
to

rs
 

S
tr

e
tc

h
 T

a
rg

e
t 

F
u

n
d

in
g

 s
tr

e
a
m

s
 

c
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
n

g
 t

o
 

o
u

tc
o

m
e
s
 

V
a
le

 
C

o
m

m
it

m
e
n

t 

a
n
d
 M

a
th

s
) 

fr
o
m

 4
4
.2

 t
o
 5

1
%

 b
y
 

S
u
m

m
e
r 

2
0
0
8
  

 F
F

T
 e

s
ti
m

a
te

s
: 

2
0
0
6

 =
 4

8
%

 
2
0
0
7

 =
 5

0
%

 
2
0
0
8

 =
 5

1
%

 

   N
O

N
E

 

In
c
re

a
s
e
d
 

e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n

a
l 

a
c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

lo
o
k
e
d
 a

ft
e
r 

c
h
ild

re
n
  

              A
c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

v
u

ln
e
ra

b
le

 g
ro

u
p
s
 

In
c
re

a
s
e
 t
h

e
 %

 o
f 

c
h
ild

re
n
 l
o
o
k
e
d
 a

ft
e
r 

a
c
h
ie

v
in

g
 5

 G
C

S
E

s
 

A
*-

G
 a

n
d
 5

 G
C

S
E

s
 

A
*-

C
. 

      In
c
re

a
s
e
 a

tt
e
n

d
a
n
c
e
 

o
f 

c
h
ild

re
n
 l
o
o
k
e
d
 

a
ft

e
r.

 
   R

e
d
u
c
e
 t

h
e
 

p
ro

p
o
rt

io
n
 o

f 
1
6
-1

8
 

y
e

a
r 

o
ld

s
 n

o
t 

in
 

e
m

p
lo

ym
e
n
t,
 

e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n

 
e
m

p
lo

ym
e
n
t 
o
r 

tr
a
in

in
g
 

%
 o

f 
c
h
ild

re
n
 l
e
a

v
in

g
 

c
a
re

 a
c
h
ie

v
in

g
 1

 
G

C
S

E
 A

*-
G

 (
 o

r 
e
q
u

iv
a
le

n
t)

 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 

fr
o
m

 4
9
%

 t
o
 6

0
%

 b
y
 

2
0
0
9

. 
%

 o
f 

c
h
ild

re
n
 l
o
o
k
e
d
 

a
ft

e
r 

a
c
h
ie

v
in

g
 5

 
G

C
S

E
s
 A

*-
G

 
in

c
re

a
s
e
d

 f
ro

m
 5

4
%

 
to

 6
5
%

%
 b

y
 2

0
0
9
. 

 R
e
d
u
c
e
 %

 o
f 

c
h
ild

re
n
 

lo
o
k
e
d
 a

ft
e
r 

m
is

s
in

g
 

2
5
 d

a
y
s
’ 
e
d

u
c
a
ti
o
n
 

fr
o
m

 1
3
%

 t
o
 9

%
 b

y
 

2
0
0
9

. 
 In

c
re

a
s
e
 %

 o
f 

y
o

u
n

g
 

o
ff

e
n
d
e
rs

 a
tt
e
n
d

in
g
 

fu
ll 

ti
m

e
 e

d
u
c
a

ti
o

n
, 

e
m

p
lo

ym
e
n
t 
o
r 

tr
a
in

in
g
 f

ro
m

 6
0
%

 t
o
 

8
5
%

 f
o
r 

th
o
s
e
 a

g
e

d
 

1
6
 a

n
d
 b

e
lo

w
 a

n
d
 

S
ta

n
d
a
rd

s
 F

u
n
d
. 

C
o
n
n

e
x
io

n
s
 

Y
O

T
 

C
e
n
tr

e
p

o
in

t 
P

o
lic

e
 

         C
o
n
n

e
x
io

n
s
 

P
o
s
it
iv

e
 A

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 f

o
r 

Y
o
u

n
g
 P

e
o

p
le

 
1
4
-1

9
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 

A
re

a
 I

n
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 

L
e
a
n

in
g
 a

n
d
 S

k
ill

s
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

In
c
re

a
s
e
d
 F

le
x
ib

ili
ti
e
s
 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 

          N
O

N
E

 

Page 50



O
u

tc
o

m
e
s
 

In
d

ic
a
to

rs
 

S
tr

e
tc

h
 T

a
rg

e
t 

F
u

n
d

in
g

 s
tr

e
a
m

s
 

c
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
n

g
 t

o
 

o
u

tc
o

m
e
s
 

V
a
le

 
C

o
m

m
it

m
e
n

t 

fr
o
m

 3
4
%

 t
o
 5

5
%

 f
o
r 

th
o
s
e
 a

g
e
d

 o
v
e
r 

1
6
. 

T
o
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 t
h
e

 
e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n
 

o
f 

c
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 y

o
u

n
g
 

p
e
o
p

le
 a

n
d

 e
n
s
u
re

 
th

a
t 

it
 i
s
 w

e
ll 

c
o
o
rd

in
a
te

d
  

In
c
re

a
s
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

y
o

u
n
g
 p

e
o

p
le

 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
e

d
 a

b
o
u
t 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
. 

   In
c
re

a
s
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

y
o

u
n
g
 p

e
o

p
le

 
p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
n
g

 i
n

 
d
e
m

o
c
ra

ti
c
 d

e
c
is

io
n
-

m
a
k
in

g
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
. 
  

    In
c
re

a
s
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

y
o

u
n
g
 p

e
o

p
le

 
p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
n
g

 i
n

 
s
c
h
o
o
ls

 c
o
u
n
c
ils

. 

  In
c
re

a
s
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

y
o

u
n
g
 p

e
o

p
le

 
v
o

lu
n
te

e
ri

n
g
. 

In
c
re

a
s
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

y
o

u
n
g
 p

e
o

p
le

 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
e

d
 a

b
o
u
t 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 f

ro
m

 3
,0

0
0
 

to
 6

,0
0
0
 i
n
 a

n
y
 o

n
e
 

y
e

a
r.

 
 In

c
re

a
s
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

y
o

u
n
g
 p

e
o

p
le

 
p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
n
g

 i
n

 
d
e
m

o
c
ra

ti
c
 d

e
c
is

io
n
-

m
a
k
in

g
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
 

(S
o
u
n

d
in

g
 B

o
a
rd

s
, 

T
ru

s
ts

, 
Y

o
u
th

 F
o
ra

) 
fr

o
m

 3
5
0
 t
o
 1

0
0
0
 i
n
 

a
n

y
 o

n
e
 y

e
a
r 

b
y
 

2
0
0
9

. 
 In

c
re

a
s
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

y
o

u
n
g
 p

e
o

p
le

 
p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
n
g

 i
n

 
s
c
h
o
o
l 
c
o
u

n
c
ils

 f
ro

m
 

x
 t
o
 y

 i
n
 a

n
y
 o

n
e
 y

e
a
r 

b
y
 2

0
0

9
. 

 In
c
re

a
s
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

y
o

u
n
g
 p

e
o

p
le

 
p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
n
g

 i
n

 a
t 

le
a
s
t 

1
 h

o
u
r 

p
e
r 

w
e
e
k
 f

o
rm

a
l 
a
n
d
 

C
h
ild

re
n

’s
 F

u
n

d
 

C
o
n
n

e
x
io

n
s
 

P
o
s
it
iv

e
 A

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 f

o
r 

Y
o
u

n
g
 P

e
o

p
le

 
Y

o
u
th

 S
e
rv

ic
e
 

D
is

tr
ic

t 
C

o
u
n
c
ils

 
B

IP
4
 

E
x
c
e
lle

n
c
e
 C

lu
s
te

r 
S

ta
n

d
a
rd

s
 F

u
n
d
 

C
h
ild

re
n

’s
 F

u
n

d
 

Y
O

T
 

S
o
u
rc

e
 W

o
rk

e
rs

 
V

o
lu

n
ta

ry
 Y

o
u
th

 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

R
u
s
s
e
ll 

C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 

T
o
 c

o
o
rd

in
a
te

 w
it
h
 

th
e
 w

o
rk

 o
f 

th
e
 V

a
le

 
Y

o
u
th

 F
o
ru

m
 

                T
o
 c

o
o
rd

in
a
te

 w
it
h
 

th
e
 w

o
rk

 o
f 

th
e
 V

a
le

 
Y

o
u
th

 F
o
ru

m
 

        

Page 51



O
u

tc
o

m
e
s
 

In
d

ic
a
to

rs
 

S
tr

e
tc

h
 T

a
rg

e
t 

F
u

n
d

in
g

 s
tr

e
a
m

s
 

c
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
n

g
 t

o
 

o
u

tc
o

m
e
s
 

V
a
le

 
C

o
m

m
it

m
e
n

t 

a
c
c
re

d
it
e

d
 

v
o

lu
n
te

e
ri

n
g
 i
n
 

c
u
lt
u
re

 a
n
d
 s

p
o
rt

 
fr

o
m

 6
0
 p

.a
. 
in

 2
0
0
5
  

to
 5

0
0
 p

.a
. 
b

y
 2

0
0

9
. 

 

 N
O

N
E

 

    S
a

fe
r 

a
n

d
 S

tr
o

n
g

e
r 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
 B

lo
c

k
 

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 S

a
fe

ty
 

 1
7
. 

T
h
e
 o

v
e
ra

rc
h

in
g
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
 t
o
 b

e
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
d
 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n

 t
o
 S

a
fe

r 
C

o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
 i
s
: 

 
T

o
 r

e
d
u
c
e
 c

ri
m

e
, 

th
e
 h

a
rm

 c
a
u
s
e
d
 b

y
 i
lle

g
a
l 
d
ru

g
s
 a

n
d

 t
o
 r

e
a
s
s
u
re

 t
h
e
 p

u
b

lic
, 
re

d
u
c
in

g
 t

h
e
 f

e
a
r 

o
f 
c
ri
m

e
 a

n
d
 a

n
ti
-s

o
c
ia

l 
b
e
h

a
v
io

u
r 

 
1
8
. 

O
u
r 

a
im

 i
s
 t
o
 b

u
ild

 o
n

 t
h
e

 w
o
rk

 o
f 

th
e
 f

iv
e
 d

is
tr

ic
t 

b
a
s
e
d

 C
ri
m

e
 &

 D
is

o
rd

e
r 

R
e
d

u
c
ti
o

n
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

s
 (

C
D

R
P

s
),

 T
h
e
 D

ru
g
s
 a

n
d

 A
lc

o
h
o

l 
T

e
a

m
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 Y

o
u
th

 
O

ff
e
n
d
in

g
 t
e
a
m

, 
 t
o
 a

d
d
re

s
s
 c

ri
m

e
 a

n
d
 a

n
ti
-s

o
c
ia

l 
b
e
h

a
v
io

u
r 

b
y
 t

a
rg

e
te

d
 a

c
ti
o

n
 a

n
d
 a

 f
o
c
u
s
 o

n
 t
h
e

 u
n

d
e
r-

ly
in

g
 c

a
u
s
e
s
. 
 

 1
9
. 

T
h
e
 f

iv
e
 O

x
fo

rd
s
h
ir
e
 C

D
R

P
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 s

e
t 

a
 t

a
rg

e
t 

o
f 

re
d
u
c
in

g
 c

ri
m

e
 (

B
ri
ti
s
h
 C

ri
m

e
 S

u
rv

e
y
 C

o
m

p
a
ra

to
r 

c
ri

m
e
s
) 

b
y
 a

n
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 o

f 
1
6
.1

%
 b

y
 2

0
0

7
/0

8
. 
n

o
 

o
v
e
ra

ll 
s
tr

e
tc

h
 f

o
r 

th
is

 t
a
rg

e
t 
is

 p
ro

p
o
s
e
d
, 

b
u
t 
k
e

y
 i
d

e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 p

ri
o
ri

ti
e
s
 w

ill
 u

n
d
o
u

b
te

d
ly

 c
o
n
tr

ib
u
te

 t
o
 i
ts

 a
c
h

ie
v
e

m
e
n
t.
 

 2
0
. 

T
h
e
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 S

a
fe

ty
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 G
ro

u
p
 w

ill
 c

o
-o

rd
in

a
te

 w
o
rk

 i
n
 t
h
is

 a
re

a
 a

n
d
 l
ia

is
e
 w

it
h
 C

D
R

P
s
. 
F

o
r 

2
0
0

7
/0

7
 f

u
n
d

in
g
 f

o
r 

C
D

R
P

 p
ro

je
c
ts

 w
ill

 b
e
 

p
a
s
s
p
o
rt

e
d
 d

ir
e
c
t 

to
 C

D
R

P
s
 a

n
d
 a

rr
a

n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 f
o
r 

fu
tu

re
 y

e
a
rs

 w
ill

 b
e
 c

o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 b

y
 t
h

e
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 G
ro

u
p

 d
u
ri
n

g
 2

0
0
6

. 
 

 2
1
. 

T
h
e
 g

ro
u
p
 w

ill
 o

v
e
rs

e
e

 t
h
e

 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 p

ro
p

o
s
e
d
 s

tr
e
tc

h
 t

a
rg

e
ts

: 
  

Page 52



O
u

tc
o

m
e
s
 

In
d

ic
a
to

rs
 

S
tr

e
tc

h
 T

a
rg

e
t 

F
u

n
d

in
g

 s
tr

e
a
m

s
 

c
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
n

g
 t

o
 

o
u

tc
o

m
e
s
 

V
a
le

 
C

o
m

m
it

m
e
n

t 

R
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 

o
ff

e
n
d
in

g
 b

y
 y

o
u
n
g
 

p
e
o
p

le
 

N
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

n
e
w

 
e
n
tr

a
n
ts

 t
o
 c

ri
m

in
a
l 

ju
s
ti
c
e
 s

ys
te

m
 a

g
e
d
 

1
0
-1

7
 y

e
a
rs

 
   R

a
te

 o
r 

re
c
o
n

v
ic

ti
o
n
 

o
f 

y
o
u
n

g
 o

ff
e
n
d
e
rs

 
a
g
e
d

 1
0
-1

7
 y

e
a
rs

 

R
e
d
u
c
e
 t

h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

e
n
tr

a
n
ts

 a
g
e
d
 1

0
-

1
7
 y

e
a
rs

 t
o
 t

h
e
 

c
ri
m

in
a
l 
ju

s
ti
c
e

 
s
ys

te
m

 b
y 

1
0
%

 b
y
 

M
a
rc

h
 2

0
0
9
 

 R
e
d
u
c
e
 r

e
-o

ff
e
n
d
in

g
 

b
y
 y

o
u
n
g
 o

ff
e
n
d
e
rs

 
b

y
 8

%
 b

y
 M

a
rc

h
 

2
0
0
9
 

Y
O

T
 B

u
d
g
e

t 
P

A
Y

P
 

C
h
ild

re
n

’s
 F

u
n

d
  

T
h
a
m

e
s
 V

a
lle

y
 

P
o
lic

e
  

M
a
in

s
tr

e
a
m

in
g
 

fu
n
d
in

g
 

S
S

C
F

 

C
o
m

m
it
m

e
n
t 
e
x
te

n
d
s
 

o
n
ly

 t
o
 t
h

e
 r

e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 

o
f 

th
e
 V

a
le

 C
D

R
P

. 
 

T
o
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 t
h
e
s
e
 a

s
 

p
a
rt

 o
f 

it
s
 w

o
rk

 t
o
 

d
e
liv

e
r 

th
e
 V

a
le

 
C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 S

a
fe

ty
 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 

R
e
d
u
c
e
 t

h
e
 h

a
rm

 
c
a
u
s
e
d
 t
o

 y
o

u
n

g
 

p
e
o
p

le
 b

y
 s

u
b
s
ta

n
c
e
 

m
is

u
s
e
 

N
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

yo
u
n
g
 

p
e
o
p

le
 i
n
 t

re
a
tm

e
n
t 

a
s
 m

e
a
s
u
re

d
 b

y
 

O
x
fo

rd
s
h
ir
e
 

T
re

a
tm

e
n
t 

In
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 S

y
s
te

m
 

In
c
re

a
s
e
 t
h

e
 

p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n

 o
f 

y
o

u
n
g
 

p
ro

b
le

m
 d

ru
g
 u

s
e
rs

 
in

 t
re

a
tm

e
n
t 
b

y
 1

5
0

%
 

b
e
tw

e
e
n
 2

0
0

4
 a

n
d
 

2
0
0
8
 

A
lig

n
e
d
 t

o
 Y

P
 

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 G
ra

n
t 
 

A
s
 a

b
o

v
e
 

R
e
d
u
c
e
 c

ri
m

e
 a

n
d
 

a
n
ti
-s

o
c
ia

l 
b
e
h

a
v
io

u
r 

b
y
 t

h
e
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

P
ro

lif
ic

 a
n
d
 P

ri
o
ri
ty

 
o
ff

e
n
d
e
rs

 (
P

P
O

s
) 

R
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 

o
ff

e
n
d
in

g
 r

a
te

 o
f 

P
P

O
s
. 
O

ff
e
n
c
e
s
 a

re
 

B
C

S
 c

o
m

p
a
ra

to
r 

c
ri
m

e
s
: 

 - 
T

h
e
ft

 o
r 

u
n
a
u

th
o
ri

s
e
d
 t

a
k
in

g
 

o
f 

v
e
h

ic
le

 (
in

c
l 

a
tt
e
m

p
ts

) 
- 

T
h
e
ft

 f
ro

m
 a

 v
e
h
ic

le
 

(i
n
c
l 
a
tt

e
m

p
ts

) 

- 
V

e
h
ic

le
 i
n
te

rf
e
re

n
c
e
 

- 
D

o
m

e
s
ti
c
 b

u
rg

la
ry

 
(i
n
c
l 
a
tt

e
m

p
ts

) 

R
e
d
u
c
e
 t

h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

B
C

S
 C

o
m

p
a
ra

to
r 

c
ri
m

e
s
 c

o
m

m
it
te

d
 b

y
 

a
d
u

lt
 a

n
d
 j
u

v
e
n

ile
 

P
P

O
s
 b

y
 2

0
%

 b
y
 

2
0
0
9
 

T
V

P
 m

a
in

s
tr

e
a
m

 
fu

n
d
in

g
 

B
C

U
 F

u
n
d

in
g
  

S
S

C
F

 
L
A

 m
a
in

s
tr

e
a
m

 
fu

n
d
in

g
  

Y
O

T
 

N
O

M
s
 m

a
in

s
tr

e
a
m

 
fu

n
d
in

g
  

A
s
 a

b
o

v
e
 

Page 53



O
u

tc
o

m
e
s
 

In
d

ic
a
to

rs
 

S
tr

e
tc

h
 T

a
rg

e
t 

F
u

n
d

in
g

 s
tr

e
a
m

s
 

c
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
n

g
 t

o
 

o
u

tc
o

m
e
s
 

V
a
le

 
C

o
m

m
it

m
e
n

t 

- 
T

h
e
ft

 o
r 

u
n
a
u

th
o
ri

s
e
d
 t

a
k
in

g
 

o
f 

a
 p

e
d

a
l 
c
yc

le
 

- 
T

h
e
ft

 f
ro

m
 p

e
rs

o
n
 

- 
C

ri
m

in
a
l 
d
a
m

a
g
e
 

(e
x
c
l 
.5

9
) 

- 
C

o
m

m
o
n
 A

s
s
a
u
lt
 

(I
n
c
l 
o
n
 a

 P
C

) 
W

o
u
n
d
in

g
 (

S
e
ri

o
u
s
 

a
n
d
 O

th
e
r)

 
- 

R
o
b
b
e
ry

 o
f 

p
e
rs

o
n
a

l 
P

ro
p
e
rt

y
 

 

  2
2
. 

W
e
 w

ill
 r

e
v
ie

w
 t

h
e
 n

e
e
d

 f
o
r 

fu
rt

h
e
r 

L
A

A
 t
a
rg

e
ts

 w
h

e
n
 w

e
 r

o
ll 

fo
rw

a
rd

 t
h

e
 L

A
A

 n
e
x
t 

y
e

a
r.

  
 2
3
. 

T
h
e
 n

o
n

-s
tr

e
tc

h
 t

a
rg

e
ts

 a
re

 l
is

te
d
 f

o
r 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
: 

 O
u

tc
o

m
e
s
 

In
d

ic
a
to

rs
 

T
a
rg

e
ts

 
F

u
n

d
in

g
 S

tr
e
a
m

s
 

c
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
n

g
 t

o
 

O
u

tc
o

m
e
 

V
a
le

 
C

o
m

m
it

m
e
n

t 

T
o

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e
 p

u
b

li
c
 

re
a
s

s
u

ra
n

c
e
 b

y
 

in
tr

o
d

u
c
in

g
 

N
e
ig

h
b

o
u

rh
o

o
d

 
M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
(P

o
li
c
in

g
) 

to
 a

ll
 

C
D

R
P

 a
re

a
s
 w

it
h

in
 

O
x
fo

rd
s
h

ir
e

 b
y
 

M
a
rc

h
 2

0
0
9
. 

�
 

A
 

N
e
ig

h
b
o

u
rh

o
o
d
 

M
a
n
a

g
e
m

e
n
t 
 

(P
o
lic

in
g
) 

s
tr

a
te

g
y
 a

n
d
 

p
la

n
 f

o
r 

e
a
c
h
 

C
D

R
P

  
 �
 

S
e
le

c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
n
e
ig

h
b

o
u
rh

o
o
d

�
 

C
re

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
a
 

n
e
ig

h
b

o
u
rh

o
o
d
 

s
tr

a
te

g
y
 a

n
d
 

im
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 

p
la

n
 b

y
 

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
0
6
 

 
�
 

Id
e
n
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
 

n
e
ig

h
b

o
u
rh

o
o
d
s
 

to
 b

e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 

•
 

B
C

U
 

•
 

S
S

C
C

F
 

•
 

T
V

P
 

m
a
in

s
tr

e
a
m

 
fu

n
d
in

g
 

•
 

L
A

 m
a
in

s
tr

e
a
m

 
fu

n
d
in

g
 

•
 

H
e
a
lt
h
 f

u
n
d

in
g
 

•
 

A
s
 a

b
o

v
e
 

Page 54



O
u

tc
o

m
e
s
 

In
d

ic
a
to

rs
 

T
a
rg

e
ts

 
F

u
n

d
in

g
 S

tr
e
a
m

s
 

c
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
n

g
 t

o
 

O
u

tc
o

m
e
 

V
a
le

 
C

o
m

m
it

m
e
n

t 

s
 w

it
h

in
 e

a
c
h
 

C
D

R
P

 A
re

a
 

 �
 

A
p
p

o
in

tm
e
n
t 
o
f 

N
e
ig

h
b
o

u
rh

o
o
d
  

C
o
-

c
o
o
rd

in
a
to

r/
s
  

 �
 

A
 r

e
g

is
te

r 
o
f 

n
e
ig

h
b

o
u
rh

o
o
d
  

c
o
n
ta

c
ts

 i
n

 
e
a
c
h
 C

D
R

P
 

 �
 

Id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 

p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 s

e
t 

b
y
 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 

c
o
n
ta

c
ts

. 
 �
 

A
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

fr
a
m

e
w

o
rk

 i
n
 

p
la

c
e
 t

o
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 

P
C

S
O

’s
. 

 

b
y
 A

p
ri

l 
2

0
0
7
 

 
�
 

N
e
ig

h
b
o

u
rh

o
o
d
 

c
o
-o

rd
in

a
to

rs
 

id
e

n
ti
fi
e

d
 b

y
 

A
p
ri

l 
2

0
0
7
  

 
�
 

T
h
e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 

o
n
g
o

in
g
 

id
e

n
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 
n
e
ig

h
b

o
u
rh

o
o
d
 

c
o
n
ta

c
ts

 b
y
 A

p
ri
l 

2
0
0
8
 

 
�
 

C
a
rr

y
 o

u
t 

n
e
ig

h
b

o
u
rh

o
o
d
 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a

ti
o

n
 t
o

 
e
s
ta

b
lis

h
 

b
a
s
e
lin

e
 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d

 
p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 b

y
 A

p
ri

l 
2
0
0
8
 

 
�
 

C
re

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
a
 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

fr
a
m

e
w

o
rk

 t
o
 

m
e
a
s
u
re

 t
h
e
 

e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
 o

f 
n
e
ig

h
b

o
u
rh

o
o
d
 

p
o
lic

in
g
 a

n
d
 

P
C

S
O

’s
 b

y
 S

e
p
t 

2
0
0
7
 

Page 55



O
u

tc
o

m
e
s
 

In
d

ic
a
to

rs
 

T
a
rg

e
ts

 
F

u
n

d
in

g
 S

tr
e
a
m

s
 

c
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
n

g
 t

o
 

O
u

tc
o

m
e
 

V
a
le

 
C

o
m

m
it

m
e
n

t 

R
e
d

u
c
e
 t

h
e
 f

e
a
r 

o
f 

c
ri

m
e

 a
n

d
 a

n
ti

-
s
o

c
ia

l 
b

e
h

a
v

io
u

r.
 

�
 

M
e
a
s
u
re

 h
o

w
 

s
a
fe

 r
e
s
id

e
n
ts

 
fe

e
l 
in

 c
e
rt

a
in

 
s
it
u
a
ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 

h
o

w
 b

ig
 a

 
p
ro

b
le

m
 t
h
e
 

is
s
u
e
 i
s
 u

s
in

g
 

th
e
 O

x
fo

rd
s
h
ir
e
 

C
it
iz

e
n
s
 P

a
n
e

l 
(a

n
n
u

a
l 
s
u
rv

e
y
 

- 
O

c
c
) 

a
n
d
 t
h
e
 

T
h
a
m

e
s
 V

a
lle

y
 

N
e
ig

h
b
o

u
rh

o
o
d
 

S
u
rv

e
y
. 

(a
n
n

u
a

l 
s
u
rv

e
y
 -

 T
v
p
) 

�
 

In
c
re

a
s
e
 t
h

e
 

p
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
p
e
o
p

le
 w

h
o
 f

e
e

l 
s
a
fe

 ‘
w

a
lk

in
g
 

a
lo

n
e
 i
n
 t

h
e
re

 
lo

c
a
l 
c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 

a
ft

e
r 

d
a
rk

’ 
to

 
7
8
%

 b
y
 2

0
0

9
 

u
s
in

g
 t

h
e
 2

0
0

6
 

s
u
rv

e
y
 a

s
 a

 
b
a
s
e
lin

e
(O

c
c
 &

 
T

v
p
) 

 
�
 

M
a
in

ta
in

 t
h
e
 

p
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
p
e
o
p

le
 w

h
o
 f

e
e

l 
s
a
fe

 ‘
w

a
lk

in
g
 

a
lo

n
e
 i
n
 t

h
e
re

 
lo

c
a
l 
c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 

d
u
ri
n

g
 t
h

e
 

d
a

y
lig

h
t’
 u

s
in

g
 

th
e
 2

0
0
6

 s
u
rv

e
y
 

a
s
 a

 b
a
s
e

lin
e
. 

(O
c
c
 &

T
v
p
) 

 
�
 

M
a
in

ta
in

 t
h
e
 

p
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
p
e
o
p

le
 w

h
o
 f

e
e

l 
s
a
fe

 ‘
b
e
in

g
 

a
lo

n
e
 i
n
 t

h
e
ir
 

h
o
m

e
 d

u
ri
n
g
 

d
a

y
lig

h
t’
 u

s
in

g
 

th
e
 2

0
0
6

 s
u
rv

e
y
 

•
 

L
A

 (
O

C
C

) 
a

n
d
 

T
V

P
 m

a
in

s
tr

e
a
m

 
fu

n
d
in

g
 

•
 

A
s
 a

b
o

v
e
 

Page 56



O
u

tc
o

m
e
s
 

In
d

ic
a
to

rs
 

T
a
rg

e
ts

 
F

u
n

d
in

g
 S

tr
e
a
m

s
 

c
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
n

g
 t

o
 

O
u

tc
o

m
e
 

V
a
le

 
C

o
m

m
it

m
e
n

t 

a
s
 a

 b
a
s
e

lin
e
 

(O
c
c
 &

T
v
p
) 

 �
 

M
a
in

ta
in

 t
h
e
 

p
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
p
e
o
p

le
 w

h
o
 f

e
e

l 
s
a
fe

 ‘
b
e
in

g
 

a
lo

n
e
 i
n
 t

h
e
ir
 

h
o
m

e
 a

ft
e
r 

d
a
rk

’ 
u
s
in

g
 t

h
e
 2

0
0

6
 

s
u
rv

e
y
 a

s
 a

 
b
a
s
e
lin

e
 (

O
c
c
 

&
T

V
P

) 
 �
 

R
e
d
u
c
e
 t

h
e
 

n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

P
e
o

p
le

 w
h

o
 

th
in

k
 ‘
y
o

u
n

g
 

p
e
o
p

le
 h

a
n

g
in

g
 

a
ro

u
n

d
 ‘
 i
s
 a

 
p
ro

b
le

m
 t
o
 4

6
%

 
b

y
 2

0
0

9
  
u
s
in

g
 

th
e
 2

0
0
5

 s
u
rv

e
y
 

a
s
 a

 b
a
s
e

lin
e
. 

(O
c
c
) 

 �
 

R
e
d
u
c
e
 t

h
e
 

n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

P
e
o

p
le

 w
h

o
 

th
in

k
 ‘
V

a
n
d

a
lis

m
, 

g
ra

ff
it
i 
a
n
d
 o

th
e
r 

d
e
lib

e
ra

te
 

d
a
m

a
g
e
 t
o
 

Page 57



O
u

tc
o

m
e
s
 

In
d

ic
a
to

rs
 

T
a
rg

e
ts

 
F

u
n

d
in

g
 S

tr
e
a
m

s
 

c
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
n

g
 t

o
 

O
u

tc
o

m
e
 

V
a
le

 
C

o
m

m
it

m
e
n

t 

p
ro

p
e
rt

y
 o

r 
v
e
h

ic
le

s
’ 
is

 a
 

p
ro

b
le

m
 t
o
 4

8
%

 
b

y
 2

0
0

9
  
u
s
in

g
 

th
e
 2

0
0
5

 s
u
rv

e
y
 

a
s
 a

 
b
a
s
e
lin

e
(O

c
c
) 

 �
 

R
e
d
u
c
e
 t

h
e
 

n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

P
e
o

p
le

 w
h

o
 

th
in

k
 ‘
S

p
e
e

d
in

g
 

v
e
h

ic
le

s
 o

r 
m

o
to

rb
ik

e
s
/d

a
n
g

e
ro

u
s
 d

ri
v
in

g
 ’
 i
s
 

a
 p

ro
b

le
m

 t
o
 

1
2
%

 b
y
 2

0
0

9
  

u
s
in

g
 t

h
e
 2

0
0

5
 

s
u
rv

e
y
 a

s
 a

 
b
a
s
e
lin

e
. 
(O

c
c
) 

 �
 

R
e
d
u
c
e
 t

h
e
 

n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

P
e
o

p
le

 w
h

o
 

th
in

k
 ‘
P

e
o
p

le
 

b
e
in

g
 d

ru
n
k
 o

r 
ro

w
d

y
 i
n
 p

u
b
lic

 ’
 

is
 a

 p
ro

b
le

m
 t
o
 

1
2
%

 b
y
 2

0
0

9
  

u
s
in

g
 t

h
e
 2

0
0

5
 

s
u
rv

e
y
 a

s
 a

 
b
a
s
e
lin

e
. 
(O

c
c
) 

 

Page 58



O
u

tc
o

m
e
s
 

In
d

ic
a
to

rs
 

T
a
rg

e
ts

 
F

u
n

d
in

g
 S

tr
e
a
m

s
 

c
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
n

g
 t

o
 

O
u

tc
o

m
e
 

V
a
le

 
C

o
m

m
it

m
e
n

t 

R
e
d

u
c
e
 t

h
e
 h

a
rm

 
c
a
u

s
e
d

 b
y
 i
ll

e
g

a
l 

d
ru

g
s
. 

�
 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
 

e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e
 

c
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n

s
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 t

o
 

e
n
a
b

le
 

im
p
ro

v
e
d
 

k
n
o
w

le
d
g
e

 a
n

d
 

a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

 �
 

P
ro

d
u
c
e

 a
n

d
 

d
is

s
e
m

in
a
te

 i
n
 

e
a
c
h
 C

D
R

P
 

a
re

a
, 
a

 g
u

id
e
 

fo
r 

p
a
re

n
ts

/c
a
re

rs
 

o
n
 d

ru
g
s
 a

n
d
 

a
lc

o
h

o
l 
w

it
h

 
c
o
n
ta

c
t 
d

e
ta

ils
 

o
f 

lo
c
a
l 

s
p
e
c
ia

lis
t 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

�
 

H
a
rn

e
s
s
 

te
c
h
n
o

lo
g

y
 s

u
c
h
 

a
s
 t
h
e
 i
n
te

rn
e
t 

a
n
d
 t

e
x
t 

m
e
s
s
a
g
in

g
 t

h
a
t 

a
re

 y
o

u
n

g
 

p
e
o
p

le
 f

ri
e

n
d
ly

 
to

 e
n

a
b

le
 w

id
e
r 

a
c
c
e
s
s
ib

ili
ty

 t
o
 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d

 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 b

y
 

M
a
rc

h
 2

0
0
7
 

 �
 

W
ri
te

 p
a
re

n
ts

 
g
u
id

e
 a

n
d
 

d
is

s
e
m

in
a
te

 t
o

 
s
c
h
o
o
ls

, 
 y

o
u

th
 

fa
c
ili

ti
e
s
, 
h
e

a
lt
h
 

c
e
n
tr

e
s
 a

n
d

 a
ll 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 
a
g
e
n
c
ie

s
 b

y
 

M
a
rc

h
 2

0
0
7
 

�
 

A
lig

n
e
d
 t

o
 Y

P
 

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 
G

ra
n
t 

�
 

A
s
 a

b
o

v
e
 

R
e
d

u
c
e
 a

lc
o

h
o

l 
re

la
te

d
 h

a
rm

. 
�
 

Im
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o

n
 

o
f 

th
e
 c

o
u
n

ty
 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 
a
lc

o
h

o
l 

s
tr

a
te

g
y
. 

 �
 

A
d
u

lt
s
 

a
c
c
e
s
s
in

g
 p

ilo
t 

a
lc

o
h

o
l 

tr
e
a
tm

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 

�
 

O
b
ta

in
 d

a
ta

 t
o
 

a
s
s
is

t 
in

 
a
s
s
e
s
s
in

g
 f

u
tu

re
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 

b
y
 O

c
t 
2

0
0
6
 

 �
 

P
ilo

t 
a
d
u

lt
 

a
lc

o
h

o
l 

tr
e
a
tm

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

�
 

D
A

A
T

 
�
 

A
s
 a

b
o

v
e
 

Page 59



O
u

tc
o

m
e
s
 

In
d

ic
a
to

rs
 

T
a
rg

e
ts

 
F

u
n

d
in

g
 S

tr
e
a
m

s
 

c
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
n

g
 t

o
 

O
u

tc
o

m
e
 

V
a
le

 
C

o
m

m
it

m
e
n

t 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 

 �
 

E
x
te

rn
a

l 
e
v
a

lu
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 

e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
 o

f 
th

e
 p

ilo
t 

   (B
a
s
e
lin

e
 d

e
v
e

lo
p
e
d
 

b
y
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
0
6
) 

s
c
o
p
e
d
 a

n
d
 

u
n
d
e
r 

w
a

y
 b

y
 

[O
c
t 
2
0
0
6

] 
c
h
e
c
k
 

d
a
te

. 
 

�
 

In
c
re

a
s
e
 t
h

e
 

p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n

 o
f 

a
d
u

lt
 a

lc
o
h
o

l 
u
s
e
rs

 i
n
 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 

tr
e
a
tm

e
n
t 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 b

y
 1

5
%

 
b

y
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
0
8
 

a
n
d
 2

8
%

 b
y
 

M
a
rc

h
 2

0
0
9
 

R
e
d

u
c
e
  
p

ro
li
fi

c
 

a
lc

o
h

o
l 
re

la
te

d
 

o
ff

e
n

d
in

g
 

�
 

A
lc

o
h

o
l 
a
rr

e
s
t 

re
fe

rr
a
l 

s
c
h
e
m

e
. 
 

C
o
n
d

it
io

n
 o

f 
b
a
il 

to
 a

tt
e
n
d
 

tw
o
 a

lc
o
h
o

l 
s
e
s
s
io

n
s
: 

 
- 

C
o
n
s
u
m

p
ti

o
n
 o

f 
a
lc

o
h

o
l 
a
 

m
a
jo

r 
fa

c
to

r 
in

 t
h
e
 

o
ff

e
n
c
e
 t
o
 

in
c
lu

d
e
 

d
o
m

e
s
ti
c
 

v
io

le
n
c
e
, 

�
 

6
0
%

 o
f 

th
o
s
e

 
id

e
n
ti
fi
e

d
 b

y
 

c
u
s
to

d
y
 s

ta
ff

 t
o
 

b
e
 r

e
fe

rr
e
d
 t
o
 

a
lc

o
h

o
l 
a
rr

e
s
t 

re
fe

rr
a
l 
s
c
h
e
m

e
 

a
s
 a

 c
o
n
d

it
io

n
 o

f 
b
a
il 

b
y
 M

a
rc

h
 

2
0
0
9

. 
 �
 

4
0
%

 o
f 

a
lc

o
h
o

l 
re

fe
rr

a
ls

 t
o
 

a
tt
e
n

d
 t

w
o
 

s
e
s
s
io

n
s
 b

y
 

2
0
0
7

, 
in

c
re

a
s
in

g
 

b
y
 1

0
%

 e
a
c
h
 

y
e

a
r 

to
 r

e
a
c
h

 

�
 

P
u
m

p
 p

ri
m

in
g
 

�
 

S
S

C
F

 
�
 

B
C

U
 

�
 

A
s
 a

b
o

v
e
 

Page 60



O
u

tc
o

m
e
s
 

In
d

ic
a
to

rs
 

T
a
rg

e
ts

 
F

u
n

d
in

g
 S

tr
e
a
m

s
 

c
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
n

g
 t

o
 

O
u

tc
o

m
e
 

V
a
le

 
C

o
m

m
it

m
e
n

t 

d
ri
n
k
 

d
ri
v
in

g
, 

d
ru

n
k
 a

n
d
 

d
is

o
rd

e
rl

y
. 

- 
B

a
s
e
lin

e
 

fi
g
u
re

: 
2
,5

4
0
 

a
rr

e
s
ts

 i
n
 

O
x
fo

rd
s
h
ir
e
 

w
e
re

 
a
lc

o
h

o
l 

re
la

te
d
 i
n
 

0
4
/0

5
 

(p
o
lic

e
 

d
a
ta

) 

6
0
%

 b
y
 M

a
rc

h
 

2
0
0
9

. 

R
e
d

u
c
e
 a

n
ti

 s
o

c
ia

l 
b

e
h

a
v

io
u

r 
b

y
 

c
o

o
rd

in
a
te

d
 

e
n

fo
rc

e
m

e
n

t 
a
n

d
 

im
p

ro
v

e
d

 
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 

�
 

N
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

re
p
o
rt

e
d

 
o
ff

e
n
c
e
s
 o

f 
v
io

le
n
c
e
 

a
g
a

in
s
t 
th

e
 

p
e
rs

o
n
  

d
e
te

c
te

d
. 
 

T
h
e
s
e
 o

ff
e
n
c
e
s
 

in
c
lu

d
e
: 

 
- 

C
o
m

m
o
n
 

A
s
s
u
a
lt
 

((
In

c
l 
o
n
 a

 
P

C
) 

e
x
c
lu

d
in

g
  

d
o
m

e
s
ti
c
 

v
io

le
n
c
e
) 

�
 

In
c
re

a
s
e
 t
h

e
 

n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

re
p
o
rt

e
d

 
w

o
u
n

d
in

g
 

o
ff

e
n
c
e
s
 

d
e
te

c
te

d
 t
o

 6
0
%

 
b

y
 2

0
0

8
 

 
�
 

In
c
re

a
s
e
 t
h

e
 

n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

  
re

p
o
rt

e
d

 c
ri
m

in
a
l 

d
a
m

a
g
e
 

o
ff

e
n
c
e
s
 

d
e
te

c
te

d
 t
o

 1
7
%

 
b

y
 2

0
0

8
. 

 
�
 

E
s
ta

b
lis

h
 

�
 

T
V

P
 

m
a
in

s
te

a
m

 
fu

n
d
in

g
 

�
 

B
C

U
 F

u
n
d

in
g
 

�
 

S
S

C
F

 
�
 

H
O

 A
S

B
 

F
u
n
d
in

g
 

�
 

L
ic

e
n
s
in

g
 

A
u
th

o
ri
ty

 (
L

A
) 

fu
n
d
in

g
 

�
 

L
A

 (
O

C
C

) 
m

a
in

s
tr

e
a
m

 
fn

d
in

g
 

�
 

A
s
 a

b
o

v
e
 

Page 61



O
u

tc
o

m
e
s
 

In
d

ic
a
to

rs
 

T
a
rg

e
ts

 
F

u
n

d
in

g
 S

tr
e
a
m

s
 

c
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
n

g
 t

o
 

O
u

tc
o

m
e
 

V
a
le

 
C

o
m

m
it

m
e
n

t 

- 
W

o
u
n
d
in

g
 

((
S

e
ri
o
u
s
 

a
n
d
 O

th
e
r)

 
e
x
c
lu

d
in

g
 

d
o
m

e
s
ti
c
 

v
io

le
n
c
e
) 

 
�
 

N
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

re
p
o
rt

e
d

 
o
ff

e
n
c
e
s
 o

f 
c
ri
m

in
a
l 

d
a
m

a
g
e
 

d
e
te

c
te

d
, 
th

e
s
e
 

in
c
lu

d
e
: 

 
- 

C
ri
m

in
a
l 

d
a
m

a
g
e
 

(e
x
c
l 
.5

9
) 

- 
N

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

re
p
o
rt

e
d

 
p
u
b

lic
 o

rd
e
r 

(S
e
c
 4

 a
n
d
 

5
) 

o
ff

e
n
c
e
s
 

d
e
te

c
te

d
. 

 

b
a
s
e
lin

e
 d

a
ta

 
a
n
d
 t

a
rg

e
ts

 b
y
 

A
p
ri

l 
2

0
0
7
 

 �
 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
 

a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 
‘N

ig
h
t 

S
a
fe

’ 
ty

p
e
 

p
ro

je
c
ts

 i
n
 e

a
c
h
 

C
D

R
P

 a
re

a
 b

y
 

2
0
0
7

. 
 

 �
 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
 a

 m
u
lt
i 

a
g
e
n
c
y
 r

is
k
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 

p
ro

fi
le

 f
a
c
ili

ty
 o

f 
p
re

m
is

e
s
 

lic
e
n
s
e

d
 u

n
d
e
r 

th
e
 L

ic
e
n
s
in

g
 

A
c
t 
2
0

0
3
 b

y
 

2
0
0
7
 

 �
 

R
e
d
u
c
e
 t

h
e
 

p
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
y
e

a
r 

1
0
 p

u
p

ils
 

w
h
o
, 

w
h
e
n

 
s
u
rv

e
y
e

d
, 
c
la

im
 

to
 b

e
 a

b
le

 t
o
 b

u
y
 

a
lc

o
h

o
l 
fr

o
m

 
re

ta
il 

p
re

m
is

e
s
 

b
y
 2

0
%

. 
R

e
d

u
c
e
 a

n
ti

-s
o

c
ia

l 
b

e
h

a
v

io
u

r 
b

y
 

�
 

N
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

re
p
o
rt

e
d

 
�
 

R
e
d
u
c
e
 t

h
e
 

n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

�
 

T
V

P
 

m
a
in

s
te

a
m

 
�
 

A
s
 a

b
o

v
e
 

Page 62



O
u

tc
o

m
e
s
 

In
d

ic
a
to

rs
 

T
a
rg

e
ts

 
F

u
n

d
in

g
 S

tr
e
a
m

s
 

c
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
n

g
 t

o
 

O
u

tc
o

m
e
 

V
a
le

 
C

o
m

m
it

m
e
n

t 

s
u

s
ta

in
e
d

 
re

d
u

c
ti

o
n

s
 a

n
d

 
im

p
ro

v
e
d

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 

d
e
li
v

e
ry

 

o
ff

e
n
c
e
s
 o

f 
w

o
u
n

d
in

g
 

c
ri
m

e
s
 

re
d
u
c
e
d
, 

th
e
s
e

 
in

c
lu

d
e
: 

 
- 

C
o
m

m
o
n
 

A
s
s
u
a
lt
 

((
In

c
l 
o
n
 a

 
P

C
) 

e
x
c
lu

d
in

g
 

d
o
m

e
s
ti
c
 

v
io

le
n
c
e
) 

- 
W

o
u
n
d
in

g
 

((
S

e
ri
o
u
s
 

a
n
d
 O

th
e
r)

 
e
x
c
lu

d
in

g
 

d
o
m

e
s
ti
c
 

v
io

le
n
c
e
) 

 �
 

N
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

re
p
o
rt

e
d

 
o
ff

e
n
c
e
s
 o

f 
c
ri
m

in
a
l 

d
a
m

a
g
e
 

re
d
u
c
e
d
, 

th
e
s
e

 
in

c
lu

d
e
: 

 
- 

C
ri
m

in
a
l 

d
a
m

a
g
e
 

(e
x
c
l 
.5

9
) 

 �
 

N
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

re
p
o
rt

e
d

 
w

o
u
n

d
in

g
 c

ri
m

e
 

o
ff

e
n
c
e
s
 b

y 
1
2
.5

%
 b

y
 2

0
0
8
 

(C
o
m

b
in

e
d
 

C
D

R
P

 t
a
rg

e
t)

. 
 �
 

R
e
d
u
c
e
 t

h
e
 

n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

  
re

p
o
rt

e
d

 c
ri
m

in
a
l 

d
a
m

a
g
e
 

o
ff

e
n
c
e
s
 b

y 
1
4
.6

%
 b

y
 2

0
0
8
. 

(C
o
m

b
in

e
d
 

C
D

R
P

 t
a
rg

e
t)

. 
 �
 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
 a

 C
C

T
V

 
S

tr
a
te

g
y
 a

n
d
 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

fr
a
m

e
w

o
rk

  
 b

y
 

2
0
0
7

  
 �
 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
 a

n
 A

S
B

 
d
a
ta

 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 

a
n
d
 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

fr
a
m

e
w

o
rk

 b
y 

2
0
0
7
 

fu
n
d
in

g
 

�
 

B
C

U
 F

u
n
d

in
g
 

�
 

S
S

C
F

 
�
 

H
O

 A
S

B
 

F
u
n
d
in

g
 

�
 

L
A

 m
a
in

s
tr

e
a
m

 
fu

n
d
in

g
 

 

Page 63



O
u

tc
o

m
e
s
 

In
d

ic
a
to

rs
 

T
a
rg

e
ts

 
F

u
n

d
in

g
 S

tr
e
a
m

s
 

c
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
n

g
 t

o
 

O
u

tc
o

m
e
 

V
a
le

 
C

o
m

m
it

m
e
n

t 

A
S

B
O

s
 a

n
d

 
A

B
C

s
 i
s
s
u
e
d
 t

o
 

ta
c
k
le

 a
n
ti
 

s
o
c
ia

l 
b
e
h
a

v
io

u
r 

T
o

 l
o

w
e
r 

th
e
 

in
c
id

e
n

c
e

 o
f 

d
o

m
e
s
ti

c
 v

io
le

n
c

e
 

b
y
 p

ro
m

o
ti

n
g

 e
a

rl
y
 

d
is

c
lo

s
u

re
, 

e
ff

e
c
ti

v
e
 

re
s
p

o
n

s
e
 t

o
 

d
is

c
lo

s
u

re
 a

n
d

 
re

a
d

y
 a

c
c
e
s

s
 t

o
 

re
s
o

u
rc

e
s

 t
o

 
in

c
re

a
s
e
 t

h
e

 s
a
fe

ty
 

o
f 

v
ic

ti
m

s
. 

�
 

R
e
p
o
rt

s
 t
o

 
p
o
lic

e
 

 �
 

N
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

tr
a
in

e
d
 

c
h
a
m

p
io

n
s
 

 �
 

N
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

re
p
o
rt

s
 t
o
 

c
h
a
m

p
io

n
s
 

 �
 

N
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

v
ic

ti
m

s
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

e
d
 b

y
 

d
e
d

ic
a
te

d
 

a
d
v
o
c
a
te

s
/o

u
tr

e
a
c
h
 w

o
rk

e
rs

 

�
 

In
c
re

a
s
e
 t
h

e
 

n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

in
c
id

e
n
ts

 o
f 

d
o
m

e
s
ti
c
 

v
io

le
n
c
e
 

re
p
o
rt

e
d

 
a
n
n
u

a
lly

, 
e

it
h
e
r 

d
ir
e
c
tl
y
 t

o
 t
h

e
 

p
o
lic

e
 o

r 
th

ro
u
g

h
 

a
 t
h

ir
d
 p

a
rt

y
 b

y
 

2
8
%

 b
y
 2

0
0

9
. 

 �
 

In
c
re

a
s
e
 t
h

e
 

n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

c
h
a
m

p
io

n
s
 b

y
 x

 
1
0
0
 (

2
0
0
%

) 
b

y
 

2
0
0
9
 

�
 

S
a
fe

r 
a
n
d

 
S

tr
o
n

g
e
r 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
 

F
u
n
d
 

 �
 

T
h
a
m

e
s
 V

a
lle

y
 

P
o
lic

e
 f

u
n
d

in
g
 

�
 

A
s
 a

b
o

v
e

 p
lu

s
: 

- 
c
o
m

m
it
m

e
n
t 
to

 
h
a
v
in

g
 3

 t
ra

in
e
d
 

c
h
a
m

p
io

n
s
 f

ro
m

 
V

a
le

 D
C

 o
ff

ic
e
rs

. 
 - 

£
3
K

 r
e

v
e

n
u

e
 t
o
 

fu
n
d
 o

u
tr

e
a
c
h
 

w
o
rk

e
r 

 

Page 64



T
h

e
 E

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t 

 2
4
. 

C
o
n
c
e
rn

 f
o
r 

th
e

 e
n

v
ir

o
n
m

e
n
t 
h
a
s
 b

e
e

n
 a

 m
a
jo

r 
fe

a
tu

re
 i
n
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 d
is

c
u
s
s
io

n
s
 a

b
o
u

t 
th

e
 L

A
A

 a
n
d

 t
h
e

 f
u
tu

re
 f

o
r 

O
x
fo

rd
s
h
ir
e
. 
T

h
e
 C

o
u

n
ty

 e
n
jo

ys
 a

 
p
le

a
s
a
n
t 

e
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
t 
w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 a

 m
a
jo

r 
a
s
s
e
t 
a
n
d
 i
s
 c

ri
ti
c
a
lly

 i
m

p
o
rt

a
n
t 
to

 t
h

e
 e

c
o
n

o
m

y
 a

n
d
 t
h

e
 q

u
a
lit

y
 o

f 
lif

e
. 
W

e
 i
n
te

n
d
 t

o
 g

iv
e
 p

a
rt

ic
u

la
r 

a
tt
e

n
ti
o
n
 t

o
 t

w
o

 
is

s
u
e
s
: 

 

•
 

S
tr

e
e
t 

S
c

e
n

e
 –

 T
h
e
 p

u
b

lic
 e

x
p
e
c
t 
th

e
ir
 l
o
c
a
l 
c
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
 t
o
 b

e
 c

le
a
n

 g
re

e
n
 a

n
d
 s

a
fe

. 
W

e
 w

ill
 t

a
k
e
 a

c
ti
o
n
 t

o
 f

o
c
u
s
 e

x
tr

a
 a

tt
e
n
ti
o
n

 o
n
 t

h
e

s
e
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 i
n

 
th

e
 n

e
x
t 
3
 y

e
a
rs

  
 

•
 

W
a
s
te

 M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
–
 I
n
 O

x
fo

rd
s
h
ir
e
 t
h
e
 m

in
im

is
a
ti
o

n
 a

n
d
 r

e
c
y
c
lin

g
 o

f 
w

a
s
te

 i
s
 a

t 
a
 h

ig
h
 l
e
v
e
l.
 W

e
 t
h
in

k
 w

e
 c

a
n
 d

o
 b

e
tt

e
r 

b
y
 a

d
o
p

ti
n

g
 a

n
 i
n
te

g
ra

te
d
 

a
p
p
ro

a
c
h
 t
o
 w

a
s
te

 m
a
n
a
g
e

m
e
n
t 
w

h
ic

h
 w

ill
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 r

e
c
yc

lin
g
, 
re

d
u
c
e
 l
a
n

d
fi
ll 

a
n
d

 r
e
d
u
c
e
 p

u
b

lic
 c

o
s
ts

. 
In

 v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 e

x
is

ti
n
g

 c
o
n
tr

a
c
tu

a
l 
c
o
m

m
it
m

e
n
ts

 
it
 w

ill
 n

o
t 
b
e

 f
e
a
s
ib

le
 t
o

 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
t 
fu

ll 
in

te
g
ra

ti
o

n
 u

n
ti
l 
2

0
0
9
 

 2
5
. 

T
h
e
 P

S
B

 w
ill

 o
v
e
rs

e
e
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 s

tr
e
tc

h
 t
a
rg

e
ts

: 
 O

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 

In
d

ic
a
to

rs
 

S
tr

e
tc

h
 T

a
rg

e
t 

F
u

n
d

in
g

 s
tr

e
a
m

s
 

c
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
n

g
 t

o
 

o
u

tc
o

m
e
s
 

V
a
le

 
C

o
m

m
it

m
e
n

t 

Im
p
ro

v
e
d
 l
o
c
a

l 
a

n
d
 

g
lo

b
a
l 
e
n

v
ir

o
n
m

e
n
t 

th
ro

u
g

h
 t
h

e
 r

e
d

u
c
ti
o

n
 

o
f 

w
a
s
te

 s
e
n
t 
to

 
la

n
d
fi
ll 

a
n
d

 t
h
e
re

fo
re

 
th

e
 r

e
d

u
c
ti
o

n
 i
n
 

m
e
th

a
n
e
 g

a
s
 

e
m

is
s
io

n
s
. 

A
 c

o
m

b
in

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
B

V
P

I 
8

2
(a

) 
a
n

d
 8

2
(b

).
  

8
2
(a

) 
T

h
e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e

 
o
f 

h
o
u
s
e
h
o

ld
 w

a
s
te

 
s
e
n
t 
fo

r 
re

c
yc

lin
g
. 
 

8
2
(b

) 
T

h
e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e

 
o
f 

h
o
u
s
e
h
o

ld
 w

a
s
te

 
s
e
n
t 
fo

r 
c
o
m

p
o
s
ti
n
g
/a

n
a

e
ro

b
ic

 
d
ig

e
s
ti
o

n
 t
o
 

d
e
te

rm
in

e
 t
h

e
 a

m
o
u
n
t 

o
f 

w
a
s
te

 r
e
c
y
c
le

d
 a

s
 

a
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
th

e
 

to
ta

l 
w

a
s
te

 g
e

n
e
ra

te
d
 

in
 O

x
fo

rd
s
h
ir
e
 

T
o
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 t
h
e

  
re

c
yc

lin
g
 r

a
te

 f
ro

m
 

3
3
%

 t
o

 3
8
%

 b
y
 3

1
 

M
a
rc

h
 2

0
0
8
 

              

 
                  

Page 65



O
u

tc
o

m
e
s
 

In
d

ic
a
to

rs
 

S
tr

e
tc

h
 T

a
rg

e
t 

F
u

n
d

in
g

 s
tr

e
a
m

s
 

c
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
n

g
 t

o
 

o
u

tc
o

m
e
s
 

V
a
le

 
C

o
m

m
it

m
e
n

t 

T
a
rg

e
ts

 I
d

e
n

ti
fi

e
d

 
s
u

b
s
e
q

u
e
n

tl
y
: 

 (N
o
n
-s

tr
e
tc

h
) 

 T
o
 

in
c
re

a
s
e
 t

h
e
 

re
c
yc

lin
g
 r

a
te

 f
ro

m
 

3
3
%

 t
o

 3
8
%

 b
y
 3

1
s
t  

M
a
rc

h
 2

0
0
9
 

 S
tr

e
tc

h
: 
In

c
lu

d
e
d

 i
n

 
th

is
 w

ill
 b

e
 4

,8
7
5
 

e
x
tr

a
 t
o
n

n
e
s
 o

f 
n
o

n
-

b
io

d
e
g
ra

d
a
b

le
 w

s
te

 
to

 b
e

 r
e
c
y
c
le

d
 

b
e
tw

e
e
n
 2

0
0

6
/0

7
 

a
n
d
 2

0
0

8
/;
0

9
 

in
c
lu

s
iv

e
 

   In
d
iv

id
u

a
l 
p
a
rt

n
e
r 

c
o
n
tr

ib
u

ti
o
n
s
 y

e
t 
to

 
b
e
 f

in
a

lis
e

d
 

    In
d
iv

id
u

a
l 
p
a
rt

n
e
r 

c
o
n
tr

ib
u

ti
o
n
s
 y

e
t 
to

 
b
e
 f

in
a

lis
e

d
 

A
n
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
in

 
th

e
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
c
le

a
n

lin
e
s
s
 o

f 
O

x
fo

rd
s
h
ir
e
 

A
n
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

th
e
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 B

V
P

Is
 

 1
9
9
(a

) 
T

h
e
 p

ro
p
o
rt

io
n
 

o
f 

re
le

v
a
n
t 

la
n
d
 a

n
d
 

h
ig

h
w

a
ys

 (
e
x
p
re

s
s
e
d
 

a
s
 a

 %
) 

th
a
t 
is

 
a
s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 a

s
 h

a
v
in

g
 

c
o
m

b
in

e
d

 d
e

p
o
s
it
s
 o

f 
lit

te
r 

a
n

d
 d

e
tr

it
u
s
 t

h
a
t 

fa
ll 

b
e

lo
w

 a
n
 

a
c
c
e
p
ta

b
le

 s
ta

n
d
a
rd

  
 1
9
9
(b

) 
T

h
e
 p

ro
p
o
rt

io
n
 

o
f 

re
le

v
a
n
t 

la
n
d
 a

n
d
 

E
a
c
h
 o

f 
th

e
 4

 B
V

P
Is

 
to

 s
h
o

w
 a

n
 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

e
it
h

e
r 

a
 m

in
im

u
m

 o
f 

5
%

 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 

2
0
0
5

/2
0

0
6
 o

u
tt
u
rn

 
fi
g
u
re

 o
r 

b
y
 1

 g
ra

d
e
 

(B
V

P
I 
1

9
9
d
) 

  A
ll 

C
o

u
n
c
ils

 t
o
 

in
c
re

a
s
e
 t

h
e

ir
 

g
ra

d
in

g
 b

y
 1

 l
e
v
e
l 

 i
.e

 
V

e
ry

 E
ff

e
c
ti
v
e
 (

1
) 

 
               

Page 66



O
u

tc
o

m
e
s
 

In
d

ic
a
to

rs
 

S
tr

e
tc

h
 T

a
rg

e
t 

F
u

n
d

in
g

 s
tr

e
a
m

s
 

c
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
n

g
 t

o
 

o
u

tc
o

m
e
s
 

V
a
le

 
C

o
m

m
it

m
e
n

t 

h
ig

h
w

a
ys

 (
e
x
p
re

s
s
e
d
 

a
s
 a

 %
) 

fr
o
m

 w
h

ic
h
 

u
n
a
c
c
e
p
ta

b
le

 l
e
v
e
ls

 
o
f 

g
ra

ff
it
i 
a
re

 v
is

ib
le

 
 1
9
9
(c

) 
T

h
e
 p

ro
p
o
rt

io
n

 
o
f 

re
le

v
a
n
t 

la
n
d
 a

n
d
 

h
ig

h
w

a
ys

 (
e
x
p
re

s
s
e
d
 

a
s
 a

 %
) 

fr
o
m

 w
h

ic
h
 

u
n
a
c
c
e
p
ta

b
le

 l
e
v
e
ls

 
o
f 

fl
y 

p
o
s
ti
n
g
 a

re
 

v
is

ib
le

 
 1
9
9
(d

) 
T

h
e
 y

e
a
r 

o
n
 

y
e

a
r 

re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 t

h
e
 

n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

in
c
id

e
n

ts
 

a
n
d
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 t

o
ta

l 
n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

e
n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n
t 
a
c
ti
o

n
s
 

ta
k
e
n
 t
o
 d

e
a
l 
w

it
h
 

fl
yt

ip
p
in

g
 

            

E
ff

e
c
ti
v
e
 (

2
) 

G
o
o
d
 (

3
) 

P
o
o
r 

(4
) 

P
o
o
r 

(4
) 

                  T
a
rg

e
ts

 I
d

e
n

ti
fi

e
d

 
s
u

b
s
e
q

u
e
n

tl
y
: 

R
e
d
u
c
e
 b

y
 9

%
 (

fr
o
m

 
2
0
0
4

/0
5
 O

x
fo

rd
s
h
ir
e
 

a
v
e
ra

g
e
 o

f 
2
0
%

) 
th

e
 

p
ro

p
o
rt

io
n
 o

f 
re

le
v
a
n

t 
la

n
d
 a

n
d
 h

ig
h

w
a

ys
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 a

s
 h

a
v
in

g
 

c
o
m

b
in

e
d

 d
e

p
o
s
it
s
 o

f 
lit

te
r 

a
n

d
 d

e
tr

it
u
s
 

fa
lli

n
g
 b

e
lo

w
 a

n
 

                        V
a
le

 w
ill

 a
c
h

ie
v
e
 

ta
rg

e
ts

 w
it
h

in
 e

x
is

ti
n

g
 

re
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 

      

Page 67



O
u

tc
o

m
e
s
 

In
d

ic
a
to

rs
 

S
tr

e
tc

h
 T

a
rg

e
t 

F
u

n
d

in
g

 s
tr

e
a
m

s
 

c
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
n

g
 t

o
 

o
u

tc
o

m
e
s
 

V
a
le

 
C

o
m

m
it

m
e
n

t 

  %
 o

f 
p
e
o
p

le
 s

a
ti
s
fi
e
d
 

w
it
h
 c

le
a

n
lin

e
s
s
 

s
ta

n
d
a
rd

s
 i
n
 t

h
e

ir
 

a
re

a
 (

B
V

P
I 
8
9
) 

a
c
c
e
p
ta

b
le

 s
ta

n
d
a
rd

. 
 P

e
o

p
le

 w
h

o
 e

x
p
re

s
s
 

s
a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 

c
le

a
n

lin
e
s
s
 

s
ta

n
d
a
rd

s
 i
n
 t

h
e

ir
 

a
re

a
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 t

o
 

6
j9

.5
8
%

 b
y
 M

a
rc

h
 

2
0
0
9

. 

   V
a
le

 w
ill

 a
c
h

ie
v
e
 

ta
rg

e
ts

 w
it
h

in
 e

x
is

ti
n

g
 

re
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 

Page 68



S
tr

o
n

g
e

r 
C

o
m

m
u

n
it

ie
s

: 
 2
6
. 

O
x
fo

rd
s
h
ir
e
 i
s
 a

 g
o

o
d
 p

la
c
e

 i
n
 w

h
ic

h
 t

o
 w

o
rk

 a
n
d
 l
iv

e
. 
 H

o
w

e
v
e
r 

s
o
m

e
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
 a

re
 f

in
d
in

g
 i
t 

in
c
re

a
s
in

g
ly

 d
if
fi
c
u
lt
 t
o
 s

u
s
ta

in
 l
o
c
a

l 
fa

c
ili

ti
e
s
 a

n
d

 t
h
e

 
a
v
a

ila
b

ili
ty

 o
f 

a
ff

o
rd

a
b
le

 h
o

u
s
in

g
 f

o
r 

lo
c
a
l 
p
e
o

p
le

 i
s
 a

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 
p
ro

b
le

m
. 
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 s

e
lf
 h

e
lp

 h
a
s
 a

ls
o
 d

e
c
lin

e
d
 a

s
 t
h
e
 p

a
c
e
 o

f 
lif

e
 h

a
s
 i
n
te

n
s
if
ie

d
. 
T

h
e
re

 
is

 a
ls

o
 a

 d
e
c
lin

e
 i
n
 i
n
te

re
s
t 
in

 l
o
c
a

l 
d

e
m

o
c
ra

c
y 

w
h

ic
h
 i
n
 p

a
rt

 i
s
 c

o
n

n
e
c
te

d
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
s
e
 f

a
c
to

rs
 

 2
7
. 

W
e
 i
n
te

n
d
 t

o
 a

d
d
re

s
s
 t
h

e
s
e

 c
o
n
c
e
rn

s
 i
n
 s

e
v
e
ra

l 
w

a
ys

: 
 

•
 

N
e
ig

h
b

o
u

rh
o

o
d

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 –

 P
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

 f
o
r 

n
e

ig
h
b
o

u
rh

o
o
d
 p

o
lic

in
g
 a

n
d
 l
o
c
a

l 
c
h
ild

re
n
’s

 c
e
n
tr

e
s
 a

re
 e

x
a
m

p
le

s
 o

f 
a
c
ti
o
n
 t

o
 b

ri
n
g
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 c

lo
s
e
r 

to
 l
o
c
a

l 
p
e
o
p

le
. 

A
c
ti
o
n
 t

o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 t

h
e
 a

c
c
e
s
s
ib

ili
ty

 o
f 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

n
d
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 p

la
n
n
e
d

 o
v
e
r 

th
e
 m

e
d
iu

m
 t
o
 l
o

n
g
 t
e
rm

. 
T

e
c
h
n
o
lo

g
ic

a
l 
a
d

v
a
n
c
e
s
 a

llo
w

 
u
s
 t
o
 m

a
k
e
 m

a
jo

r 
im

p
ro

v
e

m
e
n
ts

 i
n
 p

u
b

lic
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

 

•
 

S
tr

e
n

g
th

e
n

in
g

 t
h

e
 V

o
lu

n
ta

ry
 &

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 S

e
c
to

r 
In

fr
a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 –

 I
n
 O

x
fo

rd
s
h
ir
e
 t

h
e
 u

m
b
re

lla
 o

rg
a
n

is
a
ti
o
n
s
 p

ro
v
id

in
g
 p

ra
c
ti
c
a
l 
s
u

p
p
o
rt

 a
n

d
 

g
u
id

a
n
c
e
 t

o
 v

o
lu

n
ta

ry
 a

n
d

 c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y 

g
ro

u
p
s
 a

re
 u

n
d
e
r 

d
e

v
e
lo

p
e

d
. 
T

h
e
 k

e
y
 i
n
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 o

rg
a

n
is

a
ti
o

n
s
 a

n
d

 k
e

y
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 a
g
e
n
c
ie

s
 h

a
v
e

 
c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e
d
 r

e
s
e
a
rc

h
 (

th
e
 O

V
ID

 p
ro

je
c
t,
 w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 t
h

e
 l
o
c
a

l 
m

a
n
if
e
s
ta

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 D

E
F

R
A

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 ‘
C

h
a
n
g

e
 U

p
’)
 t
o
 i
d
e

n
ti
fy

 a
 w

a
y
 f

o
rw

a
rd

 t
h

a
t 
fi
ts

 
2
1

s
t  C

e
n
tu

ry
 n

e
e
d
s
. 
T

h
is

 p
ro

je
c
t 
is

 n
o

w
 c

o
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 a

n
d

 d
u
ri
n

g
 2

0
0
6

 i
t 

w
ill

 b
e
 p

o
s
s
ib

le
 t

o
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 a

n
 a

c
ti
o
n

 p
la

n
 t
o
 h

e
lp

 s
tr

e
n

g
th

e
n
 t
h

e
 V

C
S

 s
e
c
to

r.
  

T
h
e
 R

u
ra

l 
S

o
c
ia

l 
&

 C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 (

R
S

C
P

) 
w

ill
 b

e
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
te

d
 u

n
d
e
r 

th
e

 g
u
id

a
n
c
e

 o
f 

A
 R

u
ra

l 
F

o
ru

m
 t
o
 b

e
 s

e
t 
u

p
 i
n
 2

0
0
6
/0

7
. 
 

 
•
 

T
h
e
 P

u
b

lic
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 B

o
a
rd

 w
ill

 r
e

v
ie

w
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 a

n
d
 a

g
re

e
 n

e
x
t 
s
te

p
s
 i
n

 2
0

0
6
/0

7
. 

 
•
 

R
u

ra
l 

s
tr

a
te

g
y
 –

 A
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 R

S
C

P
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 a

 R
u
ra

l 
S

tr
a
te

g
y
 w

ill
 b

e
 d

e
v
e

lo
p
e
d
 d

u
ri

n
g
 2

0
0
6

/0
7
. 

T
h
is

 w
ill

 a
d

d
re

s
s
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 o

f 
s
u
s
ta

in
a
b
ili

ty
 a

n
d
 

th
e
 r

u
ra

l 
e
c
o

n
o
m

y.
  

 

•
 

V
o

lu
n

te
e
ri

n
g

 –
 W

e
 w

a
n
t 
to

 e
n
c
o
u
ra

g
e
 m

o
re

 p
e
o

p
le

 t
o
 v

o
lu

n
te

e
r 

to
 s

u
p
p

o
rt

 l
o
c
a
l 
o

rg
a
n
is

a
ti
o

n
s
 a

n
d
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
. 
 T

h
e
 C

o
u
n

ty
 C

o
u

n
c
il,

 S
o
u
th

 
O

x
fo

rd
s
h
ir
e
 D

is
tr

ic
t 
a
n

d
 t
h

e
 C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

h
a
v
e
 c

o
m

m
it
te

d
 t
o

 t
h
e

 p
ilo

ti
n

g
 o

f 
s
ta

ff
 v

o
lu

n
te

e
ri
n

g
 s

c
h
e
m

e
s
 t
o
 e

n
c
o

u
ra

g
e
 s

ta
ff

 t
o
 v

o
lu

n
te

e
r.

 T
h
e
 O

x
fo

rd
s
h
ir
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

fo
r 

V
o

lu
n
ta

ry
 A

c
ti
o

n
 a

re
 s

u
p

p
o
rt

in
g
 t

h
is

 i
n

it
ia

ti
v
e
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 t
h

e
ir
 v

o
lu

n
te

e
r 

c
e
n
tr

e
. 

 

•
 

In
v

o
lv

in
g

 –
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

 a
lr

e
a

d
y
 h

a
v
e
 e

x
te

n
s
iv

e
 m

e
c
h
a
n
is

m
s
 f
o
r 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
in

g
 a

n
d
 i
n
v
o

lv
in

g
 l
o
c
a

l 
p

e
o

p
le

. 
H

o
w

e
v
e
r 

w
e
 n

e
e
d
 t

o
 d

o
 m

o
re

 t
o
 i
n

v
o
lv

e
 ‘
h
a
rd

 t
o
 

re
a
c
h
' g

ro
u

p
s
 a

n
d
 e

s
p
e
c
ia

lly
 y

o
u

n
g
 p

e
o
p

le
. 

O
n
e
 a

re
a
 w

h
e
re

 w
e
 n

e
e
d
 t

o
 s

tr
e
n

g
th

e
n
 c

o
m

m
it
m

e
n
t 
to

 e
n
c
o

u
ra

g
in

g
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 a

ro
u

n
d
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 

a
n
d
 c

u
lt
u
ra

l 
a
c
ti
v
it
y
 p

a
rt

ic
u

la
rl

y
 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o

n
 t
o

 e
x
c
lu

d
e
d
 g

ro
u
p
s
. 
W

e
 p

la
n
 t

o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 o
u
r 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
e
s
 f

o
r 

e
n
g

a
g
in

g
 h

a
rd

 t
o
 r

e
a
c
h
 g

ro
u
p
s
, 
to

 s
h
a
re

 b
e
s
t 

p
ra

c
ti
c
e
 a

n
d
 t

o
 c

o
-o

rd
in

a
te

 o
u
r 

e
ff

o
rt

s
  
 

 

Page 69



 H
e

a
lt

h
ie

r 
C

o
m

m
u

n
it

ie
s

 a
n

d
 O

ld
e

r 
P

e
o

p
le

 B
lo

c
k

: 
 2
8
. 

P
e
o

p
le

 i
n
 O

x
fo

rd
s
h
ir
e
 a

re
 a

m
o
n
g
 t
h
e
 h

e
a
lt
h
ie

s
t 
in

 t
h
e

 c
o
u
n
tr

y
 a

n
d
 h

e
a

lt
h
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

re
 o

f 
a
 h

ig
h
 s

ta
n
d

a
rd

. 
H

o
w

e
v
e
r,

 t
h
e
re

 a
re

 s
o
m

e
 m

a
rk

e
d
 i
n
e
q
u

a
lit

ie
s
 i
n
 

h
e
a

lt
h
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 a

n
d
 t
h

e
re

 a
re

 g
ro

w
in

g
 c

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 a

b
o
u

t 
o
b
e
s
it
y
, 

a
lc

o
h
o

l 
a

n
d
 d

ru
g
 m

is
u
s
e
 a

n
d
 s

e
x
u
a
l 
h
e
a

lt
h

. 
In

 2
0

0
6
/0

7
 a

c
ti
o
n
 t

o
 a

d
d
re

s
s
 t
h
e
s
e
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 

w
ill

 f
o
c
u
s
 o

n
 c

h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 y

o
u
n
g

 p
e

o
p
le

 –
 d

e
ta

ile
d

 p
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

 a
re

 s
e
t 
o

u
t 

in
 t

h
e
 C

h
ild

re
n
 &

 Y
o
u
n

g
 P

e
o

p
le

’s
 P

la
n
 

 2
9
. 

W
it
h
 m

o
re

 a
n
d
 m

o
re

 o
ld

e
r 

p
e
o
p

le
 l
iv

in
g
 b

e
y
o

n
d
 8

0
 w

e
 a

ls
o
 n

e
e

d
 t
o
 d

o
 m

o
re

 t
o
 h

e
lp

 p
e
o
p

le
 t

o
 l
e
a

d
 h

e
a
lt
h

y
 a

n
d
 i
n

d
e
p

e
n
d

e
n
t 

liv
e
s
. 
W

it
h
 s

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
t 

fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
p
ro

b
le

m
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 O

x
fo

rd
s
h
ir
e
 N

H
S

 a
n
d
 s

tr
u
c
tu

ra
l 
c
h
a
n

g
e
 i
m

m
in

e
n
t,
 w

e
 w

ill
 w

o
rk

 w
it
h
 t
h

e
 P

C
T

s
 i
n
 t

h
e

 d
e

v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

a
 p

u
b
lic

 h
e

a
lt
h

 s
tr

a
te

g
y
 t

h
a
t 

lin
k
s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 l
o
c
a
l 
g

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 
a

n
d
 t

h
e
 N

H
S

, 
fo

r 
c
o
m

p
le

ti
o

n
 d

u
ri
n

g
 2

0
0
7
/0

8
. 

 3
0
. 

H
o

w
e

v
e
r 

in
 t

h
e
 i
n
te

ri
m

 w
e
 h

a
v
e
 p

ro
p
o
s
e
d

 s
tr

e
tc

h
 t

a
rg

e
ts

 t
o
: 

  O
u

tc
o

m
e
s
 

In
d

ic
a
to

rs
 

S
tr

e
tc

h
 T

a
rg

e
t 

F
u

n
d

in
g

 s
tr

e
a
m

s
 

c
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
n

g
 t

o
 

o
u

tc
o

m
e
s
 

V
a
le

 
C

o
m

m
it

m
e
n

t 

R
e
d
u
c
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

fa
lls

 a
m

o
n
g
 o

ld
e
r 

p
e
o
p

le
 l
iv

in
g
 i
n

 c
a
re

 

N
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
fa

lls
 w

it
h
in

 
th

e
 c

a
re

 h
o
m

e
 

 N
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

o
ld

e
r 

p
e
o
p

le
 w

h
o
 

p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
te

 i
n
 s

e
a
te

d
 

a
n
d
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

e
d
 

e
x
e
rc

is
e
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s
 (

o
r 

s
im

ila
r 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s
) 

 N
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

c
a
re

 
h
o
m

e
 s

ta
ff

 t
ra

in
e
d
 i
n
 

fa
lls

 p
re

v
e
n
ti
o

n
 a

n
d
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

In
c
re

a
s
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

c
a
re

 h
o
m

e
s
 r

e
c
e
iv

in
g
 

fa
lls

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 i
n

p
u
t 

fr
o
m

 1
0
 p

e
r 

y
e

a
r 

to
 

2
0
 p

e
r 

y
e

a
r 

b
y
 

2
0
0
7

/0
8
 

 R
e
d
u
c
e
 t

h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

fa
lls

 w
it
h

in
 t

h
e
 t

e
n
 

c
a
re

 h
o
m

e
s
 b

y
 2

0
%

 
b

y
 2

0
0

7
/0

8
 

 S
e
t 

u
p
 s

e
a

te
d
 

e
x
e
rc

is
e
 c

la
s
s
e
s
 

w
it
h

in
 a

ll 
th

e
 t
e

n
 c

a
re

 
h
o
m

e
s
 

 T
ra

in
 a

ll 
n
e

w
 s

ta
ff

 i
n
 

P
C

T
 

V
o
lu

n
ta

ry
 S

e
c
to

r 
D

is
tr

ic
t 
C

o
u
n
c
ils

  

     N
o
t 
d

ir
e
c
tl
y
 i
n

v
o
lv

e
d
 

b
u
t 
a

b
le

 t
o
 p

ro
m

o
te

 
p
a
rt

n
e
r 

o
p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
 

th
a
t 
k
e
e
p
 o

ld
e
r 

p
e
o
p

le
 a

c
ti
v
e
, 

w
h
e
re

 
a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

. 

Page 70



O
u

tc
o

m
e
s
 

In
d

ic
a
to

rs
 

S
tr

e
tc

h
 T

a
rg

e
t 

F
u

n
d

in
g

 s
tr

e
a
m

s
 

c
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
n

g
 t

o
 

o
u

tc
o

m
e
s
 

V
a
le

 
C

o
m

m
it

m
e
n

t 

c
a
re

 h
o
m

e
s
 o

n
 f

a
ll 

p
re

v
e

n
ti
o
n
 a

n
d

 
m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

In
c
re

a
s
e
 t
h

e
 

p
ro

p
o
rt

io
n
 o

f 
o
ld

e
r 

p
e
o
p

le
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

e
d
 t

o
 

liv
e
 i
n
 t

h
e

ir
 o

w
n

 
h
o
m

e
 

P
ro

p
o
rt

io
n
 o

f 
o
ld

e
r 

p
e
o
p

le
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

e
d
 

in
te

n
s
iv

e
ly

 t
o
 l
iv

e
 a

t 
h
o
m

e
  

In
c
re

a
s
in

g
 b

y
 2

0
0
8
 

th
e
 p

ro
p
o
rt

io
n
 o

f 
th

o
s
e
 s

u
p

p
o
rt

e
d
 

in
te

n
s
iv

e
ly

 t
o
 l
iv

e
 a

t 
h
o
m

e
 t
o
 3

6
%

 o
f 

th
e
 

to
ta

l 
o
f 

th
o
s
e
 b

e
in

g
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

e
d
 a

t 
h
o
m

e
 o

r 
in

 r
e
s
id

e
n

ti
a

l 
c
a
re

 

S
u
p

p
o
rt

 P
e
o

p
le

 
S

o
c
ia

l 
a

n
d
 H

e
a

lt
h
 

C
a
re

 B
u
d
g

e
t 

 

P
ro

m
o
ti
n
g
 h

e
a

lt
h

y
 

lif
e
s
ty

le
s
/p

o
s
it
iv

e
 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 

In
c
re

a
s
e
 t
h

e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

y
o
u
n

g
 p

e
o
p

le
 w

h
o
 

w
a
lk

 o
r 

c
yc

le
 t

o
 

s
c
h
o
o
l 

          In
c
re

a
s
e
 t
h

e
 t
a
k
e
 u

p
 

o
f 

s
p
o
rt

in
g
 

o
p
p
o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
 b

y
 5

-1
6
 

y
e

a
r 

o
ld

s
 

   

In
c
re

a
s
e
 t
h

e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

y
o
u
n

g
 p

e
o
p

le
 w

h
o
 

w
a
lk

 t
o
 s

c
h
o
o
l 
b

y
 1

%
 

fr
o
m

 a
 b

a
s
e
lin

e
 o

f 
4
3
,5

6
3
 j
o
u
rn

e
y
s
 t

o
 

4
4
,6

6
3
 b

y
 2

0
0

9
. 

In
c
re

a
s
e
 t
h

e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

y
o
u
n

g
 p

e
o
p

le
 w

h
o
 

c
yc

le
 t

o
 s

c
h
o
o

l 
b

y
 

1
%

 f
ro

m
 a

 b
a
s
e
lin

e
 

o
f 

1
0
,1

4
8
 j
o
u
rn

e
y
s
 t
o

 
1
1
,1

4
8
 j
o
u
rn

e
y
s
 b

y
 

2
0
0
9
 

 In
c
re

a
s
e
 %

 5
-1

3
 y

e
a
r 

o
ld

s
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
n
g

 i
n

 a
 

m
in

im
u
m

 o
f 

2
 h

o
u
rs

 
p
e
r 

w
e
e
k
 o

n
 h

ig
h
 

q
u
a

lit
y
 P

E
 a

n
d

 
s
c
h
o
o
ls

 s
p
o
rt

s
 f

ro
m

 
4
6
%

 (
K

S
1
) 

a
n
d
 6

2
%

 

S
c
h
o
o

l 
T

ra
v
e

l 
P

la
n

 
F

u
n
d
in

g
 G

ra
n
t 

L
o
c
a
l 
T

ra
n
s
p
o
rt

 P
la

n
 

C
a
p
it
a
l 

          D
is

tr
ic

t 
C

o
u
n
c
il 

L
e
is

u
re

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

P
a
ri
s
h
 C

o
u

n
c
ils

 
P

la
y
 S

c
h
e
m

e
s
 

F
u
n
d
in

g
 

S
p
e
c
ia

lis
t 
S

p
o
rt

s
 

C
o
lle

g
e
s
 

              L
e
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 S

c
h
o

o
l 

S
p
o
rt

s
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

. 
 

V
a
le

 r
e
p
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
o

n
 

o
n
 t
h

e
 S

S
P

 S
te

e
ri

n
g
 

G
ro

u
p
 s

u
p
p

o
rt

s
 t
h

is
 

  

Page 71



O
u

tc
o

m
e
s
 

In
d

ic
a
to

rs
 

S
tr

e
tc

h
 T

a
rg

e
t 

F
u

n
d

in
g

 s
tr

e
a
m

s
 

c
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
n

g
 t

o
 

o
u

tc
o

m
e
s
 

V
a
le

 
C

o
m

m
it

m
e
n

t 

   In
c
re

a
s
e
 t
h

e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

c
h
ild

re
n
 a

c
c
e
s
s
in

g
 

h
o
lid

a
y
 p

la
y
 s

c
h
e
m

e
s
 

    In
c
re

a
s
e
 t
h

e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

y
o
u
n

g
 p

e
o
p

le
 

a
c
c
e
s
s
in

g
 

d
iv

e
rs

io
n
a
ry

 
o
p
p
o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
 

(K
S

2
) 

to
 8

5
%

 b
y
 

s
u
m

m
e
r 

2
0
0
8
 

    N
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

c
h
ild

re
n
 

a
c
c
e
s
s
in

g
 a

ff
o
rd

a
b
le

 
h
o
lid

a
y
 p

la
y
 s

c
h
e
m

e
s
 

in
c
re

a
s
e
d

 f
ro

m
 6

0
 t
o
 

3
0
0
 i
n
 O

x
fo

rd
s
h
ir
e
 b

y
 

2
0
0
9

  
     In

c
re

a
s
e
 t
h

e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

y
o
u
n

g
 p

e
o
p

le
 

p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
n
g

 i
n

 
P

o
s
it
iv

e
 A

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 f

o
r 

Y
o
u

n
g
 P

e
o

p
le

 f
ro

m
 

3
6
0
 f

te
 t

o
 4

0
0
 f

te
 b

y
 

2
0
0
8
 

L
o
tt
e
ry

 f
o
r 

P
la

y
 

S
p
o
rt

 E
n

g
la

n
d
  

S
c
h
o
o

l 
S

p
o
rt

 
P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 
 

V
a
le

 d
o
 n

o
t 
ru

n
 p

la
y
 

s
c
h
e
m

e
s
 b

u
t 
o
ff

e
r 

c
o
a
c
h
in

g
 s

e
s
s
io

n
s
 t

o
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
 s

p
o
rt

 i
n

 
ta

rg
e
te

d
 a

re
a
s
. 

 In
c
re

a
s
e
s
 i
n
 

p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n

 
s
u
p
p
o
rt

e
d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h

 
p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 w
o
rk

 w
it
h

 
O

x
fo

rd
s
h
ir
e
 S

p
o
rt

s
 

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

, 
C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 S

p
o
rt

s
 

N
e
tw

o
rk

 a
n
d
 t

h
e
 

P
h

ys
ic

a
l 
A

c
ti
v
it
y
 

A
lli

a
n
c
e
. 

 T
h
ro

u
g
h
 t
h
e

 
C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 S

p
o
rt

s
 

C
o
a
c
h
 S

c
h
e
m

e
 t
h
e
 

V
a
le

 w
o
rk

s
 w

it
h
 

S
e
c
o
n

d
a
ry

 S
c
h

o
o
ls

 
to

 s
u
p
p

o
rt

 y
o

u
n
g
 

p
e
o
p

le
 a

t 
ri
s
k
. 

In
c
re

a
s
e
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 

c
h
ild

 a
n

d
 a

d
o
le

s
c
e
n
t 

m
e
n
ta

l 
h
e
a

lt
h

 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

In
c
re

a
s
e
 t
h

e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

y
o
u
n

g
 p

e
o
p

le
 

a
c
c
e
s
s
in

g
 T

ie
r 

2
 

m
e
n
ta

l 
h
e
a

lt
h

 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

   

T
o
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 t
h
e

 
n
u
m

b
e
rs

 o
f 

c
h
ild

re
n
 

re
c
e
iv

in
g
 a

 t
ie

r 
2

 
P

C
A

M
H

S
 

In
te

rv
e
n
ti
o
n

 t
o
 1

5
0

0
 

b
y
 2

0
0

9
 

 T
o
 r

e
d
u
c
e
 s

p
e
c
ia

lis
t 

C
A

M
H

S
 G

ra
n

ts
 

(P
C

T
s
 x

 5
 a

n
d
 O

C
C

) 
B

e
h

a
v
io

u
r 

S
u

p
p
o
rt

 
S

e
rv

ic
e
 

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o

n
a

l 
P

s
y
c
h
o

lo
g

y
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 

C
A

M
H

S
 S

o
c
ia

l 
W

o
rk

e
rs

. 

 

Page 72



O
u

tc
o

m
e
s
 

In
d

ic
a
to

rs
 

S
tr

e
tc

h
 T

a
rg

e
t 

F
u

n
d

in
g

 s
tr

e
a
m

s
 

c
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
n

g
 t

o
 

o
u

tc
o

m
e
s
 

V
a
le

 
C

o
m

m
it

m
e
n

t 

   R
e
d
u
c
e
 w

a
it
in

g
 t

im
e
s
 

fo
r 

a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 

s
p
e
c
ia

lis
t 
C

A
M

H
S

 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

C
A

M
H

S
 w

a
it
in

g
 l
is

ts
 

b
y
 3

0
%

 b
y
 2

0
0

9
 

 T
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 

9
0
%

 
o
f 

c
h
ild

re
n
 r

e
fe

rr
e
d
 t
o
 

T
ie

r 
3
 s

p
e
c
ia

lis
t 

C
A

M
H

S
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

re
c
e
iv

e
d
 t
re

a
tm

e
n
t 

w
it
h

in
 2

 m
o
n
th

s
 o

f 
re

fe
rr

a
l 
b

y
 2

0
0

9
 

 
 

3
1
. 

T
h
e
 n

o
n

-s
tr

e
tc

h
 t

a
rg

e
ts

 l
is

te
d
 b

e
lo

w
 f

o
r 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
: 

   O
u

tc
o

m
e
s
 

In
d

ic
a
to

rs
 

S
tr

e
tc

h
 T

a
rg

e
t 

F
u

n
d

in
g

 s
tr

e
a
m

s
 

c
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
n

g
 t

o
 

o
u

tc
o

m
e
s
 

V
a
le

 
C

o
m

m
it

m
e
n

t 

O
v
e
ra

rc
h
in

g
 

o
u
tc

o
m

e
: 

G
a
p
s
 i
n
 l
if
e
 

e
x
p
e
c
ta

n
c
y
 a

t 
b
ir
th

 
b
e
tw

e
e
n
 w

a
rd

s
 i
n
 

O
x
fo

rd
s
h
ir
e
 

R
e
d

u
c
e
 h

e
a
lt

h
 

in
e
q

u
a
li
ti

e
s

 b
y
 1

0
%

 
b

y
 2

0
1

0
 a

s
 

m
e
a
s
u

re
d

 b
y
 i
n

fa
n

t 
m

o
rt

a
li
ty

 a
n

d
 l

if
e
 

e
x
p

e
c
ta

n
c

y
 a

t 
b

ir
th

. 
 

(2
0
1
0
 c

e
n

s
u

s
 d

a
ta

) 

 
 

  N
O

N
E

 

P
ro

m
o

ti
n

g
 a

 H
e
a

lt
h
y
 

a
n
d
 A

c
ti
v
e
 L

if
e
s
ty

le
: 

 R
e
d
u
c
in

g
 a

d
u

lt
 

s
m

o
k
in

g
 &

 e
x
p
o
s
u
re

 
to

 s
e
c
o
n
d

 h
a

n
d
 

   N
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

4
-w

e
e
k
 

s
m

o
k
in

g
 q

u
it
te

rs
 w

h
o
 

a
tt
e
n

d
e
d

 N
H

S
 S

to
p
 

   3
,8

1
4
 q

u
it
te

rs
 i
n
 

O
x
fo

rd
s
h
ir
e
 2

0
0
5
-

2
0
0
6

, 
in

 l
in

e
 w

it
h
 

P
C

T
 s

m
o
k
in

g
 

c
e
s
s
a
ti
o
n
 

P
C

T
 C

h
o
o
s
in

g
 

H
e
a
lt
h
  

  N
O

N
E

 
   

Page 73



O
u

tc
o

m
e
s
 

In
d

ic
a
to

rs
 

S
tr

e
tc

h
 T

a
rg

e
t 

F
u

n
d

in
g

 s
tr

e
a
m

s
 

c
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
n

g
 t

o
 

o
u

tc
o

m
e
s
 

V
a
le

 
C

o
m

m
it

m
e
n

t 

s
m

o
k
in

g
 i
n

 
O

x
fo

rd
s
h
ir
e
 

S
m

o
k
in

g
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

p
e
r 

1
0

0
,0

0
0
 

p
o
p
u

la
ti
o

n
 

 N
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

tr
a
in

e
d
 

w
o
rk

p
la

c
e
 s

m
o
k
in

g
 

c
e
s
s
a
ti
o
n
 a

d
v
is

o
rs

  
 E

v
id

e
n
c
e
 o

f 
c
o
m

p
lia

n
c
e
 w

it
h
 

s
m

o
k
e
-f

re
e
 p

u
b

lic
 

a
n
d
 w

o
rk

p
la

c
e
 

le
g

is
la

ti
o

n
 

D
O

H
 t
a
rg

e
ts

 
 X

 n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

w
o
rk

 
p
la

c
e
 s

m
o
k
in

g
 

c
e
s
s
a
ti
o
n
 a

d
v
is

o
rs

 
tr

a
in

e
d
 b

y
 A

p
ri

l 
2

0
0
8
 

  1
0
0
%

 c
o
m

p
lia

n
c
e
 

w
it
h
 t

h
e
 l
e

g
is

la
ti
o
n
 b

y
 

A
p
ri

l 
2

0
0
8
 

        T
o
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
t 
a
n
 

E
n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n
t 
P

o
lic

y
 

P
ro

m
o

ti
n

g
 a

 H
e
a

lt
h
y
 

a
n
d
 A

c
ti
v
e
 L

if
e
s
ty

le
: 

 In
c
re

a
s
e
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n
 

o
f 

a
d
u
lt
 p

o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
 i
n
 

p
h

y
s
ic

a
l 
a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 

P
ro

p
o
rt

io
n
 o

f 
p
e
o

p
le

 
w

h
o
 e

n
g
a

g
e
 i
n
 a

t 
le

a
s
t 

3
0
 m

in
u
te

s
 o

f 
m

o
d
e
ra

te
 i
n
te

n
s
it
y
 

le
v
e
l 
p
h

y
s
ic

a
l 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 a

t 
le

a
s
t 
fi
v
e
 

ti
m

e
s
 a

 w
e

e
k
 

5
0
%

 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 

n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

p
e
o
p
le

 
p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
n
g

 i
n

 
p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s
 s

u
c
h
 a

s
 

W
a
lk

in
g
 f

o
r 

H
e
a
lt
h
, 

G
re

e
n
 G

ym
, 
G

P
 

E
x
e
rc

is
e
 r

e
fe

rr
a
l 
a

n
d
 

o
th

e
r 

s
c
h
e
m

e
s
 b

y
 

A
p
ri

l 
2

0
0
8
 

 %
 I
n
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 t

h
e
 

u
s
e
 o

f 
L
e
is

u
re

 
fa

c
ili

ti
e
s
 b

y
 A

p
ri
l 

2
0
0
8
 

 1
%

 I
n
c
re

a
s
e
 p

e
r 

y
e
a
r 

in
 p

o
p
u

la
ti
o

n
 o

f 
p
e
o
p

le
 w

h
o
 e

n
g
a
g

e
 

in
 a

t 
le

a
s
t 
3

0
m

in
u
te

s
 

D
is

tr
ic

t 
C

o
u
n
c
il 

 
L
e
is

u
re

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

b
u
d
g

e
ts

 

P
a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o

n
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

e
d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h

 
p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 w
o
rk

 w
it
h

 
O

x
fo

rd
s
h
ir
e
 S

p
o
rt

s
 

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

, 
C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 S

p
o
rt

s
 

N
e
tw

o
rk

 a
n
d
 t

h
e
 

P
h

ys
ic

a
l 
A

c
ti
v
it
y
 

A
lli

a
n
c
e
. 

 

Page 74



O
u

tc
o

m
e
s
 

In
d

ic
a
to

rs
 

S
tr

e
tc

h
 T

a
rg

e
t 

F
u

n
d

in
g

 s
tr

e
a
m

s
 

c
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
n

g
 t

o
 

o
u

tc
o

m
e
s
 

V
a
le

 
C

o
m

m
it

m
e
n

t 

o
f 
m

o
d
e
ra

te
 i
n
te

n
s
it
y
 

le
v
e
l 
p
h

y
s
ic

a
l 
a
c
ti
v
it
y
 

a
t 
le

a
s
t 
fi
v
e
 t
im

e
s
 a

 
w

e
e
k
 

E
n
h

a
n
c
e
 t

h
e
 

in
d

e
p
e

n
d
e

n
c
e
 a

n
d
 

q
u
a

lit
y
 o

f 
lif

e
 f

o
r 

o
ld

e
r 

&
 v

u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 p
e
o

p
le

 
to

 s
u
s
ta

in
 

in
d

e
p
e

n
d
e

n
t 
liv

in
g
: 

 E
n
h

a
n
c
e
 t

h
e
 

In
d
e

p
e
n

d
e
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 

q
u
a

lit
y
 o

f 
lif

e
 f

o
r 

o
ld

e
r 

p
e
o
p

le
 a

n
d

 
v
u

ln
e
ra

b
le

 p
e

o
p

le
 t

o
 

s
u
s
ta

in
 i
n
d

e
p
e

n
d

e
n
t 

liv
in

g
 

       N
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

o
ld

e
r 

p
e
o
p

le
 r

e
c
e
iv

in
g
 

D
ir
e
c
t 
P

a
ym

e
n
ts

 p
e
r 

1
0
0
,0

0
0
 a

d
u

lt
 

p
o
p
u

la
ti
o

n
 

       In
c
re

a
s
e
 b

y
 2

0
0
8

 t
h
e

 
n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

o
ld

e
r 

p
e
o
p

le
 r

e
c
e
iv

in
g
 

D
ir
e
c
t 
p
a

ym
e
n
ts

 t
o
 

9
0
 p

e
r 

1
0

0
,0

0
0
 a

d
u
lt
 

p
o
p
u

la
ti
o

n
 

       S
o
c
ia

l 
a

n
d
 H

e
a

lt
h
 

C
a
re

 B
u
d
g

e
t 

O
C

C
 C

a
re

rs
 G

ra
n
t 
 

       N
O

N
E

 

E
n
h

a
n
c
e
 t

h
e
 

in
d

e
p
e

n
d
e

n
c
e
 a

n
d
 

q
u
a

lit
y
 o

f 
lif

e
 f

o
r 

o
ld

e
r 

&
 v

u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 p
e
o

p
le

 
to

 s
u
s
ta

in
 

in
d

e
p
e

n
d
e

n
t 
liv

in
g
: 

 Im
p
ro

v
e
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d

 
a
d
v
ic

e
 f

o
r 

s
e
rv

ic
e

 
u
s
e
rs

 a
n
d
 t

h
e

ir
 

c
a
re

rs
 

 

       N
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

c
a
re

rs
 

id
e

n
ti
fi
e

d
 a

n
d
 

re
fe

rr
e
d
 f

o
r 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
ts

 
 P

ro
p
o
rt

io
n
 o

f 
c
a
re

rs
 

re
c
e
iv

in
g
 a

 ‘
s
p
e
c
if
ic

 

       A
ll 

G
P

 p
ra

c
ti
c
e
s
 

re
c
o
rd

 c
a
re

r 
s
ta

tu
s
 i
n
 

p
a
ti
e
n
ts

 r
e
g

is
te

r 
b

y
 

A
p
ri

l 
2

0
0
8
 (

1
0
0
%

) 
 A

ll 
id

e
n
ti
fi
e
d

 c
a
re

rs
 

re
fe

rr
e
d
 f

o
r 

       S
o
c
ia

l 
a

n
d
 H

e
a

lt
h
 

C
a
re

 B
u
d
g

e
t 

O
C

C
 C

a
re

rs
 G

R
a
n
t 

       N
O

N
E

 

Page 75



O
u

tc
o

m
e
s
 

In
d

ic
a
to

rs
 

S
tr

e
tc

h
 T

a
rg

e
t 

F
u

n
d

in
g

 s
tr

e
a
m

s
 

c
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
n

g
 t

o
 

o
u

tc
o

m
e
s
 

V
a
le

 
C

o
m

m
it

m
e
n

t 

c
a
re

rs
’ 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
b

y
 A

p
ri

l 
2
0
0
8

 (
1
0
0
%

) 
 1
0
%

 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 t

h
e
 

p
ro

p
o
rt

io
n
 o

f 
c
a
re

rs
 

re
c
e
iv

in
g
 a

 ‘
s
p
e
c
if
ic

 
c
a
re

rs
’ 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 b

y
 

2
0
0
8
 

In
te

g
ra

te
d
 a

p
p
ro

a
c
h
 

to
 p

re
v
e
n

ti
v
e
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

n
d
 

in
te

rm
e
d

ia
te

 c
a
re

 
a
c
ro

s
s
 a

g
e
n
c
ie

s
: 

 E
s
ta

b
lis

h
in

g
 a

 
c
o
u
n
ty

w
id

e
 c

o
m

m
o
n
 

re
fe

rr
a
l 
a
n
d
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
p
ro

c
e
s
s
 

fo
r 

p
re

v
e
n
ta

ti
v
e

 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

      E
x
p
a
n
s
io

n
 o

f 
th

e
 

c
u
rr

e
n
t 
ra

n
g

e
 o

f 
re

fe
rr

a
l 
fo

r 
p
re

v
e
n

ti
o

n
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 

h
o
m

e
 s

a
fe

ty
 

e
q
u

ip
m

e
n
t,
 s

m
a
ll 

re
p
a
ir
, 
s
m

o
k
e
 a

la
rm

 
a
n
d
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 o

n
 

o
th

e
r 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

 N
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

re
fe

rr
a
l 

fr
o
m

 v
a
ri
o
u
s
 

a
g
e
n
c
ie

s
 

In
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 l
e
v
e
ls

 o
f 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 b

y
 v

a
ri

o
u
s
 

a
g
e
n
c
ie

s
 

      %
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 

n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

re
fe

rr
a
l 

fr
o
m

 v
a
ri
o
u
s
 

a
g
e
n
c
ie

s
 

 %
 I
n
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 a

c
ti
v
it
y
 

le
v
e
l 
o
f 

v
a
ri

o
u
s
 

a
g
e
n
c
ie

s
 

 
           N

O
N

E
 

  

Page 76



 3
2
. 

E
n
a

b
lin

g
 M

e
a
s
u
re

s
 a

re
 y

e
t 

to
 b

e
 f

in
a
lis

e
d
 f

o
r 

th
is

 b
lo

c
k
. 

    

Page 77



   

VALE OF WHITE HORSE DISTRICT COUNCIL  Report No. 61/06 
 Wards Affected – All 
  

REPORT OF THE STRATEGIC DIRECTOR 
TO THE EXECUTIVE 
1 SEPTEMBER 2006 

 
No time to Waste: - The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Strategy 

 
1.0 Introduction and Report Summary  
 
1.1 The strategy employed by the Council in respect of waste minimisation, recycling and 

composting and residual waste collection has been influenced by a wide range of 
considerations.  An extensive programme of joint working between the Oxfordshire Councils 
has led to a revised Oxfordshire Joint Household Waste Strategy.  As one of the partner 
councils the Vale is invited by the Oxfordshire Waste Partnership (OWP) to approve the new 
strategy. 

 
1.2 In order to assist Members in considering the strategy this report: summarises its scope and 

content; refers to the associated developments and Action Plans; outlines the main strategic 
considerations for the Vale’s own waste strategy; and identifies which of the waste collection 
options modelled by OWP should be developed further in Oxfordshire.  The contact officer for 
this report is David Stevens, Assistant Director (Environmental Health) telephone (01235 
540378).   

 
2.0 Recommendations 
  
 That Executive recommend to Council: 
 

(a) that Members confirm support for  “No time To Waste” – The Oxfordshire Joint 
Municipal Waste Strategy of August 2006 (The Strategy)and adopt its principles in 
the development of the Vale’s strategy for waste management; 

 
(b) that Members note the outcome of the modelling work set out in Appendix A; 

 

(c) that Members recommend to the Oxfordshire Waste Partnership (OWP) that on the 
basis of the results of the modelling work, the Strategy and the additional 
information presented in this report, Option I as detailed in the Appendix A is 
supported for further development in Oxfordshire; 

(d) that Members delegate to the Executive authority to agree the individual Action Plan 
for the Vale as required by The Strategy.  

 
3.0 Relationship with the Council’s Vision, Strategies and Policies 
 
 This report relates to the Council’s Vision Aims and Objectives..  It is particularly relevant to 

the corporate priority in respect of creating a Cleaner, Greener, Safer and Healthier 
Community and Environment  (CGSH).  It does not conflict with any Council Strategies but 
is related to published plans for Recycling. Furthermore, the report relates to existing 
policies on Waste Minimisation and Recycling.  
 

 
 
 

Agenda Item 13

Page 78



   

4.0 Background 
 
4.1 A wide range of financial, environmental and customer service considerations have influenced 

the strategy employed by the Council in respect of waste minimisation, recycling and 
composting and residual waste collection.  An extensive programme of joint working between 
the Oxfordshire Councils has led to a revised Oxfordshire joint household waste strategy.  As 
one of the partner councils the Vale is invited to approve the new strategy, endorsed by the 
Oxfordshire Waste Partnership (OWP). 

 
4.2 In Summer 2005 OWP revised the Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) of 2001 which 

had underpinned the original agreement to work in partnership and sign-up to a joint 
strategy.  At the same time a commitment to the shared use of specified funds for OWP 
related development projects was also agreed. 

 
4.3 Work to review the current joint strategy, which was originally published and signed up to in 

2002, commenced in earnest in Autumn 2005.  The joint consultancy of ERM and Enviros  
Ltd., were appointed by OWP with DEFRA funding, and Oxfordshire County Council, to assist 
in this task. The work has consisted of a number of elements including: a review of the 
Vision, Aims and Objectives of the original joint strategy; the creation of criteria for strategy 
development; a review of corporate governance and financial arrangements for the 
Partnership; and a review of possible waste minimisation, collection and disposal scenarios 
post 2010 

 
4.4 Also in Autumn 2005, the Audit Commission (AC) commenced an inspection of the 

Oxfordshire-wide waste partnership (i.e. not confined only to OWP).  The AC programme 
comprised challenge and support activities followed by a formal inspection during Spring 2006.  
The AC inspection looked not only at the performance and prospects for OWP but also the 
performance of each individual Council’s waste management services. 

 
4.5 During 2006 a series of related joint development activities have taken place.  These have 

involved officers and Members, OWP’s appointed consultants, public stakeholder groups and 
the AC. The activities include: the joint detailed modelling of possible future wastes 
management ; a strategic Environmental Appraisal (SEA); devising criteria for the assessment 
of modelled scenarios; and development of policies for the new joint strategy.  At the same 
time joint working has begun to address measures to take the strategy forward effectively.  
These include improved corporate governance, project management and revised joint financial 
arrangements for waste management. 

 
4.6 The net result of this joint working, challenge and inspection work is the final draft of No Time 

To Waste – the Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste strategy (The Strategy).  The draft was 
presented to OWP on 31st July and OWP resolved that the strategy be approved subject to 
minor amendments, and that the amended OWP strategy be presented to each of the partner 
councils during August/September for each authority to approve.  OWP also acknowledged 
that delivery is a key issue with regard to some elements of the strategy and recognised the 
importance of impending work by county Treasurers on financial considerations to assist its 
delivery  

 
4.7 The Strategy comprises a number of elements: the core strategy, which contains key 

objectives and policies; a county - wide Action Plan (Annex A to The Strategy), which. sets out 
the route map to meet the objectives in the short, medium and long term; and five further 
detailed Annexes which address Waste Reduction and Re-Use measures, options for 
Recycling and Composting collections, Treatment and Disposal options, Community 
Engagement and Involvement measures and the Strategic Environmental Assessment (SEA).  
At the time of writing this report the SEA had not been released to OWP. 

 

Page 79



   

4.8 Paper copies of The Strategy have been provided for the Executive and Chair of Scrutiny . 
One copy has been made available in the Members Lounge and an electronic version is 
viewable as part of the Reports Pack for this Executive meeting. However, by agreement with 
OWP partners the financial information contained within Annex C to the Strategy has not been 
made publicly available . 

 
 
5 Strategic Considerations for the Vale 
 
5.1 The Council’s OWP Member and officers have been engaged in and have influenced the 

development of The Strategy and supporting work.  It is therefore hoped that the final strategy 
would be such that the Council will be able to adopt it as its own.  However, in doing so 
inevitably there are a number of Vale-specific considerations that must be addressed. 

 
5.2 The Council’s Corporate Vision and Aims and its Corporate Priorities (including CGSH) are 

entirely supportive of the general principles within The Strategy.  Likewise, the Council’s 
Policy Framework gives prominence to Waste Minimisation whilst still committing to 
recycling targets.  It also supports partnership working, committing support to the two MOUs 
(2000 and 2005) and the original joint strategy of 2002 

 
5.3 The Council’s Medium Term Plan includes provision for continuation of current service 

commitments to 2010.  It does not however, provide for major changes to service delivery 
beyond this.   

 
5.4 Current Service Parameters provide for a weekly black sack kerbside collection for all 

households and a weekly green box kerbside collection for 99% of households.  The latter 
is fortified by weekly collection of recyclables from Mini Recycling Centres (MRCs) for 
households with communal waste storage facilities and Vale owned bring sites at locations 
across the Vale. A wide range of materials are collected in green boxes although these do 
not include plastics other than types 1 and 2 (bottles).  Brown wheelies for fortnightly 
garden waste and cardboard kerbside collection are now available on a subscription basis 
for 90% of Vale households.  Uptake is currently approx. 7800 and increasing. The only 
other green collection service is via prepaid sacks which are collected with the black sacks 
and are taken to landfill  

 
5.5 The current Best Value combined recycling target is 29%.  It is expected that this will be 

met in 2006/7 The Local Area Agreement (LAA) includes a non stretch target for recycling 
and composting County-wide to 38% by 2009 and a stretch target of 4,875 tonnes of non 
biodegradeable waste to be recycled County-wide by 2009 The Vale’s contribution has not 
yet been calculated but is expected to be achievable within existing service parameters 

 
5.6 The AC inspection of OWP 2006 included an assessment of individual Councils’ waste 

services.  The inspection overall was positive, finding that the Vale’s services overall had 
more strengths than weaknesses. Areas for improvement include faster progress on 
recycling and composting percentages, scope for further minimisation of waste and limited 
financial capacity to deliver significant improvement in waste collection.  

 
5.7 Public opinion has been tested in the past on specific waste service related matters.  In 

addition Vale residents took part in the County- wide public No Time To Waste public 
engagement exercise.  These have shown general support for waste minimisation 
measures and more recycling, especially doorstep collections,to include plastics. 

 
5.8 Vale household waste tonnages have increased at a lower rate than the rest of the UK for 

several years.  This is in part due to the Council’s waste policy and strategy.  Nevertheless, 
local population and household growth will continue as with much of South East England. 

Page 80



   

 
5.9 Thus, even with a sustainable policy base, the Vale’s waste strategy will need to address 

waste growth in the medium to long term and the required diversion of Biodegradeable 
waste away from Landfill. This will include waste collection and increased recycling & 
composting in the Vale.   Appendix A explains the detailed modelling exercise into future waste 
collection and treatment options, compares their benefits and disadvantages and concludes 
that option I should be supported for further development. 

 
 
5.10 Appendix B sets out the relative predicted costs for the Vale which are associated with the 

modelled options.  By agreement with OWP this Appendix has not been made publicly 
available and is not included with this report.   

 
 
       DAVID STEVENS 

ASSISTANT DIRECTOR (ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH) 
 

STEVE BISHOP 
STRATEGIC DIRECTOR 

 
Background Papers:  OWP Strategy 
 
 

Page 81



   

 
Appendix A 

 
Implications for Future Waste Collection and Treatment Services 

 
The evaluation of collection and disposal options has been carried out by ERM Ltd, and 

Enviros Consulting Ltd. The consultants have been working closely with OWP 
throughout the process and have had input from Officers, Members and a Community 
Panel that was established specifically to support the process. 

The review began by identifying the visions and aims for future service provision.  A series of 
strategic options to achieve these aims were then developed.  The process was taken 
through a series of stages, focusing first on the potential to reduce and reuse waste, 
then on options for recycling and composting and, finally, on recovery and disposal 
options for residual wastes.  The potential impact of each option was evaluated against 
a number of environmental, social and financial criteria to inform the Strategy’s direction 
and future planning and procurement decisions. 

The review has taken into consideration national and regional waste policy and has sought 
advice directly from Government on specific issues such as collection and treatment of 
organic waste. In doing so, the review has been enabled to incorporate recent changes 
to policy and has been advised that DEFRA encourages all waste partnerships to 
consider the waste hierarchy, and not opt for high recycling and composting over waste 
minimisation. The absence of green waste collections at the kerbside is seen as part of 
a waste minimisation strategy. 

The review process has acted as a tool which has enabled the comparison and evaluation of 
different collection options. However, it should be noted that the results of this modelling 
are based upon assumptions and the Council will not know the market costs of these 
options until tenders have been submitted.  

Exempt Appendix B shows the modelled options and cost implications of each of the above 
options compared with the current baseline budgets. The modelled costs have been 
verified by the Oxfordshire Treasurer’s Association for accuracy and robustness. 

Annex 1 to this Appendix highlights the drivers for change arising from the OWP strategy  that 
need to be considered when reviewing these collections. 

In total, 66 different options were modelled and evaluated with 9 being taken forward for 
further analysis. The table overleaf shows the different collection options and the 
associated benefits and disadvantages of each of them. For ease, similar options have 
been grouped together: 

 

Page 82



   

 

 

The evaluation of the collection options for the Vale shows that there are two favoured groups 
of options (B/E/G and H/I) that will achieve the diversion and recycling targets set out in 
the OWP strategy and fulfil the needs of residents in terms of maximising recycling and 

Option Recycling  

Rate 

Collection Regime Advantages Disadvantages 

A 32% -36% Fortnightly residual 

Fortnightly co-mingled 
recycling 

Encourages 
participation through 
restricted residual 
collections. 

This option would not meet statutory 
recycling targets or the Landfill 
Diversion targets. In addition, it does 
not fulfil the requirements of some 
residents to have an organic waste 
collection. 

B E G 
(C) 

45 -54% Fortnightly residual 

Fortnightly co-mingled 
recycling 

Fortnightly kerbside sort 
recycling (Option C only) 

Fortnightly organic 
collections. 

Achieves high levels 
of recycling and 
composting across 
the District.  

Encourages 
participation through 
restricted residual 
collections. 

Option C is not practical as it does 
not provide enough receptacle 
capacity for fortnightly recycling. 

Option B E G - whilst they achieve 
high levels of recycling they do not 
encourage waste minimisation, 
which is at the top of the waste 
hierarchy and Vale policy. In areas 
where this system is used there is a 
high level of waste collected per 
head 

F 50% -53% Weekly residual 

Fortnightly recycling 

Fortnightly organic 

Maintains weekly 
residual collection 

Would not achieve recycling and 
diversion targets without a costly 
treatment facility as the potential to 
put all waste in residual sacks 
remains. 

Maintaining weekly residual 
collection is extremely costly. 

D 52%- 55% Fortnightly residual 

Weekly co-mingled 
recycling 

Fortnightly organic 
collections 

 

Maintains weekly 
recycling collection 

Maintain weekly recycling collection 
in this manner is costly and has a 
high number of vehicle movements.   

 

H I  46% -51% Fortnightly residual 

Weekly co-mingled     
recycling 

Weekly food collection 

Chargeable green 
collection (8000 
households) 

Maintains weekly 
recycling collection 
and introduces 
weekly food 
collection for 
composting. 

Encourages waste 
minimisation by 
limiting overall bin 
capacity and by 
limiting green waste 
arisings. 

Kerbside green waste collections 
are chargeable and for 8000 
properties within this modelled 
option. However, any future contract 
would have a mechanism to expand 
this scheme further. 

Need to be supported by strong 
policies on the collection of green 
waste in residual bins to ensure that 
waste minimisation effects occur. 

Page 83



   

minimising the amount of waste sent to landfill. The next section of this report analyses 
and compares these two options in detail. 

In both of these options, residual waste is collected on a fortnightly basis. Maintaining a 
weekly collection would not only increase costs, but it would also allow recyclable waste 
to be sent to landfill. Fortnightly collections encourage residents to consider the waste 
they are generating and what can be recycled. Fortnightly collections of residual waste 
also help to minimise the amount of waste collected as the capacity to generate waste 
is limited. Residual waste would be placed in the existing wheelie bins. At the Leader’s 
meeting on the 7th April 2006, it was agreed that all councils in Oxfordshire were minded 
to move towards a fortnightly collection of residual waste, with a separate collection of 
dry recyclables and this has also been echoed in the OWP Strategy Action Plan which 
states that: 

“District Councils to have costed implementation programmes in place for introduction of 
fortnightly residual waste collections and District-specific dry recyclables/ garden/ 
kitchen waste collections that collectively deliver Policy 6 targets.” 

The frequency of recycling collections differs between the two options. Option B/E/G has a 
fortnightly collection of recycling that would have to be collected in a wheeled bin to 
enable residents to have enough capacity to store recycling for a two week period. 
Whilst this avoids some of the handling issues surrounding the recycling boxes, it 
causes issues of storage for some residents and also causes difficulties when collecting 
glass. To collect glass in a co-mingled collection, there would need to be a 
sophisticated materials recycling facility in the area. Option H/I maintains a weekly 
collection of recycling across the District. By adopting this approach the Council would 
be able to use existing receptacles for this collection service, and maintain the same 
level of service provision.. 

There are also differences in the way that organic waste would be collected in each of the 
options. In Option B/E/G, each household would receive a third wheelie bin for the 
fortnightly co-mingled collection of garden and food waste. The fortnightly collection of 
food waste tends to be an area of concern for residents, especially over the summer 
months. In practice, this type of collection system tends to capture only 50% of food 
waste as householders place their food waste in the organic bin one week, and the 
residual bin the next to avoid waste waiting two weeks for collection. In this option, 
garden waste is collected with the food waste from every household on a fortnightly 
basis. By offering a third bin, residents have increased capacity for their waste, and 
trends show this leads to increased waste arisings. 

Option H/I deals with food waste differently, and offers residents a weekly collection from the 
kerbside. This avoids the issues of biodegradable waste waiting two weeks for 
collection, and increases the capture rate of this material. Food waste is collected in a 
dedicated 25litre bin at the kerbside, and residents are provided with a kitchen caddy to 
collect the waste in the house. In this option, garden waste is collected on a chargeable 
basis from up to 8000 households. This approach supports the waste hierarchy and 
minimisation policies, to encourage householders to continue to compost their organic 
waste at home, and avoids the waste growth associated with the three bin system.  

Support for waste minimisation was echoed by the Leaders Group on 7th April 2006, where it 
was agreed to emphasise adherence to the waste hierarchy, with waste minimisation at 
the top of the list. 

In light of the relationship to the waste hierarchy, financial implications of the different 
collection options and the need to meet the diversion and recycling targets, Officers 
recommend that Option I to Members as it provides a solution to the Council that is cost 
effective, enables high levels of service provision and satisfies users needs. 

Page 84



   

Having received the results of the modelling exercise, the waste collection authorities in 
Oxfordshire have been asked to indicate to the County Council (the Waste Disposal 
Authority) by September 2006 which collection regime they prefer and the associated 
tonnages to enable the County Council to commence their procurement process for 
treatment and disposal facilities.  The County Council is remaining technology neutral 
throughout this process and will provide the market with tonnage information for them to 
design potential solutions for the residual waste streams. 

Once a collection option has been selected by the Vale confirmation of the likely tonnages will 
be sent to Oxfordshire County Council. In parallel, Officers will draft a performance 
specification for the new collection system and will commence a procurement 
programme for the introduction of the chosen service by 2010. A joint procurement 
study with West Oxfordshire and South Oxfordshire District Councils has been 
proposed to begin in 2006/07 for new contract renewal post 2010, with market testing to 
take place in 2008. 

Officers will also develop a detailed implementation plan for Members in Autumn 2006, 
detailing proposals for the introduction of the new collection scheme. However, it should 
be noted that the availability of a treatment facility for kitchen waste is critical to the 
introduction of any of the above schemes. Currently there is no such facility in the local 
area, but Officers will discuss potential options for an interim solution with the County 
Council. 

 

Financial Implications  

 
The cost implications of the modelled options for the Vale are contained in Exempt Appendix B. 

Page 85



   

Annex 1 
The key strategic drivers for the Council to consider in selecting a new collection 
service (from OWP Action Plan policies) 
 

Policy Details 

Working in partnership 

1 
Encourage the efficient use of resources, reduce resource consumption and take 
responsibility for the wastes they produce. 

2 
Lobby Government to focus on waste as an integral part of sustainable resource 
management. 

Waste prevention and reuse 

3 
Help householders and individuals to reduce and manage their wastes through the 
provision of advice and appropriate services. 

4 
Encourage the controlled reuse and reclamation of items through the provision of advice 
and appropriate services. 

5 
Seek to reduce the growth of municipal waste across the County to 0% per annum by 
2012, in accordance with regional policy 

Recycling and Composting 

6 

Provide an integrated system of collection and processing of household waste which will 
achieve, as a minimum, the Waste Strategy 2000 recycling and composting targets for 
household waste*: 
By 31st March 2010: recycle or compost at least 40% of household waste;  
By 31st March 2015: recycle or compost at least 45% of household waste;  
By 31st March 2020: recycle or compost at least 55% of household waste. 
 
(*This policy will be revised as appropriate with revisions to Waste Strategy 2000.) 

7 Ensure that recycling facilities are available to all residents. 

8 
Encourage householders and businesses to separate waste for recycling collections by 
providing targeted information and awareness-raising campaigns.  

13 Assist the development of local markets for recovered materials. 

Residual Waste and Sustainable Waste Management 

9  Provide a system for recovering value from residual wastes in order to meet LATS targets 

10 Ensure the availability of landfill sites for the disposal of residual waste, where necessary. 

11 
Seek to provide waste management services for specialized, potentially polluting material 
streams, such as hazardous waste and waste electrical and electronic equipment, which 
meet and exceed legislative requirements. 

12 

Ensure that waste facilities are suitably sized and distributed with the aim of minimising 
the transport of waste, working with the waste planning authority.  Facilities will be well 
related to areas of population, given the environmental and amenity constraints, and the 
availability of suitable sites.  

14 
Develop methods of working together to improve the level of service through effective and 
efficient use of resources within Oxfordshire. 

Targets 

EU 
Directive 

Maximum amount of biodegradable wastes to be landfilled in Oxfordshire:  
142,500 tonnes in 2005/06 
121,700 tonnes by 2009-10;  

81,000  tonnes by 2012-13;  
56,700  tonnes by 2019-20.  

LAA 

The 6 Oxfordshire authorities have jointly agreed to a target to: 

Reach a countywide 38% recycling or composting of household waste by 31st 

March 2009 

Page 86



   

LAA 
The 6 Oxfordshire authorities have also agreed to an LAA stretch target: 
Recycling an extra 4,875 tonnes of non-biodegradable waste between 2006/07 and 
2008/09 

OWP 
Action 
Plan 

OWP Action Plan Targets: 
2009 - Recycle or compost 38% of household waste  
2009/10 – Reduce biodegradable wastes to landfill to 121,700 tonnes 
2010 – Recycle or compost at least 40% of household waste 
2010 – Increase recycling and composting participation rates by 10% 
2010 – Achieve 100% coverage for recycling collections across the County. 

 
 
 

Page 87



    

Oxfordshire Waste PartnershipOxfordshire Waste PartnershipOxfordshire Waste PartnershipOxfordshire Waste Partnership    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

‘No Time to Waste’‘No Time to Waste’‘No Time to Waste’‘No Time to Waste’    

    

The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste 

StrategyStrategyStrategyStrategy        

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

C
o

re
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
C

o
re

 S
tr

a
te

g
y

C
o

re
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
C

o
re

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
    

Page 88



No Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management Strategy  

 

Oxfordshire Waste Partnership 1 August 2006    

    

LogosLogosLogosLogos

Page 89



No Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management Strategy  

 

Oxfordshire Waste Partnership 2 August 2006    

        

    

    

Contents pageContents pageContents pageContents page    

    

    

    

    

1.1.1.1.    Vision for the futureVision for the futureVision for the futureVision for the future ................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................ 5555    

IntroductionIntroductionIntroductionIntroduction ............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................ 5555    

ElementsElementsElementsElements of the Strategy of the Strategy of the Strategy of the Strategy .................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 6666    

2. 2. 2. 2. Setting the sceneSetting the sceneSetting the sceneSetting the scene.................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 7777    

Current waste in OxfordshireCurrent waste in OxfordshireCurrent waste in OxfordshireCurrent waste in Oxfordshire............................................................................................................................................................................................................................ 0000    

Waste reduction and reuseWaste reduction and reuseWaste reduction and reuseWaste reduction and reuse ........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................ 8888    

Current waste Current waste Current waste Current waste collection schemescollection schemescollection schemescollection schemes ................................................................................................................................................................................................ 9999    

Current waste disposal arrangementsCurrent waste disposal arrangementsCurrent waste disposal arrangementsCurrent waste disposal arrangements ................................................................................................................................................................ 12121212    

3.3.3.3.    Why we need to changeWhy we need to changeWhy we need to changeWhy we need to change .................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 13131313    

Restrictions on the use of landfillRestrictions on the use of landfillRestrictions on the use of landfillRestrictions on the use of landfill............................................................................................................................................................................................ 13131313    

Sustainable waste managementSustainable waste managementSustainable waste managementSustainable waste management .................................................................................................................................................................................................... 14141414    

4. 4. 4. 4. The Strategy development processThe Strategy development processThe Strategy development processThe Strategy development process .................................................................................................................................................................................... 15151515    

Supporting documentsSupporting documentsSupporting documentsSupporting documents........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................ 18181818    

    Vision and core objectivesVision and core objectivesVision and core objectivesVision and core objectives.................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 18181818    

StrateStrateStrateStrategic policiesgic policiesgic policiesgic policies ........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................ 21212121    

5. Strategy implementation and monitoring5. Strategy implementation and monitoring5. Strategy implementation and monitoring5. Strategy implementation and monitoring ................................................................................................................................................ 28282828    

Route map to achieving our aimsRoute map to achieving our aimsRoute map to achieving our aimsRoute map to achieving our aims............................................................................................................................................................................................ 28282828    

CoCoCoCo----ordination with the Minerals and Waste Development ordination with the Minerals and Waste Development ordination with the Minerals and Waste Development ordination with the Minerals and Waste Development 

FrameworkFrameworkFrameworkFramework.................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 32323232    

Monitoring progress and review of plansMonitoring progress and review of plansMonitoring progress and review of plansMonitoring progress and review of plans................................................................................................................................................ 32323232 

    
 

    

    

    

List of figurList of figurList of figurList of figures and tableses and tableses and tableses and tables    
 
 
 

FiguresFiguresFiguresFigures        

C
o

re
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
C

o
re

 S
tr

a
te

g
y

C
o

re
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
C

o
re

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
    

Page 90



No Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management Strategy  

 

Oxfordshire Waste Partnership 3 August 2006    

 

Figure 1 Figure 1 Figure 1 Figure 1 ––––    ElementElementElementElement of  of  of  of the the the the StrategyStrategyStrategyStrategy……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………    

Figure 2 Figure 2 Figure 2 Figure 2 ----    Composition of Municipal Waste in Oxfordshire Composition of Municipal Waste in Oxfordshire Composition of Municipal Waste in Oxfordshire Composition of Municipal Waste in Oxfordshire 

2005/062005/062005/062005/06................    

Figure 3 Figure 3 Figure 3 Figure 3 ----    BVPI Performance in2004/05 BVPI Performance in2004/05 BVPI Performance in2004/05 BVPI Performance in2004/05 ----    

2005/062005/062005/062005/06………………………………………………………………………………………………    

Figure 4 Figure 4 Figure 4 Figure 4 ----    Location of WasLocation of WasLocation of WasLocation of Waste Recycling Centres and landfill te Recycling Centres and landfill te Recycling Centres and landfill te Recycling Centres and landfill 

sitessitessitessites……..……..……..……..    

Figure 5 Figure 5 Figure 5 Figure 5 ----    Waste Waste Waste Waste 

HierarchyHierarchyHierarchyHierarchy………………………………………………..………………………………………………..………………………………………………..………………………………………………..    

Figure 6 Figure 6 Figure 6 Figure 6 ----    Strategy development Strategy development Strategy development Strategy development 

processprocessprocessprocess………………………………...………………………………...………………………………...………………………………...    

Figure 7 Figure 7 Figure 7 Figure 7 ----    Translating the vision into Translating the vision into Translating the vision into Translating the vision into 

actionactionactionaction……………………………..……………………………..……………………………..……………………………..    

Figure 8 Figure 8 Figure 8 Figure 8 ----    Summary of future Summary of future Summary of future Summary of future 

actionsactionsactionsactions…………………………………….…………………………………….…………………………………….…………………………………….    

 

 

TablesTablesTablesTables    
 

Table 1 Table 1 Table 1 Table 1 ----    District Council collection systems operated in District Council collection systems operated in District Council collection systems operated in District Council collection systems operated in 

2006/072006/072006/072006/07…….…….…….…….    

Table 2 Table 2 Table 2 Table 2 ----    Recycling performance in Recycling performance in Recycling performance in Recycling performance in 

2005/062005/062005/062005/06…………………………….…………………………….…………………………….…………………………….    

Table 3 Table 3 Table 3 Table 3 ----    Location of current landfill Location of current landfill Location of current landfill Location of current landfill 

sitessitessitessites……………………………….……………………………….……………………………….……………………………….    

Table 4 Table 4 Table 4 Table 4 ----    Contents of supportingContents of supportingContents of supportingContents of supporting    

documentsdocumentsdocumentsdocuments……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………    

Table 5 Table 5 Table 5 Table 5 ----    Timescales for monitoring and evaluation of the Timescales for monitoring and evaluation of the Timescales for monitoring and evaluation of the Timescales for monitoring and evaluation of the 

Core Strategy and Action PlansCore Strategy and Action PlansCore Strategy and Action PlansCore Strategy and Action Plans 

……………………………………..……………………………………..……………………………………..…………………………………….. 

    

    
 
 
 
 

List of annexesList of annexesList of annexesList of annexes 
 
 

AnnexesAnnexesAnnexesAnnexes    

 

    4444    

    5555    

    7777    

    8888    

1111

0000    

1111

1111 

1111

3333    

2222

1111 

 
 

 

    

6666    

7777    

9999    

1111

2222    

    

2222

2222 
 
 

C
o

re
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
C

o
re

 S
tr

a
te

g
y

C
o

re
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
C

o
re

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
    

Page 91



No Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management Strategy  

 

Oxfordshire Waste Partnership 4 August 2006    

 

Annex A Annex A Annex A Annex A     Oxfordshire Waste Partnership and Partner action plansOxfordshire Waste Partnership and Partner action plansOxfordshire Waste Partnership and Partner action plansOxfordshire Waste Partnership and Partner action plans    

Annex B Annex B Annex B Annex B     Waste reduction and reuse planWaste reduction and reuse planWaste reduction and reuse planWaste reduction and reuse plan    

AnnAnnAnnAnnex Cex Cex Cex C    Options for recycling and composting collectionsOptions for recycling and composting collectionsOptions for recycling and composting collectionsOptions for recycling and composting collections    

Annex D Annex D Annex D Annex D     Options for residual wasteOptions for residual wasteOptions for residual wasteOptions for residual waste    

Annex E Annex E Annex E Annex E     Community engagement and involvementCommunity engagement and involvementCommunity engagement and involvementCommunity engagement and involvement    

Annex F Annex F Annex F Annex F     Environmental report including Strategic Environmental Environmental report including Strategic Environmental Environmental report including Strategic Environmental Environmental report including Strategic Environmental 

AssessmentAssessmentAssessmentAssessment    

Annex GAnnex GAnnex GAnnex G    Glossary and abbreviationsGlossary and abbreviationsGlossary and abbreviationsGlossary and abbreviations

Page 92



No Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management Strategy  

 

Oxfordshire Waste Partnership 5 August 2006    

1. Vision 1. Vision 1. Vision 1. Vision for the futurefor the futurefor the futurefor the future    
 

Oxfordshire is pursuing a clear vision for sustainable waste 

management and resource efficiency.  

 

““““We will work in partnership to reduce waste and to We will work in partnership to reduce waste and to We will work in partnership to reduce waste and to We will work in partnership to reduce waste and to 

maximise reuse, recycling and composting.  We will treat maximise reuse, recycling and composting.  We will treat maximise reuse, recycling and composting.  We will treat maximise reuse, recycling and composting.  We will treat 

residual waste before disposal residual waste before disposal residual waste before disposal residual waste before disposal to recover further value and to to recover further value and to to recover further value and to to recover further value and to 

minimise the environmental impact of disposalminimise the environmental impact of disposalminimise the environmental impact of disposalminimise the environmental impact of disposal....””””    

 

 

IntroductionIntroductionIntroductionIntroduction    

 

In 2005-06, Oxfordshire’s households produced approximately 

300,000 tonnes of waste which equates to half a tonne for every 

person. Of this waste, 33% was recycled or composted, and 67% was 

sent directly to landfill. Over 60% of the total waste generated could 

have been reduced, reused or recycled. Some of the waste which was 

sent to landfill contained materials such as plastic, paper and glass, 

valuable resources that can be reused or recycled. 

 

This strategy sets out how we, in Oxfordshire, are going to work in 

partnership to improve the way in which we manage our waste over 

the next 25 years. It will provide all stakeholders with an overview of 

the way we currently manage waste, identify the future challenges and 

need for change, and set out our shared vision for the future. 

 

This strategy has been developed by the Oxfordshire Waste 

Partnership (OWP) following an extensive strategic review of waste 

management in Oxfordshire. This review has evaluated the options 

available to the County as a whole for the collection and 

disposal/treatment of waste to ensure that the most appropriate 

solution is adopted.   

 

The OWP was established in 2003, and recently renewed its 

commitment to joint working through the signing of a Memorandum 

of Understanding (MoU) in August 2005.  The Partnership comprises:  

 

C
o

re
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
C

o
re

 S
tr

a
te

g
y

C
o

re
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
C

o
re

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
    

Page 93



No Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management Strategy  

 

Oxfordshire Waste Partnership 6 August 2006    

• Cherwell District Council; 

• Oxford City Council; 

• Oxfordshire County Council; 

• South Oxfordshire District Council; 

• Vale of White Horse District Council;  

• West Oxfordshire District Council. 

 

 

Through this strategy, the OWP is addressing all wastes produced 

within Oxfordshire that come under the heading of ‘municipal solid 

waste’ (MSW).  This includes all wastes produced by households, trade 

wastes collected from small businesses, waste material deposited at 

Waste Recycling Centres (WRCs), fly-tipped materials and abandoned 

vehicles.   

 

The management of municipal wastes over the period 2005 – 2030, 

has been considered, to ensure the Strategy meets the key 

requirements of the Landfill Directive and the Landfill Allowance 

Trading Scheme (LATS), in the long-term. . 

 

 

ElementsElementsElementsElements of the Strategy of the Strategy of the Strategy of the Strategy    

    

The diagram below shows how the core strategy and the associated 

Annexes link together. 

    

    

Action plansAction plansAction plansAction plans    

Annex AAnnex AAnnex AAnnex A 

Detailed route Detailed route Detailed route Detailed route 

map to map to map to map to 

Waste Waste Waste Waste 

reduction and reduction and reduction and reduction and 

reuse plan reuse plan reuse plan reuse plan     

Treatment Treatment Treatment Treatment 

and and and and 

disposal disposal disposal disposal 

options options options options 

C
o

re
 S

t
C

o
re

 S
t

C
o

re
 S

t
C

o
re

 S
t r

a
te

g
y

r
a

te
g

y
r
a

te
g

y
r
a

te
g

y
    

Page 94



No Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management Strategy  

 

Oxfordshire Waste Partnership 7 August 2006    

 

    

Figure 1 Figure 1 Figure 1 Figure 1 ––––    ElementsElementsElementsElements of of of of the the the the Strategy Strategy Strategy Strategy        

    

    

    

2. Setting the Scene2. Setting the Scene2. Setting the Scene2. Setting the Scene    
    

It is essential that we take into account what currently happens to our 

waste when devising our strategy for the future.   

    

    

    

    

    

Current waste in OxfordshireCurrent waste in OxfordshireCurrent waste in OxfordshireCurrent waste in Oxfordshire    

 

In 2005/06, Oxfordshire generated approximately 311,000 tonnes of 

municipal waste.  Around 96% of this waste was from households with 

Core Core Core Core 

strategystrategystrategystrategy –  

Key objectives Key objectives Key objectives Key objectives 

and policiesand policiesand policiesand policies 

Environmental Environmental Environmental Environmental 

report includingreport includingreport includingreport including    

SEASEASEASEA    

Options for recycling Options for recycling Options for recycling Options for recycling 

and composting and composting and composting and composting 

collections collections collections collections     

Annex CAnnex CAnnex CAnnex C    

Community Community Community Community 

engagement engagement engagement engagement 

and and and and 

Page 95



No Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management Strategy  

 

Oxfordshire Waste Partnership 8 August 2006    

the rest arising from other activities such as street sweepings and litter 

collections and any trade waste that the Waste Collection Authorities 

(WCAs) collect (as set out in Figure 2).   

 

    

Figure 2 Figure 2 Figure 2 Figure 2 ---- Composition of Municipal Waste in Oxfordshire 2005/06 Composition of Municipal Waste in Oxfordshire 2005/06 Composition of Municipal Waste in Oxfordshire 2005/06 Composition of Municipal Waste in Oxfordshire 2005/06    

 

Compared with other counties in England, Oxfordshire performs well. 

We produce less waste per person than any other county and achieved 

a 1.8% reduction in waste per person in 2005-06. We are in the top 

quarter of all English counties for recycling. In 2005/06, collectively 

we achieved a recycling rate of 33%. This was 3% ahead of the 

statutory target Central Government set for us. As little as three years 

ago we recycled only 20%.  

 

 

Waste reduction and reuseWaste reduction and reuseWaste reduction and reuseWaste reduction and reuse    

 

In addition to our roles as Waste Collection and Waste Disposal 

Authorities (WDAs), we actively promote waste reduction and reuse to 

residents of Oxfordshire in a number of ways.   

 

Other Non-

household Waste

3%

Trade waste collected

1%

Household collected

74%

Household Waste 

Recycling Centres

22%

 

Page 96



No Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management Strategy  

 

Oxfordshire Waste Partnership 9 August 2006    

Some current waste reduction and reuse activities across the County 

include: 

 

• Waste reduction packWaste reduction packWaste reduction packWaste reduction pack – information and leaflets on a range of waste 

reduction topics including preventing junk mail, savvy shopping 

and home composting; 

• Home compostingHome compostingHome compostingHome composting - home composting bins have been available 

since 2000. In April 2006 a new scheme came into effect, allowing 

residents to purchase bins at reduced rates; 

• Furniture and goods reuseFurniture and goods reuseFurniture and goods reuseFurniture and goods reuse – support is given to charities and 

community groups to encourage the reuse of furniture, bikes, 

computers and paints;   

• Reusable nappiesReusable nappiesReusable nappiesReusable nappies - a number of nappy promotions are running 

throughout Oxfordshire, including free trials of reusable nappies;   

• Savvy shoppingSavvy shoppingSavvy shoppingSavvy shopping – promoted through the Waste Reduction Pack, 

Nada magazine, Community Action Groups (CAGs) and District 

Council promotions;  

• Community reuseCommunity reuseCommunity reuseCommunity reuse – tool, paint and mobile collection points are 

housed at a number of waste recycling centres (WRCs) and several 

CAGs operate community SwapShops;  

• Wild Waste Show (WWWild Waste Show (WWWild Waste Show (WWWild Waste Show (WWS) S) S) S) – WWS delivers waste reduction, reuse and 

recycling educational programmes to over 10,000 school children a 

year. 

 

Further information about waste reduction and re-use plans are in 

Annex BAnnex BAnnex BAnnex B (Waste reduction and reuse plan)(Waste reduction and reuse plan)(Waste reduction and reuse plan)(Waste reduction and reuse plan) of this strategy. 

 

 

Current wasCurrent wasCurrent wasCurrent waste collection schemeste collection schemeste collection schemeste collection schemes    

 

All District Councils collect general rubbish, which is currently sent to 

landfill. All have separate collections for recycling paper and cans, 

whilst some also recycle plastics, glass and cardboard.  Some key 

points to note are:  

 

C
o

re
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
C

o
re

 S
tr

a
te

g
y

C
o

re
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
C

o
re

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
    

Page 97



No Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management Strategy  

 

Oxfordshire Waste Partnership 10 August 2006    

• General rubbish ('residual waste') is collected weekly in most 

districts, but fortnightly in Cherwell, and soon to be fortnightly in 

Oxford City. 

• Some Authorities sort the recyclable materials at the kerbside into 

separate parts of the lorry ('kerbside sort'), while others collect 

mixed recyclables (commingled) and send them to a Materials 

Recycling Facility;  

• Cherwell have a separate collection for green waste for composting 

as well as for 'dry' recyclables, while others collect green waste only 

on a limited basis. Oxford City will also have a city wide green 

waste scheme from the Autumn 2006. 

    

DistrictDistrictDistrictDistrict    Dry recyclablesDry recyclablesDry recyclablesDry recyclables    Green wasteGreen wasteGreen wasteGreen waste    Residual wasteResidual wasteResidual wasteResidual waste    

Cherwell Blue box/ bin 

fortnightly and 

weekly 

Wheeled bin 

fortnightly 

Wheeled bin 

fortnightly 

Oxford City  Green box 

weekly 

Garden collection 

in sacks from trial 

area 

Sack 

currently weekly 

South Oxfordshire Green box 

weekly 

Chargeable 

fortnightly garden 

collection 

Sack 

weekly 

Vale of White 

Horse 

Green box 

weekly 

Chargeable 

fortnightly garden 

collection 

Sack 

weekly 

West Oxfordshire Black box (two) 

weekly 

Chargeable 

fortnightly garden 

collection 

Wheeled bin 

weekly 

    

Table 1 Table 1 Table 1 Table 1 ---- District Council collection systems operated in 2006/07 District Council collection systems operated in 2006/07 District Council collection systems operated in 2006/07 District Council collection systems operated in 2006/07    
 

District councils also have some Bring Site arrangements where 

householders take glass, paper and other materials to containers in 

well-publicised locations, such as public car parks. The materials 

collected are sent for reuse or recycling and equate to 10,000 tonnes 

per annum. The District Councils also offer residents bulky household 

collection services. 

 

The County Council provides eight large Waste Recycling Centres 

(WRCs), where householders bring waste for reuse or recycling. These 

account for 60,000 tonnes of recycling and composting a year.  

Page 98



No Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management Strategy  

 

Oxfordshire Waste Partnership 11 August 2006    

 

These different arrangements impact on the amount recycled. Table 2 

below shows the recycling levels achieved in 2005/06 for each district 

and for the county recycling centres:  

 

 Total Total Total Total 

household household household household 

(tonnes)(tonnes)(tonnes)(tonnes)    

RecyclingRecyclingRecyclingRecycling    

(tonnes)(tonnes)(tonnes)(tonnes)    

CompostingCompostingCompostingComposting    

(tonnes)(tonnes)(tonnes)(tonnes)    

Recycled or Recycled or Recycled or Recycled or 

compostedcompostedcompostedcomposted    

Cherwell  58,500 13,000 12,500 44% 

Oxford City 46,500 7,200 1,500 19% 

Oxfordshire County  

Recycling Centres 
59,500 13,000 18,500 53% 

South Oxfordshire 51,000 13,000 1,500 29% 

Vale of White Horse 41,000 9,000 700 24% 

West Oxfordshire 43,500 9,600 600 23% 

TotalTotalTotalTotal    300,000300,000300,000300,000    64,80064,80064,80064,800    35,35,35,35,300300300300    33.36%33.36%33.36%33.36%    

    

Table 2 Table 2 Table 2 Table 2 ---- Recycling performance in 2005/06 Recycling performance in 2005/06 Recycling performance in 2005/06 Recycling performance in 2005/06    

 

The levels of recycling achieved in 2005/06 have built upon the success of 

previous years. Past performance against Best Value Performance Indicators 

(BVPI) 82 A and B for recycling and composting are shown in figure 3 below. 

 

0.0

10.0

20.0

30.0

40.0

50.0

60.0

2003/04 2004/05 2005/06

B
V

P
I 

8
2
 a

 &
 b

 (
%

)

Cherwell

Oxford City

Oxfordshire County Council

South Oxfordshire

Vale of White Horse

West Oxfordshire

Oxfordshire County  

        

    

Figure 3 BVPI Performance in 2004/05 Figure 3 BVPI Performance in 2004/05 Figure 3 BVPI Performance in 2004/05 Figure 3 BVPI Performance in 2004/05 ---- 2005/06 2005/06 2005/06 2005/06 

 

Page 99



No Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management Strategy  

 

Oxfordshire Waste Partnership 12 August 2006    

Further information about the collection schemes and the proposals to 

develop these for the future can be found in Annex C (Options for Annex C (Options for Annex C (Options for Annex C (Options for 

recycling arecycling arecycling arecycling and composting collections)nd composting collections)nd composting collections)nd composting collections). 

 

 

Current waste disposal arrangementsCurrent waste disposal arrangementsCurrent waste disposal arrangementsCurrent waste disposal arrangements    

 

Waste, which is not reused or recycled, is sent to landfill sites for 

disposal: Dix Pit in the West, Sutton Courtenay in the South, and 

Alkerton and Ardley Fields in the North. These sites are all regulated 

by the Environment Agency. Waste is not sent out of county for 

landfilling, but may be recycled at facilities outside the county.  The 

map (Figure 4) and table below (Table 3) show the locations of the 

landfill sites and the Waste Recycling Centres. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

    

 

C
o

re
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
C

o
re

 S
tr

a
te

g
y

C
o

re
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
C

o
re

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
    

Page 100



No Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management Strategy  

 

Oxfordshire Waste Partnership 13 August 2006    

    

Figure 4 Figure 4 Figure 4 Figure 4 ---- Location of Waste Recycling Centres and landfill sites Location of Waste Recycling Centres and landfill sites Location of Waste Recycling Centres and landfill sites Location of Waste Recycling Centres and landfill sites    

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

SiteSiteSiteSite    District District District District 

LocationLocationLocationLocation    

Contract DetailsContract DetailsContract DetailsContract Details    

Alkerton   Cherwell Disposal site contracted to Sita until 09/2009 

Ardley Fields Cherwell 
Operated by Viridor contract ended in 2005, 

extension under discussion 

Banbury Cherwell 
Some waste disposed of at Grundon’s waste transfer 

station 

Sutton 

Courtenay 

Vale of White 

Horse 

Disposal site operated by WRG and contracts 

terminate in 09/2009 

Dix Pit 
West 

Oxfordshire 

Disposal site operated by WRG, disposal element of 

contract is for the life of the landfill site 

    

Table 3 Table 3 Table 3 Table 3 ---- Location of current landfill sites Location of current landfill sites Location of current landfill sites Location of current landfill sites    

 

Further information about the current disposal arrangements and the 

proposals for future treatment and disposal of residual waste can be 

found in Annex D (Options for residual waste)Annex D (Options for residual waste)Annex D (Options for residual waste)Annex D (Options for residual waste). 

 

 

3. Why we need to change3. Why we need to change3. Why we need to change3. Why we need to change    
 

Restrictions on the use of landfillRestrictions on the use of landfillRestrictions on the use of landfillRestrictions on the use of landfill    

 

Although disposal of waste through landfill is well regulated and 

causes less pollution than in the past it is not a sustainable solution. 

The process of organic materials rotting down (biodegrading) gives off 

methane, which is a greenhouse gas 21 times more powerful than 

carbon dioxide.  This has a direct impact on climate change.  

 

The European Union has agreed a directive requiring all Waste Disposal 

Authorities to achieve reductions in the amount of biodegradable 

C
o

re
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
C

o
re

 S
tr

a
te

g
y

C
o

re
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
C

o
re

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
    

Page 101



No Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management Strategy  

 

Oxfordshire Waste Partnership 14 August 2006    

wastes sent to landfill.  In Oxfordshire, we sent 142,500 tonnes of 

biodegradable waste to landfill, in 2005/6.  Oxfordshire must reduce 

the amount of biodegradable wastes landfilled to:  

 

• 121,700  tonnes by 2009-10;  

• 81,000  tonnes by 2012-13;  

• 56,700  tonnes by 2019-20.  
 

    

Failure to meet these targets will result in a fine of at least £150 per 

tonne of landfilled biodegradable waste. The only way to avoid these 

fines is to buy allowances from other Local Authorities. We expect the 

price of this to be close to the £150 per tonne fine we would have to 

pay.  

 

If we take the 142,500 tonne figure above, we would miss our landfill 

target by around 20,000 tonnes, and would incur a fine of £3 million, 

equating to £13 a year on the council tax of a band D house. To do 

nothing would result in even higher fines as, nationally the amount of 

waste generated increases every year. Our present level of 

performance would lead to: 

 

• a fine of £3.1 million in 2009-10; 

• £9.2 million by 2012-13;  

• £12.8 million by 2019-20.  

 

Even if we maximise the amount of rubbish we are able to reduce, 

reuse and recycle, it will not be enough. The remaining residual waste 

will leave the county short of our landfill targets. There will be a need 

for some form of ‘treatment’ to remove the biodegradable element 

from the residual waste. 

        

    

Sustainable waste managementSustainable waste managementSustainable waste managementSustainable waste management    

 

We need to base our waste management practices on the 

internationally recognised waste hierarchy. This is not simply a matter 

of reducing waste sent to landfill. 

 

Page 102



No Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management Strategy  

 

Oxfordshire Waste Partnership 15 August 2006    

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

    

Figure 5 Figure 5 Figure 5 Figure 5 ---- Waste Hierarchy Waste Hierarchy Waste Hierarchy Waste Hierarchy    

 

The hierarchy, in Figure 5 above, represents a sliding scale of 

sustainable waste management methods starting with reduction of 

waste, re-use, recycling and composting, recovery and disposal. Where 

waste is produced it should be managed as a resource to be put to 

good use; disposal should be the last option. 

 

All strategic waste management decisions in Oxfordshire will follow 

this structure. However, within the hierarchy we need to work out 

solutions which are practical, affordable and do not have perverse 

unintended impacts on the economy, environment or natural 

resources. 

 

 

 

4. The 4. The 4. The 4. The SSSStrategy development processtrategy development processtrategy development processtrategy development process    
 

The following diagram sets out the stages of the process we followed 

to develop the Strategy.  The process began by identifying our visions 

and aims for the future development of services.  A series of options 

Page 103



No Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management Strategy  

 

Oxfordshire Waste Partnership 16 August 2006    

to help us achieve our aims were developed through an extensive 

strategic review.  This was a staged process, focusing on our potential 

to reduce and reuse waste first, then options for recycling and 

composting and, finally, on recovery and disposal options for residual 

wastes as per the waste hierarchy.  The potential impact of each option 

was evaluated against environmental, social and financial criteria to 

inform the Strategy’s direction, and future planning and procurement 

decisions. 

 

The environmental implications of the Strategy have further been 

examined through an independent overarching Strategic 

Environmental Assessment (SEA). The results of which, have been used 

to identify options with the least potential harm to the environment.  

This is explained in Annex FAnnex FAnnex FAnnex F    (Environmental report including SEA)(Environmental report including SEA)(Environmental report including SEA)(Environmental report including SEA). 

 

In addition to the main strategy development process (shown in Figure 

6), a community panel was formed of householders from each of the 

Oxfordshire districts who met at important stages in the Strategy’s 

development.  A further public engagement exercise was carried out in 

July 2006 to inform Oxfordshire residents of the waste management 

issues facing the County and to promote sustainable waste behaviour.  

Further information about community engagement and involvement 

can be found in Annex E (Community engagement and involvAnnex E (Community engagement and involvAnnex E (Community engagement and involvAnnex E (Community engagement and involvement)ement)ement)ement). 

 

    

C
o

re
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
C

o
re

 S
tr

a
te

g
y

C
o

re
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
C

o
re

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
    

Page 104



No Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management Strategy  

 

Oxfordshire Waste Partnership 17 August 2006    

Figure 6 Figure 6 Figure 6 Figure 6 ---- Strategy development process Strategy development process Strategy development process Strategy development process    

     

The Options Evaluation included a technical, environmental and cost 

analysis of the collection and treatment options (and their 

combinations). The Options Evaluation has enabled the Partnership to 

assess the collection and treatment options according to the weighted 

criteria agreed at the beginning of the review process.  

 

The following factors have been adapted and developed so that the 

OWP strategy is specific to Oxfordshire and informed by: 

 

• changes in waste policy; 

• the local environment; 

• the results of the technical assessment. 

 

Strategy vision, core objectives 

and guiding principles 

Develop options 

(using extensive 

strategic review) 

Develop criteria 

(for options 

evaluation) 

Agree options and criteria 

Evaluate options 

including community engagement 

and involvement 

Develop action 

plans 

Procure treatment 

facility(s) 

Approval of strategy 

Page 105



No Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management Strategy  

 

Oxfordshire Waste Partnership 18 August 2006    

Throughout the review process and the development of this strategy a 

clear commitment has been made to undertake a rolling programme of 

public and stakeholder engagement and involvement. 

 

 

Supporting documents Supporting documents Supporting documents Supporting documents     

 

This strategy outlines the policies we will adopt for managing waste 

resources in the future. It is supported by a series of Annexes that 

provide further detail on how the strategy has been developed, and 

how it will be implemented to ensure that we succeed in reaching our 

aims, objectives and targets. 

 

AnnexAnnexAnnexAnnex    ContentContentContentContent    

Annex AAnnex AAnnex AAnnex A    Provides an overarching OWP action plan for how the strategy will be 

implemented and individual action plans for the partner authorities    

Annex BAnnex BAnnex BAnnex B    Presents a plan for waste reduction and reuse    

Annex CAnnex CAnnex CAnnex C    Presents an appraisal of options for recycling and composting    

Annex DAnnex DAnnex DAnnex D    Presents an appraisal of options for residual waste    

Annex EAnnex EAnnex EAnnex E    Provides further detail on community engagement and involvement    

AnnAnnAnnAnnex Fex Fex Fex F    Presents the Environmental Report incorporating the Strategic 

Environmental Assessment – produced by external consultants    

Annex GAnnex GAnnex GAnnex G    Provides a summary of the glossary of terms and abbreviations 

    

Table 4 Table 4 Table 4 Table 4 –––– Contents of supporting documents Contents of supporting documents Contents of supporting documents Contents of supporting documents    

  
 

Vision andVision andVision andVision and core objectives core objectives core objectives core objectives    

 

The Strategy vision, core objectives and guiding principles (developed 

at the beginning of the strategy development process) are 

implemented through a vision, core objectives, policies and action 

plans. Each stage of the process feeds into the next so that the 

Partnership’s vision flows through the whole Strategy. In the same 

way, the core objectives channel down into the policies and the 

policies translate into the action plans. 

 

 

 

 

Page 106



No Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management Strategy  

 

Oxfordshire Waste Partnership 19 August 2006    

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

    

    

Figure 7 Figure 7 Figure 7 Figure 7 ---- Translating the Translating the Translating the Translating the Vision into action Vision into action Vision into action Vision into action    

 

The overall vision for the OWP is:  

 

““““We will work in partnership to reduce waste and to We will work in partnership to reduce waste and to We will work in partnership to reduce waste and to We will work in partnership to reduce waste and to 

maximise reuse, recycling and composting.  We will treat maximise reuse, recycling and composting.  We will treat maximise reuse, recycling and composting.  We will treat maximise reuse, recycling and composting.  We will treat 

residual waste before disposal to recover further value and to residual waste before disposal to recover further value and to residual waste before disposal to recover further value and to residual waste before disposal to recover further value and to 

minimise the environmentalminimise the environmentalminimise the environmentalminimise the environmental impact of disposal impact of disposal impact of disposal impact of disposal.”.”.”.”    

 

To achieve this vision the Partnership has set the following core 

objectives: 

 

1. Manage waste in accordance with the waste hierarchy: reduce 

waste first, then reuse, recycle and compost resources, recover 

value and, as a last resort, dispose of waste; 

 

 

 

 

StrategyStrategyStrategyStrategy    
 

 

      

VisionVisionVisionVision    

Core Core Core Core 

objectivesobjectivesobjectivesobjectives    

PoliciesPoliciesPoliciesPolicies    

ActionActionActionAction    

plansplansplansplans    

C
o

re
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
C

o
re

 S
tr

a
te

g
y

C
o

re
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
C

o
re

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
    

Page 107



No Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management Strategy  

 

Oxfordshire Waste Partnership 20 August 2006    

2. Promote waste reduction, reuse and recycling initiatives to 

Oxfordshire communities to help everyone manage their own 

wastes; 

 

3. Manage wastes through seeking the most appropriate and 

sustainable solution that protects the environment, including 

minimising the transport of waste; 

 

4. Meet or exceed performance required by statutory and locally 

agreed targets; 

 

5. Work together through the provision of co-ordinated services 

and infrastructure for waste collection, treatment, transfer and 

disposal to maximise the efficient use of resources within 

Oxfordshire;  

 

6. Ensure that waste facilities are suitably sized and distributed and 

that site identification is informed in accordance with the 

Minerals and Waste Development Framework and the Regional 

Spatial Strategy; 

 

7. Assist the development of markets, especially those that are 

local, for recovered materials; 

 

8. Enable customer satisfaction through delivery of effective and 

efficient services to Oxfordshire residents that minimise the 

overall tax burden at the best possible value; 

 

9. Develop flexible and comprehensive waste management services 

that are robust and deliverable throughout Oxfordshire now and 

in the long term; 

 

10. Lobby Central Government and work with local business to 

improve the efficient use of resources, reduce the impact of 

activities on resource consumption, which results in the 

C
o

re
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
C

o
re

 S
tr

a
te

g
y

C
o

re
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
C

o
re

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
    

Page 108



No Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management Strategy  

 

Oxfordshire Waste Partnership 21 August 2006    

Policy 2:  The Oxfordshire Waste Partnership will lobby Central Policy 2:  The Oxfordshire Waste Partnership will lobby Central Policy 2:  The Oxfordshire Waste Partnership will lobby Central Policy 2:  The Oxfordshire Waste Partnership will lobby Central 

Government to focus on waste as an integral part of sustainable Government to focus on waste as an integral part of sustainable Government to focus on waste as an integral part of sustainable Government to focus on waste as an integral part of sustainable 

resource resource resource resource management.management.management.management.    

production of municipal waste, and encourage them to take 

responsibility for the wastes they produce. 

 
 

Strategic policiesStrategic policiesStrategic policiesStrategic policies    

 

We used the strategy development process to develop the following 

policies, which are intended to support the delivery of the core 

objectives and overall vision for the Partnership. 

 

Our policies take into account national waste policy, legislation, 

guidance, regional waste management needs, and the needs of 

Oxfordshire and local communities.  The policies will be updated when 

necessary in order to keep abreast of forthcoming changes, in 

particular revisions to the national Waste Strategy 2000(1), and as part 

of the monitoring process. 

 
(1)(1)(1)(1) Waste Stra Waste Stra Waste Stra Waste Strategy 2000 for England and Wales, Department of the Environment, Transport and tegy 2000 for England and Wales, Department of the Environment, Transport and tegy 2000 for England and Wales, Department of the Environment, Transport and tegy 2000 for England and Wales, Department of the Environment, Transport and 

the regions, May 2000.the regions, May 2000.the regions, May 2000.the regions, May 2000.    

    

 

Policy 1: The Oxfordshire Waste Partnership will encourage the Policy 1: The Oxfordshire Waste Partnership will encourage the Policy 1: The Oxfordshire Waste Partnership will encourage the Policy 1: The Oxfordshire Waste Partnership will encourage the 

efficient use of resources, reduce resource consumption and take efficient use of resources, reduce resource consumption and take efficient use of resources, reduce resource consumption and take efficient use of resources, reduce resource consumption and take 

responsibility for the wresponsibility for the wresponsibility for the wresponsibility for the wastes they produce.astes they produce.astes they produce.astes they produce. 

 

 

 

        

 

 

 

Over recent decades waste has had little or no perceived value, but 

should be viewed as a useful resource following the fulfilment of its 

initial purpose.  An important element of the Strategy is to encourage 

the optimum use of resources.  This may be through: 

 

• Fiscal measures to reduce the consumption of raw materials (i.e. 

aggregates tax – a tax per tonne on virgin materials commercially 

exploited); 

Page 109



No Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management Strategy  

 

Oxfordshire Waste Partnership 22 August 2006    

• Producer responsibility legislation to force producers to take 

responsibility for their products once they are discarded; 

• Integrated product design. This is the redesign of products to 

reduce the amount of resources required for their manufacture, to 

improve their durability and to make them fully recyclable. 

 

We will, as Councils, set an example through sustainable behaviour to 

reduce our own environmental footprint.  We will also encourage the 

same behaviour throughout the county using the initiatives in Annex B Annex B Annex B Annex B 

(Waste reduction and reuse plan)(Waste reduction and reuse plan)(Waste reduction and reuse plan)(Waste reduction and reuse plan).  Many of these issues, especially in 

relation to packaging waste are best tackled nationally, and we will 

lobby and work with Central Government to encourage them to take 

the necessary measures. 

 

  

Policy 3:  The Oxfordshire Waste Partnership will help householders Policy 3:  The Oxfordshire Waste Partnership will help householders Policy 3:  The Oxfordshire Waste Partnership will help householders Policy 3:  The Oxfordshire Waste Partnership will help householders 

and individuals to reducand individuals to reducand individuals to reducand individuals to reduce and manage their wastes through the e and manage their wastes through the e and manage their wastes through the e and manage their wastes through the 

provision of advice and appropriate services.provision of advice and appropriate services.provision of advice and appropriate services.provision of advice and appropriate services.    

 

 

With the right advice, information and incentives households, schools, 

businesses and communities can contribute significantly to waste 

reduction.  Householders can reduce their wastes by, for example, 

composting their organic wastes at home or consuming products 

which produce less waste.  We will encourage reduction by giving 

advice and information, and providing incentives and tools that 

encourage waste reduction (such as junk mail solution packs and a 

savvy shopping campaign). Further details are contained in Annex B Annex B Annex B Annex B 

(Waste reduction and reuse plan)(Waste reduction and reuse plan)(Waste reduction and reuse plan)(Waste reduction and reuse plan). 

 

The introduction of fortnightly collections of residual waste will also 

have a major impact on encouraging waste reduction. Other English 

Local Authorities have found that putting limits on residual waste 

collections has a positive effect on recycling and composting rates. 

 

The delivery of this Strategy rests, to a significant degree, on the 

willingness and desire of Oxfordshire residents to take responsibility 

for their waste. This is not a ‘one way’ responsibility. Some of the 

C
o

re
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
C

o
re

 S
tr

a
te

g
y

C
o

re
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
C

o
re

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
    

Page 110



No Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management Strategy  

 

Oxfordshire Waste Partnership 23 August 2006    

decisions facing the Oxfordshire authorities have major financial and 

service design implications and the views of residents will continue to 

be taken into account. 

 

 

Policy 4:  The Oxfordshire Waste Partnership will encourage the Policy 4:  The Oxfordshire Waste Partnership will encourage the Policy 4:  The Oxfordshire Waste Partnership will encourage the Policy 4:  The Oxfordshire Waste Partnership will encourage the 

controlled reuse and reclamation of items through the provision of controlled reuse and reclamation of items through the provision of controlled reuse and reclamation of items through the provision of controlled reuse and reclamation of items through the provision of 

advice and appropriate services.advice and appropriate services.advice and appropriate services.advice and appropriate services.    

 

 

Where waste cannot reasonably be reduced, some things can be used 

again, or used for other purposes. Reusing resources negates the need 

for reprocessing the materials, as is the case in recycling. We can help 

householders, businesses, schools and local communities to make use 

of valuable items, which have been discarded by others through 

encouraging the exchange of items (for example through Community 

Action Group SwapShops). 

 

 

 

Policy 5:  In accordance with regional policy, the Oxfordshire Waste Policy 5:  In accordance with regional policy, the Oxfordshire Waste Policy 5:  In accordance with regional policy, the Oxfordshire Waste Policy 5:  In accordance with regional policy, the Oxfordshire Waste 

Partnership will seek to reduce the growth of municipal waste across Partnership will seek to reduce the growth of municipal waste across Partnership will seek to reduce the growth of municipal waste across Partnership will seek to reduce the growth of municipal waste across 

the Countythe Countythe Countythe County to 0% per person per annum by 2012. to 0% per person per annum by 2012. to 0% per person per annum by 2012. to 0% per person per annum by 2012.    

 

 

Calculations based on historical waste data for Oxfordshire show that 

annual waste growth in Oxfordshire is expected to be 0.34% per 

household (from 2006 onwards). Projected housing increases (stated 

in the Oxfordshire Structure Plan) have not been included in this figure 

and therefore a greater increase will be expected.  

 

The Partnership will seek to reduce waste growth to 0% per person per 

annum by 2012, through the approaches to waste reduction and reuse 

detailed in Annex B (Waste reduction and reuse plan)Annex B (Waste reduction and reuse plan)Annex B (Waste reduction and reuse plan)Annex B (Waste reduction and reuse plan). 

C
o

re
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
C

o
re

 S
tr

a
te

g
y

C
o

re
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
C

o
re

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
    

Page 111



No Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management Strategy  

 

Oxfordshire Waste Partnership 24 August 2006    

 

 

After reducing the amount of waste that is generated, our objective is 

to recycle or compost as much waste as is economically feasible and 

sustainable.  Our policies on recycling and composting recognise that 

we need to set ourselves challenging targets, provide adequate 

collection and processing arrangements for all residents and 

effectively promote these services County wide. 
 

We have also agreed to a joint target as part of a Local Area Agreement 

(LAA):  
 

• To reach 38% recycling or composting of household waste by 

31st March 2009 

We have agreed to a further stretch of this target. Oxfordshire has 

agreed to concentrate on increased recycling of non-biodegradable 

materials and an extra 4,875 tonnes of non-biodegradable waste has 

to be recycled between 2006/07 and 2008/09.  
 

In order to reach these long-term targets, we propose to provide everyeveryeveryevery 

household (subject to availability of access) with: 

 

• A fortnightly collection of residual waste; 

• Dry recyclable collections; 

• A garden waste collection on a general, or paid for basis; 

• A food waste collection (dependent on available treatment 

infrastructure); 

Policy 6:  The Oxfordshire Waste Partnership will provide an Policy 6:  The Oxfordshire Waste Partnership will provide an Policy 6:  The Oxfordshire Waste Partnership will provide an Policy 6:  The Oxfordshire Waste Partnership will provide an 

integrated system of collection and processing of household waste integrated system of collection and processing of household waste integrated system of collection and processing of household waste integrated system of collection and processing of household waste 

which will achieve, as a minimum:which will achieve, as a minimum:which will achieve, as a minimum:which will achieve, as a minimum:    

By 31st March 2010: recycle or compost at least 40% of household 

waste;  

By 31st March 2015: recycle or compost at least 45% of household 

waste;  

By 31st March 2020: recycle or compost at least 55% of household 

waste. 
(Waste Strategy 2000 recycling and composting targets for household waste) 

Page 112



No Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management Strategy  

 

Oxfordshire Waste Partnership 25 August 2006    

• Increased material streams for recycling at Waste Recycling 

Centres. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

In addition to the proposals in policy 6, we intend to identify means of 

providing suitable facilities and services to those that live in flats, hard 

to reach and rural areas. This is in order to achieve maximum levels of 

participation in our recycling and composting schemes. 

 

We recognise that all residents have a part to play in meeting recycling 

and composting targets and aim to increase participation rates by 10% 

by 2010, and 

20% by 2020. 

 

The OWP recognises that it is not only householders who are important 

in recycling their waste.  Building on the success of Oxfordshire’s 

previous marketing campaigns we will continue to educate people and 

encourage them to separate their waste in their home, school, 

business and community. 

 

    

Policy 9:  The Oxfordshire Waste PartnePolicy 9:  The Oxfordshire Waste PartnePolicy 9:  The Oxfordshire Waste PartnePolicy 9:  The Oxfordshire Waste Partnership will provide a system for rship will provide a system for rship will provide a system for rship will provide a system for 

recovering value from residual wastes in order to meet LATS targets.recovering value from residual wastes in order to meet LATS targets.recovering value from residual wastes in order to meet LATS targets.recovering value from residual wastes in order to meet LATS targets.  

 

Even if we take the most optimistic view on what we can achieve 

through reducing, reusing, recycling and composting our rubbish, we 

will still be short of meeting the requirements of our LATS targets. 

Policy 7:  The Oxfordshire Waste Partnership will ensuPolicy 7:  The Oxfordshire Waste Partnership will ensuPolicy 7:  The Oxfordshire Waste Partnership will ensuPolicy 7:  The Oxfordshire Waste Partnership will ensure that re that re that re that 

recycling facilities and services are available to all residents.recycling facilities and services are available to all residents.recycling facilities and services are available to all residents.recycling facilities and services are available to all residents.    

Policy 8:  The Oxfordshire Waste Partnership will encourage Policy 8:  The Oxfordshire Waste Partnership will encourage Policy 8:  The Oxfordshire Waste Partnership will encourage Policy 8:  The Oxfordshire Waste Partnership will encourage 

householders and businesses to separate waste for recycling householders and businesses to separate waste for recycling householders and businesses to separate waste for recycling householders and businesses to separate waste for recycling 

collections by providing targeted information and awareness raising collections by providing targeted information and awareness raising collections by providing targeted information and awareness raising collections by providing targeted information and awareness raising 

C
o

re
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
C

o
re

 S
tr

a
te

g
y

C
o

re
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
C

o
re

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
    

Page 113



No Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management Strategy  

 

Oxfordshire Waste Partnership 26 August 2006    

Countries with high recycling elsewhere face similar problems and 

have recognised that some form of ‘waste treatment’ will be necessary.  

 

There are a number of possible treatment technologies, including high 

temperature incineration, pyrolysis, and gasification.  In the case of 

food wastes, technologies are available through in-vessel composting 

and anaerobic digestion. All of these result in rubbish being converted 

into a useful product (such as electricity, heat or compost), and reduce 

pressure on natural resources. 

 

Our policy is to use treatment technologies that recover value to 

reduce our reliance on landfill and meet our LATS targets.  Whatever 

we choose must: 

 

• Be safe for the environment and human health; 

• Recover value from the waste; 

• Not be a substitute for reuse, recycling and composting. 

 

 

 

 

 

  ....    

Policy 10:  The Oxfordshire Waste Partnership will ensure optimum use Policy 10:  The Oxfordshire Waste Partnership will ensure optimum use Policy 10:  The Oxfordshire Waste Partnership will ensure optimum use Policy 10:  The Oxfordshire Waste Partnership will ensure optimum use 

of landfill void.of landfill void.of landfill void.of landfill void.    

 

 

Our primary objective is to move management of waste up the 

hierarchy and to reduce the need for landfill.  However, we recognise 

there is a continuing need for the disposal of waste and this should be 

adequately catered for. 

 

Whilst at present disposal by means of landfill accounts for two thirds 

of our waste, we would expect this dependence to reduce in the long 

term to, at the very most, 25% (this is dependent on waste treatment 

capacity being delivered). 

 

 

C
o

re
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
C

o
re

 S
tr

a
te

g
y

C
o

re
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
C

o
re

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
    

Page 114



No Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management Strategy  

 

Oxfordshire Waste Partnership 27 August 2006    

Policy 11:  The Oxfordshire Waste Partnership will seek to provide Policy 11:  The Oxfordshire Waste Partnership will seek to provide Policy 11:  The Oxfordshire Waste Partnership will seek to provide Policy 11:  The Oxfordshire Waste Partnership will seek to provide 

waste management services for specialised, waste management services for specialised, waste management services for specialised, waste management services for specialised, potentially polluting potentially polluting potentially polluting potentially polluting 

material streams, such as hazardous waste and waste electrical and material streams, such as hazardous waste and waste electrical and material streams, such as hazardous waste and waste electrical and material streams, such as hazardous waste and waste electrical and 

electronic equipment, which meet and exceed legislative requirements.electronic equipment, which meet and exceed legislative requirements.electronic equipment, which meet and exceed legislative requirements.electronic equipment, which meet and exceed legislative requirements.    

 

Certain minority components of the residual waste stream are more 

likely to cause pollution when disposed in landfill than if they are 

treated or recycled.  The best ways of dealing with these hazardous 

components have been identified and appropriate actions adopted. We 

will continue to deal with hazardous waste in this controlled manor. 

 

There is a legal requirement for specific management and disposal of 

hazardous wastes. The Partnership will promote the environmentally 

sound management of hazardous wastes and in particular hazardous 

waste reduction and reuse. 

 

Policy 12:  The Oxfordshire Waste PartPolicy 12:  The Oxfordshire Waste PartPolicy 12:  The Oxfordshire Waste PartPolicy 12:  The Oxfordshire Waste Partnership, working with the Waste nership, working with the Waste nership, working with the Waste nership, working with the Waste 

Planning Authority, will ensure that waste facilities are suitably sized Planning Authority, will ensure that waste facilities are suitably sized Planning Authority, will ensure that waste facilities are suitably sized Planning Authority, will ensure that waste facilities are suitably sized 

and distributed with the aim of minimising the transport of waste.  and distributed with the aim of minimising the transport of waste.  and distributed with the aim of minimising the transport of waste.  and distributed with the aim of minimising the transport of waste.  

Facilities will be well related to areas of population, given the Facilities will be well related to areas of population, given the Facilities will be well related to areas of population, given the Facilities will be well related to areas of population, given the 

environmental andenvironmental andenvironmental andenvironmental and amenity constraints, and the availability of suitable  amenity constraints, and the availability of suitable  amenity constraints, and the availability of suitable  amenity constraints, and the availability of suitable 

sites.sites.sites.sites. 

 

The recovery and disposal of waste must be managed in a way that 

attempts to avoid endangering human health, or harming the 

environment and enables waste to be disposed of in one of the nearest 

appropriate facilities. We aim to avoid passing the environmental costs 

of waste management to communities which are not responsible for its 

generation, and reduce the environmental cost of transporting waste 

to facilities and markets. 

 

The OWP and Central Government believe that waste should not be 

exported from the UK for disposal. Waste Planning Authorities and the 

waste management industry should aim, wherever practicable, for 

regional self-sufficiency in managing waste. There is a need to 

develop effective ways of working together, and to maximise the 

effectiveness of our services through efficient use of pooled financial 

and technical resources. 

Page 115



No Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management Strategy  

 

Oxfordshire Waste Partnership 28 August 2006    

 

 

Policy 13: The Oxfordshire Waste Partnership will assist the Policy 13: The Oxfordshire Waste Partnership will assist the Policy 13: The Oxfordshire Waste Partnership will assist the Policy 13: The Oxfordshire Waste Partnership will assist the 

development of local markets for recovered development of local markets for recovered development of local markets for recovered development of local markets for recovered materialsmaterialsmaterialsmaterials    

 

The OWP recognises that the primary barrier to reuse and recycling is 

finding suitable and stable markets.  The OWP will work with the Waste 

and Resources Action Programmes (WRAP) and other national or local 

organisations to provide and build stable markets for reusable and 

recyclable materials. 

    

Policy 14:  The Oxfordshire Waste Partnership will develop methods of Policy 14:  The Oxfordshire Waste Partnership will develop methods of Policy 14:  The Oxfordshire Waste Partnership will develop methods of Policy 14:  The Oxfordshire Waste Partnership will develop methods of 

working together to improve the level of service through effective and working together to improve the level of service through effective and working together to improve the level of service through effective and working together to improve the level of service through effective and 

efficient use of resources within Oxfordshire.efficient use of resources within Oxfordshire.efficient use of resources within Oxfordshire.efficient use of resources within Oxfordshire.    

  

The OWP is committed to delivering effective and efficient services to 

Oxfordshire’s residents. The OWP is also committed to minimising the 

overall cost of waste services and ensuring best value. 

 

The Partners will develop methods of working that further these 

commitments. Methods of working will include clear and business-like 

governance arrangements for the OWP and supporting officer groups, 

the smarter use of financial resources, a greater use of project 

management to ensure the delivery of the Action Plans, a greater 

emphasis on joint contracting or service delivery and a greater use, 

and sharing of, waste expertise within the Partnership.    

 

 

 

5. Strategy implementation and monitoring 5. Strategy implementation and monitoring 5. Strategy implementation and monitoring 5. Strategy implementation and monitoring     
    

Route map to achieving our aimsRoute map to achieving our aimsRoute map to achieving our aimsRoute map to achieving our aims    
 

Changes to waste management in Oxfordshire in the coming years will 

be significant. In the short and medium term, we will focus on 

improving reduction, reuse, recycling and composting. The target of 

40% recycling and composting by 2010 represents a significant 

challenge for all of Oxfordshire’s Authorities, in the short to medium 

C
o

re
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
C

o
re

 S
tr

a
te

g
y

C
o

re
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
C

o
re

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
    

Page 116



No Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management Strategy  

 

Oxfordshire Waste Partnership 29 August 2006    

term. Substantial progress will need to be made towards this target 

year on year. 

 

In progress towards our medium term actions, we have started the 

process of procuring treatment facilities to enable us to meet our 2010 

LATS target.  It is clear that a waste treatment facility is required to 

achieve self-sufficiency in landfill allowances. This is preferable to a 

fine of £150 per tonne of biodegradable waste, or buying allowances 

from other Local Authorities. 

 

We will consider any new actions required beyond 2010 when we 

review the Core Strategy, but we must remain flexible to developments 

in policy, technology and community views at other times.  The short, 

medium and long-term future actions, detailed above are summarised 

in Figure 8. 

    

There is strong support across Oxfordshire’s Authorities to undertake 

the actions required to deliver the Strategy. The Action Plan (Annex AAnnex AAnnex AAnnex A) 

carries financial implications that will be considered for inclusion in 

budgets within the medium term and long term financial planning 

process. 

 

In order to ensure this strategy is delivered, these actions are currently 

being implemented: 

   

• The Oxfordshire Waste Partnership is being reconstituted as a 

formal joint committee (with a dedicated Partnership Officer) with a 

remit to ensure and monitor action planning and project delivery; 

• Financial arrangements are being reviewed to ensure that 

budgetary considerations are dealt with equitably and create the 

right incentives to ensure delivery; 

• An action plan has been developed by the OWP for all those actions 

which are generic across the Partnership. The County and Districts 

are preparing subsidiary action plans for their own responsibilities. 

These actions will not be uniform but they will be unified; 

• The County is about to begin the procurement process for new 

waste treatment capacity. 

 

C
o

re
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
C

o
re

 S
tr

a
te

g
y

C
o

re
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
C

o
re

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
    

Page 117



No Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management Strategy  

 

Oxfordshire Waste Partnership 30 August 2006    

The implementation of the whole strategy process will be overseen and 

monitored by the Oxfordshire Waste Partnership. 

 

 

    

    

    

    

Page 118



No Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management Strategy  

 

Oxfordshire Waste Partnership 31 August 2006    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

Figure 8 Figure 8 Figure 8 Figure 8 

----    

SummarSummarSummarSummar

y of y of y of y of 

 

 

July to 

December 

2006 

 

• Agree OWP 

governance and 

financial 

arrangements 

• Consult and finalise 

strategy 

• Adoption of strategy 

by all Partner 

Authorities 

• Develop individual 

authority plans 

• Recruitment of 

Partnership officer 

• Strengthen measures 

on reduction and 

reuse 

 

 

 

Short 

Term 

 

 

 

 

Jan 2007 to 

April 2012 

• Initiate procurement 

process for treatment 

facilities 

• External collection 

contracts aligned 

where appropriate 

• Joint procurement of 

collection contracts 

where appropriate 

• Roll out step changes 

in collection systems 

• Promote participation 

in recycling and 

composting 

• Review strategy - 

2010201020102010 

 

 

 

Medium 

Term 

 

 

 

April 2012 

onwards 

• Treatment facilities 

online 

• Review strategy 

 

 

 

Long 

Term 

 

M
o
n
it

o
ri

n
g
 a

n
d
 e

v
a
lu

a
ti

o
n

M
o
n
it

o
ri

n
g
 a

n
d
 e

v
a
lu

a
ti

o
n

M
o
n
it

o
ri

n
g
 a

n
d
 e

v
a
lu

a
ti

o
n

M
o
n
it

o
ri

n
g
 a

n
d
 e

v
a
lu

a
ti

o
n
    

C
o

re
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
C

o
re

 S
tr

a
te

g
y

C
o

re
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
C

o
re

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
    

Page 119



No Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management Strategy  

 

Oxfordshire Waste Partnership 32 August 2006    

future actionsfuture actionsfuture actionsfuture actions    

 

 

CoCoCoCo----ordination with the Minerals and Waste Development ordination with the Minerals and Waste Development ordination with the Minerals and Waste Development ordination with the Minerals and Waste Development 

FrameFrameFrameFrameworkworkworkwork    
 

Oxfordshire County Council’s Planning Department is producing a 

Waste Development Framework that sets out locations and 

development control policies for waste management sites, including 

those for municipal waste. The infrastructure required for the 

implementation of this strategy will depend on suitable sites being 

available and coming forward through the planning process in a timely 

fashion. In order to facilitate this, the Partnership will work closely with 

the County’s Planning Department to ensure that this Strategy is 

reflected in the Minerals and Waste Development Framework and that 

the Strategy remains deliverable within the planning system. 

    
 

Monitoring progress and review of plansMonitoring progress and review of plansMonitoring progress and review of plansMonitoring progress and review of plans    

 

This Strategy is intended to be a living document and practical 

management tool. The OWP is committed to regularly monitoring the 

implementation of the Strategy and to reviewing and updating both 

the OWP Action Plan (Annex AAnnex AAnnex AAnnex A) and individual authority Action Plans 

each year as a minimum. If the Action Plans become substantially 

inconsistent with the Core Strategy, a review of the Core Strategy may 

be needed. 

 

At the latest, the Core Strategy will be revised in 2010, by which time 

LATS will be well established and the National Waste Strategy will be 

scheduled for its next revision. Our revised document will be subject 

to a Strategic Environmental Assessment.  

 

Thereafter, the Core Strategy will be reviewed at least every five years, 

or as required by developments in its implementation. Table 5 below 

details the timescales for monitoring and evaluation of the Core 

Strategy and Action Plans until the Strategy is reviewed in 2010. 

 

C
o

re
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
C

o
re

 S
tr

a
te

g
y

C
o

re
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
C

o
re

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
    

Page 120



No Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management Strategy  

 

Oxfordshire Waste Partnership 33 August 2006    

 

YearYearYearYear    Monitoring and evaluation actionMonitoring and evaluation actionMonitoring and evaluation actionMonitoring and evaluation action    

2006 
Development, agreement, and implementation of strategy and 

action plans 

2007 Evaluate progress on action plans, make changes if needed 

2008 Evaluate progress on action plans, make changes if needed 

2009 
Target:Target:Target:Target: recycle or compost 38% of household waste 

Evaluate progress on action plans, make changes if needed 

2009/10 
Target:Target:Target:Target: reduce biodegradable wastes to landfill to 121,700 

tonnes 

2010201020102010    

Target: Target: Target: Target: recycle or compost at least 40% of household waste 

Target: Target: Target: Target: increase participation rates by 10%    

Review strategy, actions plans and relevance of policiesReview strategy, actions plans and relevance of policiesReview strategy, actions plans and relevance of policiesReview strategy, actions plans and relevance of policies    

    

Table 5 Table 5 Table 5 Table 5 –––– Timescales for monitoring and evaluation of Timescales for monitoring and evaluation of Timescales for monitoring and evaluation of Timescales for monitoring and evaluation of the Core Strategy and  the Core Strategy and  the Core Strategy and  the Core Strategy and 

Action PlansAction PlansAction PlansAction Plans    

 

 

 

 

 

Page 121



The Oxfordshire Waste PartnershipThe Oxfordshire Waste PartnershipThe Oxfordshire Waste PartnershipThe Oxfordshire Waste Partnership    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

Annex AAnnex AAnnex AAnnex A    

    

Oxfordshire Waste Partnership Action PlanOxfordshire Waste Partnership Action PlanOxfordshire Waste Partnership Action PlanOxfordshire Waste Partnership Action Plan    
    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

A
n
n
e
x
 A
 

A
n
n
e
x
 A
 

A
n
n
e
x
 A
 

A
n
n
e
x
 A
 –– ––
 O

x
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 W

a
s
te
 P
a
r
tn
e
r
s
h
ip
 A
c
ti
o
n
 P
la
n

 O
x
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 W

a
s
te
 P
a
r
tn
e
r
s
h
ip
 A
c
ti
o
n
 P
la
n

 O
x
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 W

a
s
te
 P
a
r
tn
e
r
s
h
ip
 A
c
ti
o
n
 P
la
n

 O
x
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 W

a
s
te
 P
a
r
tn
e
r
s
h
ip
 A
c
ti
o
n
 P
la
n
    

Page 122



No Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management Strategy    

 

    

    

    

No Time to Waste:No Time to Waste:No Time to Waste:No Time to Waste:    

The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste StrategyThe Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste StrategyThe Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste StrategyThe Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Strategy

Page 123



N
o
 T
im
e
 t
o
 W
a
s
te
: 
 T
h
e
 O
x
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 J
o
in
t 
M
u
n
ic
ip
a
l 
W
a
s
te
 M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
S
tr
a
te
g
y

N
o
 T
im
e
 t
o
 W
a
s
te
: 
 T
h
e
 O
x
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 J
o
in
t 
M
u
n
ic
ip
a
l 
W
a
s
te
 M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
S
tr
a
te
g
y

N
o
 T
im
e
 t
o
 W
a
s
te
: 
 T
h
e
 O
x
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 J
o
in
t 
M
u
n
ic
ip
a
l 
W
a
s
te
 M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
S
tr
a
te
g
y

N
o
 T
im
e
 t
o
 W
a
s
te
: 
 T
h
e
 O
x
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 J
o
in
t 
M
u
n
ic
ip
a
l 
W
a
s
te
 M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
    

 O
x
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 W
a
s
te
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 

 
A
1
 

 
 

 
 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

A
u
g
u
s
t 
2
0
0
6
  

 T
h
e
 G
u
id
a
n
c
e
 o
n
 M
u
n
ic
ip
a
l 
W
a
s
te
 M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
S
tr
a
te
g
ie
s
 –
 J
u
ly
 2
0
0
5
 s
ta
te
s
 t
h
a
t:
  

    

“ “““l
o
n
g
 t
e
rm

 s
tr
a
te
g
ic
 p
la
n
n
in
g
 i
s 
vi
ta
l 
to
 a
ll
 a
u
th
o
ri
ti
e
s 
in
 s
e
cu
ri
n
g
 

lo
n
g
 t
e
rm

 s
tr
a
te
g
ic
 p
la
n
n
in
g
 i
s 
vi
ta
l 
to
 a
ll
 a
u
th
o
ri
ti
e
s 
in
 s
e
cu
ri
n
g
 

lo
n
g
 t
e
rm

 s
tr
a
te
g
ic
 p
la
n
n
in
g
 i
s 
vi
ta
l 
to
 a
ll
 a
u
th
o
ri
ti
e
s 
in
 s
e
cu
ri
n
g
 

lo
n
g
 t
e
rm

 s
tr
a
te
g
ic
 p
la
n
n
in
g
 i
s 
vi
ta
l 
to
 a
ll
 a
u
th
o
ri
ti
e
s 
in
 s
e
cu
ri
n
g
 

b
o
th
 
th
e
 
in
fr
a
st
ru
ct
u
re
 
a
n
d
 
se
rv
ic
e
 
d
e
ve
lo
p
m
e
n
ts
 
n
e
ce
ss
a
ry
 
to
 

b
o
th
 
th
e
 
in
fr
a
st
ru
ct
u
re
 
a
n
d
 
se
rv
ic
e
 
d
e
ve
lo
p
m
e
n
ts
 
n
e
ce
ss
a
ry
 
to
 

b
o
th
 
th
e
 
in
fr
a
st
ru
ct
u
re
 
a
n
d
 
se
rv
ic
e
 
d
e
ve
lo
p
m
e
n
ts
 
n
e
ce
ss
a
ry
 
to
 

b
o
th
 
th
e
 
in
fr
a
st
ru
ct
u
re
 
a
n
d
 
se
rv
ic
e
 
d
e
ve
lo
p
m
e
n
ts
 
n
e
ce
ss
a
ry
 
to
 

d
e
li
ve
r 
m
o
re
 s
u
st
a
in
a
b
le
 w
a
st
e
 m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t

d
e
li
ve
r 
m
o
re
 s
u
st
a
in
a
b
le
 w
a
st
e
 m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t

d
e
li
ve
r 
m
o
re
 s
u
st
a
in
a
b
le
 w
a
st
e
 m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t

d
e
li
ve
r 
m
o
re
 s
u
st
a
in
a
b
le
 w
a
st
e
 m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t .
” .”.”.”
    

  

T
h
is
 a
c
ti
o
n
 p
la
n
 s
e
ts
 o
u
t 
th
e
 s
h
o
rt
 t
o
 m
e
d
iu
m
 t
e
rm

 a
c
ti
o
n
s
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 O
x
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 W
a
s
te
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 (
O
W
P
) 
w
il
l 
c
o
ll
e
c
ti
v
e
ly
 t
a
k
e
 t
o
 

e
n
s
u
re
 d
e
li
v
e
ry
 o
f 
th
e
 p
o
li
c
y
 o
b
je
c
ti
v
e
s
 w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 ‘
N
o
 T
im
e
 t
o
 W
a
s
te
’ 
jo
in
t 
m
u
n
ic
ip
a
l 
w
a
s
te
 m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
s
tr
a
te
g
y
. 
 E
a
c
h
 o
f 
th
e
 

in
d
iv
id
u
a
l 
A
u
th
o
ri
ti
e
s
 h
a
s
 p
ro
d
u
c
e
d
 t
h
e
ir
 o
w
n
 a
c
ti
o
n
 p
la
n
s
, 
c
o
v
e
ri
n
g
 s
p
e
c
if
ic
 a
c
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 b
e
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 b
y
 t
h
e
ir
 C
o
u
n
c
il
. 
 T
h
e
s
e
 

p
la
n
s
 w
il
l 
b
e
 e
v
a
lu
a
te
d
 a
n
d
 u
p
d
a
te
d
 q
u
a
rt
e
rl
y
 a
n
d
 w
il
l 
b
e
 s
u
b
je
c
t 
to
 a
n
 a
n
n
u
a
l 
p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 r
e
v
ie
w
. 

  

A
c
ti
o
n
s

A
c
ti
o
n
s

A
c
ti
o
n
s

A
c
ti
o
n
s
    

H
o
w
 d
o
 w
e
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
 

H
o
w
 d
o
 w
e
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
 

H
o
w
 d
o
 w
e
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
 

H
o
w
 d
o
 w
e
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
 

th
e
 a
c
ti
o
n
?

th
e
 a
c
ti
o
n
?

th
e
 a
c
ti
o
n
?

th
e
 a
c
ti
o
n
?    

W
h
a
t 
is
 t
h
e
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
 

W
h
a
t 
is
 t
h
e
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
 

W
h
a
t 
is
 t
h
e
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
 

W
h
a
t 
is
 t
h
e
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
 

o
f 
th
e
 a
c
ti
o
n
?

o
f 
th
e
 a
c
ti
o
n
?

o
f 
th
e
 a
c
ti
o
n
?

o
f 
th
e
 a
c
ti
o
n
?    

W
h
a
t 
re
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 

W
h
a
t 
re
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 

W
h
a
t 
re
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 

W
h
a
t 
re
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 

a
re
 r
e
q
u
i

a
re
 r
e
q
u
i

a
re
 r
e
q
u
i

a
re
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
?

re
d
?

re
d
?

re
d
?    

W
h
a
t 
a
re
 t
h
e
 r
is
k
s
 

W
h
a
t 
a
re
 t
h
e
 r
is
k
s
 

W
h
a
t 
a
re
 t
h
e
 r
is
k
s
 

W
h
a
t 
a
re
 t
h
e
 r
is
k
s
 

a
s
s
o
c
ia
te
d
 w
it
h
 

a
s
s
o
c
ia
te
d
 w
it
h
 

a
s
s
o
c
ia
te
d
 w
it
h
 

a
s
s
o
c
ia
te
d
 w
it
h
 

a
c
h
ie
v
in
g
 t
h
is
 

a
c
h
ie
v
in
g
 t
h
is
 

a
c
h
ie
v
in
g
 t
h
is
 

a
c
h
ie
v
in
g
 t
h
is
 

a
c
ti
o
n
?

a
c
ti
o
n
?

a
c
ti
o
n
?

a
c
ti
o
n
?    

W
h
e
n
 d
o
e
s
 t
h
e
 

W
h
e
n
 d
o
e
s
 t
h
e
 

W
h
e
n
 d
o
e
s
 t
h
e
 

W
h
e
n
 d
o
e
s
 t
h
e
 

a
c
ti
o
n
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 

a
c
ti
o
n
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 

a
c
ti
o
n
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 

a
c
ti
o
n
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 

b
e
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
?

b
e
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
?

b
e
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
?

b
e
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
?    

W
h
o
 i
s
 

W
h
o
 i
s
 

W
h
o
 i
s
 

W
h
o
 i
s
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib
le
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib
le
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib
le
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib
le
 

fo
r 
th
e
 

fo
r 
th
e
 

fo
r 
th
e
 

fo
r 
th
e
 

a
c
ti
o
n
?

a
c
ti
o
n
?

a
c
ti
o
n
?

a
c
ti
o
n
?    

W
a
s
te
 p
re
v
e
n
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 r
e
u
s
e

W
a
s
te
 p
re
v
e
n
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 r
e
u
s
e

W
a
s
te
 p
re
v
e
n
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 r
e
u
s
e

W
a
s
te
 p
re
v
e
n
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 r
e
u
s
e
    

P
o
li
c
y
 3
: 
 

P
o
li
c
y
 3
: 
 

P
o
li
c
y
 3
: 
 

P
o
li
c
y
 3
: 
 T
h
e
 O
x
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 W
a
s
te
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 w
il
l 
h
e
lp
 h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
 a
n
d
 i
n
d
iv
id
u
a
ls
 t
o
 r
e
d
u
c
e
 a
n
d
 m
a
n
a
g
e
 t
h
e
ir
 w
a
s
te
s
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
 o
f 
a
d
v
ic
e
 a
n
d
 

a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
.    

P
o
li
c
y
 4
: 
 

P
o
li
c
y
 4
: 
 

P
o
li
c
y
 4
: 
 

P
o
li
c
y
 4
: 
 T
h
e
 O
x
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 W
a
s
te
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 w
il
l 
e
n
c
o
u
ra
g
e
 t
h
e
 c
o
n
tr
o
ll
e
d
 r
e
u
s
e
 a
n
d
 r
e
c
la
m
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
it
e
m
s
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
 o
f 
a
d
v
ic
e
 a
n
d
 a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
.    
    

P
o
P
o
P
o
P
o
li
c
y
 5
: 
 

li
c
y
 5
: 
 

li
c
y
 5
: 
 

li
c
y
 5
: 
 I
n
 a
c
c
o
rd
a
n
c
e
 w
it
h
 r
e
g
io
n
a
l 
p
o
li
c
y
, 
th
e
 O
x
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 W
a
s
te
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 w
il
l 
s
e
e
k
 t
o
 r
e
d
u
c
e
 t
h
e
 g
ro
w
th
 o
f 
m
u
n
ic
ip
a
l 
w
a
s
te
 a
c
ro
s
s
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
ty
 t
o
 0
%
 p
e
r 

a
n
n
u
m
 b
y
 2
0
1
2
. 
  
  
    

 D
e
v
e
lo
p
 a
 j
o
in
t 
p
o
li
c
y
 t
o
 s
o
u
rc
e
 a
n
d
 

ri
n
g
-
fe
n
c
e
 i
n
te
rn
a
l 
a
n
d
 e
x
te
rn
a
l 

 E
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 O
W
P
 

c
o
n
ti
n
u
a
ll
y
 s
e
e
k
s
 e
x
te
rn
a
l 

 •
 
R
e
d
u
c
e
d
 M
u
n
ic
ip
a
l 
S
o
li
d
 

W
a
s
te
 (
M
S
W
) 
a
ri
s
in
g
s
 

 •
 
O
ff
ic
e
r 
ti
m
e
 

 •
 

D
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
c
e
 o
n
 

e
x
te
rn
a
l 
fu
n
d
in
g
 f
o
r 

 P
ro
je
c
t 
in
it
ia
ti
o
n
 

D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
6
 

 O
W
P
 

Page 124



N
o
 T
im
e
 t
o
 W
a
s
te
: 
 T
h
e
 O
x
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 J
o
in
t 
M
u
n
ic
ip
a
l 
W
a
s
te
 M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
S
tr
a
te
g
y

N
o
 T
im
e
 t
o
 W
a
s
te
: 
 T
h
e
 O
x
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 J
o
in
t 
M
u
n
ic
ip
a
l 
W
a
s
te
 M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
S
tr
a
te
g
y

N
o
 T
im
e
 t
o
 W
a
s
te
: 
 T
h
e
 O
x
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 J
o
in
t 
M
u
n
ic
ip
a
l 
W
a
s
te
 M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
S
tr
a
te
g
y

N
o
 T
im
e
 t
o
 W
a
s
te
: 
 T
h
e
 O
x
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 J
o
in
t 
M
u
n
ic
ip
a
l 
W
a
s
te
 M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
    

 O
x
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 W
a
s
te
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 

 
A
2
 

 
 

 
 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

A
u
g
u
s
t 
2
0
0
6
  A
c
ti
o
n
s

A
c
ti
o
n
s

A
c
ti
o
n
s

A
c
ti
o
n
s
    

H
o
w
 d
o
 w
e
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
 

H
o
w
 d
o
 w
e
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
 

H
o
w
 d
o
 w
e
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
 

H
o
w
 d
o
 w
e
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
 

th
e
 a
c
ti
o
n
?

th
e
 a
c
ti
o
n
?

th
e
 a
c
ti
o
n
?

th
e
 a
c
ti
o
n
?    

W
h
a
t 
is
 t
h
e
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
 

W
h
a
t 
is
 t
h
e
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
 

W
h
a
t 
is
 t
h
e
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
 

W
h
a
t 
is
 t
h
e
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
 

o
f 
th
e
 a
c
ti
o
n
?

o
f 
th
e
 a
c
ti
o
n
?

o
f 
th
e
 a
c
ti
o
n
?

o
f 
th
e
 a
c
ti
o
n
?    

W
h
a
t 
re
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 

W
h
a
t 
re
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 

W
h
a
t 
re
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 

W
h
a
t 
re
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 

a
re
 r
e
q
u
i

a
re
 r
e
q
u
i

a
re
 r
e
q
u
i

a
re
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
?

re
d
?

re
d
?

re
d
?    

W
h
a
t 
a
re
 t
h
e
 r
is
k
s
 

W
h
a
t 
a
re
 t
h
e
 r
is
k
s
 

W
h
a
t 
a
re
 t
h
e
 r
is
k
s
 

W
h
a
t 
a
re
 t
h
e
 r
is
k
s
 

a
s
s
o
c
ia
te
d
 w
it
h
 

a
s
s
o
c
ia
te
d
 w
it
h
 

a
s
s
o
c
ia
te
d
 w
it
h
 

a
s
s
o
c
ia
te
d
 w
it
h
 

a
c
h
ie
v
in
g
 t
h
is
 

a
c
h
ie
v
in
g
 t
h
is
 

a
c
h
ie
v
in
g
 t
h
is
 

a
c
h
ie
v
in
g
 t
h
is
 

a
c
ti
o
n
?

a
c
ti
o
n
?

a
c
ti
o
n
?

a
c
ti
o
n
?    

W
h
e
n
 d
o
e
s
 t
h
e
 

W
h
e
n
 d
o
e
s
 t
h
e
 

W
h
e
n
 d
o
e
s
 t
h
e
 

W
h
e
n
 d
o
e
s
 t
h
e
 

a
c
ti
o
n
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 

a
c
ti
o
n
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 

a
c
ti
o
n
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 

a
c
ti
o
n
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 

b
e
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
?

b
e
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
?

b
e
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
?

b
e
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
?    

W
h
o
 i
s
 

W
h
o
 i
s
 

W
h
o
 i
s
 

W
h
o
 i
s
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib
le
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib
le
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib
le
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib
le
 

fo
r 
th
e
 

fo
r 
th
e
 

fo
r 
th
e
 

fo
r 
th
e
 

a
c
ti
o
n
?

a
c
ti
o
n
?

a
c
ti
o
n
?

a
c
ti
o
n
?    

fu
n
d
in
g
 f
o
r 
w
a
s
te
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 

re
u
s
e
 (
W
R
R
) 
in
it
ia
ti
v
e
s
. 

fu
n
d
in
g
 f
o
r 
W
R
R
 

in
it
ia
ti
v
e
s
. 
 

R
in
g
-
fe
n
c
e
 e
x
is
ti
n
g
 

in
te
rn
a
l 
fu
n
d
in
g
 f
o
r 
W
R
R
 

in
it
ia
ti
v
e
s
. 

•
 
In
c
re
a
s
e
d
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 

re
u
s
e
 

•
 
D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
n
e
w
 

a
n
d
 i
n
n
o
v
a
ti
v
e
 W
R
R
 

in
it
ia
ti
v
e
s
 

•
 
R
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 

L
a
n
d
fi
ll
 A
ll
o
w
a
n
c
e
 

T
ra
d
in
g
 S
c
h
e
m
e
 (
L
A
T
S
) 

p
e
n
a
lt
ie
s
. 

W
R
R
 i
n
it
ia
ti
v
e
s
. 
 

C
o
re
 b
u
d
g
e
t 
n
o
t 

b
e
in
g
 u
s
e
d
 f
o
r 
W
R
R
 

in
it
ia
ti
v
e
s
. 

•
 

N
o
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
 i
n
 

p
a
rt
ic
ip
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 W
R
R
 

s
c
h
e
m
e
s
 

•
 

L
A
T
S
 p
e
n
a
lt
ie
s
 

•
 

D
e
c
re
a
s
e
d
 c
h
a
n
c
e
s
 

o
f 
re
c
e
iv
in
g
 a
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 

ro
u
n
d
 o
f 
fu
n
d
in
g
 

fr
o
m
 e
x
te
rn
a
l 

b
o
d
ie
s
. 

 

d
e
p
e
n
d
in
g
 o
n
 

o
u
tc
o
m
e
 o
f 
W
R
A
P
 

fu
n
d
in
g
 

  O
n
g
o
in
g
 

im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 

 D
e
v
e
lo
p
 a
n
 e
n
fo
rc
e
m
e
n
t 
p
la
n
 a
n
d
 

jo
in
t 
p
o
li
c
ie
s
 o
n
 c
o
n
tr
o
ll
in
g
 w
a
s
te
, 

a
n
d
 t
ra
d
e
 w
a
s
te
 a
b
u
s
e
. 

 Im
p
le
m
e
n
t 
a
 j
o
in
t 

e
n
fo
rc
e
m
e
n
t 
p
la
n
. 

Im
p
le
m
e
n
t 
jo
in
t 
p
o
li
c
ie
s
 

a
n
d
 s
y
s
te
m
s
 t
o
 c
o
n
tr
o
l 

w
a
s
te
 a
n
d
 d
e
a
l 
w
it
h
 t
ra
d
e
 

w
a
s
te
 a
b
u
s
e
. 
 T
h
e
s
e
 

p
o
li
c
ie
s
 w
il
l 
b
e
 i
n
te
g
ra
te
d
 

in
to
 t
h
e
 e
n
fo
rc
e
m
e
n
t 
p
la
n
.  

 •
 
P
re
v
e
n
ti
o
n
 o
f 
tr
a
d
e
 

w
a
s
te
 a
b
u
s
e
 a
n
d
 f
ly
-

ti
p
p
in
g
 

•
 
P
o
o
le
d
 r
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 t
o
 

a
c
h
ie
v
e
 m
o
re
 s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu
l 

e
n
fo
rc
e
m
e
n
t 
o
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 

•
 
R
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

a
m
o
u
n
t 
o
f 
re
s
id
u
a
l 

w
a
s
te
 h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
 

c
re
a
te
 

•
 
In
c
re
a
s
e
d
 

a
w
a
re
n
e
s
s
/
h
ig
h
 l
e
v
e
ls
 

 •
 
O
ff
ic
e
r 
ti
m
e
, 

(p
re
fe
ra
b
ly
 a
n
 

E
n
fo
rc
e
m
e
n
t 

O
ff
ic
e
r 
in
 e
a
c
h
 

D
is
tr
ic
t 
C
o
u
n
c
il
)  

•
 
F
u
n
d
in
g
 t
o
 

im
p
le
m
e
n
t 

e
n
fo
rc
e
m
e
n
t,
 

p
ro
m
o
ti
n
g
 

a
w
a
re
n
e
s
s
 a
n
d
 

c
o
m
p
li
a
n
c
e
 

•
 
C
o
v
e
rt
 

 •
 

C
o
n
ti
n
u
e
d
 t
ra
d
e
 

w
a
s
te
 a
b
u
s
e
 o
f 
th
e
 

h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld
 w
a
s
te
 

s
tr
e
a
m
 

•
 

B
u
rd
e
n
 o
n
 c
o
u
n
c
il
 

ta
x
 p
a
y
e
rs
 

•
 

C
o
n
ti
n
u
a
l/
in
c
re
a
s
e
d
 

fl
y
-
ti
p
p
in
g
/
il
le
g
a
l 

d
is
p
o
s
a
l 
in
c
id
e
n
ts
 

•
 

D
e
tr
im
e
n
ta
l 
a
ff
e
c
t 

o
n
 t
h
e
 e
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 
 

•
 
  
In
c
re
a
s
e
d
 c
o
s
t 
o
f 

 P
ro
je
c
t 
in
it
ia
ti
o
n
 

D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
6
 

 O
n
g
o
in
g
 

im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 

 O
W
P
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 

th
e
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 

E
n
fo
rc
e
m
e
n
t 

G
ro
u
p
 

Page 125



N
o
 T
im
e
 t
o
 W
a
s
te
: 
 T
h
e
 O
x
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 J
o
in
t 
M
u
n
ic
ip
a
l 
W
a
s
te
 M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
S
tr
a
te
g
y

N
o
 T
im
e
 t
o
 W
a
s
te
: 
 T
h
e
 O
x
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 J
o
in
t 
M
u
n
ic
ip
a
l 
W
a
s
te
 M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
S
tr
a
te
g
y

N
o
 T
im
e
 t
o
 W
a
s
te
: 
 T
h
e
 O
x
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 J
o
in
t 
M
u
n
ic
ip
a
l 
W
a
s
te
 M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
S
tr
a
te
g
y

N
o
 T
im
e
 t
o
 W
a
s
te
: 
 T
h
e
 O
x
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 J
o
in
t 
M
u
n
ic
ip
a
l 
W
a
s
te
 M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
    

 O
x
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 W
a
s
te
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 

 
A
3
 

 
 

 
 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

A
u
g
u
s
t 
2
0
0
6
  A
c
ti
o
n
s

A
c
ti
o
n
s

A
c
ti
o
n
s

A
c
ti
o
n
s
    

H
o
w
 d
o
 w
e
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
 

H
o
w
 d
o
 w
e
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
 

H
o
w
 d
o
 w
e
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
 

H
o
w
 d
o
 w
e
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
 

th
e
 a
c
ti
o
n
?

th
e
 a
c
ti
o
n
?

th
e
 a
c
ti
o
n
?

th
e
 a
c
ti
o
n
?    

W
h
a
t 
is
 t
h
e
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
 

W
h
a
t 
is
 t
h
e
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
 

W
h
a
t 
is
 t
h
e
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
 

W
h
a
t 
is
 t
h
e
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
 

o
f 
th
e
 a
c
ti
o
n
?

o
f 
th
e
 a
c
ti
o
n
?

o
f 
th
e
 a
c
ti
o
n
?

o
f 
th
e
 a
c
ti
o
n
?    

W
h
a
t 
re
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 

W
h
a
t 
re
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 

W
h
a
t 
re
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 

W
h
a
t 
re
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 

a
re
 r
e
q
u
i

a
re
 r
e
q
u
i

a
re
 r
e
q
u
i

a
re
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
?

re
d
?

re
d
?

re
d
?    

W
h
a
t 
a
re
 t
h
e
 r
is
k
s
 

W
h
a
t 
a
re
 t
h
e
 r
is
k
s
 

W
h
a
t 
a
re
 t
h
e
 r
is
k
s
 

W
h
a
t 
a
re
 t
h
e
 r
is
k
s
 

a
s
s
o
c
ia
te
d
 w
it
h
 

a
s
s
o
c
ia
te
d
 w
it
h
 

a
s
s
o
c
ia
te
d
 w
it
h
 

a
s
s
o
c
ia
te
d
 w
it
h
 

a
c
h
ie
v
in
g
 t
h
is
 

a
c
h
ie
v
in
g
 t
h
is
 

a
c
h
ie
v
in
g
 t
h
is
 

a
c
h
ie
v
in
g
 t
h
is
 

a
c
ti
o
n
?

a
c
ti
o
n
?

a
c
ti
o
n
?

a
c
ti
o
n
?    

W
h
e
n
 d
o
e
s
 t
h
e
 

W
h
e
n
 d
o
e
s
 t
h
e
 

W
h
e
n
 d
o
e
s
 t
h
e
 

W
h
e
n
 d
o
e
s
 t
h
e
 

a
c
ti
o
n
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 

a
c
ti
o
n
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 

a
c
ti
o
n
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 

a
c
ti
o
n
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 

b
e
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
?

b
e
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
?

b
e
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
?

b
e
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
?    

W
h
o
 i
s
 

W
h
o
 i
s
 

W
h
o
 i
s
 

W
h
o
 i
s
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib
le
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib
le
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib
le
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib
le
 

fo
r 
th
e
 

fo
r 
th
e
 

fo
r 
th
e
 

fo
r 
th
e
 

a
c
ti
o
n
?

a
c
ti
o
n
?

a
c
ti
o
n
?

a
c
ti
o
n
?    

o
f 
c
o
m
p
li
a
n
c
e
 o
f 
d
u
ty
 o
f 

c
a
re
 a
n
d
 w
a
s
te
 c
a
rr
ie
rs
 

re
g
is
tr
a
ti
o
n
 

•
 
R
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

a
m
o
u
n
t 
o
f 
tr
a
d
e
 w
a
s
te
 

in
 t
h
e
 h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld
 w
a
s
te
 

s
tr
e
a
m
. 

s
u
rv
e
il
la
n
c
e
 

e
q
u
ip
m
e
n
t.
 

c
le
a
ra
n
c
e
 a
n
d
 

re
c
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
 

•
 

F
a
il
u
re
 t
o
 r
e
a
c
h
 B
e
s
t 

V
a
lu
e
 P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

In
d
ic
a
to
rs
 (
B
V
P
I)
 

ta
rg
e
ts
. 
 

 D
e
li
v
e
r 
th
e
 c
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
s
 

in
it
ia
ti
v
e
s
 d
e
ta
il
e
d
 i
n
 A
n
n
e
x
 B
 –
 

W
a
s
te
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 r
e
u
s
e
 p
la
n
. 

 D
e
v
e
lo
p
 a
n
d
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
t 
a
 

m
a
rk
e
ti
n
g
 p
la
n
. 
B
u
il
d
 a
n
 

a
d
v
e
rt
is
in
g
 c
a
m
p
a
ig
n
 w
it
h
 

s
tr
o
n
g
 j
o
in
t 
b
ra
n
d
in
g
. 

Im
p
le
m
e
n
t 
a
n
 e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 

p
la
n
 f
o
r 
s
c
h
o
o
ls
 a
n
d
 

c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 g
ro
u
p
s
. 
C
re
a
te
 

a
 c
u
s
to
m
e
r 
fe
e
d
b
a
c
k
 

s
y
s
te
m
, 
g
a
in
in
g
 f
e
e
d
b
a
c
k
 

o
n
 c
a
m
p
a
ig
n
s
 a
n
d
 i
d
e
a
s
 

fr
o
m
 r
e
s
id
e
n
ts
. 

 •
 
Jo
in
t 
b
ra
n
d
in
g
 f
o
r 
fu
tu
re
 

c
a
m
p
a
ig
n
s
 a
n
d
 

a
d
v
e
rt
is
in
g
 

•
 
W
o
rk
 t
o
 m
a
rk
e
ti
n
g
 a
n
d
 

e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 p
la
n
s
, 
m
a
k
in
g
 

b
e
s
t 
u
s
e
 o
f 
re
s
o
u
rc
e
, 

n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
e
v
e
n
ts
 a
n
d
 

p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
im
p
a
c
t 

•
 
G
a
in
 i
n
p
u
t 
fr
o
m
 

c
u
s
to
m
e
rs
 o
n
 e
x
is
ti
n
g
 

in
it
ia
ti
v
e
s
 a
n
d
 f
u
tu
re
 

c
a
m
p
a
ig
n
s
/
p
ro
je
c
ts
.,
 

e
n
s
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
a
t 
p
ro
je
c
ts
 

a
re
 f
it
 f
o
r 
p
u
rp
o
s
e
  

•
 
R
e
d
u
c
e
d
 M
S
W
 a
ri
s
in
g
s
 

•
 
R
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 

L
A
T
S
 p
e
n
a
lt
ie
s
. 

  

 •
 
O
ff
ic
e
r 
ti
m
e
 

•
 
F
u
n
d
in
g
 t
o
 

im
p
le
m
e
n
t 
th
e
 

p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 

•
 
S
ig
n
 u
p
 f
ro
m
 

O
W
P
 o
n
 j
o
in
t 

b
ra
n
d
in
g
. 
 

 •
 
N
o
t 
re
a
c
h
in
g
 t
a
rg
e
t 

a
u
d
ie
n
c
e
 

•
 
M
is
s
e
d
 o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
y
 

fr
o
m
 e
ff
ic
ie
n
c
y
 o
f 

s
c
a
le
s
 o
f 
jo
in
t 

p
ro
c
u
re
m
e
n
t 

•
 
U
n
ta
rg
e
te
d
 

a
d
v
e
rt
is
in
g
 a
n
d
 

m
a
rk
e
ti
n
g
 c
a
m
p
a
ig
n
.  

 

 O
n
g
o
in
g
 

im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 

 O
W
P
/
In
d
iv
id
u
a
l 

A
u
th
o
ri
ti
e
s
  

A
n
n
e
x
 A
 

A
n
n
e
x
 A
 

A
n
n
e
x
 A
 

A
n
n
e
x
 A
 - ---
 O
x
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 W
a
s
te
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 A
c
ti
o
n
 P
la
n

 O
x
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 W
a
s
te
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 A
c
ti
o
n
 P
la
n

 O
x
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 W
a
s
te
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 A
c
ti
o
n
 P
la
n

 O
x
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 W
a
s
te
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 A
c
ti
o
n
 P
la
n
    

Page 126



N
o
 T
im
e
 t
o
 W
a
s
te
: 
 T
h
e
 O
x
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 J
o
in
t 
M
u
n
ic
ip
a
l 
W
a
s
te
 M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
S
tr
a
te
g
y

N
o
 T
im
e
 t
o
 W
a
s
te
: 
 T
h
e
 O
x
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 J
o
in
t 
M
u
n
ic
ip
a
l 
W
a
s
te
 M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
S
tr
a
te
g
y

N
o
 T
im
e
 t
o
 W
a
s
te
: 
 T
h
e
 O
x
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 J
o
in
t 
M
u
n
ic
ip
a
l 
W
a
s
te
 M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
S
tr
a
te
g
y

N
o
 T
im
e
 t
o
 W
a
s
te
: 
 T
h
e
 O
x
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 J
o
in
t 
M
u
n
ic
ip
a
l 
W
a
s
te
 M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
    

 O
x
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 W
a
s
te
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 

 
A
4
 

 
 

 
 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

A
u
g
u
s
t 
2
0
0
6
  A
c
ti
o
n
s

A
c
ti
o
n
s

A
c
ti
o
n
s

A
c
ti
o
n
s
    

H
o
w
 d
o
 w
e
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
 

H
o
w
 d
o
 w
e
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
 

H
o
w
 d
o
 w
e
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
 

H
o
w
 d
o
 w
e
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
 

th
e
 a
c
ti
o
n
?

th
e
 a
c
ti
o
n
?

th
e
 a
c
ti
o
n
?

th
e
 a
c
ti
o
n
?    

W
h
a
t 
is
 t
h
e
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
 

W
h
a
t 
is
 t
h
e
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
 

W
h
a
t 
is
 t
h
e
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
 

W
h
a
t 
is
 t
h
e
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
 

o
f 
th
e
 a
c
ti
o
n
?

o
f 
th
e
 a
c
ti
o
n
?

o
f 
th
e
 a
c
ti
o
n
?

o
f 
th
e
 a
c
ti
o
n
?    

W
h
a
t 
re
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 

W
h
a
t 
re
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 

W
h
a
t 
re
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 

W
h
a
t 
re
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 

a
re
 r
e
q
u
i

a
re
 r
e
q
u
i

a
re
 r
e
q
u
i

a
re
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
?

re
d
?

re
d
?

re
d
?    

W
h
a
t 
a
re
 t
h
e
 r
is
k
s
 

W
h
a
t 
a
re
 t
h
e
 r
is
k
s
 

W
h
a
t 
a
re
 t
h
e
 r
is
k
s
 

W
h
a
t 
a
re
 t
h
e
 r
is
k
s
 

a
s
s
o
c
ia
te
d
 w
it
h
 

a
s
s
o
c
ia
te
d
 w
it
h
 

a
s
s
o
c
ia
te
d
 w
it
h
 

a
s
s
o
c
ia
te
d
 w
it
h
 

a
c
h
ie
v
in
g
 t
h
is
 

a
c
h
ie
v
in
g
 t
h
is
 

a
c
h
ie
v
in
g
 t
h
is
 

a
c
h
ie
v
in
g
 t
h
is
 

a
c
ti
o
n
?

a
c
ti
o
n
?

a
c
ti
o
n
?

a
c
ti
o
n
?    

W
h
e
n
 d
o
e
s
 t
h
e
 

W
h
e
n
 d
o
e
s
 t
h
e
 

W
h
e
n
 d
o
e
s
 t
h
e
 

W
h
e
n
 d
o
e
s
 t
h
e
 

a
c
ti
o
n
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 

a
c
ti
o
n
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 

a
c
ti
o
n
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 

a
c
ti
o
n
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 

b
e
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
?

b
e
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
?

b
e
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
?

b
e
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
?    

W
h
o
 i
s
 

W
h
o
 i
s
 

W
h
o
 i
s
 

W
h
o
 i
s
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib
le
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib
le
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib
le
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib
le
 

fo
r 
th
e
 

fo
r 
th
e
 

fo
r 
th
e
 

fo
r 
th
e
 

a
c
ti
o
n
?

a
c
ti
o
n
?

a
c
ti
o
n
?

a
c
ti
o
n
?    

  

 D
e
v
e
lo
p
 t
h
e
 w
a
s
te
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 

re
u
s
e
 (
W
R
R
) 
to
o
ls
 l
is
te
d
 i
n
 A
n
n
e
x
 B
. 

 P
ro
v
id
e
 t
h
e
 t
o
o
ls
 t
h
a
t 

re
s
id
e
n
ts
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 r
e
d
u
c
e
 

a
n
d
 r
e
u
s
e
 t
h
e
ir
 w
a
s
te
. 

 •
 
W
R
R
 o
f 
M
S
W
 

•
 
S
a
v
in
g
 o
n
 c
o
ll
e
c
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 

d
is
p
o
s
a
l 
c
o
s
ts
 

•
 
In
c
re
a
s
e
 i
n
 r
e
u
s
e
 o
f 

w
a
s
te
 

•
 
E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 

O
x
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
’s
 r
e
s
id
e
n
ts
 

o
n
 W
R
R
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 

•
 
S
u
p
p
o
rt
 r
e
s
id
e
n
ts
 t
o
 b
e
 

p
ro
a
c
ti
v
e
. 

 

 •
 
O
ff
ic
e
r 
ti
m
e
 

•
 
R
in
g
fe
n
c
e
d
 

fu
n
d
s
 f
o
r 
jo
in
t 

p
ro
je
c
ts
 

•
 
P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 

w
o
rk
in
g
 w
it
h
 

e
x
te
rn
a
l 

g
ro
u
p
s
. 

 •
 

In
c
re
a
s
e
 i
n
 

c
o
ll
e
c
ti
o
n
/
d
is
p
o
s
a
l 

c
o
s
ts
 

•
 

P
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
L
A
T
S
 

p
e
n
a
lt
ie
s
 

•
 

E
m
p
h
a
s
is
 r
e
m
a
in
s
 

o
n
 r
e
c
y
c
li
n
g
 a
n
d
 

d
is
p
o
s
a
l 
ra
th
e
r 
th
a
n
 

th
e
 t
o
p
 o
f 
th
e
 

h
ie
ra
rc
h
y
 

•
 

F
a
il
u
re
 t
o
 m
e
e
t 
B
V
P
I 

ta
rg
e
ts
. 
 

 O
n
g
o
in
g
 

im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 

 O
W
P
/
O
C
C
 

 D
e
v
e
lo
p
 a
 w
a
s
te
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 

re
u
s
e
 a
c
ti
o
n
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 t
o
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 

th
e
 W
a
s
te
 R
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 R
e
u
s
e
 

(W
R
R
) 
P
la
n
 

       

 F
u
n
d
, 
d
e
v
e
lo
p
, 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
 

a
n
d
 p
ro
m
o
te
 W
R
R
 

in
it
ia
ti
v
e
s
 i
n
 h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld
s
, 

s
c
h
o
o
ls
, 
b
u
s
in
e
s
s
e
s
 a
n
d
 

c
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
. 

 •
 
R
e
d
u
c
e
d
 M
S
W
 a
ri
s
in
g
s
 

•
 
R
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 

L
A
T
S
 p
e
n
a
lt
ie
s
 

•
 
S
u
p
p
o
rt
 

c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
/
b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 

s
e
c
to
r 

•
 
In
c
re
a
s
e
 c
u
s
to
m
e
r 

s
a
ti
s
fa
c
ti
o
n
 

•
 
In
c
re
a
s
e
d
 W
R
R
. 

  

 •
 
O
ff
ic
e
r 
ti
m
e
 

•
 
F
u
n
d
in
g
 f
o
r 

p
ro
je
c
ts
. 

 •
 

N
o
 w
a
s
te
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 

•
 

P
o
s
s
ib
le
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
d
 

w
a
s
te
 c
o
ll
e
c
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 

d
is
p
o
s
a
l 
c
o
s
ts
. 

 P
ro
je
c
t 
in
it
ia
ti
o
n
 

S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
0
6
 

 O
n
g
o
in
g
 

im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 

 O
W
P
 

Page 127



N
o
 T
im
e
 t
o
 W
a
s
te
: 
 T
h
e
 O
x
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 J
o
in
t 
M
u
n
ic
ip
a
l 
W
a
s
te
 M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
S
tr
a
te
g
y

N
o
 T
im
e
 t
o
 W
a
s
te
: 
 T
h
e
 O
x
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 J
o
in
t 
M
u
n
ic
ip
a
l 
W
a
s
te
 M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
S
tr
a
te
g
y

N
o
 T
im
e
 t
o
 W
a
s
te
: 
 T
h
e
 O
x
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 J
o
in
t 
M
u
n
ic
ip
a
l 
W
a
s
te
 M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
S
tr
a
te
g
y

N
o
 T
im
e
 t
o
 W
a
s
te
: 
 T
h
e
 O
x
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 J
o
in
t 
M
u
n
ic
ip
a
l 
W
a
s
te
 M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
    

 O
x
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 W
a
s
te
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 

 
A
5
 

 
 

 
 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

A
u
g
u
s
t 
2
0
0
6
  A
c
ti
o
n
s

A
c
ti
o
n
s

A
c
ti
o
n
s

A
c
ti
o
n
s
    

H
o
w
 d
o
 w
e
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
 

H
o
w
 d
o
 w
e
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
 

H
o
w
 d
o
 w
e
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
 

H
o
w
 d
o
 w
e
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
 

th
e
 a
c
ti
o
n
?

th
e
 a
c
ti
o
n
?

th
e
 a
c
ti
o
n
?

th
e
 a
c
ti
o
n
?    

W
h
a
t 
is
 t
h
e
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
 

W
h
a
t 
is
 t
h
e
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
 

W
h
a
t 
is
 t
h
e
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
 

W
h
a
t 
is
 t
h
e
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
 

o
f 
th
e
 a
c
ti
o
n
?

o
f 
th
e
 a
c
ti
o
n
?

o
f 
th
e
 a
c
ti
o
n
?

o
f 
th
e
 a
c
ti
o
n
?    

W
h
a
t 
re
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 

W
h
a
t 
re
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 

W
h
a
t 
re
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 

W
h
a
t 
re
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 

a
re
 r
e
q
u
i

a
re
 r
e
q
u
i

a
re
 r
e
q
u
i

a
re
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
?

re
d
?

re
d
?

re
d
?    

W
h
a
t 
a
re
 t
h
e
 r
is
k
s
 

W
h
a
t 
a
re
 t
h
e
 r
is
k
s
 

W
h
a
t 
a
re
 t
h
e
 r
is
k
s
 

W
h
a
t 
a
re
 t
h
e
 r
is
k
s
 

a
s
s
o
c
ia
te
d
 w
it
h
 

a
s
s
o
c
ia
te
d
 w
it
h
 

a
s
s
o
c
ia
te
d
 w
it
h
 

a
s
s
o
c
ia
te
d
 w
it
h
 

a
c
h
ie
v
in
g
 t
h
is
 

a
c
h
ie
v
in
g
 t
h
is
 

a
c
h
ie
v
in
g
 t
h
is
 

a
c
h
ie
v
in
g
 t
h
is
 

a
c
ti
o
n
?

a
c
ti
o
n
?

a
c
ti
o
n
?

a
c
ti
o
n
?    

W
h
e
n
 d
o
e
s
 t
h
e
 

W
h
e
n
 d
o
e
s
 t
h
e
 

W
h
e
n
 d
o
e
s
 t
h
e
 

W
h
e
n
 d
o
e
s
 t
h
e
 

a
c
ti
o
n
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 

a
c
ti
o
n
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 

a
c
ti
o
n
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 

a
c
ti
o
n
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 

b
e
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
?

b
e
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
?

b
e
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
?

b
e
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
?    

W
h
o
 i
s
 

W
h
o
 i
s
 

W
h
o
 i
s
 

W
h
o
 i
s
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib
le
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib
le
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib
le
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib
le
 

fo
r 
th
e
 

fo
r 
th
e
 

fo
r 
th
e
 

fo
r 
th
e
 

a
c
ti
o
n
?

a
c
ti
o
n
?

a
c
ti
o
n
?

a
c
ti
o
n
?    

                

    

R
e
c
y

R
e
c
y

R
e
c
y

R
e
c
y
c
li
n
g
 a
n
d
 C
o
m
p
o
s
ti
n
g

c
li
n
g
 a
n
d
 C
o
m
p
o
s
ti
n
g

c
li
n
g
 a
n
d
 C
o
m
p
o
s
ti
n
g

c
li
n
g
 a
n
d
 C
o
m
p
o
s
ti
n
g
 

P
o
li
c
y
  
 6
: 
  

P
o
li
c
y
  
 6
: 
  

P
o
li
c
y
  
 6
: 
  

P
o
li
c
y
  
 6
: 
  
T
h
e
 O
x
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 W
a
s
te
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 w
il
l 
p
ro
v
id
e
 a
n
 i
n
te
g
ra
te
d
 s
y
s
te
m
 o
f 
c
o
ll
e
c
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
in
g
 o
f 
h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld
 w
a
s
te
 w
h
ic
h
 w
il
l 
a
c
h
ie
v
e
, 
a
s
 a
 

m
in
im
u
m
, 
th
e
 W
a
st
e
 S
tr
a
te
g
y 
2
0
0
0
  

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 r
e
c
y
c
li
n
g
 a
n
d
 c
o
m
p
o
s
ti
n
g
 t
a
rg
e
ts
 f
o
r 
h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld
 w
a
s
te
 (
1
).
 

P
o
li
c
y
  
 7
: 
  

P
o
li
c
y
  
 7
: 
  

P
o
li
c
y
  
 7
: 
  

P
o
li
c
y
  
 7
: 
  
T
h
e
 O
x
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 W
a
s
te
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 w
il
l 
e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
re
c
y
c
li
n
g
 f
a
c
il
it
ie
s
 a
re
 a
v
a
il
a
b
le
 t
o
 a
ll
 r
e
s
id
e
n
ts
. 

P
o
li
c
y
  
 8
: 
  

P
o
li
c
y
  
 8
: 
  

P
o
li
c
y
  
 8
: 
  

P
o
li
c
y
  
 8
: 
  
T
h
e
 O
x
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 W
a
s
te
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 w
il
l 
e
n
c
o
u
ra
g
e
 h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
 a
n
d
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
e
s
 t
o
 s
e
p
a
ra
te
 w
a
s
te
 f
o
r 
re
c
y
c
li
n
g
 c
o
ll
e
c
ti
o
n
s
 b
y
 p
ro
v
id
in
g
 t
a
rg
e
te
d
 

in
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 a
w
a
re
n
e
s
s
-
ra
is
in
g
 c
a
m
p
a
ig
n
s
.    
    

P
o
li
c
y
 1
3
: 
  

P
o
li
c
y
 1
3
: 
  

P
o
li
c
y
 1
3
: 
  

P
o
li
c
y
 1
3
: 
  
T
h
e
 O
x
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 W
a
s
te
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 w
il
l 
a
s
s
is
t 
th
e
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
lo
c
a
l 
m
a
rk
e
ts
 f
o
r 
re
c
o
v
e
re
d
 m
a
te
ri
a
ls
. 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
( (((1 111
) 
T
h
is
 p
o
li
c
y
 w
il
l 
b
e

) 
T
h
is
 p
o
li
c
y
 w
il
l 
b
e

) 
T
h
is
 p
o
li
c
y
 w
il
l 
b
e

) 
T
h
is
 p
o
li
c
y
 w
il
l 
b
e
 r
e
v
is
e
d
 a
s
 a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 w
it
h
 r
e
v
is
io
n
s
 t
o
 W
a
s
te
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
 2
0
0
0
.

 r
e
v
is
e
d
 a
s
 a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 w
it
h
 r
e
v
is
io
n
s
 t
o
 W
a
s
te
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
 2
0
0
0
.

 r
e
v
is
e
d
 a
s
 a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 w
it
h
 r
e
v
is
io
n
s
 t
o
 W
a
s
te
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
 2
0
0
0
.

 r
e
v
is
e
d
 a
s
 a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 w
it
h
 r
e
v
is
io
n
s
 t
o
 W
a
s
te
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
 2
0
0
0
.     

Page 128



N
o
 T
im
e
 t
o
 W
a
s
te
: 
 T
h
e
 O
x
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 J
o
in
t 
M
u
n
ic
ip
a
l 
W
a
s
te
 M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
S
tr
a
te
g
y

N
o
 T
im
e
 t
o
 W
a
s
te
: 
 T
h
e
 O
x
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 J
o
in
t 
M
u
n
ic
ip
a
l 
W
a
s
te
 M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
S
tr
a
te
g
y

N
o
 T
im
e
 t
o
 W
a
s
te
: 
 T
h
e
 O
x
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 J
o
in
t 
M
u
n
ic
ip
a
l 
W
a
s
te
 M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
S
tr
a
te
g
y

N
o
 T
im
e
 t
o
 W
a
s
te
: 
 T
h
e
 O
x
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 J
o
in
t 
M
u
n
ic
ip
a
l 
W
a
s
te
 M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
    

 O
x
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 W
a
s
te
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 

 
A
6
 

 
 

 
 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

A
u
g
u
s
t 
2
0
0
6
  A
c
ti
o
n
s

A
c
ti
o
n
s

A
c
ti
o
n
s

A
c
ti
o
n
s
    

H
o
w
 d
o
 w
e
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
 

H
o
w
 d
o
 w
e
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
 

H
o
w
 d
o
 w
e
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
 

H
o
w
 d
o
 w
e
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
 

th
e
 a
c
ti
o
n
?

th
e
 a
c
ti
o
n
?

th
e
 a
c
ti
o
n
?

th
e
 a
c
ti
o
n
?    

W
h
a
t 
is
 t
h
e
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
 

W
h
a
t 
is
 t
h
e
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
 

W
h
a
t 
is
 t
h
e
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
 

W
h
a
t 
is
 t
h
e
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
 

o
f 
th
e
 a
c
ti
o
n
?

o
f 
th
e
 a
c
ti
o
n
?

o
f 
th
e
 a
c
ti
o
n
?

o
f 
th
e
 a
c
ti
o
n
?    

W
h
a
t 
re
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 

W
h
a
t 
re
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 

W
h
a
t 
re
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 

W
h
a
t 
re
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 

a
re
 r
e
q
u
i

a
re
 r
e
q
u
i

a
re
 r
e
q
u
i

a
re
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
?

re
d
?

re
d
?

re
d
?    

W
h
a
t 
a
re
 t
h
e
 r
is
k
s
 

W
h
a
t 
a
re
 t
h
e
 r
is
k
s
 

W
h
a
t 
a
re
 t
h
e
 r
is
k
s
 

W
h
a
t 
a
re
 t
h
e
 r
is
k
s
 

a
s
s
o
c
ia
te
d
 w
it
h
 

a
s
s
o
c
ia
te
d
 w
it
h
 

a
s
s
o
c
ia
te
d
 w
it
h
 

a
s
s
o
c
ia
te
d
 w
it
h
 

a
c
h
ie
v
in
g
 t
h
is
 

a
c
h
ie
v
in
g
 t
h
is
 

a
c
h
ie
v
in
g
 t
h
is
 

a
c
h
ie
v
in
g
 t
h
is
 

a
c
ti
o
n
?

a
c
ti
o
n
?

a
c
ti
o
n
?

a
c
ti
o
n
?    

W
h
e
n
 d
o
e
s
 t
h
e
 

W
h
e
n
 d
o
e
s
 t
h
e
 

W
h
e
n
 d
o
e
s
 t
h
e
 

W
h
e
n
 d
o
e
s
 t
h
e
 

a
c
ti
o
n
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 

a
c
ti
o
n
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 

a
c
ti
o
n
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 

a
c
ti
o
n
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 

b
e
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
?

b
e
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
?

b
e
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
?

b
e
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
?    

W
h
o
 i
s
 

W
h
o
 i
s
 

W
h
o
 i
s
 

W
h
o
 i
s
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib
le
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib
le
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib
le
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib
le
 

fo
r 
th
e
 

fo
r 
th
e
 

fo
r 
th
e
 

fo
r 
th
e
 

a
c
ti
o
n
?

a
c
ti
o
n
?

a
c
ti
o
n
?

a
c
ti
o
n
?    

 D
is
tr
ic
t 
C
o
u
n
c
il
s
 t
o
 h
a
v
e
 c
o
s
te
d
 

im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
s
 i
n
 

p
la
c
e
 f
o
r 
in
tr
o
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o
f 

fo
rt
n
ig
h
tl
y
 r
e
s
id
u
a
l 
w
a
s
te
 

c
o
ll
e
c
ti
o
n
s
 a
n
d
 D
is
tr
ic
t-
s
p
e
c
if
ic
 

d
ry
 r
e
c
y
c
la
b
le
s
/
 g
a
rd
e
n
/
 k
it
c
h
e
n
 

w
a
s
te
 c
o
ll
e
c
ti
o
n
s
, 
th
a
t 

c
o
ll
e
c
ti
v
e
ly
 d
e
li
v
e
r 
P
o
li
c
y
 6
 

ta
rg
e
ts
. 

   

 E
a
c
h
 D
is
tr
ic
t 
to
 c
o
n
s
id
e
r 

in
te
g
ra
te
d
 a
n
d
 

c
o
ll
e
c
ti
o
n
-
o
n
ly
 f
in
a
n
c
ia
l 

a
n
d
 e
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
ta
l 
c
o
s
t 

m
o
d
e
ls
, 
a
s
 n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry
, 

a
n
d
 d
e
te
rm

in
e
 t
h
e
 m
o
s
t 

a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 c
o
ll
e
c
ti
o
n
 

s
y
s
te
m
s
. 

 L
o
c
a
l 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a
s
 

n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry
. 

 

•
 P
o
li
c
y
 6
 r
e
c
y
c
li
n
g
 

a
n
d
 c
o
m
p
o
s
ti
n
g
 

ta
rg
e
ts
 d
e
li
v
e
re
d
 t
o
 

d
e
a
d
li
n
e
s
. 

  

 •
 R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 t
o
 

im
p
le
m
e
n
t 

n
e
w
 c
o
ll
e
c
ti
o
n
 

s
y
s
te
m
s
 w
il
l 

b
e
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 

in
 m
o
d
e
li
n
g
 

re
p
o
rt
s
. 

 

•
 A
c
ti
o
n
s
 a
re
n
’t
 

s
u
ff
ic
ie
n
t 
to
 d
e
li
v
e
r 

p
o
li
c
y
 6
 t
a
rg
e
ts
. 

 A
c
ti
o
n
 p
la
n
s
 i
n
 

p
la
c
e
 b
y
 

D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
6
 

 O
W
P
/
 D
is
tr
ic
t 

C
o
u
n
c
il
s
 

 T
h
e
 O
x
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il
s
 w
il
l 

a
im
 t
o
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
 r
e
c
y
c
li
n
g
 a
n
d
 

c
o
m
p
o
s
ti
n
g
 p
a
rt
ic
ip
a
ti
o
n
 r
a
te
s
 

b
y
: 

•
 

1
0
%
 b
y
 2
0
1
0
; 
a
n
d
 

•
 

2
0
%
 b
y
 2
0
2
0
. 

 P
ro
m
o
te
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
n
d
 

e
d
u
c
a
te
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

m
e
m
b
e
rs
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 

e
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 

d
is
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n
 o
f 

e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 m
a
te
ri
a
ls
 

 In
c
e
n
ti
v
e
 m
e
a
s
u
re
s
 

u
s
e
d
 t
o
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
 h
o
m
e
 

c
o
m
p
o
s
ti
n
g
. 

 •
 
In
c
re
a
s
e
d
 r
e
c
y
c
li
n
g
 

•
 
M
e
e
t 
g
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t 

ta
rg
e
ts
. 

 •
 
F
u
n
d
in
g
 

•
 
O
ff
ic
e
r 
ti
m
e
. 

 •
 
T
a
rg
e
ts
 n
o
t 
m
e
t 

•
 
P
a
rt
ic
ip
a
ti
o
n
 

d
o
e
s
n
’t
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
. 

 O
n
g
o
in
g
 

 O
W
P
 

A
n
n
e
x
 A
 

A
n
n
e
x
 A
 

A
n
n
e
x
 A
 

A
n
n
e
x
 A
 - ---
 O
x
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 W
a
s
te
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 A
c
ti
o
n
 P
la

 O
x
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 W
a
s
te
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 A
c
ti
o
n
 P
la

 O
x
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 W
a
s
te
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 A
c
ti
o
n
 P
la

 O
x
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 W
a
s
te
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 A
c
ti
o
n
 P
la
n nnn
    

Page 129



N
o
 T
im
e
 t
o
 W
a
s
te
: 
 T
h
e
 O
x
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 J
o
in
t 
M
u
n
ic
ip
a
l 
W
a
s
te
 M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
S
tr
a
te
g
y

N
o
 T
im
e
 t
o
 W
a
s
te
: 
 T
h
e
 O
x
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 J
o
in
t 
M
u
n
ic
ip
a
l 
W
a
s
te
 M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
S
tr
a
te
g
y

N
o
 T
im
e
 t
o
 W
a
s
te
: 
 T
h
e
 O
x
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 J
o
in
t 
M
u
n
ic
ip
a
l 
W
a
s
te
 M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
S
tr
a
te
g
y

N
o
 T
im
e
 t
o
 W
a
s
te
: 
 T
h
e
 O
x
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 J
o
in
t 
M
u
n
ic
ip
a
l 
W
a
s
te
 M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
    

 O
x
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 W
a
s
te
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 

 
A
7
 

 
 

 
 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

A
u
g
u
s
t 
2
0
0
6
  A
c
ti
o
n
s

A
c
ti
o
n
s

A
c
ti
o
n
s

A
c
ti
o
n
s
    

H
o
w
 d
o
 w
e
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
 

H
o
w
 d
o
 w
e
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
 

H
o
w
 d
o
 w
e
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
 

H
o
w
 d
o
 w
e
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
 

th
e
 a
c
ti
o
n
?

th
e
 a
c
ti
o
n
?

th
e
 a
c
ti
o
n
?

th
e
 a
c
ti
o
n
?    

W
h
a
t 
is
 t
h
e
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
 

W
h
a
t 
is
 t
h
e
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
 

W
h
a
t 
is
 t
h
e
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
 

W
h
a
t 
is
 t
h
e
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
 

o
f 
th
e
 a
c
ti
o
n
?

o
f 
th
e
 a
c
ti
o
n
?

o
f 
th
e
 a
c
ti
o
n
?

o
f 
th
e
 a
c
ti
o
n
?    

W
h
a
t 
re
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 

W
h
a
t 
re
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 

W
h
a
t 
re
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 

W
h
a
t 
re
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 

a
re
 r
e
q
u
i

a
re
 r
e
q
u
i

a
re
 r
e
q
u
i

a
re
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
?

re
d
?

re
d
?

re
d
?    

W
h
a
t 
a
re
 t
h
e
 r
is
k
s
 

W
h
a
t 
a
re
 t
h
e
 r
is
k
s
 

W
h
a
t 
a
re
 t
h
e
 r
is
k
s
 

W
h
a
t 
a
re
 t
h
e
 r
is
k
s
 

a
s
s
o
c
ia
te
d
 w
it
h
 

a
s
s
o
c
ia
te
d
 w
it
h
 

a
s
s
o
c
ia
te
d
 w
it
h
 

a
s
s
o
c
ia
te
d
 w
it
h
 

a
c
h
ie
v
in
g
 t
h
is
 

a
c
h
ie
v
in
g
 t
h
is
 

a
c
h
ie
v
in
g
 t
h
is
 

a
c
h
ie
v
in
g
 t
h
is
 

a
c
ti
o
n
?

a
c
ti
o
n
?

a
c
ti
o
n
?

a
c
ti
o
n
?    

W
h
e
n
 d
o
e
s
 t
h
e
 

W
h
e
n
 d
o
e
s
 t
h
e
 

W
h
e
n
 d
o
e
s
 t
h
e
 

W
h
e
n
 d
o
e
s
 t
h
e
 

a
c
ti
o
n
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 

a
c
ti
o
n
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 

a
c
ti
o
n
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 

a
c
ti
o
n
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 

b
e
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
?

b
e
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
?

b
e
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
?

b
e
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
?    

W
h
o
 i
s
 

W
h
o
 i
s
 

W
h
o
 i
s
 

W
h
o
 i
s
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib
le
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib
le
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib
le
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib
le
 

fo
r 
th
e
 

fo
r 
th
e
 

fo
r 
th
e
 

fo
r 
th
e
 

a
c
ti
o
n
?

a
c
ti
o
n
?

a
c
ti
o
n
?

a
c
ti
o
n
?    

      

 T
h
e
 O
x
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il
s
 w
il
l 

c
o
ll
e
c
ti
v
e
ly
 a
im
 t
o
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
 1
0
0
%
 

c
o
v
e
ra
g
e
 f
o
r 
re
c
y
c
li
n
g
 

c
o
ll
e
c
ti
o
n
s
 a
c
ro
s
s
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
ty
 b
y
 

2
0
1
0
. 

 W
o
rk
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 

c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 a
n
d
 

c
o
n
tr
a
c
to
r/
s
 t
o
 e
x
te
n
d
 

c
o
ll
e
c
ti
o
n
s
 

 •
 
R
e
d
u
c
e
d
 M
S
W
 

a
ri
s
in
g
s
 

•
 
In
c
re
a
s
e
d
 r
e
c
y
c
li
n
g
. 

 •
 
O
ff
ic
e
r 
ti
m
e
 

•
 
F
u
n
d
in
g
. 

 •
 
L
o
w
 p
a
rt
ic
ip
a
ti
o
n
. 

 2
0
1
0
 

 O
W
P
/
 

C
o
n
tr
a
c
to
r 

 O
W
P
 w
il
l 
p
ro
v
id
e
 t
a
rg
e
te
d
 a
n
d
 

s
p
e
c
if
ic
 a
d
v
ic
e
 t
o
 r
e
s
id
e
n
ts
 

re
g
a
rd
in
g
 t
h
e
ir
 r
e
c
y
c
li
n
g
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
, 
p
a
rt
ic
u
la
rl
y
 t
o
 l
o
w
-

p
e
rf
o
rm

in
g
 a
re
a
s
 a
n
d
 w
il
l 

c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 e
n
c
o
u
ra
g
e
 r
e
s
id
e
n
ts
 

to
 u
s
e
 r
e
c
y
c
li
n
g
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
, 
a
t 
th
e
 

k
e
rb
s
id
e
, 
b
ri
n
g
 b
a
n
k
s
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 

W
a
s
te
 R
e
c
y
c
li
n
g
 C
e
n
tr
e
s
 (
W
R
C
s
) 

 D
e
v
e
lo
p
 a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 

e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 

m
a
te
ri
a
ls
/
p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
s
 

a
n
d
 

d
is
tr
ib
u
te
/
im
p
le
m
e
n
t 

 •
 
R
e
d
u
c
e
d
 M
S
W
 

a
ri
s
in
g
s
 

•
 
In
c
re
a
s
e
d
 r
e
c
y
c
li
n
g
 

•
 
D
e
c
re
a
s
e
d
 

c
o
n
ta
m
in
a
ti
o
n
. 

 •
 
O
ff
ic
e
r 
ti
m
e
 

•
 
F
u
n
d
in
g
. 

 •
 
P
a
rt
ic
ip
a
ti
o
n
 

d
o
e
s
n
’t
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
. 

 O
n
g
o
in
g
 

 O
W
P
 

 S
u
p
p
o
rt
 r
e
c
y
c
li
n
g
 s
c
h
e
m
e
s
 

 P
ro
m
o
te
 a
n
d
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 

 •
 
S
u
s
ta
in
e
d
 r
e
c
y
c
li
n
g
 

 •
 
F
u
n
d
in
g
 f
o
r 

 •
 F
a
il
u
re
 o
f 
re
c
y
c
li
n
g
 

 O
n
g
o
in
g
 

 O
W
P
  

Page 130



N
o
 T
im
e
 t
o
 W
a
s
te
: 
 T
h
e
 O
x
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 J
o
in
t 
M
u
n
ic
ip
a
l 
W
a
s
te
 M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
S
tr
a
te
g
y

N
o
 T
im
e
 t
o
 W
a
s
te
: 
 T
h
e
 O
x
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 J
o
in
t 
M
u
n
ic
ip
a
l 
W
a
s
te
 M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
S
tr
a
te
g
y

N
o
 T
im
e
 t
o
 W
a
s
te
: 
 T
h
e
 O
x
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 J
o
in
t 
M
u
n
ic
ip
a
l 
W
a
s
te
 M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
S
tr
a
te
g
y

N
o
 T
im
e
 t
o
 W
a
s
te
: 
 T
h
e
 O
x
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 J
o
in
t 
M
u
n
ic
ip
a
l 
W
a
s
te
 M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
    

 O
x
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 W
a
s
te
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 

 
A
8
 

 
 

 
 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

A
u
g
u
s
t 
2
0
0
6
  A
c
ti
o
n
s

A
c
ti
o
n
s

A
c
ti
o
n
s

A
c
ti
o
n
s
    

H
o
w
 d
o
 w
e
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
 

H
o
w
 d
o
 w
e
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
 

H
o
w
 d
o
 w
e
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
 

H
o
w
 d
o
 w
e
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
 

th
e
 a
c
ti
o
n
?

th
e
 a
c
ti
o
n
?

th
e
 a
c
ti
o
n
?

th
e
 a
c
ti
o
n
?    

W
h
a
t 
is
 t
h
e
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
 

W
h
a
t 
is
 t
h
e
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
 

W
h
a
t 
is
 t
h
e
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
 

W
h
a
t 
is
 t
h
e
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
 

o
f 
th
e
 a
c
ti
o
n
?

o
f 
th
e
 a
c
ti
o
n
?

o
f 
th
e
 a
c
ti
o
n
?

o
f 
th
e
 a
c
ti
o
n
?    

W
h
a
t 
re
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 

W
h
a
t 
re
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 

W
h
a
t 
re
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 

W
h
a
t 
re
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 

a
re
 r
e
q
u
i

a
re
 r
e
q
u
i

a
re
 r
e
q
u
i

a
re
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
?

re
d
?

re
d
?

re
d
?    

W
h
a
t 
a
re
 t
h
e
 r
is
k
s
 

W
h
a
t 
a
re
 t
h
e
 r
is
k
s
 

W
h
a
t 
a
re
 t
h
e
 r
is
k
s
 

W
h
a
t 
a
re
 t
h
e
 r
is
k
s
 

a
s
s
o
c
ia
te
d
 w
it
h
 

a
s
s
o
c
ia
te
d
 w
it
h
 

a
s
s
o
c
ia
te
d
 w
it
h
 

a
s
s
o
c
ia
te
d
 w
it
h
 

a
c
h
ie
v
in
g
 t
h
is
 

a
c
h
ie
v
in
g
 t
h
is
 

a
c
h
ie
v
in
g
 t
h
is
 

a
c
h
ie
v
in
g
 t
h
is
 

a
c
ti
o
n
?

a
c
ti
o
n
?

a
c
ti
o
n
?

a
c
ti
o
n
?    

W
h
e
n
 d
o
e
s
 t
h
e
 

W
h
e
n
 d
o
e
s
 t
h
e
 

W
h
e
n
 d
o
e
s
 t
h
e
 

W
h
e
n
 d
o
e
s
 t
h
e
 

a
c
ti
o
n
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 

a
c
ti
o
n
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 

a
c
ti
o
n
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 

a
c
ti
o
n
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 

b
e
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
?

b
e
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
?

b
e
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
?

b
e
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
?    

W
h
o
 i
s
 

W
h
o
 i
s
 

W
h
o
 i
s
 

W
h
o
 i
s
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib
le
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib
le
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib
le
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib
le
 

fo
r 
th
e
 

fo
r 
th
e
 

fo
r 
th
e
 

fo
r 
th
e
 

a
c
ti
o
n
?

a
c
ti
o
n
?

a
c
ti
o
n
?

a
c
ti
o
n
?    

th
ro
u
g
h
 p
ro
m
o
ti
o
n
s
, 
g
ra
n
ts
 a
n
d
 

in
-
k
in
d
 c
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n
s
 

 E
n
c
o
u
ra
g
e
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
e
s
 t
o
 

im
p
ro
v
e
 t
h
e
ir
 p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 o
n
 

re
c
y
c
li
n
g
 

lo
c
a
l 
a
n
d
 c
o
u
n
c
il
 

re
c
y
c
li
n
g
 s
c
h
e
m
e
s
 a
n
d
 

a
ll
o
c
a
te
 f
u
n
d
in
g
 f
o
r 

p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
s
 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
 r
e
c
y
c
li
n
g
 

e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
a
l/
 m
a
rk
e
ti
n
g
 

c
a
m
p
a
ig
n
 a
im
e
d
 a
t 

b
u
s
in
e
s
s
e
s
 

           

a
n
d
 c
o
m
p
o
s
ti
n
g
 

p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
s
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 t
h
o
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
o
f 

re
li
a
b
le
 e
n
d
 m
a
rk
e
ts
. 

  

p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
s
 

•
 
O
ff
ic
e
r 
ti
m
e
. 

p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 

•
 N
o
 r
e
li
a
b
le
 m
a
rk
e
ts
.  

R
e
s
id
u
a
l 
W
a
s
te
 a
n
d
 S
u
s
ta
i

R
e
s
id
u
a
l 
W
a
s
te
 a
n
d
 S
u
s
ta
i

R
e
s
id
u
a
l 
W
a
s
te
 a
n
d
 S
u
s
ta
i

R
e
s
id
u
a
l 
W
a
s
te
 a
n
d
 S
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
 W
a
s
te
 M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t

n
a
b
le
 W
a
s
te
 M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t

n
a
b
le
 W
a
s
te
 M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t

n
a
b
le
 W
a
s
te
 M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t    

P
o
li
c
y
  
 9
: 
 

P
o
li
c
y
  
 9
: 
 

P
o
li
c
y
  
 9
: 
 

P
o
li
c
y
  
 9
: 
 T
h
e
 O
x
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 W
a
s
te
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 w
il
l 
p
ro
v
id
e
 a
 s
y
s
te
m
 f
o
r 
re
c
o
v
e
ri
n
g
 v
a
lu
e
 f
ro
m
 r
e
s
id
u
a
l 
w
a
s
te
s
 i
n
 o
rd
e
r 
to
 m

e
e
t 
L
A
T
S
 t
a
rg
e
ts
 

P
o
li
c
y
 1
0
: 
 

P
o
li
c
y
 1
0
: 
 

P
o
li
c
y
 1
0
: 
 

P
o
li
c
y
 1
0
: 
 T
h
e
 O
x
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 W
a
s
te
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 w
il
l 
e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
e
 a
v
a
il
a
b
il
it
y
 o
f 
la
n
d
fi
ll
 s
it
e
s
 f
o
r 
th
e
 d
is
p
o
s
a
l 
o
f 
re
s
id
u
a
l 
w
a
s
te
, 
w
h
e
re
 n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry
. 

P
o
li
c
y
 1
1
: 
 

P
o
li
c
y
 1
1
: 
 

P
o
li
c
y
 1
1
: 
 

P
o
li
c
y
 1
1
: 
 T
h
e
 O
x
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 W
a
s
te
 P
a
rt
e
rn
s
h
ip
, 
w
il
l 
s
e
e
k
 t
o
 p
ro
v
id
e
 w
a
s
te
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 f
o
r 
s
p
e
c
ia
li
z
e
d
, 
p
o
te
n
ti
a
ll
y
 p
o
ll
u
ti
n
g
 m
a
te
ri
a
l 
s
tr
e
a
m
s
, 
s
u
c
h
 a
s
 

h
a
z
a
rd
o
u
s
 w
a
s
te
 a
n
d
 w
a
s
te
  

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
e
le
c
tr
ic
a
l 
a
n
d
 e
le
c
tr
o
n
ic
 e
q
u
ip
m
e
n
t,
 w
h
ic
h
 m
e
e
t 
a
n
d
 e
x
c
e
e
d
 l
e
g
is
la
ti
v
e
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
m
e
n
ts
. 

Page 131



N
o
 T
im
e
 t
o
 W
a
s
te
: 
 T
h
e
 O
x
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 J
o
in
t 
M
u
n
ic
ip
a
l 
W
a
s
te
 M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
S
tr
a
te
g
y

N
o
 T
im
e
 t
o
 W
a
s
te
: 
 T
h
e
 O
x
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 J
o
in
t 
M
u
n
ic
ip
a
l 
W
a
s
te
 M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
S
tr
a
te
g
y

N
o
 T
im
e
 t
o
 W
a
s
te
: 
 T
h
e
 O
x
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 J
o
in
t 
M
u
n
ic
ip
a
l 
W
a
s
te
 M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
S
tr
a
te
g
y

N
o
 T
im
e
 t
o
 W
a
s
te
: 
 T
h
e
 O
x
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 J
o
in
t 
M
u
n
ic
ip
a
l 
W
a
s
te
 M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
    

 O
x
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 W
a
s
te
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 

 
A
9
 

 
 

 
 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

A
u
g
u
s
t 
2
0
0
6
  A
c
ti
o
n
s

A
c
ti
o
n
s

A
c
ti
o
n
s

A
c
ti
o
n
s
    

H
o
w
 d
o
 w
e
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
 

H
o
w
 d
o
 w
e
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
 

H
o
w
 d
o
 w
e
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
 

H
o
w
 d
o
 w
e
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
 

th
e
 a
c
ti
o
n
?

th
e
 a
c
ti
o
n
?

th
e
 a
c
ti
o
n
?

th
e
 a
c
ti
o
n
?    

W
h
a
t 
is
 t
h
e
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
 

W
h
a
t 
is
 t
h
e
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
 

W
h
a
t 
is
 t
h
e
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
 

W
h
a
t 
is
 t
h
e
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
 

o
f 
th
e
 a
c
ti
o
n
?

o
f 
th
e
 a
c
ti
o
n
?

o
f 
th
e
 a
c
ti
o
n
?

o
f 
th
e
 a
c
ti
o
n
?    

W
h
a
t 
re
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 

W
h
a
t 
re
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 

W
h
a
t 
re
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 

W
h
a
t 
re
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 

a
re
 r
e
q
u
i

a
re
 r
e
q
u
i

a
re
 r
e
q
u
i

a
re
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
?

re
d
?

re
d
?

re
d
?    

W
h
a
t 
a
re
 t
h
e
 r
is
k
s
 

W
h
a
t 
a
re
 t
h
e
 r
is
k
s
 

W
h
a
t 
a
re
 t
h
e
 r
is
k
s
 

W
h
a
t 
a
re
 t
h
e
 r
is
k
s
 

a
s
s
o
c
ia
te
d
 w
it
h
 

a
s
s
o
c
ia
te
d
 w
it
h
 

a
s
s
o
c
ia
te
d
 w
it
h
 

a
s
s
o
c
ia
te
d
 w
it
h
 

a
c
h
ie
v
in
g
 t
h
is
 

a
c
h
ie
v
in
g
 t
h
is
 

a
c
h
ie
v
in
g
 t
h
is
 

a
c
h
ie
v
in
g
 t
h
is
 

a
c
ti
o
n
?

a
c
ti
o
n
?

a
c
ti
o
n
?

a
c
ti
o
n
?    

W
h
e
n
 d
o
e
s
 t
h
e
 

W
h
e
n
 d
o
e
s
 t
h
e
 

W
h
e
n
 d
o
e
s
 t
h
e
 

W
h
e
n
 d
o
e
s
 t
h
e
 

a
c
ti
o
n
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 

a
c
ti
o
n
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 

a
c
ti
o
n
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 

a
c
ti
o
n
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 

b
e
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
?

b
e
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
?

b
e
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
?

b
e
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
?    

W
h
o
 i
s
 

W
h
o
 i
s
 

W
h
o
 i
s
 

W
h
o
 i
s
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib
le
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib
le
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib
le
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib
le
 

fo
r 
th
e
 

fo
r 
th
e
 

fo
r 
th
e
 

fo
r 
th
e
 

a
c
ti
o
n
?

a
c
ti
o
n
?

a
c
ti
o
n
?

a
c
ti
o
n
?    

P
o
li
c
y
 1
2
: 
 

P
o
li
c
y
 1
2
: 
 

P
o
li
c
y
 1
2
: 
 

P
o
li
c
y
 1
2
: 
 T
h
e
 O
x
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 W
a
s
te
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 w
o
rk
in
g
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 w
a
s
te
 p
la
n
n
in
g
 a
u
th
o
ri
ty
 w
il
l 
e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
w
a
s
te
 f
a
c
il
it
ie
s
 a
re
 s
u
it
a
b
ly
 s
iz
e
d
 a
n
d
 d
is
tr
ib
u
te
d
 w
it
h
 

th
e
 a
im
 o
f 
m
in
im
is
in
g
 t
h
e
  

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 t
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
 o
f 
w
a
s
te
. 
 F
a
c
il
it
ie
s
 w
il
l 
b
e
 w
e
ll
 r
e
la
te
d
 t
o
 a
re
a
s
 o
f 
p
o
p
u
la
ti
o
n
, 
g
iv
e
n
 t
h
e
 e
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
ta
l 
a
n
d
 a
m
e
n
it
y
 c
o
n
s
tr
a
in
ts
, 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 a
v
a
il
a
b
il
it
y
 o
f 

s
u
it
a
b
le
 s
it
e
s
. 

P
o
li
c
y
 1
4
: 
 

P
o
li
c
y
 1
4
: 
 

P
o
li
c
y
 1
4
: 
 

P
o
li
c
y
 1
4
: 
 T
h
e
 O
x
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 W
a
s
te
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 w
il
l 
d
e
v
e
lo
p
 m
e
th
o
d
s
 o
f 
w
o
rk
in
g
 t
o
g
e
th
e
r 
to
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
 t
h
e
 l
e
v
e
l 
o
f 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 a
n
d
 e
ff
ic
ie
n
t 
u
s
e
 o
f 

re
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 w
it
h
in
 O
x
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
. 

 P
ro
c
u
re
 a
n
d
 c
o
n
s
tr
u
c
t 
a
 r
e
s
id
u
a
l 

w
a
s
te
 t
re
a
tm

e
n
t 
fa
c
il
it
y
 t
o
 m
e
e
t 

th
e
 m
e
d
iu
m
 t
o
 l
o
n
g
 t
e
rm

 

re
q
u
ir
e
m
e
n
ts
 o
f 
th
e
 L
a
n
d
fi
ll
 

A
ll
o
w
a
n
c
e
 T
ra
d
in
g
 S
c
h
e
m
e
 

 O
C
C
 t
o
 l
e
a
d
 

p
ro
c
u
re
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
a
 w
a
s
te
 

tr
e
a
tm

e
n
t 
fa
c
il
it
y
, 

c
o
n
s
is
te
n
t 
w
it
h
 t
h
e
 

L
A
T
S
 t
a
rg
e
ts
 a
n
d
 

p
o
li
c
ie
s
 i
n
 t
h
is
 

s
tr
a
te
g
y
. 

  

 •
 
C
o
m
p
le
te
 o
u
tl
in
e
 

b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 c
a
s
e
 a
n
d
 

b
e
g
in
 E
U
 p
ro
c
u
re
m
e
n
t 

p
ro
c
e
s
s
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 

c
o
m
p
e
ti
ti
v
e
 d
ia
lo
g
u
e
. 

 •
 
F
u
n
d
in
g
 f
o
r 

in
fr
a
s
tr
u
c
tu
re
.  

 •
 
In
a
b
il
it
y
 t
o
 m

e
e
t 

ti
m
e
li
n
e
s
. 

 T
o
 b
e
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

in
 l
in
e
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 

D
ra
ft
 O
u
tl
in
e
 

B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 C
a
s
e
 

2
0
0
6
 

 O
C
C
/
O
W
P
  

 E
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
w
a
s
te
 f
a
c
il
it
ie
s
 a
re
 

p
ro
c
u
re
d
 i
n
 a
c
c
o
rd
a
n
c
e
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 

M
in
e
ra
ls
 a
n
d
 W
a
s
te
 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
F
ra
m
e
w
o
rk
 a
n
d
 

th
e
 R
e
g
io
n
a
l 
S
p
a
ti
a
l 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

 C
o
n
s
u
lt
 w
it
h
 r
e
le
v
a
n
t 

o
ff
ic
e
rs
 d
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 

p
ro
c
u
re
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 

p
la
n
n
in
g
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 

 •
 
S
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu
l 

p
ro
c
u
re
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 

c
o
n
s
tr
u
c
ti
o
n
 o
f 
w
a
s
te
 

fa
c
il
it
ie
s
. 

 •
 
F
u
n
d
in
g
 

•
 
O
ff
ic
e
r 
ti
m
e
. 

 •
 
D
e
la
y
 i
n
 

c
o
n
s
tr
u
c
ti
o
n
 

•
 
L
A
T
S
 p
e
n
a
lt
ie
s
 

•
 
N
o
n
 c
o
m
p
li
a
n
c
e
 

w
it
h
 r
e
g
io
n
a
l 

s
tr
a
te
g
ie
s
. 

 T
o
 b
e
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

in
 l
in
e
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 

D
ra
ft
 O
u
tl
in
e
 

B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 C
a
s
e
 

2
0
0
6
 

O
W
P
 

 E
n
s
u
re
 w
a
s
te
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
, 
re
u
s
e
, 

re
c
y
c
li
n
g
 &
 c
o
m
p
o
s
ti
n
g
, 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

 A
c
h
ie
v
e
 t
h
e
 a
c
ti
o
n
s
 

w
it
h
in
  

 •
 
M
in
im
a
l 
re
q
u
ir
e
m
e
n
t 

fo
r 
th
e
 u
s
e
 o
f 
e
x
is
ti
n
g
 

 •
 
F
u
n
d
in
g
 f
o
r 
a
ll
 

re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
, 

 •
 
L
A
T
S
 p
e
n
a
lt
ie
s
 

•
 
N
o
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 

 O
n
g
o
in
g
 

 O
W
P
 

Page 132



N
o
 T
im
e
 t
o
 W
a
s
te
: 
 T
h
e
 O
x
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 J
o
in
t 
M
u
n
ic
ip
a
l 
W
a
s
te
 M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
S
tr
a
te
g
y

N
o
 T
im
e
 t
o
 W
a
s
te
: 
 T
h
e
 O
x
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 J
o
in
t 
M
u
n
ic
ip
a
l 
W
a
s
te
 M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
S
tr
a
te
g
y

N
o
 T
im
e
 t
o
 W
a
s
te
: 
 T
h
e
 O
x
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 J
o
in
t 
M
u
n
ic
ip
a
l 
W
a
s
te
 M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
S
tr
a
te
g
y

N
o
 T
im
e
 t
o
 W
a
s
te
: 
 T
h
e
 O
x
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 J
o
in
t 
M
u
n
ic
ip
a
l 
W
a
s
te
 M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
    

 O
x
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 W
a
s
te
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 

 
A
1
0
 

 
 

 
 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

A
u
g
u
s
t 
2
0
0
6
  A
c
ti
o
n
s

A
c
ti
o
n
s

A
c
ti
o
n
s

A
c
ti
o
n
s
    

H
o
w
 d
o
 w
e
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
 

H
o
w
 d
o
 w
e
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
 

H
o
w
 d
o
 w
e
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
 

H
o
w
 d
o
 w
e
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
 

th
e
 a
c
ti
o
n
?

th
e
 a
c
ti
o
n
?

th
e
 a
c
ti
o
n
?

th
e
 a
c
ti
o
n
?    

W
h
a
t 
is
 t
h
e
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
 

W
h
a
t 
is
 t
h
e
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
 

W
h
a
t 
is
 t
h
e
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
 

W
h
a
t 
is
 t
h
e
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
 

o
f 
th
e
 a
c
ti
o
n
?

o
f 
th
e
 a
c
ti
o
n
?

o
f 
th
e
 a
c
ti
o
n
?

o
f 
th
e
 a
c
ti
o
n
?    

W
h
a
t 
re
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 

W
h
a
t 
re
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 

W
h
a
t 
re
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 

W
h
a
t 
re
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 

a
re
 r
e
q
u
i

a
re
 r
e
q
u
i

a
re
 r
e
q
u
i

a
re
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
?

re
d
?

re
d
?

re
d
?    

W
h
a
t 
a
re
 t
h
e
 r
is
k
s
 

W
h
a
t 
a
re
 t
h
e
 r
is
k
s
 

W
h
a
t 
a
re
 t
h
e
 r
is
k
s
 

W
h
a
t 
a
re
 t
h
e
 r
is
k
s
 

a
s
s
o
c
ia
te
d
 w
it
h
 

a
s
s
o
c
ia
te
d
 w
it
h
 

a
s
s
o
c
ia
te
d
 w
it
h
 

a
s
s
o
c
ia
te
d
 w
it
h
 

a
c
h
ie
v
in
g
 t
h
is
 

a
c
h
ie
v
in
g
 t
h
is
 

a
c
h
ie
v
in
g
 t
h
is
 

a
c
h
ie
v
in
g
 t
h
is
 

a
c
ti
o
n
?

a
c
ti
o
n
?

a
c
ti
o
n
?

a
c
ti
o
n
?    

W
h
e
n
 d
o
e
s
 t
h
e
 

W
h
e
n
 d
o
e
s
 t
h
e
 

W
h
e
n
 d
o
e
s
 t
h
e
 

W
h
e
n
 d
o
e
s
 t
h
e
 

a
c
ti
o
n
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 

a
c
ti
o
n
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 

a
c
ti
o
n
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 

a
c
ti
o
n
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 

b
e
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
?

b
e
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
?

b
e
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
?

b
e
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
?    

W
h
o
 i
s
 

W
h
o
 i
s
 

W
h
o
 i
s
 

W
h
o
 i
s
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib
le
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib
le
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib
le
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib
le
 

fo
r 
th
e
 

fo
r 
th
e
 

fo
r 
th
e
 

fo
r 
th
e
 

a
c
ti
o
n
?

a
c
ti
o
n
?

a
c
ti
o
n
?

a
c
ti
o
n
?    

a
n
d
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
s
 a
re
 

s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu
ll
y
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 t
o
 

p
ro
m
o
te
 t
h
e
 l
o
n
g
e
v
it
y
 o
f 
la
n
d
fi
ll
 

s
it
e
s
 

th
is
 p
la
n
 a
n
d
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 

a
d
e
q
u
a
te
 r
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 a
re
  

m
a
d
e
 a
v
a
il
a
b
le
 

o
r 
n
e
w
 l
a
n
d
fi
ll
 s
it
e
s
. 

re
u
s
e
, 

re
c
y
c
li
n
g
 a
n
d
 

c
o
m
p
o
s
ti
n
g
 

p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
s
. 

M
S
W
. 

 M
a
x
im
is
e
 c
o
s
t-
e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 

re
c
y
c
li
n
g
 a
n
d
 c
o
m
p
o
s
ti
n
g
 o
f 

w
a
s
te
 b
e
fo
re
 u
ti
li
s
in
g
 r
e
s
id
u
a
l 

w
a
s
te
 m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
te
c
h
n
o
lo
g
ie
s
 

 Im
p
le
m
e
n
t 
re
c
y
c
li
n
g
 

a
n
d
 h
o
m
e
 c
o
m
p
o
s
ti
n
g
 

a
c
ti
o
n
s
 

 •
 
R
e
d
u
c
e
d
 f
in
a
n
c
e
s
 

re
q
u
ir
e
d
 f
o
r 
re
s
id
u
a
l 

w
a
s
te
 i
n
fr
a
s
tr
u
c
tu
re
. 

 •
 
F
u
n
d
in
g
 f
o
r 

w
a
s
te
 

re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
, 

re
u
s
e
, 

re
c
y
c
li
n
g
 a
n
d
 

c
o
m
p
o
s
ti
n
g
 

p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
s
. 

 

 •
 
L
o
w
 w
a
s
te
 

re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
, 

d
iv
e
rs
io
n
, 

p
a
rt
ic
ip
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 

c
a
p
tu
re
 r
a
te
s
. 

 O
n
g
o
in
g
 

 O
W
P
 

 

 P
ro
m
o
te
 s
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
 w
a
s
te
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t,
 i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 

a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 d
is
p
o
s
a
l 
ro
u
te
s
 f
o
r 

s
p
e
c
ia
li
s
e
d
 m
a
te
ri
a
ls
 

 C
o
n
d
u
c
t 
w
a
s
te
 

c
o
m
p
o
s
it
io
n
 a
n
a
ly
s
is
 

E
n
s
u
re
 a
d
e
q
u
a
te
 

d
is
p
o
s
a
l 
m
e
th
o
d
s
 a
re
 

a
v
a
il
a
b
le
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 f
o
r 
w
a
s
te
s
 

p
ro
d
u
c
e
d
 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
 a
c
ti
o
n
 p
la
n
 t
o
 

e
n
s
u
re
 s
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
 

a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
 t
o
 d
is
p
o
s
a
l 
o
f 

h
a
z
a
rd
o
u
s
 a
n
d
 

 •
 
S
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
 w
a
s
te
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

•
 
D
e
c
re
a
s
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

a
m
o
u
n
t 
o
f 
h
a
z
a
rd
o
u
s
 

w
a
s
te
 b
e
in
g
 l
a
n
d
fi
il
e
d
.  

 •
 
F
u
n
d
in
g
 f
o
r 

a
n
a
ly
s
is
 a
n
d
 

o
n
g
o
in
g
 

m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 

•
 
O
ff
ic
e
r 
ti
m
e
. 

 •
 
N
o
t 
m
e
e
ti
n
g
 

ta
rg
e
ts
 

•
 
N
o
n
 c
o
m
p
li
a
n
c
e
 

w
it
h
 l
e
g
is
la
ti
o
n
. 

 D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
6
 

(c
o
m
p
o
s
it
io
n
 

a
n
a
ly
s
is
) 

O
n
g
o
in
g
 

(m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
) 

 O
W
P
 

 

A
n
n
e
x
 A
 

A
n
n
e
x
 A
 

A
n
n
e
x
 A
 

A
n
n
e
x
 A
 - ---
 O
x
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 W
a
s
te
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 A
c
ti
o
n
 P
la
n

 O
x
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 W
a
s
te
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 A
c
ti
o
n
 P
la
n

 O
x
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 W
a
s
te
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 A
c
ti
o
n
 P
la
n

 O
x
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 W
a
s
te
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 A
c
ti
o
n
 P
la
n
    

Page 133



N
o
 T
im
e
 t
o
 W
a
s
te
: 
 T
h
e
 O
x
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 J
o
in
t 
M
u
n
ic
ip
a
l 
W
a
s
te
 M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
S
tr
a
te
g
y

N
o
 T
im
e
 t
o
 W
a
s
te
: 
 T
h
e
 O
x
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 J
o
in
t 
M
u
n
ic
ip
a
l 
W
a
s
te
 M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
S
tr
a
te
g
y

N
o
 T
im
e
 t
o
 W
a
s
te
: 
 T
h
e
 O
x
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 J
o
in
t 
M
u
n
ic
ip
a
l 
W
a
s
te
 M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
S
tr
a
te
g
y

N
o
 T
im
e
 t
o
 W
a
s
te
: 
 T
h
e
 O
x
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 J
o
in
t 
M
u
n
ic
ip
a
l 
W
a
s
te
 M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
    

 O
x
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 W
a
s
te
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 

 
A
1
1
 

 
 

 
 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

A
u
g
u
s
t 
2
0
0
6
  A
c
ti
o
n
s

A
c
ti
o
n
s

A
c
ti
o
n
s

A
c
ti
o
n
s
    

H
o
w
 d
o
 w
e
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
 

H
o
w
 d
o
 w
e
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
 

H
o
w
 d
o
 w
e
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
 

H
o
w
 d
o
 w
e
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
 

th
e
 a
c
ti
o
n
?

th
e
 a
c
ti
o
n
?

th
e
 a
c
ti
o
n
?

th
e
 a
c
ti
o
n
?    

W
h
a
t 
is
 t
h
e
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
 

W
h
a
t 
is
 t
h
e
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
 

W
h
a
t 
is
 t
h
e
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
 

W
h
a
t 
is
 t
h
e
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
 

o
f 
th
e
 a
c
ti
o
n
?

o
f 
th
e
 a
c
ti
o
n
?

o
f 
th
e
 a
c
ti
o
n
?

o
f 
th
e
 a
c
ti
o
n
?    

W
h
a
t 
re
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 

W
h
a
t 
re
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 

W
h
a
t 
re
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 

W
h
a
t 
re
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 

a
re
 r
e
q
u
i

a
re
 r
e
q
u
i

a
re
 r
e
q
u
i

a
re
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
?

re
d
?

re
d
?

re
d
?    

W
h
a
t 
a
re
 t
h
e
 r
is
k
s
 

W
h
a
t 
a
re
 t
h
e
 r
is
k
s
 

W
h
a
t 
a
re
 t
h
e
 r
is
k
s
 

W
h
a
t 
a
re
 t
h
e
 r
is
k
s
 

a
s
s
o
c
ia
te
d
 w
it
h
 

a
s
s
o
c
ia
te
d
 w
it
h
 

a
s
s
o
c
ia
te
d
 w
it
h
 

a
s
s
o
c
ia
te
d
 w
it
h
 

a
c
h
ie
v
in
g
 t
h
is
 

a
c
h
ie
v
in
g
 t
h
is
 

a
c
h
ie
v
in
g
 t
h
is
 

a
c
h
ie
v
in
g
 t
h
is
 

a
c
ti
o
n
?

a
c
ti
o
n
?

a
c
ti
o
n
?

a
c
ti
o
n
?    

W
h
e
n
 d
o
e
s
 t
h
e
 

W
h
e
n
 d
o
e
s
 t
h
e
 

W
h
e
n
 d
o
e
s
 t
h
e
 

W
h
e
n
 d
o
e
s
 t
h
e
 

a
c
ti
o
n
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 

a
c
ti
o
n
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 

a
c
ti
o
n
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 

a
c
ti
o
n
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 

b
e
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
?

b
e
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
?

b
e
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
?

b
e
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
?    

W
h
o
 i
s
 

W
h
o
 i
s
 

W
h
o
 i
s
 

W
h
o
 i
s
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib
le
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib
le
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib
le
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib
le
 

fo
r 
th
e
 

fo
r 
th
e
 

fo
r 
th
e
 

fo
r 
th
e
 

a
c
ti
o
n
?

a
c
ti
o
n
?

a
c
ti
o
n
?

a
c
ti
o
n
?    

s
p
e
c
ia
li
z
e
d
 w
a
s
te
 

 

W
o
rk
in
g
 i
n
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip

W
o
rk
in
g
 i
n
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip

W
o
rk
in
g
 i
n
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip

W
o
rk
in
g
 i
n
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
    

P
o
li
c
y
 1
:

P
o
li
c
y
 1
:

P
o
li
c
y
 1
:

P
o
li
c
y
 1
: 
T
h
e
 O
x
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 W
a
s
te
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 w
il
l 
e
n
c
o
u
ra
g
e
 t
h
e
 e
ff
ic
ie
n
t 
u
s
e
 o
f 
re
s
o
u
rc
e
s
, 
re
d
u
c
e
 r
e
s
o
u
rc
e
 c
o
n
s
u
m
p
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 t
a
k
e
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
il
it
y
 f
o
r 
th
e
 w
a
s
te
s
 t
h
e
y
 p
ro
d
u
c
e
. 

P
o
li
c
y
 2
:

P
o
li
c
y
 2
:

P
o
li
c
y
 2
:

P
o
li
c
y
 2
: 
T
h
e
 O
x
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 W
a
s
te
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 w
il
l 
lo
b
b
y
 G
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t 
to
 f
o
c
u
s
 o
n
 w
a
s
te
 a
s
 a
n
 i
n
te
g
ra
l 
p
a
rt
 o
f 
s
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
 r
e
s
o
u
rc
e
 m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t.
 

 A
d
o
p
ti
o
n
 o
f 
O
x
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 W
a
s
te
 

P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

 C
o
m
p
le
ti
o
n
 o
f 
p
u
b
li
c
 

e
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
e
x
e
rc
is
e
 

 R
e
v
ie
w
 o
f 
s
tr
a
te
g
y
 a
n
d
 

in
d
iv
id
u
a
l 
a
c
ti
o
n
 p
la
n
s
 

 A
p
p
o
in
tm

e
n
t 
o
f 
P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 

O
ff
ic
e
r 

 •
 
U
p
-
to
-
d
a
te
 s
tr
a
te
g
y
 

•
 
D
e
m
o
n
s
tr
a
te
 

c
o
m
m
it
m
e
n
t 
to
 

s
tr
a
te
g
y
 a
n
d
 s
p
e
e
d
 

p
ro
c
e
s
s
 u
p
 

•
 
A
s
c
e
rt
a
in
 p
u
b
li
c
 

p
re
fe
rr
e
d
 s
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
 

w
a
s
te
 m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

o
p
ti
o
n
s
. 

  

 •
 
O
ff
ic
e
r 
ti
m
e
 

•
 
£
5
5
K
 o
f 

p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 

fu
n
d
in
g
. 

       

 •
 
N
o
 p
u
b
li
c
 b
u
y
 i
n
 t
o
 

w
a
s
te
 p
ro
b
le
m
 o
r 

s
o
lu
ti
o
n
s
. 

 S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
0
6
 

M
a
rc
h
 3
1
s
t  
2
0
0
8
 

S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
6
 

 O
W
P
 

 A
g
re
e
 f
u
n
d
in
g
 a
n
d
 g
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
  

a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 f
o
r 
O
x
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 W
a
s
te
 

P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 

 R
e
v
ie
w
 e
x
is
ti
n
g
 

a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 f
o
r 
fu
n
d
in
g
 

 •
 
Im
p
ro
v
e
d
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 

w
o
rk
in
g
. 

 •
 
O
ff
ic
e
r 
ti
m
e
. 

 •
 
F
a
il
u
re
 t
o
 r
e
a
li
s
e
 t
h
e
 

p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
s
a
v
in
g
s
 b
y
 

w
o
rk
in
g
 t
o
g
e
th
e
r.
 

 O
c
to
b
e
r 
2
0
0
6
 

 O
W
P
 

 W
h
e
re
v
e
r 
p
o
s
s
ib
le
 r
e
s
p
o
n
d
 j
o
in
tl
y
 

to
 G
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
s
. 
  

   

 S
e
t 
ta
rg
e
ts
 f
o
r 
n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 

re
s
p
o
n
s
e
s
 

 •
 
E
n
c
o
u
ra
g
e
 j
o
in
t 

th
in
k
in
g
. 

 •
 
O
ff
ic
e
r 
ti
m
e
. 

 •
 
N
o
n
e
 i
n
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
. 

 O
n
g
o
in
g
 

 O
W
P
 

Page 134



N
o
 T
im
e
 t
o
 W
a
s
te
: 
 T
h
e
 O
x
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 J
o
in
t 
M
u
n
ic
ip
a
l 
W
a
s
te
 M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
S
tr
a
te
g
y

N
o
 T
im
e
 t
o
 W
a
s
te
: 
 T
h
e
 O
x
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 J
o
in
t 
M
u
n
ic
ip
a
l 
W
a
s
te
 M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
S
tr
a
te
g
y

N
o
 T
im
e
 t
o
 W
a
s
te
: 
 T
h
e
 O
x
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 J
o
in
t 
M
u
n
ic
ip
a
l 
W
a
s
te
 M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
S
tr
a
te
g
y

N
o
 T
im
e
 t
o
 W
a
s
te
: 
 T
h
e
 O
x
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 J
o
in
t 
M
u
n
ic
ip
a
l 
W
a
s
te
 M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
    

 O
x
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 W
a
s
te
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 

 
A
1
2
 

 
 

 
 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

A
u
g
u
s
t 
2
0
0
6
  A
c
ti
o
n
s

A
c
ti
o
n
s

A
c
ti
o
n
s

A
c
ti
o
n
s
    

H
o
w
 d
o
 w
e
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
 

H
o
w
 d
o
 w
e
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
 

H
o
w
 d
o
 w
e
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
 

H
o
w
 d
o
 w
e
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
 

th
e
 a
c
ti
o
n
?

th
e
 a
c
ti
o
n
?

th
e
 a
c
ti
o
n
?

th
e
 a
c
ti
o
n
?    

W
h
a
t 
is
 t
h
e
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
 

W
h
a
t 
is
 t
h
e
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
 

W
h
a
t 
is
 t
h
e
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
 

W
h
a
t 
is
 t
h
e
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
 

o
f 
th
e
 a
c
ti
o
n
?

o
f 
th
e
 a
c
ti
o
n
?

o
f 
th
e
 a
c
ti
o
n
?

o
f 
th
e
 a
c
ti
o
n
?    

W
h
a
t 
re
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 

W
h
a
t 
re
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 

W
h
a
t 
re
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 

W
h
a
t 
re
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 

a
re
 r
e
q
u
i

a
re
 r
e
q
u
i

a
re
 r
e
q
u
i

a
re
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
?

re
d
?

re
d
?

re
d
?    

W
h
a
t 
a
re
 t
h
e
 r
is
k
s
 

W
h
a
t 
a
re
 t
h
e
 r
is
k
s
 

W
h
a
t 
a
re
 t
h
e
 r
is
k
s
 

W
h
a
t 
a
re
 t
h
e
 r
is
k
s
 

a
s
s
o
c
ia
te
d
 w
it
h
 

a
s
s
o
c
ia
te
d
 w
it
h
 

a
s
s
o
c
ia
te
d
 w
it
h
 

a
s
s
o
c
ia
te
d
 w
it
h
 

a
c
h
ie
v
in
g
 t
h
is
 

a
c
h
ie
v
in
g
 t
h
is
 

a
c
h
ie
v
in
g
 t
h
is
 

a
c
h
ie
v
in
g
 t
h
is
 

a
c
ti
o
n
?

a
c
ti
o
n
?

a
c
ti
o
n
?

a
c
ti
o
n
?    

W
h
e
n
 d
o
e
s
 t
h
e
 

W
h
e
n
 d
o
e
s
 t
h
e
 

W
h
e
n
 d
o
e
s
 t
h
e
 

W
h
e
n
 d
o
e
s
 t
h
e
 

a
c
ti
o
n
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 

a
c
ti
o
n
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 

a
c
ti
o
n
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 

a
c
ti
o
n
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 

b
e
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
?

b
e
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
?

b
e
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
?

b
e
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
?    

W
h
o
 i
s
 

W
h
o
 i
s
 

W
h
o
 i
s
 

W
h
o
 i
s
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib
le
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib
le
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib
le
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib
le
 

fo
r 
th
e
 

fo
r 
th
e
 

fo
r 
th
e
 

fo
r 
th
e
 

a
c
ti
o
n
?

a
c
ti
o
n
?

a
c
ti
o
n
?

a
c
ti
o
n
?    

 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 m
e
m
b
e
rs
 t
o
 l
e
a
d
 

O
x
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 b
y
 e
x
a
m
p
le
 b
y
 

re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
, 
re
u
s
e
 a
n
d
 r
e
c
y
c
li
n
g
 o
f 

w
a
s
te
s
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
ir
 o
w
n
 a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 a
n
d
 

th
ro
u
g
h
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 o
f 
a
 ‘
b
u
y
 

re
c
y
c
le
d
’ 
p
o
li
c
y
. 

 R
e
v
ie
w
 o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 f
o
r 

w
a
s
te
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
, 
re
u
s
e
 a
n
d
 

re
c
y
c
li
n
g
  

 E
s
ta
b
li
s
h
 ‘
b
u
y
 r
e
c
y
c
le
d
’ 

p
ro
c
u
re
m
e
n
t 
p
o
li
c
y
 

 •
 
L
e
a
d
 b
y
 e
x
a
m
p
le
. 

 •
 
M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 

•
 
O
ff
ic
e
r 
ti
m
e
. 

 •
 
N
e
g
a
ti
v
e
 p
re
s
s
. 

 O
n
g
o
in
g
 

 O
W
P
 

              M
o
n
it
o
r 
a
n
d
 e
v
a
lu
a
te
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
 o
n
 a
c
ti
o
n
 p
la
n
s
 

M
o
n
it
o
r 
a
n
d
 e
v
a
lu
a
te
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
 o
n
 a
c
ti
o
n
 p
la
n
s
 

M
o
n
it
o
r 
a
n
d
 e
v
a
lu
a
te
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
 o
n
 a
c
ti
o
n
 p
la
n
s
 

M
o
n
it
o
r 
a
n
d
 e
v
a
lu
a
te
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
 o
n
 a
c
ti
o
n
 p
la
n
s
 – –––
 e
a
c
h
 o
f 
th
e
s
e
 p
la
n
 w
il
l 
b
e
 m
o
n
it
o
re
d
 a
n
d
 e
v
a
lu
a
te
d
 f
o
r 
p
ro
g
re
s
s
 a
n
d
 r
e
le
v
a
n
c
e
.

 e
a
c
h
 o
f 
th
e
s
e
 p
la
n
 w
il
l 
b
e
 m
o
n
it
o
re
d
 a
n
d
 e
v
a
lu
a
te
d
 f
o
r 
p
ro
g
re
s
s
 a
n
d
 r
e
le
v
a
n
c
e
.

 e
a
c
h
 o
f 
th
e
s
e
 p
la
n
 w
il
l 
b
e
 m
o
n
it
o
re
d
 a
n
d
 e
v
a
lu
a
te
d
 f
o
r 
p
ro
g
re
s
s
 a
n
d
 r
e
le
v
a
n
c
e
.

 e
a
c
h
 o
f 
th
e
s
e
 p
la
n
 w
il
l 
b
e
 m
o
n
it
o
re
d
 a
n
d
 e
v
a
lu
a
te
d
 f
o
r 
p
ro
g
re
s
s
 a
n
d
 r
e
le
v
a
n
c
e
.    

    

          

Page 135



    

    

    

The Oxfordshire Waste PartnershipThe Oxfordshire Waste PartnershipThe Oxfordshire Waste PartnershipThe Oxfordshire Waste Partnership    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

Annex BAnnex BAnnex BAnnex B    

    

Waste reduction and reuse planWaste reduction and reuse planWaste reduction and reuse planWaste reduction and reuse plan    
    

    

A
n
n
e
x
 B

 
A
n
n
e
x
 B

 
A
n
n
e
x
 B

 
A
n
n
e
x
 B

 –– ––
 W

a
s
te

 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 r
e
u
s
e
 p

la
n

 W
a
s
te

 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 r
e
u
s
e
 p

la
n

 W
a
s
te

 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 r
e
u
s
e
 p

la
n

 W
a
s
te

 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 r
e
u
s
e
 p

la
n
    

Page 136



No Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management Strategy  

 

Oxfordshire Waste Partnership  B2 August 2006 

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

No time to wasteNo time to wasteNo time to wasteNo time to waste    

The Oxfordshire JThe Oxfordshire JThe Oxfordshire JThe Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Strategyoint Municipal Waste Strategyoint Municipal Waste Strategyoint Municipal Waste Strategy    

IntroductionIntroductionIntroductionIntroduction    
    

This Waste Reduction and Reuse Plan sets out the Oxfordshire Waste 

Partnership’s  approach for achieving high levels of waste reduction and 

reuse (WRR) over the next 24 years (2006 – 2030).  This plan is part of a 

much wider Joint Municipal Waste Management Strategy for Oxfordshire, 

and falls under three key policies of the joint strategy: 

 

 

 

Policy 

3: 

The OWP will help householders and individuals to reduce and 

manage their wastes through the provision of advice and 

appropriate services. 

Policy 

4: 

The OWP will encourage the controlled reuse and reclamation 

of items through the provision of advice and appropriate 

services. 

Policy 

5: 

In accordance with regional policy, the Oxfordshire waste 

partnership will seek to reduce the growth of municipal waste 

across the county to 0% per person per annum by 2012. 

    

Table 1 Table 1 Table 1 Table 1 –––– Core Strat Core Strat Core Strat Core Strategy policies pertinent to waste reduction and reuseegy policies pertinent to waste reduction and reuseegy policies pertinent to waste reduction and reuseegy policies pertinent to waste reduction and reuse    

 

A
n
n
e
x
 B

 
A
n
n
e
x
 B

 
A
n
n
e
x
 B

 
A
n
n
e
x
 B

 –– ––
 W

a
s
te

 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 r
e
u
s
e
 p

la
n

 W
a
s
te

 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 r
e
u
s
e
 p

la
n

 W
a
s
te

 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 r
e
u
s
e
 p

la
n

 W
a
s
te

 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 r
e
u
s
e
 p

la
n
    

Page 137



No Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management Strategy  

 

Oxfordshire Waste Partnership  B3 August 2006 

This waste reduction and reuse plan is based upon an Evaluation of 

options for waste reduction and reuse and the knowledge and experience 

of waste management Officers in Oxfordshire. 

 

This initial document outlines 18 high level approaches that the OWP 

intend to take to tackle waste reduction and reuse head on.  Following on 

from this document, a detailed action plan will be developed, giving 

objectives and targets for each of the Joint Policy, Communications and 

Tools approaches.  This will be shaped using a compositional analysis of 

waste to ensure that the OWP are designing reduction and reuse 

initiatives for the bigger volume waste streams. 

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

Figure 1 Figure 1 Figure 1 Figure 1 –––– Development of w Development of w Development of w Development of waste reductiaste reductiaste reductiaste reduction and reuse planon and reuse planon and reuse planon and reuse plan    

BackgroundBackgroundBackgroundBackground    

    

Central GovernmentCentral GovernmentCentral GovernmentCentral Government    

    

Central Government strategies state that the hierarchy in Figure 2 should 

be used to manage waste. This plan sets out how we aim to meet the first 

two. 

 

compositional 

analysis 

Joint Municipal Waste Management 

Strategy 

Waste reduction & reuse 

plan 

Action plans 

 W
a
s
te

 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 r
e
u
s
e
 p

la
n

 W
a
s
te

 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 r
e
u
s
e
 p

la
n

 W
a
s
te

 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 r
e
u
s
e
 p

la
n

 W
a
s
te

 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 r
e
u
s
e
 p

la
n
    

Page 138



No Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management Strategy  

 

Oxfordshire Waste Partnership  B4 August 2006 

 

 

 

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

Figure 2 Figure 2 Figure 2 Figure 2 ---- Waste hierarchy Waste hierarchy Waste hierarchy Waste hierarchy    

    
    

LocLocLocLocalalalal Government  Government  Government  Government –––– Oxfordshire Waste Partnership Oxfordshire Waste Partnership Oxfordshire Waste Partnership Oxfordshire Waste Partnership    

    

The partnership has a track record for delivering, and a reputation for 

producing fresh, forward thinking and innovative waste reduction 

initiatives. Their success has been proven as Oxfordshire has the lowest 

production of waste per head of all the counties in England. The 

partnership wishes to continue to deliver ground-breaking initiatives 

based on the waste hierarchy.  

    

    

ViViViVisionsionsionsion    

 

This plan has been designed to encompass and embrace future changes 

in the waste reduction and reuse fields and compliment the Core Strategy 

vision: 

Page 139



No Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management Strategy  

 

Oxfordshire Waste Partnership  B5 August 2006 

 
“We will work in partnership to reduce waste and to maximise reuse, 

recycling and composting.  We will treat residual waste before disposal to 

recover further value and to minimise the environmental impact of disposal.”    

 

There are three main elements of the plan: 
 

Joint Joint Joint Joint ppppolicies olicies olicies olicies ---- To ensure that the OWP manages waste in the most 

effective way, joint policies across the councils are needed.  These 

policies will give standards that both residents and Oxfordshire’s 

council’s adhere to. 

    

Communications Communications Communications Communications ---- To make waste reduction and reuse as easy as 

possible, communication, education and awareness raising is vital.  

This allows us to learn from our customers and convey information 

in a way which best suits residents. 

 

Tools Tools Tools Tools ---- We believe that practicing waste reduction and reuse should 

be made easy.  So, where possible, we provide the tools to get the 

job done like the household waste reduction pack that has been 

requested by over 50,000 residents.  

 

Using these three elements, we aim to be leaders in waste reduction and 

reuse, developing innovative and life style changing approaches to waste 

resource management. 

    

    

An innovative partnershipAn innovative partnershipAn innovative partnershipAn innovative partnership    

    

In Oxfordshire, we have developed our initiatives by taking a holistic 

approach to waste reduction and reuse.  Our four-pronged method of 

tackling waste reduction and reuse reaches residents from all angles of 

their lives and actively encourages a lifestyle change.  Figure 3 shows how 

this works:  

 

A
n
n
e
x
 B

 
A
n
n
e
x
 B

 
A
n
n
e
x
 B

 
A
n
n
e
x
 B

 –– ––
 W

a
s
te

 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 r
e
u
s
e
 p

la
n

 W
a
s
te

 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 r
e
u
s
e
 p

la
n

 W
a
s
te

 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 r
e
u
s
e
 p

la
n

 W
a
s
te

 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 r
e
u
s
e
 p

la
n
    

Page 140



No Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management Strategy  

 

Oxfordshire Waste Partnership  B6 August 2006 

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

 

 

 

 

Figure 3 Figure 3 Figure 3 Figure 3 –––– Oxfordshire’s key target areas Oxfordshire’s key target areas Oxfordshire’s key target areas Oxfordshire’s key target areas    

 

This method will continue to be used with this new plan, with new 

initiatives fitting naturally into one of the four target areas.  

 

Waste reduction and reuse approachesWaste reduction and reuse approachesWaste reduction and reuse approachesWaste reduction and reuse approaches    
    

Table 2 below sets out 18 key approaches that will be used to deliver 

waste reduction and reuse initiatives across Oxfordshire. 

JJJJoint oint oint oint policypolicypolicypolicy    

Approach 1 Work with external partners on waste reduction/reuse 

policies and initiatives 

 

Approach 2 Attract funding for waste reduction and reuse initiatives 

 

Approach 3 Develop joint policies for controlling waste and consider the 

potential for incentives and penalties 

 

Approach 4 Develop a joint policy on trade waste abuse of the 

household system 

homehomehomehome    

schoolschoolschoolschool    

businessbusinessbusinessbusiness    

communitycommunitycommunitycommunity    

 

an 

individual’s 

–– ––
 W

a
s
te

 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 r
e
u
s
e
 p

la
n

 W
a
s
te

 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 r
e
u
s
e
 p

la
n

 W
a
s
te

 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 r
e
u
s
e
 p

la
n

 W
a
s
te

 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 r
e
u
s
e
 p

la
n
    

Page 141



No Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management Strategy  

 

Oxfordshire Waste Partnership  B7 August 2006 

 

Approach 5 Develop an overarching enforcement plan 

 

Approach 6 Resource and develop reuse opportunities 

 

CCCCommunicationsommunicationsommunicationsommunications    

Approach 7 Develop and implement a marketing plan 

 

Approach 8 Build an advertising campaign with strong, recognisable 

branding 

 

Approach 9 Develop and implement an education plan for schools and 

communities 

 

Approach 

10 

Initiate a customer feedback system 

 

TTTToolsoolsoolsools 

Approach 

11 

Real nappy promotions 

 

Approach 

12 

Hazardous waste reduction campaign 

 

Approach 

13 

Home composting campaign 

 

Approach 

14 

Savvy shopping campaign 

 

Approach 

15 

Develop and target the household waste reduction pack 

 

Approach 

16 

Develop the Community Action Group project 

 

Approach 

17 

Support the Wild Waste Show and Oxfordshire Schools 

Sustainability Projects 

 

Approach 

18 

Further develop and resource trade waste reduction 

initiatives 

    

Table 2 Table 2 Table 2 Table 2 –––– Joint policy, communications and tools approaches to waste  Joint policy, communications and tools approaches to waste  Joint policy, communications and tools approaches to waste  Joint policy, communications and tools approaches to waste 

reduction and reusereduction and reusereduction and reusereduction and reuse initiatives initiatives initiatives initiatives    

Page 142



No Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management Strategy  

 

Oxfordshire Waste Partnership  B8 August 2006 

Joint pJoint pJoint pJoint policy olicy olicy olicy –––– approach 1 approach 1 approach 1 approach 1    

    

Work wiWork wiWork wiWork with government bodies, quangos, Parish Cth government bodies, quangos, Parish Cth government bodies, quangos, Parish Cth government bodies, quangos, Parish Councils, NGOs, ouncils, NGOs, ouncils, NGOs, ouncils, NGOs, 

supermarkets, local businessupermarkets, local businessupermarkets, local businessupermarkets, local businesses, Community Action Groups and other ses, Community Action Groups and other ses, Community Action Groups and other ses, Community Action Groups and other 

partners to continually develop and improve waste reduction and reuse partners to continually develop and improve waste reduction and reuse partners to continually develop and improve waste reduction and reuse partners to continually develop and improve waste reduction and reuse 

policies and initiatives. policies and initiatives. policies and initiatives. policies and initiatives.     

    

Background The authorities in the partnership already work with 

many different organisations.  Oxfordshire’s Councils 

should be working jointly with organisations such as 

Waste Resources Action Programme (WRAP) and 

supermarkets to make best use of resources and 

deliver local projects that affect national strategies. 

 

Planned 

outcomes 

• Pioneering initiatives with partners that push 

local and national best practice, resonating 

beyond Oxfordshire; 

• An international/national reputation for 

developing/encouraging new waste reduction 

and reuse initiatives; 

• Where possible be resource efficient by 

developing other people’s projects as blue-prints 

to be improved and delivered. 

    

    

    

Joint pJoint pJoint pJoint policy olicy olicy olicy –––– approach 2 approach 2 approach 2 approach 2    

    

Have a joint policy to source and ringHave a joint policy to source and ringHave a joint policy to source and ringHave a joint policy to source and ring----fence internal and external funding fence internal and external funding fence internal and external funding fence internal and external funding 

for waste reduction and reuse initiatives.for waste reduction and reuse initiatives.for waste reduction and reuse initiatives.for waste reduction and reuse initiatives.    

 

Background The partnership has previously applied for WRAP 

funding predominantly for recycling campaigns. 

Currently money is not ring-fenced for waste reduction 

A
n
n
e
x
 B

 
A
n
n
e
x
 B

 
A
n
n
e
x
 B

 
A
n
n
e
x
 B

 –– ––
 W

a
s
te

 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 r
e
u
s
e
 p

la
n

 W
a
s
te

 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 r
e
u
s
e
 p

la
n

 W
a
s
te

 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 r
e
u
s
e
 p

la
n

 W
a
s
te

 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 r
e
u
s
e
 p

la
n
    

Page 143



No Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management Strategy  

 

Oxfordshire Waste Partnership  B9 August 2006 

and reuse campaigns. Changing this would make it 

easier to develop and fund a campaigns programme on 

a countywide basis. 

 

Planned 

outcomes 

• Larger number of applications for funding and 

less dependence on core budgets; 

• Support for a wider range of waste reduction and 

reuse projects; 

• Encourage funders to focus on waste reduction 

and reuse funds rather than concentrating on 

funding recycling  related projects. 

    

    

    

    

Joint pJoint pJoint pJoint policy olicy olicy olicy –––– approach 3 approach 3 approach 3 approach 3    

    

Develop joint policies for controlling waste (including alternate weekly Develop joint policies for controlling waste (including alternate weekly Develop joint policies for controlling waste (including alternate weekly Develop joint policies for controlling waste (including alternate weekly 

collection, and a sidecollection, and a sidecollection, and a sidecollection, and a side----waste ban). Also, consider the potential for waste ban). Also, consider the potential for waste ban). Also, consider the potential for waste ban). Also, consider the potential for 

incentives and penalties.incentives and penalties.incentives and penalties.incentives and penalties.    

 

Background There are a variety of policy tools for reducing waste. 

Some of these are already in place in some of 

Oxfordshire’s Authorities, such as alternate weekly 

collection and side waste bans. These policies are 

designed to reduce the householder’s capacity for 

residual waste. 

 

There are several incentives and penalties available to 

encourage waste reduction/reuse and as legislation 

changes the number of measures available will 

increase. Some examples of these are limiting bin size 

and various forms of financial enforcement through 

both penalties and incentives. 

A
n
n
e
x
 B

 
A
n
n
e
x
 B

 
A
n
n
e
x
 B

 
A
n
n
e
x
 B

 –– ––
 W

a
s
te

 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 r
e
u
s
e
 p

la
n

 W
a
s
te

 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 r
e
u
s
e
 p

la
n

 W
a
s
te

 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 r
e
u
s
e
 p

la
n

 W
a
s
te

 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 r
e
u
s
e
 p

la
n
    

Page 144



No Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management Strategy  

 

Oxfordshire Waste Partnership  B10 August 2006 

 

Planned  

outcomes 

• Reductions in the amount of residual waste 

householders are willing to put out; 

• Change of mindset for the householder about 

residual waste for landfilling; 

• Joint working on enforcement issues. 

    

    

Joint pJoint pJoint pJoint policy olicy olicy olicy –––– approach 4 approach 4 approach 4 approach 4    

    
Develop a joint policy on trade waste abuse of the household system.    

    

Background There is an undefined amount of trade waste abuse in 

the household waste system in Oxfordshire.  All 

Authorities should take a united stance on trade waste 

abuse and subsequent enforcement.  

 

This approach has to be part of a wider waste 

enforcement and education plan to ensure that 

Oxfordshire’s business community is aware of its legal 

Duty of Care and the potential fines. 

 

Planned 

outcomes 

• A policy which is enforced countywide; 

• Reductions in the amount of trade waste in the 

household waste stream both at the kerbside and 

at Waste Recycling Centres; 

• Increased awareness of Duty of Care legislation; 

• Decreases in fly-tipping; 

• Increases in the number of businesses that 

manage their waste within the waste hierarchy. 

    

Joint pJoint pJoint pJoint policy olicy olicy olicy –––– approach 5 approach 5 approach 5 approach 5    

    

 W
a
s
te

 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 r
e
u
s
e
 p

la
n

 W
a
s
te

 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 r
e
u
s
e
 p

la
n

 W
a
s
te

 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 r
e
u
s
e
 p

la
n

 W
a
s
te

 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 r
e
u
s
e
 p

la
n
    

Page 145



No Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management Strategy  

 

Oxfordshire Waste Partnership  B11 August 2006 

Develop an overarching joint enforcement planDevelop an overarching joint enforcement planDevelop an overarching joint enforcement planDevelop an overarching joint enforcement plan    

    

Background Some of Oxfordshire’s Authorities have their own 

policies on enforcement. However, the partnership will 

benefit from an overarching countywide enforcement 

plan that takes into consideration communication, the 

range of differing services provided, public opinion and 

problem areas for waste management. 

 

Planned 

outcomes 

• Countywide clarity about, and action upon, 

enforcement; 

• Pooled resources to achieve more successful 

operations; 

• Prevention of  trade waste abuse and fly-tipping. 

    

    

    

Joint pJoint pJoint pJoint policy olicy olicy olicy –––– approach 6 approach 6 approach 6 approach 6    

    

Resource and develop reuse opportunitiesResource and develop reuse opportunitiesResource and develop reuse opportunitiesResource and develop reuse opportunities    

 

Background Oxfordshire Authorities already support a number of 

small scale reuse initiatives, from Community Action 

Group SwapShops to furniture reuse projects. This 

approach works well, but could be resourced on a much 

larger scale, offering long-term support to external 

organisations through reuse contracts.   

 

This approach could also be applied to household, 

school, business and community waste. 

 

Planned 

outcomes 

• Reductions in the amount of reusable items being 

sent to landfill; 

• Investigate the potential for contracts with 

Page 146



No Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management Strategy  

 

Oxfordshire Waste Partnership  B12 August 2006 

appropriate groups such as The Oxford Cycle 

Workshop; 

• Promotion of a holistic approach to the 3Rs 

(reduce, rues and recycle), by placing greater 

emphasis on reuse rather than recycling; 

• Ability to network with charities and convey one 

countywide message on where to take items for 

reuse. 

    

    

    

    

    

Communications Communications Communications Communications –––– approach 7 approach 7 approach 7 approach 7    

    

DevelDevelDevelDevelop and implement a marketing planop and implement a marketing planop and implement a marketing planop and implement a marketing plan    

 

Background Oxfordshire’s Authorities have the opportunity to 

further the work of the partnership by creating a joint 

marketing plan.  This would enable the OWP to pool 

resources and make a greater impact with local, trade, 

national and international press.   

 

The marketing plan will be flexible enough to account 

for the individual work that each Authority does, yet 

ensure that joint publicity and education campaigns are 

delivered giving value for money. 

 

Planned  

outcomes 

• Joint approach to branding, giving residents one 

clear message; 

• An annual programme of events and press 

releases, linking to national campaigns such as 

compost awareness week; 

• Investigate the potential for a joint website and 

A
n
n
e
x
 B

 
A
n
n
e
x
 B

 
A
n
n
e
x
 B

 
A
n
n
e
x
 B

 –– ––
 W

a
s
te

 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 r
e
u
s
e
 p

la
n

 W
a
s
te

 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 r
e
u
s
e
 p

la
n

 W
a
s
te

 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 r
e
u
s
e
 p

la
n

 W
a
s
te

 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 r
e
u
s
e
 p

la
n
    

Page 147



No Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management Strategy  

 

Oxfordshire Waste Partnership  B13 August 2006 

joint public enquiry phone number. 

    

    

    

Communications Communications Communications Communications –––– approach 8 approach 8 approach 8 approach 8    

    

Build an advertising campaign with strong, recognisable brandingBuild an advertising campaign with strong, recognisable brandingBuild an advertising campaign with strong, recognisable brandingBuild an advertising campaign with strong, recognisable branding    

 

Background Oxfordshire County Council has run a generic advertising 

campaign using taxis, radio, newspapers and buses as 

media spaces.   

 

Building a joint advertising campaign will ensure that it 

reaches all corners of the county, reflects local services 

and reinforces a joint brand. 

 

Planned  

outcomes 

� Wider campaign coverage, taking on a local context 

‘reduce for Bicester’ or’ reuse for Faringdon’; 

� Develop the existing advertising branding used for 

advertising to convey a more sophisticated 

message; 

� Investigate the use of new types of media such as 

lamp-post advertising in the city and towns; 

� Link all branding back to the national waste 

campaign produced by WRAP; 

� Increased understanding and recognition of the 

brand by residents, leading to action. 

    

    

Communications Communications Communications Communications –––– approach 9 approach 9 approach 9 approach 9    

    

Develop and implement an education planDevelop and implement an education planDevelop and implement an education planDevelop and implement an education plan    

 

 

 W
a
s
te

 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 r
e
u
s
e
 p

la
n

 W
a
s
te

 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 r
e
u
s
e
 p

la
n

 W
a
s
te

 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 r
e
u
s
e
 p

la
n

 W
a
s
te

 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 r
e
u
s
e
 p

la
n
    

Page 148



No Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management Strategy  

 

Oxfordshire Waste Partnership  B14 August 2006 

Background Through the Wild Waste Show Project and the School 

Sustainability Project, Oxfordshire’s younger generations 

are becoming waste aware. Schools actively use waste 

issues as part of the curriculum. 

 

Increasingly, national environmental and health 

initiatives are applied through schools. Though there are 

some links to these projects, they could be expanded 

upon.  An integrated education plan for Oxfordshire’s 

schools and communities would make best use of the 

limited resource, and develop local and national 

partnership working. 

 

Planned 

outcomes 

• Create a waste education pack for nurseries, 

schools, and brownies/cubs etc.; 

• Encourage more schools to work towards Eco-

School ‘Green Flag’ status. 

    

    

    

Communications Communications Communications Communications –––– approach 10 approach 10 approach 10 approach 10    

    

Implement a customer feedback system allowing residents to contribute Implement a customer feedback system allowing residents to contribute Implement a customer feedback system allowing residents to contribute Implement a customer feedback system allowing residents to contribute 

to to to to joint joint joint joint policy, communications and topolicy, communications and topolicy, communications and topolicy, communications and tools.ols.ols.ols.    

 

Background Each Council has a separate customer feedback 

mechanism.  However, there is currently no approach to 

gaining feedback on joint initiatives.   

 

Planned  

outcomes 

• Initiate different means of gaining customer views 

at the brainstorming and implementation stage of 

projects; 

• Have a consistent method to pass resident’s views 

up to councillors; 

Page 149



No Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management Strategy  

 

Oxfordshire Waste Partnership  B15 August 2006 

• Create a web based feedback system for customer 

ideas and comments; 

• Investigate developing a joint complaints, 

compliments and comments system for waste 

related  issues in Oxfordshire. 

    

    

    

    

    

    

Tools Tools Tools Tools –––– approach 11 approach 11 approach 11 approach 11    

    

Real nappy promotionsReal nappy promotionsReal nappy promotionsReal nappy promotions    

 

Background The OWP seeks to promote the benefits of using 

washable nappies rather than conveying the negative 

impacts of disposable nappies.  

 

The existing Real Nappy Campaign is based on 

providing parents with an education pack.  Support is 

also given to Real Nappy Reps as they provide education 

sessions at Nappuccino events and ante-natal classes 

etc. 

 

Planned 

outcomes 

• Support the use of real nappies in maternity 

wards; 

• Increase number of parents using real nappies on 

their children; 

• Decrease amount of waste entering the residual 

waste steam; 

• Ensure the campaign is pitched at the right level 

and delivering its objectives. 

    

A
n
n
e
x
 B

 
A
n
n
e
x
 B

 
A
n
n
e
x
 B

 
A
n
n
e
x
 B

 –– ––
 W

a
s
te

 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 r
e
u
s
e
 p

la
n

 W
a
s
te

 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 r
e
u
s
e
 p

la
n

 W
a
s
te

 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 r
e
u
s
e
 p

la
n

 W
a
s
te

 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 r
e
u
s
e
 p

la
n
    

Page 150



No Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management Strategy  

 

Oxfordshire Waste Partnership  B16 August 2006 

    

    

Tools Tools Tools Tools –––– approach 12 approach 12 approach 12 approach 12    

    

Hazardous household waste rHazardous household waste rHazardous household waste rHazardous household waste reduction campaigneduction campaigneduction campaigneduction campaign    

 

Background A large amount of hazardous waste is disposed of at the 

Waste Recycling Centres.  Paint, household and garden 

chemicals, that cost very little to buy, often go unused, 

and cost a great deal of money to dispose of properly. 

 

Though 95% of the household hazardous waste collected 

in the county is recycled, most of it is not needed in the 

first place. 

 

Planned  

outcomes 

• Create a leaflet on hazardous waste reduction for 

general distribution;  

• Work with retailers to provide point of sale 

information on hazardous waste reduction and safe 

disposal; 

• Decrease the amount of hazardous waste entering 

the residual waste stream; 

• Encourage the usage of reusable goods and natural 

alternatives in place of hazardous items. 

    

    

    

    

Tools Tools Tools Tools –––– approach  approach  approach  approach 13131313    

    

Home composting campaignHome composting campaignHome composting campaignHome composting campaign    

 

Background Oxfordshire Authorities have run a joint home 

composting scheme since 2000. Composters have been 

 W
a
s
te

 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 r
e
u
s
e
 p

la
n

 W
a
s
te

 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 r
e
u
s
e
 p

la
n

 W
a
s
te

 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 r
e
u
s
e
 p

la
n

 W
a
s
te

 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 r
e
u
s
e
 p

la
n
    

Page 151



No Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management Strategy  

 

Oxfordshire Waste Partnership  B17 August 2006 

sold at a subsidised rate through various schemes and 

promotions.   

 

The scheme has been well received and there is now 

scope to develop communication and initiatives to reach 

residents who have been unwilling or unable to use the 

current scheme. 

 

Planned 

outcomes 

• Research and develop a scheme marketing home 

composters to households not yet composting; 

• Develop a scheme for residents in flats, houses 

without gardens and student houses using an 

indoor composting system; 

• Educate residents on how to compost effectively. 

    

    

    

Tools Tools Tools Tools –––– approach 14 approach 14 approach 14 approach 14    

    

Savvy shopping campaignSavvy shopping campaignSavvy shopping campaignSavvy shopping campaign    

 

Background Oxfordshire’s Authorities have the opportunity to change 

householder’s shopping habits. The waste reduction pack 

contains some tips on how to shop smartly, but more 

could be done.  

 

Supermarket packaging waste is becoming an increasing 

area of concern to residents. A comprehensive savvy 

shopping campaign would build upon the waste 

reduction pack and reusable bag to create habit and 

lifestyle changing behaviours in our residents.  

 

Planned  

outcomes 

• A cohesive Oxfordshire wide campaign with in-

store reminders; 

Page 152



No Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management Strategy  

 

Oxfordshire Waste Partnership  B18 August 2006 

• Educational tools to help residents be savvy 

shoppers; 

• In-home reminders such as fridge magnets; 

• Encourage shoppers not to buy over packaged 

goods.  

    

    

    

    

    

    

Tools Tools Tools Tools –––– approach 15 approach 15 approach 15 approach 15    

    

Develop and target the household waste reduction packDevelop and target the household waste reduction packDevelop and target the household waste reduction packDevelop and target the household waste reduction pack    

 

Background The current household waste reduction pack has been 

available since 2002. The pack has successfully reached 

a core group of people ranging from those interested in 

the environment to those simply wanting to reduce their 

junk mail. 

 

By re-developing and targeting waste reduction packs, 

they can be designed for specific segments of the 

population, attracting their interest and suiting their 

individual needs. 

 

Planned  

outcomes 

• Several new packs, targeted at specific segments 

of the population; 

• Create a tool that is useful and attractive to all 

types of resident; 

• Develop the content of the waste reduction packs; 

• Encourage residents to work towards making 

waste reduction a positive lifestyle change and 

‘the norm’. 

A
n
n
e
x
 B

 
A
n
n
e
x
 B

 
A
n
n
e
x
 B

 
A
n
n
e
x
 B

 –– ––
 W

a
s
te

 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 r
e
u
s
e
 p

la
n

 W
a
s
te

 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 r
e
u
s
e
 p

la
n

 W
a
s
te

 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 r
e
u
s
e
 p

la
n

 W
a
s
te

 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 r
e
u
s
e
 p

la
n
    

Page 153



No Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management Strategy  

 

Oxfordshire Waste Partnership  B19 August 2006 

    

    

    

Tools Tools Tools Tools –––– approach 16 approach 16 approach 16 approach 16    

    

Develop the Community Action Group projectDevelop the Community Action Group projectDevelop the Community Action Group projectDevelop the Community Action Group project    

    

    

Background The Community Action Group (CAG) project began in 

2001 to encourage people in communities to come 

together and take action on waste issues.     

 

At present, Community Action Groups undertake junk 

swap days, green shredding events and trade waste 

management surveys, amongst many other projects. 

 

Planned  

outcomes 

• Use CAGs to promote the waste reduction and 

reuse tools developed by the Oxfordshire Waste 

Partnership; 

• Work with Housing Associations to encourage the 

formation of CAGs and communicate the 3Rs to a 

different audience; 

• Encourage Youth CAGs to form, bringing energy to 

the project and sustainability of the groups; 

• Work with Oxfordshire’s business community to 

ensure that they are undertaking sound waste 

management practice. 

    

Tools Tools Tools Tools –––– approach 17 approach 17 approach 17 approach 17    

    

Support the Wild Waste Support the Wild Waste Support the Wild Waste Support the Wild Waste Show (WWS) project and Oxfordshire Schools Show (WWS) project and Oxfordshire Schools Show (WWS) project and Oxfordshire Schools Show (WWS) project and Oxfordshire Schools 

Sustainability Project (OSSP)Sustainability Project (OSSP)Sustainability Project (OSSP)Sustainability Project (OSSP)    

 

Background The WWS Project delivers fun and imaginative waste 

 W
a
s
te

 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 r
e
u
s
e
 p

la
n

 W
a
s
te

 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 r
e
u
s
e
 p

la
n

 W
a
s
te

 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 r
e
u
s
e
 p

la
n

 W
a
s
te

 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 r
e
u
s
e
 p

la
n
    

Page 154



No Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management Strategy  

 

Oxfordshire Waste Partnership  B20 August 2006 

education to Oxfordshire’s younger residents.  The OSSP 

works at a strategic level with schools to develop their 

approach to waste and sustainability. 

 

The two projects compliment each other and help to 

ensure the viability of Sustainable Development within 

Oxfordshire’s educational establishments.  By 

encouraging younger generations to think about waste 

as a resource, they will hopefully produce less waste in 

their adult lives. 

    

Planned  

outcomes 

• WWS and District Councils work in partnership to 

develop a programme of events across each 

District, covering schools and community 

education; 

• Apply waste reduction and reuse initiatives in 

schools through OSSP, e.g. composting, waste 

exchanges and Youth Community Action Groups.  

    

    

Tools Tools Tools Tools –––– approach 18 approach 18 approach 18 approach 18    

    

Further develop and resource trade waste reduction initiativesFurther develop and resource trade waste reduction initiativesFurther develop and resource trade waste reduction initiativesFurther develop and resource trade waste reduction initiatives    

 

Background Of Oxfordshire’s businesses, 96% are classified as Small 

and Medium Sized (SME). All businesses have a duty to 

ensure their waste is disposed of responsibly.    

 

Oxfordshire recognises the benefits of engaging with it’s 

business community, to help businesses regardless of 

size or sector to reduce waste. In turn, this reinforces the 

waste reduction message amongst Oxfordshire’s 

residents. 

 

Page 155



No Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management Strategy  

 

Oxfordshire Waste Partnership  B21 August 2006 

Planned  

outcomes 

• To hold waste reduction workshops providing 

practical advice on how businesses can reduce 

waste; 

• Distribute the commercial waste reduction pack to 

the business community; 

• Support the development of centralised trade waste 

recycling and trade waste recycling collection 

services; 

• Raise awareness amongst the business community 

of the financial and environmental benefits of 

waste reduction and reuse. 

    

ConcluConcluConcluConclusionsionsionsion    

    

This plan outlines the approaches that form the basis of future waste 

reduction and reuse initiatives in Oxfordshire. A compositional analysis of 

household waste will be used to ascertain the biggest elements of the 

current residual waste stream.  The results of this will be used to: 

 

• Strengthen and target the approaches (for specific materials); 

• Develop targets for a waste reduction and reuse action plan. 

 

Waste reduction and reuse initiatives are a large part of the OWP Action 

Plan (Annex A)(Annex A)(Annex A)(Annex A), but in order to ensure that all the approaches are 

continually funded and developed there is need for a specific waste 

reduction and reuse action plan to be developed. This will ensure that 

households, schools, businesses and communities are targeted.  The 

waste reduction and reuse action plan will sit below the joint OWP action 

plan and will be led by Oxfordshire County Council and jointly delivered 

through the OWP. 

A
n
n
e
x
 B

 
A
n
n
e
x
 B

 
A
n
n
e
x
 B

 
A
n
n
e
x
 B

 –– ––
 W

a
s
te

 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 r
e
u
s
e
 p

la
n

 W
a
s
te

 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 r
e
u
s
e
 p

la
n

 W
a
s
te

 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 r
e
u
s
e
 p

la
n

 W
a
s
te

 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 r
e
u
s
e
 p

la
n
    

Page 156



 

The Oxfordshire Waste PartnershipThe Oxfordshire Waste PartnershipThe Oxfordshire Waste PartnershipThe Oxfordshire Waste Partnership    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

Annex CAnnex CAnnex CAnnex C    

    

Options for recycling and composting Options for recycling and composting Options for recycling and composting Options for recycling and composting 

collectionscollectionscollectionscollections    
    

    

    

    

    

    

    

A
n
n
e
x
 C

 
A
n
n
e
x
 C

 
A
n
n
e
x
 C

 
A
n
n
e
x
 C

 -- --
 O

p
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 
re

c
y
c
li
n
g
 a
n
d
 c
o
m
p
o
s
ti
n
g

 O
p
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 
re

c
y
c
li
n
g
 a
n
d
 c
o
m
p
o
s
ti
n
g

 O
p
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 
re

c
y
c
li
n
g
 a
n
d
 c
o
m
p
o
s
ti
n
g

 O
p
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 
re

c
y
c
li
n
g
 a
n
d
 c
o
m
p
o
s
ti
n
g
    

Page 157



No Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management Strategy        

Oxfordshire Waste Partnership     C2                                     August 2006 

    

    

    

No Time to WasteNo Time to WasteNo Time to WasteNo Time to Waste    

The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste StrategyThe Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste StrategyThe Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste StrategyThe Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Strategy    

Page 158



No Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management Strategy        

Oxfordshire Waste Partnership     C3                                     August 2006 

BacBacBacBackgroundkgroundkgroundkground    

 

IntroductionIntroductionIntroductionIntroduction    

As part of the review of the Joint Municipal Waste Management 

Strategy, and to address the need to divert waste to meet the Landfill 

Allowances, the Oxfordshire Waste Partnership (OWP), comprising the 

five Waste Collection Authorities and the Waste Disposal Authority, has 

considered options for future waste collection, treatment and disposal 

in order to meet the Landfill Diversion targets. In line with the waste 

hierarchy, options for future waste management arrangements have 

been analysed in terms of waste reduction, (Annex B(Annex B(Annex B(Annex B    Waste reduction Waste reduction Waste reduction Waste reduction 

and reuand reuand reuand reuse plan)se plan)se plan)se plan),,,, recycling and composting which is detailed in this 

report, and finally waste treatment and disposal ((((Appendix DAppendix DAppendix DAppendix D    –––– Options  Options  Options  Options 

for residual wastefor residual wastefor residual wastefor residual waste)))). 

Consideration of the waste collection options has been carried out by 

consultants at Environmental Resources Management (ERM) as part of 

the strategic review process. This summary report describes the 

evaluation and assumptions used for the collection options and the 

results of this process.   

 

 

Overview of Options AppraisalOverview of Options AppraisalOverview of Options AppraisalOverview of Options Appraisal    

 

The recycling and composting options assessed in this report were 

identified through consultation with each of the District Councils of 

Oxfordshire and a final list of options were put to the OWP for final 

agreement.   

 

The baseline option details the current collection system that each of 

the District Councils currently operate, (or operated in the year 

2004/05).  The data used for modelling both the collection options 

and residual waste options is for 2004/05.  Each option builds upon 

the baseline collection system to provide additional capacity and/or to 

achieve higher rates of recycling and composting.  The options 

A
n
n
e
x
 C

 
A
n
n
e
x
 C

 
A
n
n
e
x
 C

 
A
n
n
e
x
 C

 -- --
 O

p
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 
re

c
y
c
l

 O
p
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 
re

c
y
c
l

 O
p
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 
re

c
y
c
l

 O
p
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 
re

c
y
c
l i
n
g
 a
n
d
 c
o
m
p
o
s
ti
n
g

in
g
 a
n
d
 c
o
m
p
o
s
ti
n
g

in
g
 a
n
d
 c
o
m
p
o
s
ti
n
g

in
g
 a
n
d
 c
o
m
p
o
s
ti
n
g
    

Page 159



No Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management Strategy        

Oxfordshire Waste Partnership     C4                                     August 2006 

modelled were selected to present an understanding of what recycling 

levels could be achieved if additional materials were collected. 

 

Unlike some other options appraisals, it is unlikely that one option will 

be chosen as ‘the best’.  It is expected that a combination of options 

provided will be taken forward into the Strategy on the basis of the 

balance of advantages and disadvantages that is demonstrated 

through the appraisal. 

    

ApproachApproachApproachApproach    

 

The Kerbside Analysis Tool (KAT) (1) was used as the basis for the 

collection option modelling.  KAT is an easy-to-use spreadsheet which 

allows users to make projections of kerbside collection infrastructure 

and associated standardised costs. Projections can be based on KAT 

default values, which have been derived from an extensive survey of a 

wide range of kerbside collections and are held within KATor locally 

specific data for some or all values to tailor projections to a particular 

collection area. Each collection authority was requested to complete a 

questionnaire sheet.  Information gathered from the questionnaire and 

subsequent discussions with Council Officers from each district was 

used as the basis for modelling collection options for the OWP.   

 

Waste composition data was available for three of the District Councils: 

South Oxfordshire,  Vale of White Horse and West Oxfordshire .  The 

waste composition of these three authorities were averaged and 

applied to Cherwell District Council and Oxford City Council.  The 

options then went through a refinement process.  

 

 

                                        Analysis of OptionsAnalysis of OptionsAnalysis of OptionsAnalysis of Options    

The options were examined using the five following factors:  

                                                 
(1) Refer http://www.wrap.org.uk/local_authorities/toolkits_good_practice/kat_information.html for the latest version of 

KAT. 

 O
p
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 
re

c
y
c
li
n
g
 a
n
d
 c
o
m
p
o
s
ti
n
g

 O
p
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 
re

c
y
c
li
n
g
 a
n
d
 c
o
m
p
o
s
ti
n
g

 O
p
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 
re

c
y
c
li
n
g
 a
n
d
 c
o
m
p
o
s
ti
n
g

 O
p
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 
re

c
y
c
li
n
g
 a
n
d
 c
o
m
p
o
s
ti
n
g
    

Page 160



No Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management Strategy        

Oxfordshire Waste Partnership     C5                                     August 2006 

 

• recycling and composting rates achieved 

• cost 

• road kilometres 

• Biodegradable Municipal Waste diversion 

• greenhouse gas emissions. 

 

Recycling and composting performance shows the amount of diversion 

from landfill for each option.  The other four factors are the evaluation 

criteria agreed by the OWP steering group, members and community 

panel. 

 

Data for each of the chosen criteria was generated by the KAT model.  

This data was extracted from all the data KAT produced and summed 

to give totals for Oxfordshire.  The results for each criteria were then 

compared and ranked to evaluate how each option performed 

according to each criteria. The best performing options for each 

criteria were taken through to a subsequent process for short listing. 

 

The evaluation criteria of public perception was to be used to assess 

the recycling and composting options through using the public 

participation rates for the collections modelled in KAT.  However, it 

was realised that the participation rates in KAT are an input and not an 

output produced by the modelling and so using the participation rates 

would not be an appropriate way to assess the criteria in this 

circumstance.  Public Perception was not used to assess the recycling 

and composting options.  

 

    

Refinement ProcessRefinement ProcessRefinement ProcessRefinement Process    

 

The results of the evaluation criteria were looked at in detail by the 

Oxfordshire Waste Management Strategy/Steering Group (OWMSSG) 

officers. These were interrogated to ensure that the modelling results 

 O
p
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 
re

c
y
c
li
n
g
 a
n
d
 c
o
m
p
o
s
ti
n
g

 O
p
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 
re

c
y
c
li
n
g
 a
n
d
 c
o
m
p
o
s
ti
n
g

 O
p
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 
re

c
y
c
li
n
g
 a
n
d
 c
o
m
p
o
s
ti
n
g

 O
p
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 
re

c
y
c
li
n
g
 a
n
d
 c
o
m
p
o
s
ti
n
g
    

Page 161



No Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management Strategy        

Oxfordshire Waste Partnership     C6                                     August 2006 

were correct with a clear understanding of why certain options had 

good results for a certain criteria while other options scored poorly.   

This scrutiny meant that some refinement of the data used for 

modelling was made to ensure that the options modelled were 

accurate and reflected a collection option that would be practical on 

the ground. 

 

 

ResultsResultsResultsResults    

 

The results of the collection modelling have been combined with the 

treatment and disposal options (Annex D (Annex D (Annex D (Annex D –––– Options for residual waste) Options for residual waste) Options for residual waste) Options for residual waste). 

Table 2 gives a summary of the collection options available, whilst 

Table 3 gives the outcomes of the combined modelling.  

 

Further detail on the collection options modelling is contained within 

the ERM consultants reports to the Oxfordshire Waste Partnership. 

 

 

Targets and PoliciesTargets and PoliciesTargets and PoliciesTargets and Policies    
 

The results of the collection option analysis supports the following 

policies and targets from the Core Strategy, listed in Table 1: 

 

Policy Content 

Policy    6 The Oxfordshire Waste Partnership will provide an integrated system of 

collection and processing of household waste which will achieve, as a 

minimum: 

 

By 31st March 2010: recycle or compost at least 40% of household waste;  

By 31st March 2015: recycle or compost at least 45% of household waste;  

By 31st March 2020: recycle or compost at least 55% of household waste. 

(Waste Strategy 2000 recycling and composting targets for household 

waste) 

 

Policy    7 The Oxfordshire Waste Partnership will ensure that recycling facilities 

and services are available to all residents. 

 

Page 162



No Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management Strategy        

Oxfordshire Waste Partnership     C7                                     August 2006 

Policy    8 The Oxfordshire Waste Partnership will encourage householders and 

businesses to separate waste for recycling collections by providing 

targeted information and awareness raising campaigns. 

 

Policy 14 The Oxfordshire Waste Partnership will develop methods of working 

together to improve the level of service through effective and efficient 

use of resources within Oxfordshire. 

 

 Table 1 Table 1 Table 1 Table 1---- Targets ad policie Targets ad policie Targets ad policie Targets ad policies for collection optionss for collection optionss for collection optionss for collection options 

Page 163



N
o
 T
im

e
 t
o
 W

a
s
te
: 
 T
h
e
 O

x
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 J
o
in
t 
M
u
n
ic
ip
a
l 
W
a
s
te
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
S
tr
a
te
g
y

N
o
 T
im

e
 t
o
 W

a
s
te
: 
 T
h
e
 O

x
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 J
o
in
t 
M
u
n
ic
ip
a
l 
W
a
s
te
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
S
tr
a
te
g
y

N
o
 T
im

e
 t
o
 W

a
s
te
: 
 T
h
e
 O

x
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 J
o
in
t 
M
u
n
ic
ip
a
l 
W
a
s
te
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
S
tr
a
te
g
y

N
o
 T
im

e
 t
o
 W

a
s
te
: 
 T
h
e
 O

x
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 J
o
in
t 
M
u
n
ic
ip
a
l 
W
a
s
te
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
        

O
x
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 W

a
s
te
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 

 
 

  
C
8
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
  
  
A
u
g
u
s
t 
2
0
0
6
 

C
o
ll
e
c
ti
o
n
 O

p
ti
o
n
s

C
o
ll
e
c
ti
o
n
 O

p
ti
o
n
s

C
o
ll
e
c
ti
o
n
 O

p
ti
o
n
s

C
o
ll
e
c
ti
o
n
 O

p
ti
o
n
s
    

A AAA
    

B BBB
    

C CCC
    

D DDD
    

E EEE
    

F FFF
    

G GGG
    

H HHH
    

I* I*I*I*
    

R
e
fu
s
e

R
e
fu
s
e

R
e
fu
s
e

R
e
fu
s
e
    

  
F
tl
y
 

F
tl
y
 

F
tl
y
  

F
tl
y
  

F
tl
y
  

W
k
ly
 

F
tl
y
  

F
tl
y
  

F
tl
y
  

R
e
c
y
c
li
n
g

R
e
c
y
c
li
n
g

R
e
c
y
c
li
n
g

R
e
c
y
c
li
n
g
    
  

F
tl
y
 -
 C
O
 

F
tl
y
 -
 C
O
 

F
tl
y
 -
 K
/
S
 

W
k
ly
 -
 C
O
 

F
tl
y
 -
 C
O
 

F
tl
y
 -
 C
O
 

F
tl
y
 -
 C
O
 

W
k
ly
 -
 C
O
 

m
ix
e
d
 
O
p
t 

G
 &
H
 

O
rg
a
n
ic

O
rg
a
n
ic

O
rg
a
n
ic

O
rg
a
n
ic
    

  

N
o
 

C
o
ll
e
c
ti
o
n
 

F
tl
y
 -
 G
/
K
 

F
tl
y
 -
 G
/
K
 

F
tl
y
 -
 G
/
K
 

F
tl
y
 -
 G
 

F
tl
y
 -
 G
/
K
 

F
tl
y
 -
 G
/
K
 

C
h
rg
 F
tl
y
 G
 

m
ix
e
d
 
O
p
t 

G
 &
H
 

  
  

  
W
k
ly
 K
 

  

  

  

* 
-
 T
h
is
 O

p
ti
o
n
 c
o
n
si
st
s 
o
f 
C
h
e
rw

e
ll
 o
p
e
ra
ti
n
g
 O

p
ti
o
n
 G

, 
W
e
st
, 
S
o
u
th
 a
n
d
 V
a
le
 o
p
e
ra
ti
n
g
 O

p
ti
o
n
 H

 a
n
d
 C

it
y 
o
p
e
ra
ti
n
g
 

fo
rt
n
ig
h
tl
y 
 

  

K
e
y

K
e
y

K
e
y

K
e
y
    

 

F
tl

F
tl
F
tl

F
tl
y
 

y
 
y
 

y
     

F
o
rt
n
ig
h
tl
y
 

c
o
ll
e
c
ti
o
n
 

R
e
s
id
u
a
l,
 
fo
rt
n
ig
h
tl
y
 
c
o
-
m
in
g
le
d
, 
fo
rt
n
ig
h
tl
y
 
g
a
rd
e
n
 
a
n
d
 
k
it
c
h
e
n
 
c
o
ll
e
c
ti
o
n
s
, 
fo
rt
n
ig
h
tl
y
 

p
a
p
e
r 
a
n
d
 g
la
s
s
 c
o
ll
e
c
ti
o
n
s
, 

 
 

W
k
ly

W
k
ly

W
k
ly

W
k
ly
    

W
e
e
k
ly
 

c
o
ll
e
c
ti
o
n
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

C
O

C
O

C
O

C
O
    

C
o
-
m
in
g
le
d
 

C
o
ll
e
c
ti
o
n
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

K
/
S

K
/
S

K
/
S

K
/
S
    

K
e
rb
s
id
e
 

S
o
rt
 

C
o
ll
e
c
ti
o
n
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

G GGG
    

G
a
rd
e
n
 

C
o
ll
e
c
ti
o
n
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

K KKK
    

K
it
c
h
e
n
 

(F
o
o
d
) 

C
o
ll
e
c
ti
o
n
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

G
/
K

G
/
K

G
/
K

G
/
K
    

C
o
m
b
in
e
d
 

G
a
rd
e
n
 

&
 

K
it
c
h
e
n
 

C
o
ll
e
c
ti
o
n
s
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

Page 164



N
o
 T
im

e
 t
o
 W

a
s
te
: 
 T
h
e
 O

x
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 J
o
in
t 
M
u
n
ic
ip
a
l 
W
a
s
te
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
S
tr
a
te
g
y

N
o
 T
im

e
 t
o
 W

a
s
te
: 
 T
h
e
 O

x
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 J
o
in
t 
M
u
n
ic
ip
a
l 
W
a
s
te
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
S
tr
a
te
g
y

N
o
 T
im

e
 t
o
 W

a
s
te
: 
 T
h
e
 O

x
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 J
o
in
t 
M
u
n
ic
ip
a
l 
W
a
s
te
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
S
tr
a
te
g
y

N
o
 T
im

e
 t
o
 W

a
s
te
: 
 T
h
e
 O

x
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 J
o
in
t 
M
u
n
ic
ip
a
l 
W
a
s
te
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
        

O
x
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 W

a
s
te
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 

 
 

  
C
9
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
  
  
A
u
g
u
s
t 
2
0
0
6
 

    T
a
b
le
 2
 

T
a
b
le
 2
 

T
a
b
le
 2
 

T
a
b
le
 2
 - ---
 O

x
fo

 O
x
fo

 O
x
fo

 O
x
fo
rd
sh

ir
e
 s
tr
a
te
g
ic
 w

a
st
e
 r
e
v
ie
w
 s
u
m
m
a
ry
 o
f 
co

ll
e
ct
io
n
 o

rd
sh

ir
e
 s
tr
a
te
g
ic
 w

a
st
e
 r
e
v
ie
w
 s
u
m
m
a
ry
 o
f 
co

ll
e
ct
io
n
 o

rd
sh

ir
e
 s
tr
a
te
g
ic
 w

a
st
e
 r
e
v
ie
w
 s
u
m
m
a
ry
 o
f 
co

ll
e
ct
io
n
 o

rd
sh

ir
e
 s
tr
a
te
g
ic
 w

a
st
e
 r
e
v
ie
w
 s
u
m
m
a
ry
 o
f 
co

ll
e
ct
io
n
 o
p
ti
o
n
s 

p
ti
o
n
s 

p
ti
o
n
s 

p
ti
o
n
s 
    

                             

C
o
ll
e
c
ti
o
n
 

O
p
ti
o
n
 

D
is
p
o
s
a
l 
O
p
ti
o
n
 

C
o
ll
e
c
ti
o
n
 

C
o
s
t 

(N
P
V
) 

£
0
0
0
 

D
is
p
o
s
a
l/
T
re
a
tm

e
n
t 

C
o
s
t 

(N
P
V
) 

£
0
0
0
 

T
o
ta
l 

C
o
s
t 

(N
P
V
) 

£
0
0
0
 

R
a
n
k
in
g
 

R
e
c
y
c
li
n
g
 

%
 

 

A
 

E
F
W
 

£
2
3
9
,0
4
3
 

£
3
6
9
,3
4
6
 

£
6
0
8
,3
8
9
 

3
 

3
2
 

 
M
B
T
 

R
D
F
 

to
 

M
a
rk
e
t 

 
 

 
 

 

B
 

E
F
W
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
M
B
T
 

R
D
F
 

to
 

M
a
rk
e
t 

 
 

 
 

 

C
 

E
F
W
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
M
B
T
 

R
D
F
 

to
 

M
a
rk
e
t 

 
 

 
 

 

D
 

E
F
W
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
M
B
T
 

R
D
F
 

to
 

M
a
rk
e
t 

 
 

 
 

 

A
n

n
e

x
 C

 –
 O

p
ti

o
n

s
 f

o
r 

re
c

y
c

li
n

g
 a

n
d

 c
o

m
p

o
s

ti
n

g
 c

o
ll

e
c

ti
o

n
s

 

Page 165



N
o
 T
im

e
 t
o
 W

a
s
te
: 
 T
h
e
 O

x
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 J
o
in
t 
M
u
n
ic
ip
a
l 
W
a
s
te
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
S
tr
a
te
g
y

N
o
 T
im

e
 t
o
 W

a
s
te
: 
 T
h
e
 O

x
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 J
o
in
t 
M
u
n
ic
ip
a
l 
W
a
s
te
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
S
tr
a
te
g
y

N
o
 T
im

e
 t
o
 W

a
s
te
: 
 T
h
e
 O

x
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 J
o
in
t 
M
u
n
ic
ip
a
l 
W
a
s
te
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
S
tr
a
te
g
y

N
o
 T
im

e
 t
o
 W

a
s
te
: 
 T
h
e
 O

x
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 J
o
in
t 
M
u
n
ic
ip
a
l 
W
a
s
te
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
        

O
x
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 W

a
s
te
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 

 
 

  
C
1
0
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
  
  
A
u
g
u
s
t 
2
0
0
6
 

E
 

E
F
W
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
N
o
 t
re
a
tm

e
n
t 

 
 

 
 

 

F
 

E
F
W
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
M
B
T
 

R
D
F
 

to
 

M
a
rk
e
t 

 
 

 
 

 

G
 

E
F
W
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
M
B
T
 

R
D
F
 

to
 

M
a
rk
e
t 

 
 

 
 

 

H
 

E
F
W
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
M
B
T
 

R
D
F
 

to
 

M
a
rk
e
t 

 
 

 
 

 

I 
E
F
W
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
M
B
T
 

R
D
F
 

to
 

M
a
rk
e
t 

 
 

 
 

 

  
  
  
  
  
N
B
. 
T
h
e
 r
a
n
k
in
g
 t
a
k
e
s
 i
n
to
 a
c
c
o
u
n
t 
a
ll
 f
in
a
n
c
ia
l,
 e
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
ta
l 
a
n
d
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 c
ri
te
ri
a
. 
T
h
e
 l
o
w
e
r 
n
u
m
b
e
rs
 r
e
p
re
s
e
n
t 
th
e
 

m
o
re
 

  
  
  
  
  
fa
v
o
u
ra
b
le
 o
p
ti
o
n
s
, 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 h
ig
h
e
r 
n
u
m
b
e
rs
 r
e
p
re
s
e
n
t 
th
e
 l
e
a
s
t 
fa
v
o
u
ra
b
le
 s
tr
a
te
g
ic
 o
p
ti
o
n
s
. 

    

  
  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  
  
  
T
a
b
le
 3
 

T
a
b
le
 3
 

T
a
b
le
 3
 

T
a
b
le
 3
 - ---
 R
e
su

lt
s 
o
f 
C
o
m
b
in
e
d
 E
v
a
lu
a
ti
o
n

 R
e
su

lt
s 
o
f 
C
o
m
b
in
e
d
 E
v
a
lu
a
ti
o
n

 R
e
su

lt
s 
o
f 
C
o
m
b
in
e
d
 E
v
a
lu
a
ti
o
n

 R
e
su

lt
s 
o
f 
C
o
m
b
in
e
d
 E
v
a
lu
a
ti
o
n
    

            

Page 166



No Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management Strategy        

Oxfordshire Waste Partnership     C11                                     August 2006 

    

ConclusionConclusionConclusionConclusion    

    
This report details the process and the outcomes of the collection modelling 

exercise. These results will now inform each District Council (Waste 

Collection Authority) as they evaluate the options further and select a 

collection scheme appropriate to their local circumstances.  The final 

collection schemes will be in line with the overall OWP Core Strategy’s vision, 

objectives and policies.    

A
n
n
e
x
 C

 
A
n
n
e
x
 C

 
A
n
n
e
x
 C

 
A
n
n
e
x
 C

 -- --
 O

p
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 
re

c
y
c
li
n
g
 a
n
d
 c
o
m
p
o
s
ti
n
g

 O
p
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 
re

c
y
c
li
n
g
 a
n
d
 c
o
m
p
o
s
ti
n
g

 O
p
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 
re

c
y
c
li
n
g
 a
n
d
 c
o
m
p
o
s
ti
n
g

 O
p
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 
re

c
y
c
li
n
g
 a
n
d
 c
o
m
p
o
s
ti
n
g
    

Page 167



    

    

The Oxfordshire Waste PartnershipThe Oxfordshire Waste PartnershipThe Oxfordshire Waste PartnershipThe Oxfordshire Waste Partnership    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

Annex DAnnex DAnnex DAnnex D    

    

Options for Options for Options for Options for residual waste residual waste residual waste residual waste     

(treatment and disposal)(treatment and disposal)(treatment and disposal)(treatment and disposal) 
    

    

    

    

    

A
n
n
e
x
 D

 
A
n
n
e
x
 D

 
A
n
n
e
x
 D

 
A
n
n
e
x
 D

 -- --
 O

p
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 
re

s
 O

p
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 
re

s
 O

p
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 
re

s
 O

p
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 
re

s
id

u
a
l 
w
a
s
te

id
u
a
l 
w
a
s
te

id
u
a
l 
w
a
s
te

id
u
a
l 
w
a
s
te

    

Page 168



No Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management Strategy    

    

Oxfordshire Waste Partnership                   D1    August 2006 
 

    

    

    

    

    

    

No Time to Waste:No Time to Waste:No Time to Waste:No Time to Waste:    

The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste StrategyThe Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste StrategyThe Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste StrategyThe Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Strategy    

    

Page 169



No Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management Strategy    

    

Oxfordshire Waste Partnership                   D2    August 2006 
 

IntroductionIntroductionIntroductionIntroduction    

This annex provides a summary report describing the Evaluation and 

assumptions used to assess how each of the collection options (in 

Annex C) impacts upon the treatment and disposal options (Coupling). 

The Coupling Assessment was undertaken so that the outcomes could 

shape both the Core Strategy and procurement of future residual 

waste capacity.   

This annex supports the following policies in the Core Strategy: 

 

Policy 6 
 

The Oxfordshire Waste Partnership will provide an 

integrated system of collection and processing of 

household waste which will achieve, as a minimum: 

By 31st March 2010: recycle or compost at least 40% of 

household waste;  

By 31st March 2015: recycle or compost at least 45% of 

household waste;  

By 31st March 2020: recycle or compost at least 55% of 

household waste. 

(Waste Strategy 2000 recycling and composting targets for 

household waste) 

Policy 9 The Oxfordshire Waste Partnership will provide a 

system for recovering value from residual wastes in 

order to meet LATS targets. 

Policy 

10 

The Oxfordshire Waste Partnership will ensure 

optimum use of landfill void. 

Table 1 Table 1 Table 1 Table 1 –––– Core Strategy policies pertinent to Annex D Options for residual  Core Strategy policies pertinent to Annex D Options for residual  Core Strategy policies pertinent to Annex D Options for residual  Core Strategy policies pertinent to Annex D Options for residual 

wastewastewastewaste    

    

The Landfill Allowance Trading Scheme (LATS) and the need for waste The Landfill Allowance Trading Scheme (LATS) and the need for waste The Landfill Allowance Trading Scheme (LATS) and the need for waste The Landfill Allowance Trading Scheme (LATS) and the need for waste 

treatmenttreatmenttreatmenttreatment    

A
n
n
e
x
 D

 
A
n
n
e
x
 D

 
A
n
n
e
x
 D

 
A
n
n
e
x
 D

 -- --
 O

p
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 
re

s
id

u
a
l 
w
a
s
te

 O
p
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 
re

s
id

u
a
l 
w
a
s
te

 O
p
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 
re

s
id

u
a
l 
w
a
s
te

 O
p
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 
re

s
id

u
a
l 
w
a
s
te

    

Page 170



No Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management Strategy    

    

Oxfordshire Waste Partnership                   D3    August 2006 
 

 

In recent years, the County Council and District Councils, both  

collectively individually, have taken an active role in promoting waste 

reduction, reuse and recycling. This has been to move towards a more 

sustainable future for Oxfordshire and to achieve statutory and local 

targets. The need to improve performance will continue and is, in 

particular, being driven by European legislation. 

 

The European Union (EU) Landfill Directive 1999 sets challenging 

targets for the diversion of the biodegradable portion of municipal 

solid waste (MSW) from disposal to landfill. Oxfordshire must reduce 

the amount of biodegradable wastes landfilled to: 

 

• 121,700 tonnes by 2009-10;  

• 81,000 tonnes by 2012-13;  

• 56,700 tonnes by 2019-20. 

 

Central Government’s national Waste Strategy 2000, supports the need 

for development of more sustainable waste management methods and 

processes. It sets out national waste recovery and recycling and 

composting targets: 

 

• To recover value from 40% of municipal waste with at least 25% of 

household waste recycled or composted by 2005; 

• To recover value from 45% of municipal waste with at least 25% of 

household waste recycled or composted by 2010.   

 

In 2003, the Government passed the Waste Emissions and Trading Act 

(WET Act), which is a key driver for change in waste management 

practices. The WET Act has implemented the Landfill Allowance 

Trading Scheme (LATS) which sets allowances for each Waste Disposal 

Authority (WDA) for tonnes of biodegradable waste that can be sent to 

landfill. Targets have been set from 2009/10, every year, up to 2020, 

based on the targets in the EU Landfill Directive. The financial 

penalties for non-compliance with legislation if a WDA fails to meet its 

landfill allowance targets are severe. The County Council 

(Oxfordshire’s WDA) must either reduce the amount we landfill every 

A
n
n
e
x
 D

 
A
n
n
e
x
 D

 
A
n
n
e
x
 D

 
A
n
n
e
x
 D

 -- --
 O

p
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 
re

s
id

u
a
l 
w
a
s
te

 O
p
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 
re

s
id

u
a
l 
w
a
s
te

 O
p
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 
re

s
id

u
a
l 
w
a
s
te

 O
p
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 
re

s
id

u
a
l 
w
a
s
te

    

Page 171



No Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management Strategy    

    

Oxfordshire Waste Partnership                   D4    August 2006 
 

year, face being penalised financially if we fail to meet these targets, 

or purchase allowances from another authority (if they are available) in 

order to landfill waste beyond our allowances.   

 

Financial penalties will be £150 for each tonne of biodegradable 

municipal waste landfilled above the agreed landfill allowance in the 

target years of 2009/10, 2012/13 and 2019/20, plus potentially a 

share of any additional fine levied on the UK by the EU. The cost of 

purchasing an allowance in the future is currently unknown, but in the 

target year of 2009/10 and for a period thereafter it is likely to 

approach the level of the fine (£150, reflecting the national rate of 

progress in reducing reliance on landfill). In addition the costs of 

landfill are increasing due to increases in the Landfill Tax, which is 

forecast to increase by £3 per tonne each year up to 2011 (2005/06 

tax is £21 per tonne). Therefore, the County Council has to implement 

alternative ways of diverting municipal waste from landfill, to reduce 

reliance on landfill as the final means of disposing of waste.    

 

Figure 1 shows: 

• Municipal Solid Waste growth projections; 

• The Biodegradable Municipal Waste content;  

• The LATS allowances for Oxfordshire.  

  

0

50,000

100,000

150,000

200,000

250,000

300,000

350,000

400,000

450,000

500,000

20
04

20
05

20
06

20
07

20
08

20
09

20
10

20
11

20
12

20
13

20
14

20
15

20
16

20
17

20
18

20
19

20
20

20
21

20
22

20
23

20
24

20
25

20
26

20
27

20
28

20
29

20
30

20
31

20
32

20
33

20
34

20
35

T
o

n
n

e
s

BMW content MSW arisings LATS allowance

155,000 tonnes

202,000 tonnes

246,000 tonnes

    

    

 O
p
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 
re

s
id

u
a
l 
w
a
s
te

 O
p
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 
re

s
id

u
a
l 
w
a
s
te

 O
p
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 
re

s
id

u
a
l 
w
a
s
te

 O
p
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 
re

s
id

u
a
l 
w
a
s
te

    

Page 172



No Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management Strategy    

    

Oxfordshire Waste Partnership                   D5    August 2006 
 

Figure 1: Oxfordshire Municipal Solid Waste profileFigure 1: Oxfordshire Municipal Solid Waste profileFigure 1: Oxfordshire Municipal Solid Waste profileFigure 1: Oxfordshire Municipal Solid Waste profile    

 

This indicates that, to meet LATS allowances, the County needs to 

divert around 155,000 tonnes of BMW from landfill by 2012/13, 

202,000 tonnes by 2019/20 and potentially 246,000 tonnes by 

2035/36 (depending on the landfill allowances beyond 2019/20).  

These tonnages are based on waste growth forecasts (from data 

currently available), and figures may vary depending on unpredictable 

future changes in waste growth.  The requirement to divert waste from 

landfill would reduce in scale if the waste reduction, reuse and 

recycling targets in this Strategy were met. However, the reduction in 

growth would not be enough to alter the overall scale of the challenge, 

nor the need to commence procurement of new treatment capacity. 

 
 

The ReviewThe ReviewThe ReviewThe Review    

The County Council’s Evaluation of the available treatment options to 

help us meet our LATS targets, has been done in conjunction with the 

development of this Strategy by the OWP. Both the County Council’s 

and the Partnership’s work has been carried out on a ‘technology 

neutral’ basis. Table 2 explains all the work that has been carried out, 

and by which consultants. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ConsultantConsultantConsultantConsultant    Work carried outWork carried outWork carried outWork carried out    

ERM Performed an Evaluation of the waste reduction and 

reuse options and of the waste collection options 

Page 173



No Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management Strategy    

    

Oxfordshire Waste Partnership                   D6    August 2006 
 

Enviros Worked for OCC to develop plans for the future 

treatment of waste. 

Examined the impact of the collection options on 

treatment and disposal. 

Table 2 Table 2 Table 2 Table 2 ---- Work carried out and by whom Work carried out and by whom Work carried out and by whom Work carried out and by whom    

    

Collection options and their link to treatment/disposal Collection options and their link to treatment/disposal Collection options and their link to treatment/disposal Collection options and their link to treatment/disposal 

optionsoptionsoptionsoptions    

Collection options were developed and evaluated at the beginning of 

the strategy development process. A total of 12 collection options 

have been examined (including a baseline) in conjunction with a range 

of treatment and disposal options for residual waste incorporating 

landfill disposal, Energy from Waste, Advanced Thermal Treatment and 

Mechanical Biological Treatment. Figure 2 below, shows how this 

process worked. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

A
n
n
e
x
 D

 
A
n
n
e
x
 D

 
A
n
n
e
x
 D

 
A
n
n
e
x
 D

 -- --
 O

p
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 
re

s
id

u
a
l 
w
a
s
te

 O
p
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 
re

s
id

u
a
l 
w
a
s
te

 O
p
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 
re

s
id

u
a
l 
w
a
s
te

 O
p
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 
re

s
id

u
a
l 
w
a
s
te

    

Page 174



No Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management Strategy    

    

Oxfordshire Waste Partnership                   D7    August 2006 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

Figure 2 Figure 2 Figure 2 Figure 2 –––– The coupled Evaluation process The coupled Evaluation process The coupled Evaluation process The coupled Evaluation process    

Treatment/disposa

l options 

Collection 

options 

    

Developed Developed Developed Developed     

    

    

A series of coupled 

options that show 

how collection 

Coupled EvaluationCoupled EvaluationCoupled EvaluationCoupled Evaluation    

Future stepFuture stepFuture stepFuture step    

Procure Procure Procure Procure 

appropriate appropriate appropriate appropriate 

treatment treatment treatment treatment 

A
n
n
e
x
 D

 
A
n
n
e
x
 D

 
A
n
n
e
x
 D

 
A
n
n
e
x
 D

 -- --
 O

p
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 
re

s
id

u
a
l 
w
a
s
te

 O
p
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 
re

s
id

u
a
l 
w
a
s
te

 O
p
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 
re

s
id

u
a
l 
w
a
s
te

 O
p
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 
re

s
id

u
a
l 
w
a
s
te

    

Page 175



No Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management Strategy    

    

Oxfordshire Waste Partnership                   D8    August 2006 
 

    

The coupled EvaluationsThe coupled EvaluationsThe coupled EvaluationsThe coupled Evaluations    

The following range of generic waste treatment and disposal options 

were coupled with each of the collection options for the coupled 

Evaluation: 

• No treatment     

o all residual waste is sent directly to landfill 

• Energy from Waste (EFW) 

o one or two facilities to treat residual waste 

• Advanced Thermal Treatment (ATT)   

o one or two facilities to treat residual waste 

• Mechanical Biological Treatment (MBT)  

o  two plants to treat residual waste 

The MBT option has been modelled with three possible sub-options: 

• Refuse Derived Fuel (RDF) being combusted in dedicated a 

Oxfordshire facility; 

• RDF being combusted through existing UK market structures; 

• RDF being disposed of to landfill. 

In addition, the model included the infrastructure needed for each of 

the collection, such as composting facilities (windrow and in-vessel), 

materials recycling facilities and transfer / bulking facilities. 

    

Evaluation CriteriaEvaluation CriteriaEvaluation CriteriaEvaluation Criteria    

Each combined collection and treatment/disposal option has been 

modelled in terms of waste flow and cost; then evaluated against a set 

A
n
n
e
x
 D

 
A
n
n
e
x
 D

 
A
n
n
e
x
 D

 
A
n
n
e
x
 D

 -- --
 O

p
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 
re

s
id

u
a
l 
w
a
s
te

 O
p
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 
re

s
id

u
a
l 
w
a
s
te

 O
p
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 
re

s
id

u
a
l 
w
a
s
te

 O
p
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 
re

s
id

u
a
l 
w
a
s
te

    

Page 176



No Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management Strategy    

    

Oxfordshire Waste Partnership                   D9    August 2006 
 

of weighted criteria. The criteria were developed with Officers and 

Members of the OWP, to inform the future of waste management in 

Oxfordshire.  The criteria are outlined in table  3.  The criteria for, and 

the rankings of, the various collection options is given in Annex C Annex C Annex C Annex C 

(Options for recycling and composting collections)(Options for recycling and composting collections)(Options for recycling and composting collections)(Options for recycling and composting collections).   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

CriterionCriterionCriterionCriterion    WeightingWeightingWeightingWeighting    

Costs (operational & capital) 17.1% 

Deliverability 14.8% 

Opportunities / benefits 1.2% 

Public participation / acceptability / 

demand 

10.5% 

BMW diversion from landfill 14.4% 

Landtake / sites  2.3% 

Flexibility  10.5% 

Depletion of resources  3.1% 

Air acidification 2.4% 

Greenhouse gas emissions  5.1% 

Public health impacts 9.3% 

Page 177



No Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management Strategy    

    

Oxfordshire Waste Partnership                   D10    August 2006 
 

Extent of water pollution   2.3% 

Total road kilometres 7% 

Table 3 Table 3 Table 3 Table 3 ---- Coupling Ev Coupling Ev Coupling Ev Coupling Evaluation criteriaaluation criteriaaluation criteriaaluation criteria    

    

ResultsResultsResultsResults    

For each of the short listed collection options, Energy from Waste (EfW) 

is found  (against the criteria and weightings above) to be the highest-

ranking residual waste management option.  However, the differences 

between the residual waste management options are not large enough 

to be decisive. They are also sensitive to the weightings given to 

different factors (such as cost and deliverability). Importantly, the 

results show that the treatment options are not highly sensitive to the 

choice of collection option. All three of the main treatment options 

(EfW, ATT, MBT) have their strengths and their risks these are outlined 

in Table 4. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

TreatmentTreatmentTreatmentTreatment    Strengths and risksStrengths and risksStrengths and risksStrengths and risks    

Energy from Waste • The main factors in the high ranking of EfW are the 

robustness of the technology in terms of flexibility, 

BMW diversion and revenue from energy produced.   

• In line with the waste hierarchy, energy from waste 

should be employed for the treatment of residual 

waste only where waste reduction, reuse, recycling and 

composting have been optimised.   

n
s
 f
o
r 
re

s
id

u
a
l 
w
a
s
te

n
s
 f
o
r 
re

s
id

u
a
l 
w
a
s
te

n
s
 f
o
r 
re

s
id

u
a
l 
w
a
s
te

n
s
 f
o
r 
re

s
id

u
a
l 
w
a
s
te

    Page 178



No Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management Strategy    

    

Oxfordshire Waste Partnership                   D11    August 2006 
 

• The public engagement exercise has confirmed that 

EfW is the least favoured among the public. This may 

have been coloured by national experiences in the past 

where lower emission standards were achieved.   

These perceptions, even if based on outdated 

evidence, might heighten planning risks, subsequently 

possibly affecting the timing of delivery. 

Advanced Thermal 

Treatment 

• Advanced Thermal Treatment has excellent potential 

for revenue from energy which is eligible for 

Renewable Obligation Certificates (ROCs), and 

therefore can be sold at a higher price.  If cost were 

the only consideration ATT would come out highest in 

the ranking. The same applies even if 50% of the 

weighting is based on cost.   

• It scores less well against other criteria. In particular 

there are concerns over the deliverability and flexibility 

of this technology for the treatment of mixed MSW, as 

it has yet to be proven in the UK.  On the criteria and 

weightings used for this Evaluation it scores bottom. 

Mechanical 

Biological 

Treatment 

• The generic MBT option modelled ranks favourably 

against the criteria where any Refuse Derived Fuel 

(RDF) produced is sent for combustion through 

existing UK markets, rather than landfilling, or 

material combustion in a new dedicated Oxfordshire 

facility.  This has obvious favourable financial and 

deliverability implications as no additional capital cost 

is incurred for a combustion plant, yet RDF is diverted 

from landfill.   

• There are substantial uncertainties over the availability 

of RDF combustion capacity within the UK market at 

present, and if this is not available MBT would be the 

highest cost option and/or secure only limited 

diversion from landfill. 

Table 4 Table 4 Table 4 Table 4 ---- Main treatment options  Main treatment options  Main treatment options  Main treatment options ---- strengths and risks strengths and risks strengths and risks strengths and risks    

It is important to emphasise that this options appraisal compares the 

performance of each option against a set of agreed weighted criteria.  

If these criteria change then the overall ranking may change.  In 

addition, the appraisal exercise has been carried out by making a 

Page 179



No Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management Strategy    

    

Oxfordshire Waste Partnership                   D12    August 2006 
 

number of assumptions on waste arisings, markets, prices and costs.  

These are constantly subject to change, and any changes will affect the 

overall evaluation and performance of each of the options.  Some of 

the assumptions (for example on construction costs and on disposal 

options of MBT residues) can only be established by testing the 

market. 

Therefore, whilst EfW ranks highest overall, the results of this 

Evaluation are consistent with OCC’s policy of being technology 

neutral and seeking market responses though a competitive dialogue 

tendering process before deciding on procurement of a particular 

technical solution. 

    

ConclusionConclusionConclusionConclusion    
 

This annex details the process and the outcomes of the Coupling 

Evaluation modeling exercise and the assumptions used to assess how 

each of the collection options (in Annex C) impacts upon the treatment 

and disposal options (Coupling). These results will now inform the 

procurement of appropriate treatment capacity in the future. The final 

treatment and disposal capacity will be in line with the overall OWP 

Core Strategy’s vision, objectives and policies. 

 

A
n
n
e
x
 D

 
A
n
n
e
x
 D

 
A
n
n
e
x
 D

 
A
n
n
e
x
 D

 -- --
 O

p
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 
re

s
id

u
a
l 
w
a
s
te

 O
p
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 
re

s
id

u
a
l 
w
a
s
te

 O
p
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 
re

s
id

u
a
l 
w
a
s
te

 O
p
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 
re

s
id

u
a
l 
w
a
s
te

    

Page 180



The Oxfordshire Waste PartnershipThe Oxfordshire Waste PartnershipThe Oxfordshire Waste PartnershipThe Oxfordshire Waste Partnership    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

Annex EAnnex EAnnex EAnnex E    

    

Community engagement and involvementCommunity engagement and involvementCommunity engagement and involvementCommunity engagement and involvement    

    

    

    

    

    

A
n
n
e
x
 E
 

A
n
n
e
x
 E
 

A
n
n
e
x
 E
 

A
n
n
e
x
 E
 -- --
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 e
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 i
n
v
o
lv
e
m
e
n
t

 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 e
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 i
n
v
o
lv
e
m
e
n
t

 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 e
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 i
n
v
o
lv
e
m
e
n
t

 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 e
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 i
n
v
o
lv
e
m
e
n
t     

Page 181



No Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management Strategy    

 

Oxfordshire Waste Partnership             E1 August 2006 

    

    

    

    

    

    

No Time to Waste:No Time to Waste:No Time to Waste:No Time to Waste:    

The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste StrategyThe Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste StrategyThe Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste StrategyThe Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Strategy    

 

 

IntroductionIntroductionIntroductionIntroduction    

 

Policy three of the Core Strategy says that the Oxfordshire Waste 

Partnership will: 

    

“help householders and individuals to reduce and manage 

their wastes through the provision of advice and 

appropriate services.” 

 

The delivery of the whole Strategy rests, to a significant degree, on the 

willingness and desire of Oxfordshire residents to take responsibility 

for their waste. This is not a ‘one way’ responsibility. Some of the 

decisions facing the Oxfordshire authorities have major financial and 

service design implications and the views of residents will need to 

continue to be taken into account. Therefore, during the development 

of this Strategy, the OWP engaged  and involved the community 

through two exercises: 

 

1. During the initial development stages of the Strategy (October 

2005 - January 2006) a representative Community Panel was 

used to gather the views and concerns of residents, so these 

could be fed into the Strategy process from the outset;  

A
n
n
e
x
 E
 

A
n
n
e
x
 E
 

A
n
n
e
x
 E
 

A
n
n
e
x
 E
 -- --
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 e
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 i
n
v
o
lv
e
m
e
n
t

 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 e
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 i
n
v
o
lv
e
m
e
n
t

 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 e
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 i
n
v
o
lv
e
m
e
n
t

 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 e
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 i
n
v
o
lv
e
m
e
n
t     

Page 182



No Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management Strategy    

 

Oxfordshire Waste Partnership             E2 August 2006 

2. When the main elements of the strategy were becoming clear, 

but before finalisation, a wider public engagement exercise 

entitled ‘No Time to Waste’ was conducted. It explained the 

challenges faced, set out the emerging responses, promoted 

awareness and debate, and invited views. 

 

The results of this second exercise were then fed into the final process 

of the Strategy formulation.  This Annex reports respectively on both 

exercises. 

    

    

    

Community panelCommunity panelCommunity panelCommunity panel    

 

The Community Panel comprised residents from each of Oxfordshire’s 

Districts areas. Where possible it reflected the male/female split, age 

and ethnic diversity present within the County. There were four 

meetings of the Community Panel over the early Strategy development 

period. 

 

The main functions of the meetings were to: 

 

• Identify issues that members of the community might raise 

about waste management in Oxfordshire, or in response to the 

Strategy; 

• Respond to all subjects raised or explain the issues behind 

them. The desired outcome of this was that the Community 

Panel would gain a better understanding of the issues involved 

in the management of their waste;   

This would then give the members of the panel a better footing to 

make comments on the Strategy as it was being developed and, 

hopefully, give them confidence in the overall process. 

 

The meetings involved: 

Page 183



No Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management Strategy    

 

Oxfordshire Waste Partnership             E3 August 2006 

 

• Presentation of key information;  

• Followed by discussion in groups to consider elements of choice 

and to debate priorities and direction for the Strategy.  

 

All comments and opinions of the Community Panel were fed back to 

Officers and Members at OWP workshops and waste review meetings. 

Four Community Panel meetings were held at the Oxford Town Hall.  

Each Community Panel meeting was held at a specific stage in the 

Strategy’s development. 

 

 

First meeting First meeting First meeting First meeting ---- 26 October 2005 26 October 2005 26 October 2005 26 October 2005    

 

The first meeting had two purposes: 

 

1. To give some background information on waste management, 

including current legislation;  

2. To present the Strategy development process.   

 

A discussion then developed about the aims and objectives for 

Oxfordshire’s Joint Municipal Waste Management Strategy.  The 

following key points were made in full group discussion: 

 

• The panel understand the need to reduce waste going into landfill; 

• Reduction – 

o The Community Panel think it is important to deal with 

waste upfront in terms of reducing waste generated; 

o there is a need to deal with waste at the root of the cause, 

work towards waste reduction and need to focus on 

consumerism in relation to packaging; 

• Incentives for households to recycle to the maximum is important; 

• People’s housing situation affects their ability to recycle and get 

involved; 

Page 184



No Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management Strategy    

 

Oxfordshire Waste Partnership             E4 August 2006 

• Emissions from vehicles used to collect waste etc. could be reduced 

by switching to alternative fuels; 

• The Community Panel gave two examples illustrated to show how 

other counties and countries force the householder to think about 

the amount of waste they produce: 

- Montreal, Canada:Montreal, Canada:Montreal, Canada:Montreal, Canada: give a limit on the amount of waste put out 

for collection, any waste above the limit incurs a charge. 

- Cambridgeshire: Cambridgeshire: Cambridgeshire: Cambridgeshire: have a larger bin for recyclables and smaller 

bin for other wastes    

• If people are charged they might be more inclined to dump their 

waste in the countryside, i.e. fly tip; 

• Economic incentives -  

o supermarkets should have a packaging levy; 

o offer incentives instead of charges/tax/levies; 

o people who recycle should get lower council tax – it 

should be council tax driven; 

• As a Country we should fine people who do not recycle etc; 

• The stricter Governments become, the more it narrows choices and 

it gets harder to monitor activity or behaviour;  

• There should be a by-law passed to ensure each individual Authority 

manages its own waste within its own area and has responsibility for 

the waste.  

 

Three breakout groups were formed to consider more closely the aims 

and objectives for the Strategy.  Comments included: 

 

• It should meet Government guidelines; 

• Financial costs are important (the Community Panel do not want to 

see Government fines for Oxfordshire); 

• The Strategy should be realistic in terms of the influence and power 

of Local Authority i.e. it should not try to do things that are 

undeliverable; 

• A decent safe service should be provided; 

• Communications - 

Page 185



No Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management Strategy    

 

Oxfordshire Waste Partnership             E5 August 2006 

o education/information from advertising - should reach 

everyone and should start at school; 

o increase awareness of waste reduction and recycling; 

o let people know what happens with their waste etc and 

how they can contribute/help; 

• A Jamie Oliver approach could be taken - i.e. there should be local 

and national radical change and big shake up like the high profile 

school dinners issue. 

• It should be simple to make a contribution to (participate in) 

recycling and composting schemes, particularly in difficult places 

like flats; 

• It should consider fuel for the vehicles i.e. bio diesel; 

• It should recommend buying in bulk; 

• It should build in incentives and increase awareness of packaging 

issues;  

• There should be more publicity and campaigns work should have a 

bigger profile; 

• Recycling businesses could have more of a role; 

• Big businesses should take more responsibility for waste e.g. 

packaging, recycling etc. 

 

 

 

Second meeting, 2 November 2005Second meeting, 2 November 2005Second meeting, 2 November 2005Second meeting, 2 November 2005    

 

The purpose of the second meeting was to present and discuss the 

evaluation criteria that would be used to assess the options for the 

Strategy.   

 

The meeting began with an update on the discussion from the 

previous meeting (Meeting 1). This was followed by a whole group 

discussion about what was important to the Community Panel with 

regard to waste and the collection service they receive.  General 

comments received from the group are detailed below: 

Page 186



No Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management Strategy    

 

Oxfordshire Waste Partnership             E6 August 2006 

 

• Standards of service seem to be low, collection of rubbish causes a 

mess and this is not cleaned up immediately; 

• Oxford City need to consider the advice they give out i.e. bin bags 

are required to be set out the night before collection but this allows 

vermin to break into them which causes a mess; 

• Is it possible that the poor service provided by bin men is because 

of the poor perception people have of their job? 

• Bin men are paid relatively well; 

• There is not just a litter element to rubbish collection but also noise 

pollution from glass collection and vehicles; 

• Recycling is not cost efficient but it makes people feel good; 

• It is important to consider the issues involved with transport of 

materials for recycling; 

• The group’s knowledge -  

o the group need to know the background to recycling 

before it can make decisions; 

o it’s difficult to choose criteria without knowing more 

information. 

 

 

The group then split into three breakout groups to discuss evaluation 

criteria in more detail. The main points from each group were fed back 

at the end of the session.  The key points were: 

 

• Transport is important – it should consider environmental, traffic 

congestion, reduce road mile, emissions, and health and safety 

issues; 

• What would be the costs of converting Didcot power station into an 

incinerator? 

• Economic tools - 

o increase levies on products that are difficult to recycle; 

o incentives for shops/ restaurants to consider packaging; 

• Invest now for the long term; 

• Happy to spend the money now for the benefits in long term; 

Page 187



No Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management Strategy    

 

Oxfordshire Waste Partnership             E7 August 2006 

• It shouldn’t be all about the cost; 

• Good planning is important; 

• Should look at best practice from around the world; 

• Need good advertising/ awareness/ education; 

• Need a countywide system that is streamlined – joint working; 

• Would like the best environmental value; 

• Effects on the environment should be considered; 

 

The Community Panel was then asked to apply weightings to the 

criteria they considered to be important.  The criteria and weightings 

did not match that of the OWP and Officers of the Project Team. 

However, the top three criteria after the Community Panel’s weighting 

exercise are detailed below: 

 

1. environmental impact 

2. cost  

3. education. 

 

 

 

Third meeThird meeThird meeThird meeting, 16 November 2005ting, 16 November 2005ting, 16 November 2005ting, 16 November 2005    

 

The purpose of the third meeting was to present and discuss the 

options being developed for: 

 

• waste reduction and reuse  

• recycling and composting 

• residual waste treatment. 

 

The group split into breakout groups to discuss the option sets, their 

implications for the Strategy and how practical they would be to 

implement.  Key points raised were: 

 

 

Page 188



No Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management Strategy    

 

Oxfordshire Waste Partnership             E8 August 2006 

Waste reduction and reuse:Waste reduction and reuse:Waste reduction and reuse:Waste reduction and reuse:    

 

• Glossy magazines should be recycled too; 

• Non-reusable nappies should be taxed, much like alcohol and 

cigarettes; 

• Nappy laundering service should be promoted, and information on 

it should be included in nappy packs; 

• Composting - 

o home composting bins should have a low price £5 - £10 

to encourage more people to buy and use them; 

o composting bins should come in varying sizes to suit 

different numbers of people living in households; 

o garden makeover shows should publicise composting as a 

normal activity to be undertaken by everyone; 

• The use of paper bags or bags for life over plastic ones should be 

heavily promoted; 

• The glass deposit system should be re-introduced; 

• Junk mail - 

o unwanted mail service (Royal Mail) - doesn’t stop mail 

sent directly to the “The Occupier”; 

o need a similar law on spam on the internet, as senders of 

junk mail advertising (loans etc); 

o OWP Could introduce a fine on newsagents that allow junk 

flyers into newspapers – this was disagreed by the group 

because it is not necessarily the newsagent that allows the 

flyers to go in; 

• With regards to reuse, items such as mobiles and phones should be 

taken back by the producer/supplier or supermarkets should take 

them in return for store card points; 

• There is a need for incentives so that purchasers return packaging 

used for large items such as TVs, or for the supplier to pick up 

packaging once the item has been taken home.  The packaging 

could then be reused; 

Page 189



No Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management Strategy    

 

Oxfordshire Waste Partnership             E9 August 2006 

• Alternatively there could be recycling bins/skips at schools where 

people could take their recycling. As an incentive the school could 

receive credits in relation to the amount of recyclables they collect; 

• Scout collection items for recycling and re-use is not seen in 

Oxfordshire. 

 

 

Collection:Collection:Collection:Collection:    

    

• The group was not happy with the fact that some Districts charge 

for collection of bulky waste while other Districts don’t – this will 

encourage fly tipping; 

• All attendees were generally happy with current waste collection 

system; 

• Improvements could be made through synchronising the collection 

systems (i.e. frequency etc.); 

• They would like a collection system that collects as much as 

possible; 

• All Districts should standardise collection receptacle and colour but 

give choice on size, so as to help people use the system; 

• OWP need to lobby developers to provide recycling facilities at new 

housing developments; 

• Can crushers could be provided with recycling boxes or sold at 

discount to encourage the utilisation of space; 

• They can see the advantages in having an alternate weekly 

collection like Cherwell District Council’s; 

• Dirty MRF - 

o Districts could streamline the collection so that all waste is 

collected in one black bag and a dirty MRF used to pick 

out the recyclables – however it is important not to lose 

awareness; 

o it was also noted that a dirty MRF would mean that some 

recyclables lose their value to market and so this may 

have a negative affect. 

Page 190



No Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management Strategy    

 

Oxfordshire Waste Partnership             E10 August 2006 

 

 

Residual Waste:Residual Waste:Residual Waste:Residual Waste:    

    

• There was no dislike for any particular type of treatment; 

• Incineration -  

o was discussed as being appropriate but only after the 

maximum effort is made to reduce waste and all 

recyclables previously removed.  This would ensure that 

only the minimum amount is burnt; 

o is for waste that has no other options available for 

disposal; 

• There is strict legislation for current treatment technologies in 

comparison to old methods with regards to fumes and gases, and 

the environment; 

• Where would the facility be located in Oxfordshire? 

• Waste could be transported outside of the County but this would 

mean adverse affects on the environment through road miles and 

vehicle emissions – the group was concerned about this. 

    

    

Fourth meeting, 24 January 2006Fourth meeting, 24 January 2006Fourth meeting, 24 January 2006Fourth meeting, 24 January 2006    

 

The fourth meeting: 

 

• Presented the preliminary results from the waste reduction and 

reuse Evaluation work and the recycling and composting Options 

Evaluation work for the Strategy.  

• The options developed for the residual waste treatment 

Evaluation were also presented for discussion. 

 

 

WasteWasteWasteWaste reduction and reuse options reduction and reuse options reduction and reuse options reduction and reuse options    

 

Page 191



No Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management Strategy    

 

Oxfordshire Waste Partnership             E11 August 2006 

The group split into three discussion groups to consider the waste 

reduction and reuse options and Evaluation results.  Each group was 

asked to consider which option would be the most effective and to 

identify any problems that they thought might arise.  Key points made 

were: 

 

• A linkage was made between glass bottle returning to supermarkets 

and using reusable bags.  Carry bottles for return into shop in bag 

and use the same bag to carry new shopping out; 

• Opt-in for paper bills etc, automatically get no paper bills, spam 

etc; 

• Smart shopping - 

o requires changes to be made with packaging at producer 

level; 

o is dependent on the producer of the packaging, removing 

wrapping at the shop does not minimise waste, it just 

shifts where the waste is collected; 

• Composting - 

o is problematic with new housing and limited garden 

space; 

o there is a need to change the perceived association of 

composting with ‘gardening’; 

o some people have just grass in their garden, they could 

have a compost bin that is just for green kitchen waste; 

o it was noted that composting produces compost and not 

everyone wants/needs compost. 

 

 

Waste collection optionsWaste collection optionsWaste collection optionsWaste collection options    

 

The Community Panel was also divided into three discussion groups to 

consider the waste collection options and Evaluation results.  Again, 

each group was asked to consider which of these they thought would 

Page 192



No Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management Strategy    

 

Oxfordshire Waste Partnership             E12 August 2006 

be the most effective and what they thought would be required in 

order to make them work successfully.  Key points made were: 

 

• The fortnightly frequency for all collections is good, if given the 

correct collection receptacle (i.e. bin with lid); 

• There would have to be some exceptions made for housing that 

may not be able to accommodate a number of collection 

receptacles; 

• It should be expected to take a while for a new system to become 

established. There might be problems with the amount of 

recyclables collected over two weeks and service might have to 

change to weekly; 

• A new system would require flexibility with bin size, collection 

frequency for different housing types; 

• There are real problems with perception of residuals being collected 

over two weeks; 

• The group agree with stopping black sacks, far better to use 

reusable bins; 

• Fortnightly collections may be too confusing for some people and 

they may not bother – lots of public awareness is required; 

• The receptacles should all have stickers on stating what can and 

can’t be put in for collection; 

• The number of bring banks should be increased and all 

supermarkets should have them. 

 

 

Waste treatment optionsWaste treatment optionsWaste treatment optionsWaste treatment options    

    

The three discussion groups considered the waste treatment options, 

which of these they thought would be effective and which they felt 

would be the most appropriate for Oxfordshire.  Key points raised 

were: 

 

• There are no strong feelings for any type of treatment; 

Page 193



No Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management Strategy    

 

Oxfordshire Waste Partnership             E13 August 2006 

• The maximum waste reduction and recycling efforts must be made 

before any type of treatment used; 

• A treatment facility should not have any adverse environmental 

effects and should have limited transport involved with its process 

or getting to it; 

• The type of facility considered should also deal with the waste 

completely (e.g. there is some risk with future markets for outputs 

of certain treatments). 

 

In summary, composting and smart shopping have real potential to 

reduce waste. Also, the group are happy with fortnightly collections if 

supported by appropriate receptacles and frequency. 

 

 

 

Public Engagement: “No Time to Waste”Public Engagement: “No Time to Waste”Public Engagement: “No Time to Waste”Public Engagement: “No Time to Waste”    

    

Background Background Background Background  

 

The OWP began developing a Public Engagement exercise in Spring 

2006. This was to inform and involve County residents with the future 

of waste management in Oxfordshire; and in particular to introduce 

the need for change and the future options for delivering this change. 

 

 

ObjectivesObjectivesObjectivesObjectives    

    

The main objectives of the public engagement exercise were to: 

 

• Raise the profile of waste management in the county and the need 

for change; 

• Take initial steps to establish a community leadership role for the 

OWP (i.e. to lead and inform debate); 

Page 194



No Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management Strategy    

 

Oxfordshire Waste Partnership             E14 August 2006 

• Seek basic customer feedback on key themes to be addressed by 

the Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management Strategy (2005 

to 2030). 

 

 

ApproachApproachApproachApproach    

    

Due to rigid time constraints, the public engagement exercise was 

limited to a five-week period (Friday 2 June – Sunday 7 July). This was 

extended to 17 July to enable people who went to the last few 

roadshows to take away forms and consider their response before 

sending them in.  In order to maximise public engagement during this 

short-time period, a clear focus was given to delivering key messages 

via a hard-copy booklet and web pages. A wide range of 

communications activities was also used to ensure on-going publicity 

and distribution of these key messages.  Table 1 shows how the 

objectives for the engagement were fulfilled. 

 

Objective How fulfilled 

Raising the profile of waste management, 

the need for change and the OWP 

• roadshows 

• website 

• advertising. 

Seeking feedback • hard-copy booklet form 

• website form 

• newspaper and Friends of the 

Earth forms. 

    

Table 1 Table 1 Table 1 Table 1 ----  Fulfillment of public engagement objectives  Fulfillment of public engagement objectives  Fulfillment of public engagement objectives  Fulfillment of public engagement objectives    

 

A public relations company was commissioned to develop an ‘identity’ 

for the public engagement exercise and to support the production of 

an attractive and accessible booklet (this is in the supplementary 

information).  The theme ‘No Time to Waste’ was chosen, with a strap 

line of ‘It’s time to change the way we deal with our rubbish’.   

 

The information booklet was developed by the PR company with the 

OWP. In particular it covered:  

 

Page 195



No Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management Strategy    

 

Oxfordshire Waste Partnership             E15 August 2006 

• The current situation regarding waste management in 

Oxfordshire; 

• Why this cannot continue; 

• The potential costs if we do not act; 

• Progress to-date on waste reduction and recycling; 

• Reduce, reuse, recycle; 

• The options for dealing with residual waste; 

• Oxfordshire Waste Partnership’s waste Strategy; 

• A feedback form with the following questions 

o What would help you to reduce the amount of waste you 

produce? 

o What would most help you to recycle more? 

o Are there any waste collection, waste reduction, recycling 

or waste disposal issues that you think we should consider 

as we prepare to finalise the Oxfordshire Waste Strategy? 

o Other comments 

o What is your postcode? 

o Where did you get this leaflet? 

 

In total, 17,000 No Time to Waste booklets were printed and these 

were made available to members of the public at libraries, leisure 

centres, council offices, one-stop-shops and other public buildings.  

They were also handed out at special roadshows and other 

promotional events/activities organised or supported by members of 

the OWP (e.g. Wild Waste Show, environmental fairs etc.).  A small 

number of booklets were directly mailed to all County Councillors, 

District Councillors, Parish Councils and Community Action Groups. 

The No Time to Waste web pages provided information to further 

expand on issues raised in the booklet, as well as giving people an 

opportunity to feedback on-line.   

 

The web pages were hosted on the Oxfordshire County Council 

website under the URL www.notimetowaste.org.uk.  A link was 

provided from the homepage of all six Councils, the County Council 

intranet and the Oxfordshire ‘schools’ intranet’.  In total, the web 

pages received 1,162 views and 707 visits.  The associated news pages 

Page 196



No Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management Strategy    

 

Oxfordshire Waste Partnership             E16 August 2006 

(i.e. press release pages) on the county council website received 195 

views and 153 visits. 

  

Table 2 below summarises the communications and outreach activities 

employed as part of the public engagement exercise. 

 

Page 197



No Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management Strategy    

 

Oxfordshire Waste Partnership             E17 August 2006 

Table 2 Table 2 Table 2 Table 2 ---- Communication and outreach activities for the Public Engagement  Communication and outreach activities for the Public Engagement  Communication and outreach activities for the Public Engagement  Communication and outreach activities for the Public Engagement 

exerciseexerciseexerciseexercise    

ActivityActivityActivityActivity    SummarySummarySummarySummary    

Press releasesPress releasesPress releasesPress releases    These successfully resulted in a wide-range of media coverage 

including: 

 

• A feature article in the Oxford Times (launch) 

• Coverage in the Banbury Guardian, Herald Series and Oxford 

Mail 

• Interview on BBC South Today  

• Interviews on Touch FM, Fox FM, Mix 96, BBC Radio Oxford.  

 

Radio advertisingRadio advertisingRadio advertisingRadio advertising    A 30-second radio advert ran on Fox FM between 12 June and 2 

July, which is estimated to reach 195,000 county residents aged 

15+. 

 

Bus advertisingBus advertisingBus advertisingBus advertising    40 street liner bus adverts ran across the county bus network 

between 12 June and 7 July. This is estimated to have reached at 

least 60% of the County’s adult residents. 

 

OWP roadshow eventsOWP roadshow eventsOWP roadshow eventsOWP roadshow events    Cherwell District Council’s waste promotions trailer was 

temporarily re-branded with No Time to Waste livery (a picture of 

this is in the supplementary information). 

  

Each District Council was asked to host a minimum of two 

roadshow events using the trailer as a backdrop and these were 

promoted via press releases, on the web and using posters where 

possible. 

 

The road shows had two specific aims.  First, to take the Public 

Engagement’s key messages out to communities and offer expert 

advice first hand. Second to provide another opportunity for 

individual councils to promote waste reduction and recycling 

issues.   

 

In total, 15 road show events were held, each attracting 

approximately between 30 and 100 visitors.  There were: 

 

• 3 roadshows in Cherwell 

• 3 roadshows in Oxford City 

• 4 roadshows in South Oxfordshire 

• 2 roadshows in the Vale 

• 3 roadshows in West Oxfordshire. 

 

Page 198



No Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management Strategy    

 

Oxfordshire Waste Partnership             E18 August 2006 

 

 

Feedback responsesFeedback responsesFeedback responsesFeedback responses    

 

As part of the Public Engagement exercise, Oxfordshire residents were 

invited to give their views and opinions on the issues set out in the 

booklet and on the ‘No Time to Waste’ web pages.   

 

In addition, other organisations helped to contribute to this important 

debate.  In particular, the Banbury Guardian ran a copy of the OWP 

response form for their readers to complete. Also Friends of the Earth 

(FoE) distributed a ‘Yes to recycling, No to incineration’ form to their 

membership in Oxfordshire and through other promotional activities.  

The FoE forms broadly replicate the questions posed in the OWP No 

Time to Waste booklet, with pre-printed answers to:  

 

Q2 What would help you to recycle more? 

 

“I agree with Friends of the Earth, comprehensive recycling, 

including weekly collections of sorted recycled materials and 

segregated food waste; bi-weekly collections of un-sorted 

waste; and charged-for garden waste collections.” 

 

Q3 Are there any other waste collection, reduction of disposal 

issues that you think we should consider? 

 

“I agree with Friends of the Earth: the use of Mechanical 

Biological Treatment using anaerobic digestion for unsorted 

waste, and segregated food waste municipally composting 

using in-vessel composting.  I do not wish to see 

Oxfordshire’s waste burnt in any kind of incinerator” 

 

Responses to all the feedback forms returned between 2 June and the 

extended deadline of 17 July have been processed. More forms arrived 

after this date but were not included in the analysis.   

 

Page 199



No Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management Strategy    

 

Oxfordshire Waste Partnership             E19 August 2006 

In total, 891 response forms were received. Table 3 below shows how 

the responses were received. 

 

SourcSourcSourcSourceeee    Number of ResponsesNumber of ResponsesNumber of ResponsesNumber of Responses    

OWP Booklet  330 

On-line form  169 

Banbury Guardian form 15 

Friends of the Earth form 377 

Total Total Total Total     891891891891    

    

Table 3 Table 3 Table 3 Table 3 –––– Number of responses received from each source Number of responses received from each source Number of responses received from each source Number of responses received from each source    

 

The geographical breakdown of response is set out below in Table 4.  

However, this is an approximate split, as some postcode areas straddle 

more than one district.  

 

SourceSourceSourceSource    Number of responsesNumber of responsesNumber of responsesNumber of responses    

    CherwellCherwellCherwellCherwell    OxfordOxfordOxfordOxford    SouthSouthSouthSouth    ValeValeValeVale    WestWestWestWest    OtherOtherOtherOther    

OWP Booklet  53 60 119 47 46 5 

On-line form  32 59 35 21 17 5 

Banbury Guardian  15 0 0 0 0 0 

Friends of the Earth  32 142 68 87 32 16 

Total Total Total Total     132132132132    261261261261    222222222222    155155155155    95959595    26262626    

    

Table 4 Table 4 Table 4 Table 4 –––– Geographical breakdown of responses Geographical breakdown of responses Geographical breakdown of responses Geographical breakdown of responses    

    

Key messagesKey messagesKey messagesKey messages    

    

Below is a summary of the high-level key messages for the OWP that 

came out of the comments on the feedback: 

•  The OWP should look to take on a community leadership role to 

address excess and unnecessary packaging at source (i.e. 

manufacturers) and/or at distribution (i.e. supermarkets); 

•  Continue to work to improve recycling in the County; 

Page 200



No Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management Strategy    

 

Oxfordshire Waste Partnership             E20 August 2006 

•  Engage the community through on-going public information and 

education; 

•  Note that a significant proportion of respondents (although not 

necessarily residents) are against incineration;  

•  Individual authorities should look to expand the breadth of their 

recycling schemes and ensure consistency when applying 

schemes. 

    

Detailed commentsDetailed commentsDetailed commentsDetailed comments    

 

There were many detailed comments both in answer to the three main 

questions posed and as ‘other comments’. These are broken down 

below by question. 

 

Q1.Q1.Q1.Q1.    What would help you to reduce the amount of waste What would help you to reduce the amount of waste What would help you to reduce the amount of waste What would help you to reduce the amount of waste you you you you 

produce?produce?produce?produce?    

    

The clear message regarding waste reduction is to address it at source 

(or distribution) perceived excess and unnecessary packaging. Typical 

comments include: “Get supermarkets and manufacturers to use less 

packaging” or “persuade manufactures to use less packaging (maybe a 

reduction in council tax for shops that use less packaging)”.  It was 

also suggested that packaging should be recyclable and that a greater 

number of products should be produced in packaging that is refillable 

or returnable. 

 

Plastic bags and unsolicited mail are also cited as waste reduction 

challenges and it was suggested by a number of respondents that a 

“compulsory charge for carrier bags” should be levied and that the 

volume of “unsolicited adverts in post and attached to papers” should 

be reduced. Figure 1 gives more detail. 

 

    

Page 201



No Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management Strategy    

 

Oxfordshire Waste Partnership             E21 August 2006 

    

8 15 17

40 36
50

65 70
90 92

519

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

Subject area

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

m
e
n

ti
o

n
s

Better/more recycling centres

Incentives for recycling

Recyclable Tetra Paks

Fines/punishment for not recycling

Better info/education

Make more products

refillable/returnable

Less junk mail

Make packaging recyclable

Broader/better recycling

service/facilities

Less plastic bags

Less packaging

 

    

Figure 1 Figure 1 Figure 1 Figure 1 ---- Responses to Q1 What would help you to reduce the amount of  Responses to Q1 What would help you to reduce the amount of  Responses to Q1 What would help you to reduce the amount of  Responses to Q1 What would help you to reduce the amount of 

waste you produce?waste you produce?waste you produce?waste you produce?    

(Base: Comments given on OWP Leaflets, OWP Web Forms and OWP Banbury (Base: Comments given on OWP Leaflets, OWP Web Forms and OWP Banbury (Base: Comments given on OWP Leaflets, OWP Web Forms and OWP Banbury (Base: Comments given on OWP Leaflets, OWP Web Forms and OWP Banbury 

GuardiGuardiGuardiGuardian Form, FOE Leaflet)an Form, FOE Leaflet)an Form, FOE Leaflet)an Form, FOE Leaflet)    

    

    

Q2.Q2.Q2.Q2.    What would most help you to recycle more?What would most help you to recycle more?What would most help you to recycle more?What would most help you to recycle more? 

 

The clear message from respondents, regarding recycling, is that 

individual Authorities should look to expand the breadth of their 

doorstep recycling schemes by including additional materials and 

ensure consistency when applying schemes.  Analysis by District 

Council area suggests that for Cherwell and South Oxfordshire this is 

glass, for Oxford City and the Vale of White Horse plastic and for West 

Oxfordshire green waste. Figure 2 shows more detail. 

    

Page 202



No Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management Strategy    

 

Oxfordshire Waste Partnership             E22 August 2006 

2 6 7 12
20 22

38

66

226

0

50

100

150

200

250

Subject area

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

m
e
n

ti
o

n
s

Fines for non-recyclers

Incentives for recycling

More recycling banks

Make all products recyclable

Better/more recycling centres

Better information

Better service for doorstep

collection service

Improvements in boxes/bins

Greater range of collectable items

    

    

Figure 2 Figure 2 Figure 2 Figure 2 –––– Responses to Q2 What would most help you to recycle more? Responses to Q2 What would most help you to recycle more? Responses to Q2 What would most help you to recycle more? Responses to Q2 What would most help you to recycle more?    

(Base: Comments given on OWP Leaflets, OWP Web Forms and OWP Banbury Guardian (Base: Comments given on OWP Leaflets, OWP Web Forms and OWP Banbury Guardian (Base: Comments given on OWP Leaflets, OWP Web Forms and OWP Banbury Guardian (Base: Comments given on OWP Leaflets, OWP Web Forms and OWP Banbury Guardian 

Form)Form)Form)Form)    

    

The text from the preThe text from the preThe text from the preThe text from the pre----printed Friends of the Earth responprinted Friends of the Earth responprinted Friends of the Earth responprinted Friends of the Earth response card (377 se card (377 se card (377 se card (377 

responses) is not shown in this chart.responses) is not shown in this chart.responses) is not shown in this chart.responses) is not shown in this chart.    

    

“I agree with Friends of the Earth, comprehensive recycling, including 

weekly collections of sorted recycled materials and segregated food 

waste; bi-weekly collections of un-sorted waste; and charged-for 

garden waste collections.” 

    

    

Q3.Q3.Q3.Q3.    Are there any waste collection, waste reduction or waste Are there any waste collection, waste reduction or waste Are there any waste collection, waste reduction or waste Are there any waste collection, waste reduction or waste 

disposal issues that you think we should consider as we prepare to disposal issues that you think we should consider as we prepare to disposal issues that you think we should consider as we prepare to disposal issues that you think we should consider as we prepare to 

finalisefinalisefinalisefinalise the Oxfordshire Waste Strategy? the Oxfordshire Waste Strategy? the Oxfordshire Waste Strategy? the Oxfordshire Waste Strategy?  

 

Respondents took the opportunity to repeat messages or raise issues 

that others had commented on elsewhere when presented with the 

Page 203



No Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management Strategy    

 

Oxfordshire Waste Partnership             E23 August 2006 

‘catchall’ questions regarding the Oxfordshire Waste Strategy and the 

open comments question.   

 

Again, doorstep recycling was the predominant issue, although some 

respondents did use this as an opportunity to comment on the future 

waste disposal technologies available to the OWP. Figure 3 shows more 

detail. 

 

    

    

11 12

17
20 20

24

31 32
35

47

53

108

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

Subject area

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

m
e

n
ti

o
n

s

Incentives for recycling

Improve recycling looking at best practice

examples

Make recycling equipment cheaper

More recycling points

Improve the collection service

For incineration

Increase the frequency of collection

Punishments/fines for non recyclers

Educate/inform the public more

For MBT

Against incineration

Increase diversity & consistency of

collected recyclables

 

Figure 3 Figure 3 Figure 3 Figure 3 ---- Q3 Q3 Q3 Q3 Are there any waste collection, waste reduction or waste disposal  Are there any waste collection, waste reduction or waste disposal  Are there any waste collection, waste reduction or waste disposal  Are there any waste collection, waste reduction or waste disposal 

issues that yoissues that yoissues that yoissues that you think we should consider as we prepare to u think we should consider as we prepare to u think we should consider as we prepare to u think we should consider as we prepare to finalisefinalisefinalisefinalise the  the  the  the 

Oxfordshire Waste Strategy?Oxfordshire Waste Strategy?Oxfordshire Waste Strategy?Oxfordshire Waste Strategy? 

(Base: Combined OWP Leaflets, Web Forms and Banbury Guardian Returns)(Base: Combined OWP Leaflets, Web Forms and Banbury Guardian Returns)(Base: Combined OWP Leaflets, Web Forms and Banbury Guardian Returns)(Base: Combined OWP Leaflets, Web Forms and Banbury Guardian Returns)    

Page 204



No Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management Strategy    

 

Oxfordshire Waste Partnership             E24 August 2006 

    

    

The text from the preThe text from the preThe text from the preThe text from the pre----printed Friends of the Earth response card (377 printed Friends of the Earth response card (377 printed Friends of the Earth response card (377 printed Friends of the Earth response card (377 

responses) is not shown in thresponses) is not shown in thresponses) is not shown in thresponses) is not shown in this chart.is chart.is chart.is chart.    

    

“I agree with Friends of the Earth: the use of Mechanical Biological 

Treatment using anaerobic digestion for unsorted waste, and 

segregated food waste municipally composting using in-vessel 

composting.  I do not wish to see Oxfordshire’s waste burnt in any 

kind of incinerator” 

Page 205



No Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management Strategy    

 

Oxfordshire Waste Partnership             E25 August 2006 

Other commentsOther commentsOther commentsOther comments    

    

Other comments are summarized in Figure 4. 

    

    

1

5
7 7 8 8 9

11

16
19 20

22
24

27

48
44

138

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

160

Subject area

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

m
e
n

ti
o

n
s

For ATT

Better policies for elderly/infirm/non

drivers

Increase frequency of collection

Make recycling equipment cheaper/free

For MBT

Reduce packaging/carrier bags

For incineration

Improve by looking at best practice

Happy with service

Incentives for recycling

Punishment/fines for non-recyclers

Improve collection service

Better box/bins for doorstep collection

More recycling points

Against incineration

Educate/inform public better

Increase diversity & consistency of

recyclables

Figure 4 Figure 4 Figure 4 Figure 4 ---- Other comments Other comments Other comments Other comments 

(Base: Comments given on OWP Leaflets, OWP Web Forms and OWP Banbury Guardian (Base: Comments given on OWP Leaflets, OWP Web Forms and OWP Banbury Guardian (Base: Comments given on OWP Leaflets, OWP Web Forms and OWP Banbury Guardian (Base: Comments given on OWP Leaflets, OWP Web Forms and OWP Banbury Guardian 

Form, FOE Leaflet)Form, FOE Leaflet)Form, FOE Leaflet)Form, FOE Leaflet)    

    

    

ConclusConclusConclusConclusionionionion    

    

Page 206



No Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management Strategy    

 

Oxfordshire Waste Partnership             E26 August 2006 

The Community Panel and the Public Engagement exercises provided 

public engagement and involvement for the Strategy development 

process. The Core Strategy also includes provisions for feedback, 

complaints, compliments and comments in the future. 

SupplSupplSupplSupplementary informationementary informationementary informationementary information    

    

    

1. No Time to Waste BookletNo Time to Waste BookletNo Time to Waste BookletNo Time to Waste Booklet 

2. No Time to Waste Promotional TrailerNo Time to Waste Promotional TrailerNo Time to Waste Promotional TrailerNo Time to Waste Promotional Trailer 

    

    

    

    

2. Waste Trailer 2. Waste Trailer 2. Waste Trailer 2. Waste Trailer     

    

    

Page 207



No Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management Strategy    

 

Oxfordshire Waste Partnership             E27 August 2006 

 

Page 208



    

    

The Oxfordshire Waste PartnershipThe Oxfordshire Waste PartnershipThe Oxfordshire Waste PartnershipThe Oxfordshire Waste Partnership    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

Annex GAnnex GAnnex GAnnex G    

    

Glossary and abbreviationsGlossary and abbreviationsGlossary and abbreviationsGlossary and abbreviations    
    

    

    

A
n
n
e
x
 G

 
A
n
n
e
x
 G

 
A
n
n
e
x
 G

 
A
n
n
e
x
 G

 -- --
 G

lo
s
s
a
r
y
 a

n
d
 a

b
b
re

v
ia
ti
o
n
s

 G
lo

s
s
a
r
y
 a

n
d
 a

b
b
re

v
ia
ti
o
n
s

 G
lo

s
s
a
r
y
 a

n
d
 a

b
b
re

v
ia
ti
o
n
s

 G
lo

s
s
a
r
y
 a

n
d
 a

b
b
re

v
ia
ti
o
n
s
    

Page 209



No Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management Strategy    

    

Oxfordshire Waste Partnership G1 August 2006 

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

No Time to Waste:No Time to Waste:No Time to Waste:No Time to Waste:    

The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste StrategyThe Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste StrategyThe Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste StrategyThe Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Strategy

Page 210



No Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management Strategy    

    

Oxfordshire Waste Partnership G1 August 2006 

Glossary and abbreviationsGlossary and abbreviationsGlossary and abbreviationsGlossary and abbreviations    

    

GlossaryGlossaryGlossaryGlossary    

    

TermTermTermTerm    DescriptionDescriptionDescriptionDescription    

 

Advanced 

Thermal 

Treatment 

(Gasification and 

Pyrolysis) 

 

 

A means of recovering energy from waste, known as 

advanced thermal treatment. Waste is heated at high 

temperatures and a useable gas is produced. 

 

Anaerobic 

Digestion 

The biological decomposition of organic material in the 

absence of oxygen, producing biogas (typical composition 

of 65% methane and 35% carbon dioxide) and residue 

(digestate suitable to be used as a soil improver. 

 

Best value The duty on Local Authorities to deliver effective, economic 

and efficient services and seek improvement in the quality 

and standard of their service provision. 

 

Best Value 

Performance 

Indicators 

Best Value Performance Indicators (BVPIs) are gathered and 

submitted by the Government as part of a national set of 

performance measures for the range of local government 

services. There are currently 94 BVPIs that have to be 

included in Best Value Performance Plans, providing the 

public and local and central government with a means of 

monitoring, analysing and comparing the achievements of 

local authorities. 

 

Biodegradable 

Municipal Waste 

The component of Municipal Solid Waste capable of being 

degraded by plants and animals.  Biodegradable Municipal 

Waste includes paper, card, food and garden waste, and a 

proportion of other wastes such as textiles. 

 

Biodegradable This is waste that is able to decompose through the action 

A
n
n
e
x
 G

 
A
n
n
e
x
 G

 
A
n
n
e
x
 G

 
A
n
n
e
x
 G

 -- --
 G

lo
s
s
a
r
y
 a

n
d
 a

b
b
re

v
ia
ti
o
n
s

 G
lo

s
s
a
r
y
 a

n
d
 a

b
b
re

v
ia
ti
o
n
s

 G
lo

s
s
a
r
y
 a

n
d
 a

b
b
re

v
ia
ti
o
n
s

 G
lo

s
s
a
r
y
 a

n
d
 a

b
b
re

v
ia
ti
o
n
s
    

Page 211



No Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management Strategy    

    

Oxfordshire Waste Partnership G2 August 2006 

waste of bacteria or other microbes, including materials such as 

paper, food waste and garden waste. 

 

Bring Site/Bank A bring site or is a localised collection point for recyclables 

such as glass, paper, cans, etc. 

 

Bulky waste Waste is considered ‘bulky’ if it does not fit into the 

householder’s bin.  These wastes are then generally 

collected through District Council bulky waste collections, 

or brought to a Waste Recycling Centre by the householder. 

 

Central 

composting 

Large-scale schemes which turn garden waste from 

households into compost, using windrows (long lines of 

green waste that is shredded and turned frequently). 

 

TermTermTermTerm    DescriptionDescriptionDescriptionDescription    

 

Central 

Government 

 

Government at the level of the nation state. 

 

Co-mingled 

 

Different recyclable materials collected in the same 

container. 

 

Composting 

 

The degradation of organic wastes in the presence of 

oxygen to produce a fertiliser or soil conditioner. 

Digestate Solid and/or liquid product resulting from anaerobic 

digestion. 

 

Dry recyclables 

 

Material such as paper, textiles and cans that are collected 

through kerbside schemes, or delivered to bring banks or 

Waste Recycling Centres. 

 

Duty of Care The duty of care is a law that requires industry to take 

all reasonable steps to keep waste safe. All waste 

handlers must be authorised to transport and recycle 

or dispose of waste safely. The duty of care applies to 

any company that produces or imports, keeps or A
n
n
e
x
 G

 
A
n
n
e
x
 G

 
A
n
n
e
x
 G

 
A
n
n
e
x
 G

 -- --
 G

lo
s
s
a
ry

 a
n
d
 a

b
b
re

v
ia
ti
o
n
s

 G
lo

s
s
a
ry

 a
n
d
 a

b
b
re

v
ia
ti
o
n
s

 G
lo

s
s
a
ry

 a
n
d
 a

b
b
re

v
ia
ti
o
n
s

 G
lo

s
s
a
ry

 a
n
d
 a

b
b
re

v
ia
ti
o
n
s
    

Page 212



No Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management Strategy    

    

Oxfordshire Waste Partnership G3 August 2006 

stores, transports, treats or disposes of waste. 
 

Energy from 

Waste 

The burning of waste to produce energy (heat) which is 

used to generate electricity. 

 

Gasification This is the process whereby carbon based wastes are heated 

in the presence of air or steam to produce fuel-rich gases.  

The technology is based on the reforming process used to 

produce town gas from coal. 

 

Global warming The progressive gradual rise of the earth’s surface 

temperature thought to be caused by the greenhouse effect 

and responsible for changes in global climate patterns.  An 

increase in the near surface temperature of the Earth.  

Global warming has occurred in the distant past as the 

result of natural influences, but the term most often used to 

refer to the warming predicted to occur as a result of 

increased emissions of greenhouse gases. 

 

Greenhouse gas A term given to those gas compounds in the atmosphere 

that reflect heat back toward earth rather than letting it 

escape freely into space.  Several gases are involved, 

including carbon dioxide (CO2), methane (CH4), nitrous 

oxide (N2O), ozone, water vapour and some of the 

chlorofluorocarbons. 

 

Household waste  Waste from collected from domestic properties or delivered 

to bring sites and Waste Recycling Centres, for recycling 

and composting and disposal.   
 

Hazardous Waste 

Regulations 

The Hazardous Waste Regulations 2005 define hazardous 

waste as a material listed in The List of Waste Regulations 

2005 (also known as the European Waste Catalogue).  These 

include items such as fluorescent tubes and batteries. 

TermTermTermTerm    DescriptionDescriptionDescriptionDescription    

  

v
ia
ti
o
n
s

v
ia
ti
o
n
s

v
ia
ti
o
n
s

v
ia
ti
o
n
s
    

Page 213



No Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management Strategy    

    

Oxfordshire Waste Partnership G4 August 2006 

Incineration This is the controlled burning of waste, either to reduce its 

volume or its toxicity.  Ash residues are usually landfilled. 

 

Inert  Innocuous, undamaging, non-toxic.  Something that is non 

detrimental to health or the environment.   

 

In-vessel 

composting 

 

The aerobic decomposition of shredded and mixed organic 

waste within an enclosed container, where the control 

systems for material degradation are fully automated.  

Moisture, temperature and odour can be regulated, and a 

stable compost can be produced much more quickly than 

outdoor windrow composting. 

 

Kerbside 

collection 

Any regular collection of recyclables from private 

households and from commercial or industrial premises.  It 

excludes collections services requested on demand, such as 

ChemCollect (hazardous waste collection) or bulky 

household waste. 

 

Landfill Allowance 

Trading Scheme 

Each country in the UK will be set targets for the level of 

Biodegradable Municipal Waste (BMW) it may landfill. In the 

landfill allowance scheme, allowances will be allocated to 

each local authority at a level that will enable England to 

meet its own target and contribute to achieving the EC 

targets. 

 

Landfill Directive Adopted by the Member States during 1999, the EU 

Landfill Directive is intended to reduce the 

environmental effect on the landfilling of waste by 

introducing uniform standards throughout the 

European Union.  The main objectives are to stimulate 

recycling and recovery of waste, and to reduce 

emissions of methane (a powerful greenhouse gas).   

 

Landfill sites 

 

Landfills are areas of land in which waste is being 

deposited, which often make use of disused quarries. 

  

Page 214



No Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management Strategy    

    

Oxfordshire Waste Partnership G5 August 2006 

Landfill Tax Introduced in October 1996, this tax is levied on 

landfill site operators with the explicit environmental 

objective of reducing the UK’s reliance on landfill as a 

means of disposal.  The level of the tax is £18 a tonne 

during 2005/06, and is set to increase by a further 

£3/year thereafter until it reaches £35/tonne.  A lower 

rate of £2/tonne applies to waste which is inert. 

Local Area 

Agreements Local Area Agreements (LAAs) are made between central 

and local government in a local area. Their aim is to achieve 

local solutions that meet local needs, while also 

contributing to national priorities and the achievement of 

standards set by central government. 

 

TermTermTermTerm    DescriptionDescriptionDescriptionDescription    

 

Local Authority 
Local authority (LA) is a generic term for any level of 

local government in the UK. In geographic terms LAs 

therefore include English counties, non-metropolitan 

districts, metropolitan districts, unitary authorities and 

London boroughs. 

Materials 

Recycling Facility 

 

Dedicated facility for the sorting/separation of recyclable 

materials. 

Mechanical 

Biological 

Treatment 

 

A  generic term for mechanical sorting/separation 

technologies used in conjunction with biological 

treatment processes, such as composting. 

Minerals and 

Waste 

Development 

Framework 

Following the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004, 

it will progressively replace the minerals and waste local 

plans. It contains a statement of the authority's policies 

concerning the disposal of waste and policies concerning 

the working and apportionment of minerals. 

 

Municipal Solid Household waste and any other wastes collected by the 

A
n
n
e
x
 G

 
A
n
n
e
x
 G

 
A
n
n
e
x
 G

 
A
n
n
e
x
 G

 -- --
 G

lo
s
s
a
ry

 a
n
d
 a

b
b
re

v
ia
ti
o
n
s

 G
lo

s
s
a
ry

 a
n
d
 a

b
b
re

v
ia
ti
o
n
s

 G
lo

s
s
a
ry

 a
n
d
 a

b
b
re

v
ia
ti
o
n
s

 G
lo

s
s
a
ry

 a
n
d
 a

b
b
re

v
ia
ti
o
n
s
    

Page 215



No Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management Strategy    

    

Oxfordshire Waste Partnership G6 August 2006 

Waste Waste Collection Authority, or its agents, such as municipal 

parks and garden waste, and waste resulting from the 

clearance of fly-tipped materials.  This also includes waste 

taken to Waste Recycling Centres and bring banks, for 

reuse, recycling or disposal. 

 

Municipal waste This includes all waste collected by a Waste Collection 

Authority, such as households, commercial and industrial 

premises, street sweepings and fly tipping.  Municipal waste 

also includes all wastes deposited at bring banks and Waste 

Recycling Centres. 

 

Pyrolysis During pyrolysis, organic waste is heated in the absence of 

air to produce a mixture of gaseous and liquid fuels and a 

solid, inert residue (mainly carbon). 

 

Quango Stands for ‘quasi-autonomous non-governmental 

organisation’, sometimes referred to as a non-

departmental body. Although quangos are part of 

national government they operate at a distance. The 

Audit Commission is a quango. 

 

Real Nappy Reps Representatives of reusable nappy companies.  The 

representatives are usually local residents that are 

proactive about real nappy usage and waste 

management issues.  

 

Recyclate Post-use materials that can be recycled for the original 

purpose, or for different purposes. 

 

Recycling Recycling involves the processing of waste material, either 

into the same product or a different one.  Many non-

hazardous wastes such as paper, glass, cardboard, plastics 

and scrap metals can be recycled. 

TermTermTermTerm    DescriptionDescriptionDescriptionDescription    

 

Reduction 

 

Reduction can be accomplished through reviewing the 

 G
lo

s
s
a
ry

 a
n
d
 a

b
b
re

v
ia
ti
o
n
s

 G
lo

s
s
a
ry

 a
n
d
 a

b
b
re

v
ia
ti
o
n
s

 G
lo

s
s
a
ry

 a
n
d
 a

b
b
re

v
ia
ti
o
n
s

 G
lo

s
s
a
ry

 a
n
d
 a

b
b
re

v
ia
ti
o
n
s
    Page 216



No Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management Strategy    

    

Oxfordshire Waste Partnership G7 August 2006 

production processes as to optimise utilisation of raw (and 

secondary) materials and resources.  This decreases 

disposal costs and need for raw materials and energy 

usage.  Householders can apply the same principals e.g. 

savvy shopping (buying only the products that they need 

and with less packaging) or stopping junk mail. 

 

Refuse Derived 

Fuel 

A fuel produced from cumbustible waste that can be 

stored and transported, or used directly on site to 

produce heat and/or power. 

 

Regional Self 

Sufficiency 

 

Dealing with wastes within the region or county where they 

arise. 

Regional Spatial 

Strategy 
There will be a regional spatial strategy for every region in 

England. The strategy will decide how much development 

there should be, how it will be spread around the region 

and how it will be delivered. It will make a difference to 

what happens locally to the environment, infrastructure, 

transport, housing, economic development, agriculture, 

minerals and waste. As such, it is of great significance to 

the future of local areas. 

 

Renewable 

Obligation 

Certificates 

 

Introduced in 2002 by the Department of Trade and 

Industry, this system creates a market in tradable 

renewable energy certificates, for which each supplier 

of electricity must demonstrate compliance with 

increasing Government targets for renewable energy 

generation. 

 

Residual waste Waste collected in black sacks or wheeled or deposited at 

Waste Recycling centres for disposal rather than reuse, 

recycling or composting. 

 

Reuse The commercial sector can reuse products designed to be 

used a number of times, such as reusable packing i.e. 

Page 217



No Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management Strategy    

    

Oxfordshire Waste Partnership G8 August 2006 

wooden pallets.  Householders can but refillable containers 

or re-use plastic bags.  Reuse contributes to sustainable 

development and saves raw materials, energy and transport 

costs.   

 

Separate 

collection 

Kerbside schemes where recyclables are collected separately 

to the ordinary household waste collection – by a different 

vehicle or at a different time. 

 

Savvy shopping Shopping in a smart way by choosing to buy items with 

little or no packaging, often saving money too. 

 

Strategic 

Environmental 

Assessment (SEA) 

A SEA is an environmental assessment applied to policies, 

plans and programmes, as required under the SEA Directive. 

 

 

TermTermTermTerm    DescriptionDescriptionDescriptionDescription    

 

Sustainable 

Development 

 

Development which meets the needs of the present without 

compromising the ability of future generations to meet their 

own needs. 

 

Trade/commercial 

waste 

 

Trade waste arises from commercial premises used for 

business, industry, sport, recreation or entertainment and 

excludes household waste. 

 

Treatment This involves the chemical or biological processing of 

certain types of waste to render them harmless, to reduce 

their volume before landfilling, or to recycle certain 

materials. 

 

Waste This is a wide-ranging term including most unwanted 

materials and is defined by the Environmental Protection Act 

1990.  Explosives and radioactive wastes are included. 

 

Waste arisings This is the amount of waste produced in a given area during 

a given period of time. 

A
n
n
e
x
 G

 
A
n
n
e
x
 G

 
A
n
n
e
x
 G

 
A
n
n
e
x
 G

 -- --
 G

lo
s
s
a
r
y
 a

n
d
 a

b
b
re

v
ia
ti
o
n
s

 G
lo

s
s
a
r
y
 a

n
d
 a

b
b
re

v
ia
ti
o
n
s

 G
lo

s
s
a
r
y
 a

n
d
 a

b
b
re

v
ia
ti
o
n
s

 G
lo

s
s
a
r
y
 a

n
d
 a

b
b
re

v
ia
ti
o
n
s
    

Page 218



No Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management Strategy    

    

Oxfordshire Waste Partnership G9 August 2006 

 

Waste Collection 

Authority 

 

The authority responsible for the collection of waste under 

the Environmental Protection Act 1990, and this role is 

fulfilled by the District and City Councils in Oxfordshire. 

 

Waste Disposal 

Authority 

The authority responsible for disposing of waste under the 

Environmental Protection Act 1990, and this role is fulfilled 

by the County Council in Oxfordshire. 

 

Waste hierarchy The waste hierarchy, introduced by the EU Waste framework 

Directive, is an abstract framework that prioritises the 

options for waste management.  It represents a sliding scale 

starting with the most sustainable option (reduction) and 

ending with the least sustainable option (disposal): 

• reduction 

• reuse 

• recycling and composting 

• recovery 

• disposal 

 

All elements of the hierarchy should be supported by policy. 

 

Waste Planning 

Authority 

This is the authority responsible for implementing the 

provisions of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 in 

respect of waste planning.  This role is fulfilled by the 

County Council in Oxfordshire. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

TermTermTermTerm    DescriptionDescriptionDescriptionDescription    

    

Page 219



No Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management Strategy    

    

Oxfordshire Waste Partnership G10 August 2006 

 

WET Act 
 

The Waste and Emissions Trading (WET) Act 2003 is a 

measure, that the government is using to meet the 

demands of the European Landfill Directive. Tying in 

with the targets of the Landfill Directive, the WET Act 

will see progressively tighter restrictions on the 

amount of biodegradable municipal waste (defined as 

food and garden waste as well as paper) local waste 

disposal authorities can landfill. 

 

 

Abbreviations 

 

AbbreviationAbbreviationAbbreviationAbbreviation    Full termFull termFull termFull term    

 

AD 

 

Anaerobic Digestion 

AONB Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty 

AQMA Air Quality Management Areas 

ATT Advanced Thermal Treatment 

BMW Biodegradable Municipal Waste 

BVPI Best Value Performance Indicator 

C&D Construction and Demolition 

C&I Commercial and Industrial 

CAG Community Action Group 

CDC Cherwell District Council 

Cllr Councillor 

Defra Department for the Environment, Transport and Rural affairs 

EfW Energy from Waste 

EIA Environmental Impact Assessment 

EPA Environmental Protection Act 1990 

EU  European Union 

FoE Friends of the Earth 

GVA Gross Value Added 

LAA Local Area Agreement 

LATS Landfill Allowance Trading Scheme 

Page 220



No Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management Strategy    

    

Oxfordshire Waste Partnership G11 August 2006 

MRF Materials Recycling Facility 

MSW Municipal Solid Waste 

MWMS Municipal Waste Management Strategy 

NGOs Non Governmental Organisations 

OBC Outline Business Case 

OCC Oxfordshire County Council 

ODPM Office of the Deputy Prime Minister 

OWMSSG Oxfordshire Waste Management Strategy/Steering Group 

OWP Oxfordshire Waste Partnership 

OxCC Oxford City Council 

RDF Refuse Derived Fuel 

ROCs Renewable Obligations Certificates 

3Rs Reduce, Reuse, Recycle 

SAC Special Area of Conservation 

AbbreviationAbbreviationAbbreviationAbbreviation    Full termFull termFull termFull term    

 

SAM 

 

Scheduled Ancient Monuments 

SEA Strategic Environmental Assessment 

SME Small and Medium sized Enterprises 

SODC South Oxfordshire District Council 

SSSI Site of Special Scientific Interest 

UK United Kingdom 

VWHDC Vale of White Horse District Council 

WCA Waste Collection Authority 

WCS Waste Collection Services  

WDA Waste Disposal Authority 

WEEE Waste Electrical and Electronic Equipment 

WET Waste and Emissions Trading Act 

WODC West Oxfordshire District Council 

WRAP Waste and Resources Action programme 

WRC Waste Recycling Centre 

WRR Waste Reduction and Reuse 

WWS Wild Waste Show 

 

 

 

 A
n
n
e
x
 G

 
A
n
n
e
x
 G

 
A
n
n
e
x
 G

 
A
n
n
e
x
 G

 -- --
 G

lo
s
s
a
ry

 a
n
d
 a

b
b
re

v
ia
ti
o
n
s

 G
lo

s
s
a
ry

 a
n
d
 a

b
b
re

v
ia
ti
o
n
s

 G
lo

s
s
a
ry

 a
n
d
 a

b
b
re

v
ia
ti
o
n
s

 G
lo

s
s
a
ry

 a
n
d
 a

b
b
re

v
ia
ti
o
n
s
    

Page 221



No Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management StrategyNo Time to Waste:  The Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management Strategy    

    

Oxfordshire Waste Partnership G12 August 2006 

 

Page 222



VALE OF WHITE HORSE DISTRICT COUNCIL  Report No.62/06 
 Wards Affected – All  

 
REPORT OF THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE &  

DEPUTY DIRECTOR (PLANNING AND COMMUNITY STRATEGY) 
TO THE EXECUTIVE  
1 SEPTEMBER 2006 

 
Proposal by Thames Water Utilities Ltd. for a Reservoir. 

 
 
1.0 Introduction and Report Summary  
 
1.1 Thames Water Utilities (TW) has announced its intention to begin public consultation on 14th 

September 2006.  It is understood that an exhibition will be open to the public at the Guildhall 
in Abingdon, followed by venues in Steventon, East Hanney and Wantage and that the 
consultation period will last 8 weeks.  It is further understood that this first consultation will set 
out the needs case for a reservoir and the case for it being located in the Vale of White Horse 
area. It is possible that an indication only of its location will be provided at this stage with no 
more than a concept design. 

 
1.2 TW has indicated that it foresees a second public consultation on design and after use 

proposals taking place early in 2007, again with an 8 week consultation period. 
 
1.3 The purpose of this report is to draw some of the immediate issues for this Council to the 

attention of the Executive inviting it to set a framework for this Council’s response and to 
consider future working arrangements with potential partner organisations involved in 
assessing the reservoir proposal.  

 
1.4 The contact officer for this report is Mike Gilbert (01235 540681)  
 
2.0 Recommendations  
 
2.1 a) that the Head of Communications and Leader of the Council be designated as the 

official contact points at the Council; 
 
 b) that all members of the Council be invited to a private briefing on the proposal prior to 

the submission of the Council’s response to the first consultation; 
 
 c) that an extension of time by four weeks be sought from Thames Water to enable this 

Council to consult widely on views before submitting its response; 
 
 d) that the Council should consult its residents for views in a variety of ways, including  

• a special Vale Voice exercise 

• a special edition of Vale Views 

• an invitation to each Town and Parish Council to express a view 

• a whole area structured survey undertaken by an accredited organisation 
such as IPSOS MORI; 

 
e) that the County Council and South Oxfordshire District Council be invited to join the 

proposed consultation exercise, both to avoid duplication and to share the costs; 
 
f) that the Environment Agency be approached to see whether agreement can be 

reached to share consultants on those aspects which directly affect both bodies;  
 
g) that the County Council and South Oxfordshire District Council be approached to 

explore the scope for joint working in order to avoid duplication and additional costs; 
 

Agenda Item 14

Page 223



h) to request the Officers to bring a further report to the next meeting of the Executive, in 
the light of the public consultation by TW, on the resource implications (in both time 
and finance) and proposals on how the Council could best approach its obligations to 
respond to this potential major development. 

 
3.0 Relationship with the Council’s Vision, Strategies and Policies 
 
 This report relates to the Council’s Vision in that it supports all objectives.  The report does not 

conflict with any Council Strategies. 
 
4.0 Issues 
 
4.1 There are a number of issues which are already apparent on which the Executive needs to 

take a view.   
 
4.2 TW is now confident that it intends to seek deemed planning permission through the use of a 

Compulsory Works Order.  This is a specific procedure which enables TW to apply directly to 
the Secretary of State concurrently for permission and any Compulsory Purchase Orders.   
Under this procedure, this Council would be a statutory consultee during the CWO process 
and a principal party at the subsequent Public Inquiry.  As such the Council’s submission to 
the Inquiry would be an Executive function, although it would of course be open to the 
Executive to consult full Council if it so wished.  Despite this intention it remains open to TW at 
any stage to submit a planning application to this Council and the Chief Executive and 
Monitoring Officer have written to every member of the Council urging caution in making public 
comments since this remains an, albeit remote, possibility. 

 
4.3 The Council will inevitably receive a series of comments and questions throughout the whole 

process.  Until the exhibitions begin on 14th September, any approaches can only be referred 
to TW.  However, from that date there will be an increasing expectation on the Council and it 
will be important that PR issues are managed through an agreed protocol.  It is suggested that 
Nikki Malin, Head of Communications, should be the contact officer for communications, with 
Jerry Patterson as the official Council spokesperson.  The Head of Communications will 
necessarily need to refer on technical queries to the appropriate officer within the Council, or 
direct them to TW. 

 
4.4 TW has a tight timescale leading up to a probable Inquiry sometime in 2008.  It has therefore 

set a consultation deadline of 8 weeks.  This deadline is not realistic to enable the Council to 
consult meaningfully with various organisations and stakeholders and it is therefore suggested 
that an extension of time should be sought.  It is not also realistic to believe that the Council 
will be able to give a full response in the timescale allowed and it is therefore likely that a 
holding or interim response will be made.  

 
4.5 The impact of any reservoir will extend beyond the boundary of the Vale.  It is likely that SODC 

and OCC will also wish to consult before responding.  In order to avoid duplication and the 
incurring of additional costs, the County Council and South Oxfordshire District Council could 
be invited to join the consultation exercise.  It is imperative that objective consultation takes 
place to avoid pressure groups (whether in favour of or against a reservoir) from dominating 
any consultation.  Such consultation could comprise the use of Vale Voice, Vale Views, a 
structured survey by an accredited organisation such as IPSOS MORI and writing directly to 
all Town and Parish Councils.  Public meetings are not recommended since they are likely 
disproportionately to attract pressure groups and can become dominated by one or more of 
such groups and therefore focussed on limited issues rather than providing a comprehensive 
overview. 

 
4.6 The Environment Agency has already engaged consultants to research TW’s business and 

needs plan.  Bearing in mind the short consultation timescale, the likely limited availability of 
experts in needs analysis and the costs involved in duplicating research, the Environment 
Agency could be approached to see whether an agreement could be reached to share and 

Page 224



rely on its expert consultants on the needs case.  The Environment Agency has produced a 
briefing note which is duplicated at Appendix A on its position as at July 2006.  It can be seen 
from the briefing note that there are a number of issues relating to the reservoir proposal that 
fall outside the Agency’s remit to consider, in particular, air quality and noise pollution during 
construction, the visual impacts of the reservoir, and traffic during and after construction.  This 
authority, together with the County Council and South Oxfordshire District Council, will need to 
address these issues throughout the CWO process. 

 
4.7 This common, or overlapping, interest suggests a powerful case for seeking to establish joint 

working and it is suggested that approaches are made to the other two Councils to establish 
their willingness and the scope for such work. 

 
4.8 This proposal is one of the most significant potential developments ever to be faced by the 

Council.  It will require considerable resource, both in senior officer time and finance.  The 
Executive will wish to bear in mind that there are a number of other major initiatives such as 
the Great Western Park (Didcot) development and the anticipated planning application for 
Grove which also need to be handled often by potentially the same staff.  It is clearly not yet 
possible to quantify the impact or put forward proposals for mitigating it.  The Executive may 
wish to request a further report from officers on this aspect to its next meeting.  Such a report 
will need to consider the possible engagement of consultants to assist in assessing the issues 
such as noise, pollution and visual impact where these fall to this Authority to lead on.  There 
may also be a need to seek advice on the potential costs and benefits of alternative after use 
proposals.   

 
 

TERRY STOCK 
CHIEF EXECUTIVE 

 
RODGER HOOD 

DEPUTY DIRECTOR (PLANNING AND COMMUNITY STRATEGY) 
 
 

Background Papers:  None 

Page 225



Page 226



Page 227



D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\5\3\9\AI00004935\TreasuryManagementReview0.doc  23/08/06  10:46 

VALE OF WHITE HORSE DISTRICT COUNCIL     Report No. 63/06 
          Wards Affected: ALL 

 
REPORT OF THE STRATEGIC DIRECTOR 

TO THE EXECUTIVE 
1 SEPTEMBER 2006 

 
Treasury Management – Review of Activities in 2005/06 

 
 

1.0 Introduction and Report Summary  
 
1.1 The Council’s Treasury Management Policy requires a report to be made on Treasury 

Management performance in the previous financial year. 
 
1.2 The purpose of this report is to detail the Council’s cash investment performance in the 

financial year 2005/06 and to raise any treasury management issues. 
 
1.3 The Contact Officer for this report is Steve Lawrence, Head of Asset Management, tel: 01235 

540321 
 
2.0 Recommendations  
 

(a) To note the return on cash invested during 2005/06 and the balances of the funds at 31 
March 2006; and, 

 
(b) To note the prospects for the return on cash investments in 2006/07 

  
3.0 Relationship with the Council’s Vision, Strategies and Policies  
 
 (a) Vision Statement objectives A and B. 
 
 (b) The report relates to the Council’s strategy for sound financial management. 
 
 (c) The report complies with the Council’s Treasury Management Policy, approved by Service 

Delivery Policy Overview Committee on 27 November 2001 and Council on 19 December 
2001, and follows the procedures recommended in the revised CIPFA Treasury 
Management Code of Practice, 2002. 

 
4.0 Background and Supporting Information  
 
4.1 This report outlines the performance over the last financial year of those funds managed in-

house and those managed by the Authority’s appointed investment manager (Investec Asset 
Management).  The review of the Fund Manager’s performance is provided by the Council’s 
investment adviser – Butlers.  In addition it gives Members a general overview of the current 
situation in the investment market. 

 
5.0 In-house Investment Performance 
 
5.1 At the beginning of 2005/06 cash held in-house totalled £8.06m. During the year the maximum 

invested at any time was £19.69m and the total cash that passed through the account 
(turnover) was £195m.  In-house investment income in the year amounted to £649,280, thus 
achieving an average return of 4.83%.  At the end of March 2006 the net position was a 
balance of £5.78m 

 
5.2 It was necessary to borrow small amounts for a total of 9 days during the financial year 

2005/06 in order to cover temporary deficits.  The maximum outstanding at any time was 
£2.7m and the average rate of interest paid was 4.54% (annual equivalent).  The borrowing 
limit set by the strategy is £5m. 

Agenda Item 15

Page 228



D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\5\3\9\AI00004935\TreasuryManagementReview0.doc  23/08/06  10:46 

 
5.3 It is difficult to set targets for this sort of operation which aims to maximise returns within the 

constraints of security and flexibility.  Some measure of achievement can be obtained by 
looking at the rates achieved compared to the average 7-day deposit rate provided by Butlers. 

 

Return on cash investments in-house team 7-day rate 

Fin. year 2005/06 4.83% 4.61% 

Previous years:   

Fin. year 2004/05 4.75% 4.58% 

Fin. year 2003/04 3.55% 3.58% 

 
The relatively good performance in 2005/06 was largely due to taking a 2 year investment at a 
good rate with a portion of the proceeds when the Tesco site was sold in 2004. 

 
 
6.0 External Fund Managers 
 
6.1 The performance in 2005/06 is set out below showing the fund manager’s return before 

payment of fees. 
 

Sum Managed at 1.4.2005 
£ 

Sum Managed at 31.3.2006 
£ 

Increase in value at 
31.3.2006 
(gross) £ 

15,077,085 15,754,585 705,440 

 
6.2  The result for Investec shown above equates to a gross rate of return (before fees) of 4.68% 

(4.50% after fees). 
 

Performance over 3 years (net of fees) 
 

Rate of return 2003/04 2004/05 2005/06 

Investec Asset Management 2.59% 4.71% 4.50% 

7 day deposit rate 3.58% 4.58% 4.61% 

7 day rate exceeded by: (0.99%) 0.13% (0.11%) 

L A funds average 3.05% 4.68% 4.59% 

Average exceeded by: (0.46%) 0.03% (0.09%) 

 
6.3 The Council’s investment advisers (Butlers) have reported on the state of the market and the 

performance of the fund manager (Investec).  The consensus in December 2005/January 
2006 was that a cut in interest rates was imminent.  A combination of factors pushed gilt yields 
up and a number of fund managers moved money back into gilts in the hope of capital 
appreciation when yields fell again.  Hopes of a rate cut evaporated with the publication of the 
Bank of England’s Quarterly Inflation Report in February and gilt yields continued to rise.  
Investec, while optimistic, had been cautious, choosing gilts with short durations which limited 
the damage.  However, what might have been a decent performance in 2005/06 was 
undermined by this last quarter. 

 
6.4 The first quarter of 2006/07 continued to be difficult.  Investec reduced its gilt holding which 

proved to be the correct decision and is hopeful of making up lost ground in the rest of the 
financial year. 

 

Page 229



D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\5\3\9\AI00004935\TreasuryManagementReview0.doc  23/08/06  10:46 

7.0 Investment Income Review 
 
7.1 The actual investment income achieved in 2005/06 fell short of the revised budget by £95,330 

(£1,354,720 to £1,450,050).  This shortfall represents 6.6% of the budget and was entirely due 
to the poor performance of the fund manager in the final quarter of 2005/06. 

 
7.2 The investment income calculation for the 2006/07 budget was based on economic predictions 

in January 2006 which were that interest rates were expected to drop off a little in 2006 and 
then climb back as 2007 started.  In the event the base rate was raised in August 2006 from 
4.5% to 4.75% and the market is expecting another rise before the end of the year, although 
economic opinion is divided on this.  The in-house return should be a little better than 
expected and the Fund Manager is optimistic about achieving 5% which was the rate used in 
the forecast.  The final payment on the purchase of an investment property in Canterbury will 
be a little later than anticipated but this will have very little effect. 

 
8.0 Report Conclusion and Summary 
 
8.1 The return on cash invested was lower than expected in 2005/06.  Rising interest rates mean 

that the return in 2006/07 should be better than expected providing that the Council’s Fund 
Manager can recover from a poor start. 

 
8.2 There are no treasury management issues to raise at the moment. 

 
 

STEPHEN LAWRENCE 
HEAD OF ASSET MANAGEMENT 

 
STEVE BISHOP 

STRATEGIC DIRECTOR 
 

 
Background Papers:  
 
Treasury Management Policy agreed by Council 19 December 2001 
Treasury Management Strategy agreed by the Executive March 2006 
Fund manager review published by Butlers 28 April 2006 

Page 230



Agenda Item 16

Page 231



Page 232



Page 233



Agenda Item 19

Page 234

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted


